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Who we are

Investec {compnsing Investec ple and Irvestec Limited) s an international specialist banking group that prowides a diverse range of
financial products ang services to a select client base

Founded as a leasing company n johannesburg in 1974, we acquired a banking licence in 1980 and were listed on the JSE Limited South
Africa in 1986

In July 2002, we wnplemented a Dual Listed Companies (DLC) structure with tinked companies Iisied in London and Johannesburg A
year later, we concluded a significant empowerment transactton n which our empowerment partners collectively acquired a 25 1%
stake in the 1ssued share capHal of Investec Limited

Since inception, we have expanded through a combination of substzntal organic growth and a series of strategic acquisiions Today we
have an efficient ntegrated international business platform, offering all our core activities in the UK and South Africa and select activities
i Australa

What we do

We are organised as a network comprising five business divisions Private Chent Actrvities, Capital Markets Investment Banking Asset
Management and Property Activiies Our head office provides certan group-wide integrating functions and s also responsible for our
central funding and the Trade Finance business

Our strategic goals and objectives are based on the aspiration to be recognised as a distinctive speciahist banking group This distinction
s embodied n our entrepreneurial culture, which 1s balanced by a strong risk management disciphne chent-centric approach and ability
to be nimble, flexible and INnovative We do not seek to be all things 1o alt people and aim to buld well-defined, value-added businesses
focused on serving the needs of select market niches where we can compete effectively

Mission statement

We strive to be a distinctive specialist banking group, driven by commitment to our
core philosophies and values

Values

»  Qutslanding talent - empowered enabled and nspired +  Respeci for others

+  Memocracy +  Embrace diversity

+  Passion energy stamina, tenacity = Open and honest dialogue

+  Entrepreneuiial spint «  Unseffish contibution to colleagues, chents and society
Distinctive Performance Dedicated Partnerships
Client Focus Cast-iron Integrity

+  Distinctive offering = Moral strength

+  Leverage resources «  Rusk consciousness

* Break chima for the client *  Highest ethicail standai ds

Philosophies

*  Single organisation

+  Mentocracy

* Forused businesses

= Dilerenuated, yet integrated

*  Matenal employee ownership

+  Creating an environment that stmulates extraordinary performance

Overview of the year




Overview of the year

Snapshot of the year

QOverview

= Strong group performance

= Benefited from bensgn market conditions

*  Succeeded in bulding scale in the UK and Austrahia
*  South Afnca performed well in local currency

*  Good contribution from all our businesses

*  Strong brand which 15 ganing momentum

+ Disaplined approach to recruiting the best talent

«  Comfortably met all our financial return objectives

Penetrated our core markets

Ogperating profit per employee*
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All businesses contributed to the
performance

Operating profit* by business

+ Operatng profit™ up 200% to £466 6 million
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* Before goodwill non-operating items and taxation

Financial highlights

+  Adjusted attnbutable earnings* up 307% to £3007 million
»  Adjusted earmings per share* up 27 2% to 53 3 pence

+  Proposed full year dmidend up 26 4% to 230 pence

»  Awverage foans and advances up 23 6% to £99 bilion

*  Average third party assets under management up 232% to

€562 billhon

Comfortably met all our financial

targets
Target 31 March 31 March
2007 2006
ROE >20% 26 1% 255%
Cost to income ratio <65% 590% 587%
Adjusted EPS* growth 10% 272% 55 6%
> UK RP}
Dwdend cover (imes)] 17-23 13 23
Capital adequacy rato {13% - 16%] Plc 247 %) Plc 177%
Ltd 147%1 Ltd 163%

Note

These targets were disclosed in May 2004 and are medium to
long-term targets We aim to achieve them through varying
market, conditions

Leveraged off our platforms

Operaung profit* by geography

/ March 2007

6%
36%
58%
March 2006
%
8%
68%
m UK and Europe u Southern Afnca = Australia




Strategic focus

Sustainable business model

A33%
(30% of
total}

Third party assets and advisory Total income of Proprietary risk capitat of
of £542 1mn £1 1315 million £589 4 mn
Net fees and commussions of Net interest income of
£521 5 mn Balance operauonal risk £3439 mn
A 18% businesses with financial risk
(48% of businesses to build a Principal transactions of
total} Other of £21 6 mn sustainzble business model £245 5 mn

v02%
{22% of
total)

Core advisory businesses
Core banking businesses

Secuntisation
Talent management
Business responsibility
Networking and distribution

(31 March 2007)

Note
Analysts excludes ncome from private equity investments that are required to be consolidated

Maintaining efficiency

£ mn
1350

1200 - CAGR 13 6%
1050

900 -
750

CAGR 11 2%
450 -
300 ~
150 -

aOper’a‘mg ncome
GAdmnnrstratrve expenses
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2008 2006 2007
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Overview of the year

Clear growth strategy

«  Continue to push orgamc growth

UK and Europe +  Actively seeking bolt-on acquisitions

+  Contnue to grow orgarucally

Australia *  Actively seeking bolt-on acquisitions

+  Contnue to benefit from strong South Afnican economy

Southern Africa +  Deepen existing strong presence

Outlook

= Good underlying momentum driving arganic growth across businesses

= Recent rating upgrades
- Solid understanding of and disciphined approach to credit.
- Effective capital management

= Good expense control while investing for growth

*  Experienced management team

+  Recognised brand

» The increase n scale and market penetration that we have achieved across all our geographies should continue to support the
operating results of our businesses as expressed in local currencies

+  Assuming current favourable market conditions persist we would expect to dehver on our stated growth and financial return
objectives




Summary of results

31 March | 31 March %
2007 2006 Change

income statement and selected returns
Adjusted earnngs attributable to ordinary shareholders before goodwill and non-operating
rems (£'000) 300 704 230017 307%
Headline earmings {£'000} 294 881 222 B80S 323%
Operating profit before goodwill non-operating items and taxation (£'000) 466 585 388 767 200%
Operating profit before goodwill non-operating items and taxauon SA (% of totah) 57 6% 68 3%
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating ttems and taxation Non-5A (% of total) 42 4% 31 7%
Cost to income ratio 590% 587%
Stall compensation to operating income ratio 409% 40 1%
Return on average adjusted shareholders' equity (post tax) 26 1% 255%
Return on average adjusted Langible shareholders' equity (post tax} 31 7% 327%
Operaung prafit per employee (£'000) 923 915
Net inlerest ncome as a percentage of operating ncome net of insurance clams 292% 26 8%
Non-interest income as a percentage of operating income net of insurance claims 708% 732%
Effective operational tax rate (excluding Assurance Activities) 263% 27 3%
Balance sheet
Total capital rescurces (including subordinated labilties} (£'mithon) 2 665 2042 305%
Total equity (ncluding preference shares and minortty interests) (£ mithon) 1 834 b 512 21 3%
Shareholders equity (excluding minonty interests) {£'milion) | 542 | 226 258%
Total assets (£ million} 26 300 23 901 100%
Loans and advances to customers (£'million) 10 190 9 605 61%
Loans and advances to customers as a percentage of total assets 387% 402%
Thurd party assets under management (£ mullion) 56 086 56 331 (0 4%
Caprtal adequacy rauo Investec plc 24 7% 17 7%
Capital adequacy ratio Investec Limited 14 7% 163%
Salent financial features and key stausucs
Adjusted earnings per share before goodwill and non-operating items (pence) 533 419 272%
Headline earnings per share (pence) 523 4046 288%
Basic earnings per share (pence) 547 538 V7%
Drluted earrings per share {pence) 504 500 08%
Drwidends per share (pence} 230 182 264%
Dadend cover (umes) 23 23 -
Net tangible assel value per share {pence) 1786 1489 19 9%
Weighted number of ordinary shares in issue (milhon) 5638 5488 27%
Total number of shares in 1ssue (million) 6093 5932 27%
Closing share price (pence) 658 588 I'19%
Market capitalisation (£'milhon}) 4 005 3488 14 9%
Number of employees in the group 5 430 4 453 219%
Closing ZAR/£ exchange rate 1420 1072 324%
Ave ZAR/L exchange rate 1338 |43 17 1%

Note
Refer to defintions on page 236 An eight year review 1s prowded on page 34

Presentation of financial information

Under the contractual arrangements implementing the DLC structure, Investec plc and Investec Limited effectively form a single
economuc entity, n which the economic and voting nghts of ordinary sharehalders are equalised In accordance with this structure the
directors of the two companies consider that for financal reporting purposes, the fairest presentation 1s achieved by combirung the
results and financial positon of both companies Accordingly, the results for Investec plc and Investec Limited set out n this report
reflect the results and financial positon of the combined DLC group under International Financiat Reporting Standards {(JFRS)
denominated in Pounds Sterling (1e “lnvestec's consohdated results™) All references in this document referrng to Investec” or " the
group” relate to the combined DLC group comprising Investec plc and Investec Limited
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Operating financial review 2007

Strong performance shows the strength and depth of our business

In another strong year for global financial markets, we are pleased to report a solid performance that enabled us to defver on all our
stated financial objectives These results demonstrate the strength and depth of our business which together with an 'mproved range
of products, has increased our ability to attract tugh quality talent Brand building continues to be a priority and, white we are an
international group with our roots in South Africa, we are starting to gan increasing recognition on the international stage

On balance, all our core geographies performed well in local currencies as we increased the scale of our actvities and peneirated our
key markets We continued to leverage off our platforms, with the UK and Australa performing particularly well following some of the
inttiatives iImplemented over the past four years The UK and Australian operations posted a significant increase in atinbutable post-tax
earnings of 555% and 71 4% respectively compnising a combined 43 8% of total attnbutable earnings South Afnica produced a solid
performance in Rands but increased marginally in Sterling because of the weak exchange rate

As a consequence, adjusted earmings per share (before goodwill and non-operating tems) grew by 27 2% 1o 53 3 pence, from
41 9 pence, with the board recommending a final dmdend of 130 pence per ordinary share This brings Lhe total dividends per share
for the year to 230 pence, up from 182 pence in 2006

Balanced portfolio of businesses

We conlinue to benefit from our balanced portfolo of business, with the majority of our businesses achieving good results

{' Operating profit in the text beiow refers to profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxauon}

Private Client Activities

Private Client Actnities reported strong growth in operating profit of 49 3% to £176 5 milion The performance of the Private Banking
dimision was driven by strong growth in advances and non-interest income The division continued to penetrate its core markets, with
all areas of speciasation performing well Momentum and an evohang brand supported performance with the benefits of scale having
a positive impact on bottom line The average private clent lending book grew by 24 4% to £65 billion and the division increased 1its
average retal deposi book by 28 6% to £52 billon Ongoing momentum supports the outlock of this business with the focus on
reinvestment and using existing strategies for scale and long-term growth

Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbrokng recorded solid growth with the Private Clent business in Scuth Africa
performing strongly and achieving an increase in average funds under management of 33 8% to £7 6 bilklon The division benefited from
increased volumes, higher asset levels, new product launches and a streng focus on efiicency Continued growth in this business will be
supparted by the launch of products appealing to sophisticated private clients, an aggressive approach to asset gathering through the
reorganisation of chent-facing teams and good market fundamentals The Rensburg Sheppards ple integration in the UK was successfully
completed and our results include Investec's 47 1% share of the directors' estimate of the post-tax profit of Rensburg Sheppards plc

Capital Markets

Capital Markets (formerly Treasury and Specialised Finance) posted a significant increase in eperating profit of 75 3% to £117 3 milion
Growth was underpinned by a sohd performance from the dmision's adwvisory structurmg, asset creation, trading and distribution
acuvities, with average advances increasing by 22 2% to £30 bilion A number of the businesses estabhshed over the past few years
made meaningful contributions and increased the capability of the business in the UK

In Australia, we benefited from higher actmity levels and increased scale largely as a result of the acquisition of NM Rothschild & Sons
(Australiay Limited in july 2006 Looking forward we will continue to pursue a strategy around specialist funds, with securiisation and
capital markets a key focus

Investment Banking

Our Investment Banking drasion recorded 2 9 6% decline in operating profit, to £91 2 mithon Corporale Finance benefited from a high
level of actvity from afl underlying businesses across all geographies, with profits mcreasing by 369% The improved quality of
employees, chents and nwvestment portfolios enabled a sirong integrated investment banking platform wath a growing market presence
The unlisted investments within the private equity and direct investments portiolios continued 1o perform well However the
entrepreneunal mvestment component of the Direct Investment division generated less revenue than in prior years

The guality and strength of our deal pipeline and investment portfolios should continue ta drive actimty and sustain momentum We
strive to build value in our direct investments and private equity portfolios independently of market realisations and market conditions




Asset Management

Asset Management achieved an increase in operating profit of 14 7% to £68 | milllon This was underpinned by the strong momentum
of the UK and international business and ongong sound performance n Southern Africa The value of average assets under
management increased by 12 8%, to £308 bilion Solid long-term investment performance continues to support the fundamentals of
the business and we invested in strengthening our manufacturing and distribution capabilities

Momentum across the business remamns positive and we have a number of new initiatives n place to drive future growth

Property Activities

Our Property Activities generated an operating profit of £14 | million, a declne of 239% The South African dvsion continued to
perform well, benefitng from strong equity and property fundamentals higher average funds under management and realisatrons The
results were negatively affected by a lower contribution from our investment property portfolo due to increased funding costs and
rising interest rates

We have a good stock of trading opportunities and have refocused our activities into trading, fund management and private equity”
style funds We are also developing 2 broader local and global property business, offering investors a spectrum of global products and
capitalising on our skills across the group

Group Services and Other Activities

Group Services and Other Actvities posted an operating loss of £07 milhon This was largely as a result of increased vanable
remuneration, given the growth n our profitability and a dectine in the contribution from our assurance activities

We remain well caprtalised

We have been able to sustain our growth through internal capital generation and have a solid capital position across the group We
also believe we are in a comfortable position for Basel Il which comes into effect in January 2008

The capital adequacy ratio of Investec plc s 24 7% largely as a result of the issue of £131 2 million of non-redeemable non-cumutative
nen-participating preference shares and a £350 millon Upper Tier |l perpetual caprtal 1ssue Investec Limited has a capital adequacy
ratio of 14 7% which 1s well above mimmmum accepiable requirements and within our target range We have bolstered our capital base
in Austraba in order to sustain the future growth anticipated in that region investec Bank (Austraha) Limited, 1s now well caprtaised
at 23 8% We remamn committed to mamntaining a level of capital that can be used efficiently in our daly activities, while ensuring that
we have a sufficient capital buffer to support our strong growth aspirations

Sustainability efforts enhanced

Dunng the past year we strengthened our sustainability efforts, motrvated by our desire to be an eflectve corporate crizen ang we
were included, for the first time, In the Dow |ones Sustainabihty Indices We adopled a formal philosophy on our sustamabilily approach
known as * Our Business Responstbility for internal dialogue and reporting purposes which was rolled out 10 raise awareness across
the group

Our sustainability efforts in South Alrica have traditionally focused on the backlog of socie-economic needs in Lthe countiy Our sogial
Investrnent activilies have an entrepreneurnl focus, including nnovative efforts on CIDA City Campus and The Business Place which
has won us many accolades Our UK business also made progress in ther sustanability drive winning the prestigious City of London
prize for best of breed practices in the field of waste management

in the year ahead we will seek to perpetuate ‘Our Business Responsibility” effort, both nternally and externally We will do this by
attempling to empower communities through entrepreneurship and education, recognising the true value of diversity and addressing
the challenges posed by climate change and the use of natural resources

In South Africa we continue our transformation and empowerment efforts, striving for greater representivity within the organisabion
by supporting black entrepreneurs and creating empowerment platforms In Apnl 2007, we submilied our second financial sector
report to the Charter Council, which was reviewed and mcluded a comprehensive analysis of our positioning in this regard We are
pleased to have sustaned an A’ rating

Overview of the year
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Strong values support a solid culture of governance

Our strong values of integrity, responsibility and risk ¢onsciousness underpin our solid culture of governance We believe that effective
communication 15 fundamental In bulding stakeholder relationshups and, as a board, we are committed to providing meaningful,
transparent, tmely and accurate financial and non-financial information to all our stakeholders A number of inhatves are in place to
ensure the highest standard of corporate governance in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate

Credit goes to all our people

Credit for our performance ulumately goes to over 5 000 dedicated employees in our offices around the world who drive our success
and make us distinctive The growth path of the group 1s chartered by its leaders and we have many excellent people at the helm The
overall performance of the group is aided by a strong board of directors We thank the board for nts continued suppeort and
commutment which have enabled us to drive the group forward

Even though our staff numbers have grown substantially in the past few years, we have a well-established culture which emphasises
open and honest communication and support between management and staff Furthermore we are always mindful that our financial
performance 1s very much dependent on the continued support of our clients and shareholders, and we will continue to remain
responsive 1o their evolving needs

Our strategy 1s to be distinctive

Our strategy 1 to be a distinctive specialist banking group driven by commitment to our values and philosophies To deliver on our
strategy, we focus on maintaining a balanced portfohio of business, leveraging ofl our existing platforms and bullding our lean partfolios
In hne with this growth strategy, in July 2006 we acquired NM Rothschild & Sons (Australia) Limited which bolstered our operations
in that region

Going forward we will continue to push organic growth in the UK and Europe and Australia, focusing on bringing in new clients and
seeking revenue generation While this 1s an important driver of cur growth, we also continue to look for’ bolt-on” acquisitions, where
we can bulld on and enhance our exasting capabihties In South Afnca we will continue to grow organically and we expect to benefit
from the strong local economy which shauld assist in deepering our presence in thes geography

The outlook remains encouraging

Good underlying momentum continues to drive organic growth acress the businesses in all our geographies Although expenses have
grown, we have a disciplined approach to cost control, while nwesting for growth Our experienced management team are experts in
their fields and we believe that our brand I1s becoming well recogrised We expect to benefit from recent recrutment of talented staff,
which should suppert the increase in scale and market penetration that we have experienced across all our geographies Given our
balanced portfolio of business activities we believe that If current market conditions persist, we will continue to deliver on our stated
growth and financial return objectives

i
'@h%{;an/ StepHe 4 %
d

Charrman ef Executive Officer Managing Director

The operating finangial review provides an overview of our strategic position performance during the financial year and outlock for
the business It should be read together with the sections that follow on pages % to 152 which elaborate on the aspects highbighted in
this review




Financial review

Investec delivered a solid set of results driven by strong performances from our
balanced portfolio of businesses.

This commentary and analysis of our financial results for the year ended 31 March 2007 prowvides an overview of our financial
performance refative to the group'’s results for the year ended 31 March 2006 Further detall on the performance of our business
dnisions 15 prowded in the Dwisional Review section of this report The commentary and analysis are based on our consolidated
fimancial results presented n accordance with IFRS denominated in Pounds Sterling The financial information discussed below 1s based
on the period under review, and may not necessarily reflect the financial condition or resulls of the operations of the group going
forward

Solid growth record

Adjusted earnings per share before goodwill and non operatng iwems*
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60 -
513 up 27 2% 1053 3p ]
50 4 (
49
40 —
10 - %9
52 154
220 > > 208 (
20 198 192
b 145 159
10 4 | II \ ‘ \
1997°  a9ee’ 1999 20000 2o 2002 2000 2004 2005 2008 2007

Adjusted attributable earnings before goodwill and non-operating items

£ mn

320 3007

180
240 —
200 ~
160
120
80 -

473
10 4

575

1158

up 30 7% to £3007 mn

]

2300

149 5

1062

(]
)

1997

u
)

1998

alsll
) ) )

1999

2003

-
)

S

Note

Resulls are shown for the year ended 31 March Prior to 2005 the numbers are reported n terms of UK/SA GAAP and thereafter in

terms of IFRS

¥ Histoncal EPS numbers have been adjusted for the 5§ share split that tock place on 4 September 2006
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Third party assets under management

£bn
9 %63 sei
— Largely impacted by RE£
56 ( depreciauon
Currency neutral
40 nerease of 153% to £65 bn
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Note

Results are shown for the year ended 31 March, unless otherwise indicated Prior to 2005 the numbers are reported in terms of UK/SA

GAAP and thereafter in terms of IFRS




An overview of Investec’s key income drivers

Investec provides a wide range of financial products and services to a miche chent base in three principal markets, the UK South Africa
and Australia Investec s organised as a network comprising five principal business divisions Private Chent Activiuies, Capital Markets,
Investment Banking, Asset Management and Property Activities

In addition our head office provides certain group-wide integrating functions such as Risk Management, Information Technology, Finance,
fnvestor Relations, Marketing Hurnan Resources and Organisational Development It s also responsible for our central funding and
other activities such as ourTrade Finance operations

There are therefore a number of key ncome drivers for our business which are discussed below

Business activity

Key income drers

Income impacted primarily by

Income statement
- reflected as

[ Private Client Activities

Private Banking

* Interest earned n
connection with the bank's
lending activruies

+ Fees earned for advisory,
banking and iending
services

* Income earned in respect
of growth and acquisiicn
finance activities

« Size of loan portfolio * Net nterest income

* Interest rate environment

* Levels of aclvity +» Net intet est income and
fees and commussions

* Quality of transactions and » Fees and commssions and

deal flow principal transactions

Private Client
Portfolio Management
and Stockbroking

* Fees levied as a
percentage of assets
under management

» Commussions earned
for executing transactions
for clients

* Performance fees paid for
achieving outperformance
against benchmark

4

* Movement in the value of * Fees and commussions
assets underlying clent
portfolios
* The level of clients’ nvestment
actmity, which i turn s affected
by, among other things the
performance of the global stock
markets the equity nvestrent
risk appetrte of our clents
and market hiquidity

Caprtal Markets

* Trading and hedging

* Product structuring and
distribution

* Asset creation

» Client actiity * Principal transactions

* Market opportunities

* Volatiity and hquidity

* The level of clients' investment
activity which m turn s affected
by among other things the
performance of the global markets
and the investrment nsk appelte of
our clents

* Distribution channels

* Ability to create innovative
products

* Rate environment

* Size of loan portfolio

+ Cradit spreads

* Clients capital and infrastructural
nvestments

*» Fees and commussions and
principal transactions

* Fees and commussions

* Net interest income

* Principal transactions (in
certan cases)

Overview of the year
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An overview of Investec’s key income drivers

Business activity Key ncome drivers

Income impacted primarily by

Income statement
- reflected as

= Advisery

* The demand for our specialised
adwisory servces, which n turn,
15 affected by applicable tax,
regulatory and other economic
factors e g project actaty n the
relevant markets

* Fees and commussions

Jnvestment Banking

Corporate Finance + Fees resullng from the
provision of caprtal raising

and financial advisory work

* Macro- and micro- economic
fundamentals

* Industry-specific trends

* Underlying stock market actrty
particularly in our primary
markets

* Fees and commissions

Institutional Research,
Sales and Trading

* Brokerage commussions
+ Trading and market making
aclivities

» Stock market trading volume
and volatifity

+ Chent allocation of broking
transactions

» Qur ability to source securities
and execute trades on behalf of
our clients

+Fees and commissions and
principal transactions

Private Equity and Direct  + Sale of mvestments and
Investments revaluation of trading
Investments
* Dvidends

* Macro- and micro- economic
market conditions

* Availlability of profitable esat
routes

« Whether appropriate market
conditions exist ta maximise gains
on sale

= Attractive investment opportunities

* Principal transactions

Asset Management

* Fees levied as a percentage
of assets under
management

+ Mavements in the value of the
assets underlying chent portfolos
s Performance fees earned on chent

portfolios

« Fees and commissions

Property Activities

* Fees levied as a percentage
of assets under
management

* Administration fees for
managing chent portfalos

* Trading and development
actvities

- Movemenits in the value of assets
underlying client portfohos

» Efficiency and scale of
administration services

* Macro- and micro- economic
market condiilons

« Avallability of profitable ext routes

* Whether approprate market
conditions exist to maximise gans
on sale

* Fees and commussions

* Principal transactions

proup Services and Other Activities

* Internaticnal Trade s These businesses eamn a
Finance variety of management
and banking fees,
brokerage, commissions

= As this division 15
responsible for the groups
central funding
requirements, this sncome
15 offset by the cost of
group funding (net of
return on the groups
central capnal)

* Central Funding

A vanety of factors including

* Interest rate environment

* Rand/Dollar exchange rate, in the
case of the Intemational Trade
Finance operations

* Level of client actmvity

* All categornies of Income
other than net operating
incorne from associates and
assurance actnities




A balanced portfolio of businesses

«  We have a much more balanced portfoho of businesses than we did n 2000
+ We will continue to balance our operational risk businesses with financial sk businesses to build a sustainable business model

% contribution to operatng profit*
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*  Before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation, and excluding Group Services and Other Activiies
Results are shown for the year ended 31 March

Risks relating to Investec's operations

We face a number of risks that could affect our business operations These risks are summansed briefly in the table balow For
information pertaining to the management and monitoring of these risks, see the references provided

Key risks Managing risks - further information

= Market risk, conditions and fluctuations could adversely affect our businesses in a number
ol ways See pages 83 to 87

» Qur risk management polices and procedures may leave us exposed to umdentified or See pages 7| to 99
unanucipated risks

« Credit sk exposes us to losses caused by financial or other problems experienced by See pages 74 to B3
our chents

» Liguidity risk may impair our ability 1o fund our operations See pages 90 1o 93

= Qur net interest earnings may be adversely affected by interest rate risk See pages 87 to 89

«We may be unable to recrutt, retain and motivate key personnel See obr website

= Employee misconduct could cause harm that 1s drificult to detect See pages 95 and 96

+ Operational risk may disrupt our business or result in regulatory action See pages 95 and 96

+We may be vulnerable to the farlure of our systems and breaches of our secunity systems | See pages 95 and 96

* We may have msufficient capital in the future and may be unable to secure additional See pages 97 to 99
financing when 1t 1s required

* The financial services industry in which we operate 15 intensely competitive See pages 6 to 8 and |4 and |5

» Lepal and regulatory risks are substantial in our businesses See page 97

* Reputational risk See page 97

Additional risks and uncertamnties not presentdy known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may in the future also impair our
business operations Our business financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risk
factors
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Overview of the year

Risks relating to the markets in which Investec operates

Due to the nature of our businesses, we have been and will continue to be affected by changes in a number of macro-economic
fundamentals These include the condition of worldwide financial markets, general economic cycles, levels of exchange and interest rates
and inflation, in particular in the UK, South Africa and Australa, where the group denives most of its profit as well as to a lesser extent,
the US and Europe

Fluctuations in exchange rates

Our reporting currency ts Pounds Slerling Certain of our operations are conducted by entibes ouiside the UK The results of
operations and the financial condibon of our mdvidual companies are reported i the local currenaes in which they are domiciled,
including Rands, Austrahian Dollars Euros and US Dollars These results will then be translated into Pounds Sterling at the applcable
foreign currency exchange rates for nclusion in our combmed conselidated financial statements In the case of the income statements
the weighted average rate for the relevant period 1s applied and, n the case of the balance sheets, the relevant closing rate 15 used

The table below sets out the movements in refevant exchange rates against Pounds Sterling over the reporting period These rates are
indrcative only and are not necessartly the rates at which the relevant currencies were converted into Pounds Sterting, for the purposes
of preparation of our combined consolidated financial statements

Currency per £1 00 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Year end | Average | Yearend | Average
South African Rand 1420 1338 t072 1143
Australizn Dollar 242 247 244 237
Euro | 47 | 47 I 43 147
US Dollar 196 [ 90 | 74 178

Source Datastrearn

Exchange rates between locat currencres and Pounds Sterling have fluctuated over the year The most signilicant impact arises from the
depreciation of the Rand The average exchange rate over the year has depreciated by 17 1% and the dosing rate has deprecated by
324% since 31 March 2006

Notwithstanding, the deprecation of the Rand we have posted z solid increase in earmings as a result of a very strong performance
from our UK and Australian eperations which recorded an increase in net profit after tax, before goodwill and non-oper ating tems of
55 5% and 71 4%, respectively

The following table prowides an analysis of the impact of the Rand depreciation on our reported numbers
Results as | Currency neutral

reported at results at
31 March 2007 |31 March 2007%

Southern African operating profit* {£'000) 268 673 319 724
Southern African profit after tax* (£000) 195 735 232832
Total group operating profit before tax* (£'000} 466 585 517 636
Adjusted earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders*® 300 704 333 001
Adjusted EPS* (pence) 533 591
Total assels (£'mithon) 26 300 31095

* Before goodwill and non-operating items

** For balance sheet items we have assumed that the Rand Pound Sterling closing exchange rate has remained neutral since
31 March 2006 For income statement items we have used the average Rand Pound Sterling exchange rate that was applied in the
prior year re || 43

Fluctuations In interest rates

The shape of the yield curve, the time lag between changes In interest rates applicable to assets and habiities, and the volatility of
interest rates in each of our principal geographic markets can affect our net interest Income, principal transactions generated by the
Interest Rate and Farex desks and fees n our Capital Markets drvision As a matter of policy, we do not take on maternial unhedged,
long-dated interest rate positions The table on the following page sets out movements in certain interest rates, affecung our businesses
over the reporting period




31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Year end | Average | Year end | Average
UK Clearing Banks Base Rate 525% 482% 450% 459%
LIBOR - 3 month 562% 508% 461% 468%
South Africa Prnme Overdraft Rate 12 50% I'162% 1050% 1052%
hbar - 3 month 9 18% 8 30% 709% 705%
Reserve Bank of Austraha cash target rate 625% 599% 550% 550%

Source Datastream

Macro-economic data

Key macro-economic data pertaining to the group's three pnncipal geographies the UK, South Africa and Australia 1s set out below

3| March 31 March
2007 2006

UK
GDP (% change over the period) 219% 22%
FTSE All Share Index (year-end) 32832 30480
FTSE All Share Index (% change over the period) 77% 240%
Per capita GDP (£} 21 311 20 143
Per capita GDP (% change over calendar year) 22% 1 5%
Seurce Office for National Staustics
South Africa
GDP (% real growth over the period) 50% 45%
JSE All Share Index (year-end) 27 2672 203517
JSE Al Share Index {% change over the penod) 340% 530%
Per capita GDP (real value) (R} 25 300 24 421
Per capita GDP (% real growth change over calendar year) 36% 36%
Source South Afncan Reserve Bank Quarterly Bulletin
Australia
GDP (% change over the period) 27% 31%
All Ordinaries Index (year-end) 55788 508712
All Ordinaries Index (% change over the period) \75% 24 1%
Per capita GDP (A$) 48 684 45 353
Per capita GDP (% change over calendar year) F2% | 3%

Source Austrahon Bureau of Statistics

Salient features of the group’s results in the year under review

A number of significant corporate actions have been undertaken during the year under review and the previous financial year which

have a bearing on our performance and these are highlighted below

Investec plc ssued an addional £50 6 milion non-redeemable, non-cumulative non-partcipaung preference shares on

22 February 2007

Following shareholder approval the group implemented a subdrvision of the ordinary shares of both Investec plc and Investec
Limited by way of a five for one spht, effective 4 September 2006

Invesiec plc ssued £806 million (RI 036 millien) non-redeemable, non-cumulative, non-participating preference shares on

3 August 2006

The consolidation of two private equity investments effectve May 2006 and July 2006 respectively

The acquisition of NM Rothschild & Sons (Austraha) Limited effective 7 July 2006

A subsidiary of Investec plc issued @200 milion (£133 million) preferred secuniies in June 2005

The sale of our UK Private Client Stockbroking business Can Sheppards Crosthwaite Ltd to Rensburg ple on 6 May 2005 We
retan a 47 1% nterest in the combined entity Rensburg Sheppards plc

Income statement analysis

Further details on the key income drivers and significant varances in the various components of the groups operaling income, expenses
and profit can be found In the descnpuon of our prncipal businesses on pages 35 to 70
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Total operating iIncome

Operating income increased by 22 0% to £1 177 mullion (2006 £364 6 miflion) The various components of total operabing ncome are

analysed below

£'000 31 March | % oftowl | 31 March | % of total %
2007 income 2006 income Change
Net interest income 343915 292% 259 |52 269% 327%
Other income 833 202 708% 705 403 73 1% 18§%
Net fees and commissions recenable 521 498 44 3% 436 874 45 3% 19 4%
Principal transactions 245 463 209% 246 059 255% (02%)
Operating ncome from associates 10 685 09% 6 694 07% 59 6%
Net mcome on Assurance Activities 5871 05% 13 055 ! 3% (550%)
Other operating income 49 685 42% 2721 03% >100%
Total operaung income net of msurance claims 1177 117 100 0% 964 555 100 0% 220%
The following table sets out information on total operating mcome by geography for the period under review
£000 31 March % of total | 31 March | % of total %
2007 Income 2006 Income Change
UK and Eurcpe 520 979 44 3% 364 687 37 8% 429%
Southern Africa 581 441 49 4% 549 263 570% 59%
Australia 73 998 62% 42 643 44% 735%
Other geographies 699 01% 7962 08% (912%)
Total operating income net of insurance claims 1177 117 100 0% 964 555 100 0% 220%
The lollowing table sets out information on total operating income by division for the period under review
£'000 31 March | % oftotal | 31 March | % of total %
2007 Income 2006 income Change
Private Banking 343 700 292% 247 508 25 6% 389%
Private Chent Porticlio Management and Stockbroking 41 261 35% 37 764 39% 93%
Capital Markets 27t 957 231% 182 132 18 9% 49 3%
Investment Banking 208 795 177% 83 020 190% 14 1%
Asset Management 188 556 16 0% 71 454 |7 8% 100%
Property Activities 34 400 30% 38 528 40% (107%)
Group Services and Other Actvities 88 448 75% 104 149 10 8% (1519}
Total operating mcome net of insurance claims P77 117 100 0% 964 555 100 0% 220%

Net interest income

Net interest income represents interest earned net of interest paid in connection with our portfolio of bank accounts deposits, lending
activity and financial structured products MNet interest income increased by 32 7% to £3439 milhion (2006 £259 2 million) as a result

of strong growth n advances and increased cash holdings within the Central Funding division

£'000 31 March 3| March Variance | % Change
2007 2006

Private Banking 217 435 165 308 52127 315%
Private Chent Portfolio Management and Stockbroking 6 480 (474) (98 8%)
Cap#tal Markets 89 078 71228 17 850 251%
Investment Banking (2 457) 2216 (4 673) >1000%
Asset Management 5242 4 050 I 192 254%
Property Activities (5 801} (4 002) (1 799) 450%
Group Services and Other Activities 40 412 19 872 20 540 >[000%
Net interest income 343 915 259 152 84 763 327%




Net fees and commissions receivable

Net fees and commussions recevable consist of fees recevable for the proviston of asset management, investment adwice, banking
services retainers, institubional stockbroking comrrussions and brokerage and similar tems that are hikely to recur due to the repetitive
nature of these actvites Also included are facility arrangement fees, corporate finance fees and similar items that are transactional in
nature and therefore create more erratic income streams, offset by fees and commussions payable which predominantly comprise
brokerage payable, banking fees and similar charges

Net fees and commussions increased by [94% to £521 5 milhon (2006 £4369 millon) benefiting from increased transactional actmvity
and higher assets under management.

£'000 3! March 31 March Variance % Change
2007 2006

Private Banking 109 596 70 675 18 921 551%
Private Chent Portfolio Management and Stockbroking 28053 30 264 (2211 (7 3%)
Capital Markets 80 190 55 878 24 312 435%
Investment Banking 21 904 82 633 9 271 2%
Assel Management 180 539 165 890 14 649 88%
Property Activities 28 354 20 586 7 768 377%
Group Serwices and Other Actwities 21862 10948 (8 086) (739%)
Net fees and commusstons receivabie 521 498 436 874 84 624 19 4%

Principal transactions

Principal transaclions comprise trading income the marking-to-market of interest rate nstruments equities and other securrlies such
as foreign exchange instruments profit on the disposal of dealing properties dvidends received and the profit/loss on realisation of the
group's trading investments

Income from principal transactrons decreased marginally by 02% to £245 5 mulion {2006 £246 | miflion) Our Growth and Acquisition
Finance, Principal Finance (securitisation) and Capital Markets lending divisions delivered a strong performance This result was offset
by a relatively weaker performance from some of the underlying investments in the Direct Investments, UK Private Equity Property
and Central Funding drvisions

£'000 31 March 31 March Variance % Change
2007 2006

Prrvate Banking 6 381 bl 657 4724 405%
Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking 3137 631 2 506 >1000%
Capntal Markets 102 700 55 098 47 602 B6 4%
Investment Banking 73719 97 864 (24 145) (24 7%)
Asset Management 171 I 514 {1 343) (88 7%)
Praoperty Activities Il 847 21 387 {9 540) (44 6%)
Group Services and Other Actvities 37 508 57 908 (20 400) (35 2%)
Principal transactions 245 463 246 059 (596) {0 2%)
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Operating income from associates

Operating income from associates increased by 59 6% to £107 milhon (2006 £6 7 milion) The current year's figure includes Investec's
47 1% share of the directors’ estimate of the post-tax profit of Rensburg Sheppards plc for the period | Aprd 2006 to 31 March 2007
In the prior year Rensburg Sheppards plc was accounted for as an associate with effect from 6 May 2005

£'000 31 March 31 March Variance | % Change
2007 2006
Operating income from associates | 10 685 l 6 694 | 3931 I 59 6% l

Net income on Assurance Activities

The deckne in net tncome from assurance actvities 1s as a result of the reinsurance of the group nsk business After adminustration
expenses a profit of £1 & million (2006 £11 5 milhon} was generated from assurance actmities, which represents the residual earnings
from the businesses that were retained

£:000 31 March 31 March Variance | % Change
2007 2006

Investment ncome on Assurance Actities 36 821 141 559 (104 738) {740%)

Premiums and reinsurance recoveries on Insurance contracts 80 542 164 631 (84 089) (51 1%)

Claims and reinsurance premiums on nsurance business (111 492y (293 135) 181 643 {620%)

Net income on assurance activities 5 871 13 055 (7 184) {55 0%)

Other operating income

Other operating income amounis 1o £49 7 milion (2006 £27 milltan) The operating results of two nvestments held wathin the Private
Equity portfolo have been consofidated with the respective micome and expenses reflected in other operating income and administratson
expenses These nvestments generated a net loss after tax and minonty nterest of £23 milllon Any realsation of these investments in
excess of their carrying values will be recogrised as income from principal transactions The two investments are Global Ethanol Holdings
umited and ldatech LLC (see page 204 for further information}

Impairment losses on loans and advances

Imparment losses on loans and advances increased by 80 5% to £165 mulion (2006 £9 2 milion} The 2006 year included recovertes
of approximately £65 million and we have seen a moderate increase In impatrment losses in the 2007 year in ne with growth in
advances

The percentage of gross defaults 1o loans and advances has increased from 09% to 1 2% Total impairment coverage as a percentage
of net defaults (gross defaults net of security) remains highly satisfactory at 137 9% (2006 14t 4%) Further information on our asset

quahty 1s provided on page 79

£'000 31 March 3§ March Variance % Change
2007 2006

Private Banking (6 932) | 745 (8677)] =>1000%
Capilal Markets (% 925) (12 342) 2417 (19 6%)
Investment Banking (" mnm (723)] =>1000%
Asset Management - (16) 16 100 0%
Group Services and Other Activities 328 731 {403) (55 1%)
Impairment losses on loans and advances {16 530) (9 160) (7 370) 80 5%




Administrative expenses

Total administraive expenses increased by 21 8% to £6807 mithon (2006 £558 9 million) Variable remuneration increased by 31 2%
to £2058 milion due to increased profitability Other operating expenses (excluding vanable remuneration) increased by 18 1% to
£474 9 mullion fargely as a result of an increase in headcount in certan of the businesses in ine with our growth miliatives, an increase
In costs associated with compliying with new and forthcoming regulatory requirements, an investment in product development and 1T
infrastructure and the consolidation of two private equity investments (resulting in an additional £25 milion of costs)

We achieved our target of operating expenses to total operating mcome of less than 65% with the ratio increasing marginally from
587% to 59 0%

£'000 3i March | % of total | 31 March | % of total %
2007 expenses 2006 expenses Change

Staffl costs (including directors' remuneration) (482 020) 708% (386 393) 69 1% 247%
- fixed (276 177) 406% (229 506) 41 0% 203%
- varable (205 843) 302% (156 887) 28 1% 312%
Business expenses {105 943) 15 6% (83 345) 149% 27 1%
Equipment (excluding depreciation) (29 684) 44% (27 3t1) 49% 87%
Premises (excluding depreciation) (35 610) 52% (39 132) 70% (90%)
Marketing expenses (27 430) 40% (22 706) 4 1% 208%
Administrative expenses (680 687) 100 0% (558 887) 100 0% 21 8%

The following table sets out certain informauion on adrministrative expenses by geography for the period under review

£'000 3] March | % oftotal | 31 March | % of total %
2007 expenses 2006 expenses Change
UK and Europe (339 409) 49 9% (248 053) 44 4% 368%
Southern Africa (228 911} 439% (277 482) 49 6% 77%
Australa (42 049) 62% (25 376} 46% 657%
Other geographies (318) - (7 976 4% (960%)
Administrative expenses {680 687) 100 0% (558 887) 100 0% 21 8%

The following table sets out certan information on admenistrative expenses by dvision for the penod under review

£000 31 March % of total | 31| March | % of total %
2007 expenses 2006 expenses Change

Private Banking (179 570) 264% (145 044) 260% 238%
Private Clent Portfoho Management and Stockbroking (1% 104 28% (21 Ot4) 38% (9 19%)
Capital Markets (143 793) 201% 1 (102 549) 183% 402%
Investment Banking (113 068) 16 5% (82 669) 14 8% 368%
Asset Management (119 542) 17 6% (111 163) 19 9% 75%
Property Activities {20 174) 30% (19 823) 35% | 8%
Group Services and Other Activities (85 436) 125% (76 625) 137% I'15%
Administrative expenses {680 687) 100 0% (558 887) 100 0% 21 8%
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Financial objectives and performance

Cost to income ratio (COI) and staff compensation to operating income ratio (SC)
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We have significantly rationalised and restructured our operations over the past few of years in an effort to reduce our overall cost
base Increased emphasis continues to be placed on enhancing income growth while at the same time ensurning effective containment
of costs

We have set the following targets over the medium to long-term
+  Group COI rauo less than 65% in Pounds Sterling

Note
The numbers shown In the graph are for the years ended 31 March The numbers prior to 2005 are reported in terms of UK GAAP

Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating tems and taxation

As a result of the foregomng factors, Investec's operaung profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation increased by 26 0%
from £3888 million to £466 6 mullion

The followng tables sel out information on operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation by geography and by
division for the peniod under review

For the year te 31 March 2007

£'000 UK & }Southern| Austraha] Other Total % %

Europe | Africa geo- group | Change | of Total
graphies

Private Banking 95 734 41 413 16 244 - | 154391 52 1% 331%

Private Client Portfolio Management and

Stockbroking *10 065 12016 - - 22 08I 327% 47%

Capual Markets 51 409 56 45 g 737 -1 17291 753% 25 1%

Invesiment Banking 23794 60 632 7 309 - 91 235 {7 6%) 19 6%

Assel Management |7 555 50 557 - - 68 112 147% 14 6%

Property Aclvities | 292 12 852 - - 14 144 (239%) 30%

Group Services and Other Activities (32967)f 35058 (3 141) 38l (669} | (=100 0%) (0 1%)

Total group 167 382 | 268673 30 149 381 | 466 585 20 0% 100 0%

% Change 554% | 2% 915% | >1000% 200%

% of Total 359% S76% 65% 01% 100 0%

*  This number 1s net of an estimate of tax of approximately £5 milon




For the year to 3| March 2006

£'000 UK & |Southern| Australia| Other Total %
Europe | Africa geo- group | of Total
graphies
Private Banking 61 533 31 981 8 009 - | 10F 523 26 1%
Private Chent Portfolio Management and
Steckbroking **7 399 9243 - 16 642 43%
Capital Markets 22 507 43 560 849 - 66 916 V7 2%
Investment Banking 29 631 65 887 5412 - | 10g 930 260%
Asset Management }0 609 48 767 - - 59 376 15 3%
Property Actnaities 2023 16 575 - - 18 598 48%
Group Services and Other Activibies (25966)| 49 397 | 473 (122)] 24782 64%
Total group 107 736 | 265 410 15743 (122) | 388 767 100%
% of Total 277% 68 3% 40% - 100%

** This number 1s net of lax of £3 6 million

Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation by geography
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Goodwill

The current year reflects net mcome of £2 6 milion largely refating to

«  The acquisiion of NM Rathschild & Sons {Australia) Lirmited at a discount 1o net assets resulting n a net gain of £107 mullion
«  Animparrment of £6 I million in the South Afncan Asset Management business refating to businesses acquired in prior years
+  Anmparment of £2 0 million attributable to property management contracts with respect to a portfolio of properties sold

The prior year largely relates to impairments attributable to property management contracts with respect to a porticlio of properties
sold and the Institutional Asset Management business in South Afnca (relating to the loss of assets resulting from corporate actons)

£'000 31 March 31 March Vartance | % Change
2007 2006
Goodwill | 2 56% | {21 356)| 23 925 | >|00 0% I

Non-operating items

The prior year non-operating tem of £73 6 millkon prinaipally included a profit of £795 million arising out of the effective 52 3% sale
of Carr Sheppards Crosthwarte to Rensburg offset by lavestec's £3 milbon share of integration costs relating to the transaction

Taxation

The operational effective tax rate of the group decreased marginally from 27 3% to 26 3%

Effective tax | Effective tax | 3} March | 31 March Variance % Change
rares rates 2007 2006 £000
31 March | 31 March £'000 £'000

2007* 2006
UK and Europe 238% 282% (37 370) (28 387) (8 983) 316%
Southern Africa 27 1% 267% (72 938) (78 378) 5 440 (6 9%)
Australia 31 6% 304% (9 473) (4 851) (4 622) 953%
Taxation 26 3% 27 3% (119 781y (l11 616) (8 165} 73%

*  excluding Assurance Activities

Earnings attributable to minority interests

Earrungs attmbutable to minority interests of £9 | million largely comprise
+  Operating profits in refation to nvestments held in the Private Equity division £100mn
- A profit on the sale of a partfolio of investment properties in which minoriies had a 23 1% holding £22mn
+ in accordance with IFRS the Euro denominated preferred securities issued by a subsidiary of Investec plc

are reflected on the balance sheet as part of minority interests The transaction is hedged and a forex

translation foss arising on the hedge 1s reflected in operating profit before goodwall, with the equal and

apposite impact reflecied in earnings attributable to minonties {£3 4mn)

Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders

As a result of the foregorng factors earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders increased from £315  million ta £340 3 milkon




Dividends and earnings per share

Year to Year to
31 March | 31 March
2007 20067
COrdmary dividends - pence per share
Interim 100 76
Final 130 106
230 82
Earnings £'000 £'000
Earnings attributable to sharehoiders 340 319 315 101
Preference dividends paid (31 850} {19 940)
Earnings attributable to ordinary sharehoiders 308 469 295 16l
Earnings resulting from future dilutve convertible instruments 974 2 675
Diluted earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 309 443 297 836
Weighted number of shares in 1ssue
Weighted total average number of shares in 1ssue during the year 602 052096 § 593 166 365
Weighted average number of treasury shares (38 269 412)| (44 327 451)
Weighted average number of shares in i1ssue during the year 563 782 684 | 548 838 914
Weghted average number of shares resutting from future dilutive potential shares 41 146215 | 29 4924 371
Weighted average number of shares resulting from future dilutive convertble instruments 8 787 292 17 849 970
Adjusted weighted number of shares potenually in issue 6i3 716 191 | 596 133 255
Earnings per share - pence
Basic earnings per share 5 calculated by dividing the earmings attmbutable to the ordinary shareholders
i Investec ple and Investec Limited by the weighied average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year 547 538
Diluted earnings per share - pence
Diluted earrings per share 1s calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of Investec plc and Investec Limited adjusted for the effects of dilutve ordinary potential
shares, by the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the period plus the wesghted average
number of ordinary shares that would be 1ssued on conversion of the dilutive ordinary potential
shares during the year 504 500
Adjusted earnings per share - pence
Adjusted earnings per shaie 1s calculated by dmding the earnings before goodwill and non-operating
items attnbutable to the ordinary shareholders and after taking into account eamings attnbutable to
perpetual preference shareholders, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during
lhe year . 533 419
£'000 £'000

Earmings attributable to shareholders 340319 315 101
Goodwill (2 569) 21 356
Profit on disposal of group operations - (73 573)
Preference dvidends paid (31 850) (19 940)
Additional earmings atinbutable to other equity holders* (5 196) (12 927)
Adjusted earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders before goodwill and non-operaung items 300 704 230 017

*  In accordance with IFRS, dvidends attnibutable to equity holders 1s accounted for when a constructive liability arises 18 on
declaration by the board of directors and approval by the shareholiders, where required Invesiec 15 of the view that EPS is best
reflected by adjusting for earnings that are atinbuted to equity instruments (other than ordinary shares} on an accruat basis and

therefore adjusts the pard dividend on such instruments to accrued in armving at adjusted EPS

~  On 4 September 2006 the group implemented a 5 | share spiit of investec plc and Investec Limited shares Historical information

has been restated for comparative purposes
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Dividends and earnings per share (continued)

Year to Year to
31 March | 31 March
2007 20067
Headhne earmings per share - pence
Headline earnings per share has been calculated i accordance with the defintion in the Insttute of
Investment Management Research Statement of Investment Practsce No | "The Definition of Headline
Earrings" and 15 disclosed i accordance with the JSE isting requirements and 1s in terms of circular
712002 sssued by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants 5213 406
£'000 £000
Earrings atiributable to shareholders 340 319 315 101
Goodwill {2 569) 21 356
Profit on disposal of group operations - (73 573)
Preference dmidends paid (31 850) (32 867)
Other headlne adjusiments* (1019 (7212)
Headline earnmgs attributable to ordmary shareholders 294 881 222 805

*  Other headline adjustments include the far value of nvestment properties and realisation gains/losses on available for sale
Instruments

On 4 September 2006 the group mplemented a 5 1 share spit of Investec plc and Investec Limited shares Historical information
has been restated for comparatve purposes

Financial objectives and performance

Adjusted earnings per share (EPS) and dividends per share (DPS)

pence
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** Adjusted EPS before goodwill and non-operating tems as defined on page 236
~ The dwvidend for 2000 and 2001 was set in Rand and the dwidend thereafler was delermined n Pounds Sterhing
The numbers have been adjusted for the 5 | share split that took place on 4 September 2006

259
2512
254

124 04
150 0~

182
1130

In the medium 1o tong-term, we aim to achieve adjusted EPS growth (in Pounds Sterling) of 10% i excess of UK nflanon We
continually strive to builld and mantain a sustainable business model We intend to maintain a dividend cover of between | 7 and 22
umes based on earnings per share as deflined above, denominated in Pounds Sterting We maintain this range to allow us the ability to
apply a progressive dmidend policy in terms of which dmidends should grow i Iine with earnings Interm and final dradends will be
declared and proposed in accordance with the above policy

Note
The numbers shown in the graph are for the years ended 31 March The numbers prior to 2005 are reported in terms of UK GAAP




Balance sheet analysis

Since 31 March 2006 total shareholders' equity (including minarity interests) increased by 21 3% to £1 8 billion fargely as a result of
the issue of £131 2 million of non-redeemable, non-cumulatve, non-participating preference shares by Investec plc and increased
retained earnings offset partially by negative foreign currency adjustments

Net asset value per share increased from 182 2 pence to 2160 pence, and net tangible asset value per share (which excludes goodwill
and intangible assets) increased from (48 9 pence to 178 6 pence

The return on adjusted average shareholders' equity (inclusive of compulsorily convertble instruments) ncreased from 255% (o
26 1%, meeting our larget of greater than 20%

Investec plc and Investec Limnted have capital adequacy ratios well n excess of the mimmum regulatory requirements The caprtal
adequacy of Investec plc (applying UK Financial Services Authority rules (o s capital base) s 24 7% (31 March 2006 17 7%) The capital
adequacy of Investec Limited (applying South Afrmcan Reserve Bank rutes to its capital base) ss 14 7% (31 March 2006 16 3%)

On balance sheet assets have increased by 100% to £26 3 billien since 31 March 2006

ROE - an assessment of economic capital utilised

In order to assess the return on economic caprtal utiised, the group believes that certain adjustments shouid be made 1o the income
statement analysis and balance sheet analysis as reflected under IFRS The group believes that these adjustments are necessary as they
reflect the actual uthsation of capial and return thereon notwithstanding accounting conventtons

The methodology applied in assessing the utilsatton of the group’s economic caprtal 15 as follows

= A noticnal return on capital (net of the cost of subordinated debt and preference shares) which 1 managed and borne in the
centre is altocated from Group Services and Other Activities to the business segments based on therr total capital utiftsation

*  Shareholders’ equity I1s increased to reflect permanent capital which is reflected under subordinated debt

£'000 31 March § 31 March Average | April Average
2007 2006 year end 2005 year end
2007 2006
Calculation of average shareholders’ equity
Shareholders' equity per balance sheet
{excluding preference shares) 1250312 ) 1OV 187 ] 1130750 733 760 872 474
Add Converuble debt included in subordinated habtlities 19 079 28 016 23 547 28 355 28 185
Adjusted shareholders' equity 1269391 | 1039203} | 154297 762 115 900 659
Goodwill and intangibie assets (excluding software) (219 854)| (189 700)f (204 777y (203 900)| (196 BOO)
Adjusted tangible shareholders’ equity 1 049 537 849 503 949 520 558 215 703 859
£'000 3| March 31 March
2007 2006
Operating profit before goodwill and non-operating items 466 585 388 767
Minority interests (9 054) (14 267)
Preference dwidends (37 046) (32 867)
Profit before taxation 420 485 341 633
Tax on ordmary activities (1197813 (111 6l6)
Profit after taxation 300 704 230 017
Pre-tax return on average adjusied shareholders’ equity 364% 379%
Post-tax return on average adjusted sharehclders' equity 26 1% 255%
Pre-tax return on average adjusted tangible shareholders' equity 44 3% 48 5%
Post-tax return on average adjusted tangible shareholders' equity 3t 7% 327%

Overview of the year
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ROE by country

£'000 UK & Southern Australia Other Total
Europe Africa geographies group
Total operating profit |67 382 268 673 30 149 381 466 585
Tax on ordinary actvities (37 370) (72 938) (3 473) - (149 781)
Mincrity interests (3 643) (3 40%) (2 002) - (% 054
Preference dvidends (13711) (23 335) - - (37 046)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation - 31 March 2007 112 658 168 991 18 674 8l 300 704
Profit on ordinary actvities after taxation - 31 March 2006 64915 154 332 10 892 {122) 230017
Adjusted shareholders' equity at 31 March 2007 631 953 475 026 162 412 - 1269391
Goodwill and mntangible assets (excluding software) 163 034 40 561 16 259 - 219 854
Adjusted tangible shareholders' equity at 31 March 2007 468 919 434 465 146 153 - | 1049537
Adjusted shareholders' equity at 3§ March 2006 516 40} 436 086 86 727 (11} 1039203
Goodwill and intangible assets {excluding scftware) {25 480 52 627 11593 - 189 700
Adjusted tangible shareholders' equity at 31 March 2006 390 921 383 459 75 134 (11} 849 503
Adjusted average shareholders' equity - 3| March 2007* 574 177 455 556 124 570 (6)| 1 154297
Adjusted average shareholders' equity - 31 March 2006* 461 564 360 613 78 442 40 500 659
Post tax return on average shareholders' equity -
31 March 2007 19 6% 37 1% 150% | (6 3500%) 26 1%
Post tax return on average shareholders' equity -
31 March 2006 14 1% 42 8% 139% (305 0%) 255%

*  This number s not necessarily a straight line average as these numbers are calculated on a monthly basis using actual capital utihsed




ROE by divtsion

£'000 pB* PCSB* cM* iB* AM* PA* GSO* Total
group

Total operating profit 154 391 22 081 | 117291 91 235 68 112 14 144 (669){ 466 585

Notional return on regulatory capital 42 015 3348 31 86l 6 008 | 021 805 { (85 058) -

MNotional cost of statutory capital (3072) (726)] (I 830) (5 172) (708)| 1t 505 -

Cost of subordinated debt (15093 (1345 (11382)] (2168) (374) (25 30621 -

Minority interest - - 228 (9 229) - - (58)1 (9 054)

Cost of preference shares (9 070} 815y (730230 (1 243) (247) (1949)| (18 k75)| (37 046}

Absorption of additional residual

costs** (14758 (3523 (13852 (19703)| (4932 {(5151)] 6l 649 -

Adjusted earnings/(losses) -

31 March 2007 154 413 19020} 115284 | 64906 | 58408 8639 (185)| 420485

Adjusted earrings/(losses) -

31 March 2006 102 758 14665 66262 | 91714 5l 353 15363 (482)| 341 633

Adjusted shareholders’ equity at

3t March 2007 478947 { 42932 358724 | 130816 | 123211 19975 | 114786 |1 26% 391

Goodwill and intangible assets

(excluding software) 17 434 2 550 137201 60094 | 112112 i3 944 219 854

Adjusted tangible shareholders’

equity at 31 March 2007 461 513 | 40382 | 345004 | 70722 1099 6031 | 114786 |l 049 537

Adjusted shareholders’ equity at

31 March 2006 372 651 37 122 | 293542 | 63875 | 140042 17124 | 114 847 |1 039 203

Goodwill and intangible assets

(excluding software) |7 536 3 371 13787 17704 1 128 160 3142 - | 189 700

Adjusted tangble sharehalders'

equity at 31 March 2006 355 115 | 33751 | 279755 | 46 171 11 882 7982 | 114847 | 849 503

Adjusted average shareholders'

equity - 31 March 20074 404897 | 43034 | 306 92| 94570 | 130 129 17264 | 158 211 I 154 297

Agdjusted average shareholders’

equity - 31 March 2006" 351 205 35921 | 242905 53 380 | 141 361 19993 | 558%4 | 900 659

Pre-tax return on adjusted average

shareholders' equity - 31 March 2007 38 1% 44 2% 7% 686% 44 9% 50 0% (0 1%) 36 4%

Pre-tax return on adjusted average

shareholders' equity - 31 March 2006 29 3% 408% 273% 171 8% 363% 768% (Q9%) 379%

*  Where PC=Private Chent Actvities CM=Capital Markets 18=tnvestment Banking AM=Asset Management PA=Froperty Activities
GSO=Group Services and Other Activities
** This allocation represents a portion of the costs remaining in the centre which are indirectly allocated 10 operating dmisions as they
facitate thewr operations but are excluded in calculating performance Incentive remuneration These allocations are based on
management's estimates of relative benefit derived
“ This number 1s not necessarily a straight ine average as these numbers are calculated on a monthly basis using actual caprtal utiised

Overwview of the year
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Financial objectives and performance

ROE*
4 %
10
21
2 355 61
- 200

Target

J

*  ROE s post-tax relurn on adjusted average shareholders’ equity (inclusive of compuisorily converlble instruments) as calculated
on page 25

.

2006 2007

T
SIS

Our objective 15 to contnue to focus on increasing ROE as opposed to nominal capital through the efficient deployment of our capital
base We intend to generate ROE in excess of our cost of capital

We have set the following targets over the medium to long-term
«  Group ROE greater than 20% in Pounds Sterling

Note
The numbers shown in the graph are for the years ended 31 March The numbers prior 10 2005 are reporied in terms of UK GAAP

Caprtal adequacy

lnvestec plc and Investec Limited are the two listed holding companies in terms of the DLC structure Investec Bank (UK) Limited
(IBUK) and Investec Bank Limiled (IBL) are the main banking subsidianes of Investec plc and Investec Limiled respeclively Investec Bank
(Austrabia} Limited (IBAL) s a subsidiary of IBUK Investec pic and Investec Limited are well capitalised and capital adequacy ratios
exceed the mimmum regulatory requirements

IBL Investec IBAL IBUK Investec plc
Limited
R'million R'milion | A$'million L'million £million

31 March 2007
MNet qualfying capiial 12 789 13 687 568 | 284 | 357
Risk-wesghted assets 90 426 93 075 2 383 5121 5 485
Capntal adequacy ratio 14 1% 147% 23 8% 242% 247%
Ter | ratio 93% 104% 19 0% 132% 14 8%
3t March 2006
Net qualfying capital 11976 12 134 269 725 762
Risk-weighted assets 74 309 74 560 i 422 3815 41312
Capital adequacy ratio 16 1% 16 3% 18 9% 19 0% 17 7%
Tier | ratio 104% 1% 18 0% 14 4% Il 6%

The above ratios are determined under South Afncan Reserve Bank regulations in respect of IBL (consohdated) and Investec Limited
{consolidated) and Financial Services Authonty requirements (n respect of IBUK (consolidated) and Investec plc (consclidated)




Financial objectives and performance
Total shareholders’ equity and capital adequacy ratios (CAR)

£ mn %
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We intend to mantan a sufficient level of capilal to satisfy regulalory requirements as well as take advantage of opportunities that may
anse In the financial services industry focusing on increasing our return on equily n the medum to long-term Investec pk and Investec
Limited aim to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of 13% to 16% and target a ver | rauo of 10%

Note
The numbers shown In the graph are for the years ended 31 March The numbers pricr to 2005 are reported in terms of UK GAAP
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Net tangible asset value per share

In calculating net tangible asset value per share we assume that all previously issued Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD's) are
treated as equity Under IFRS however, a portion of these CCD's are treated as debt and not mncluded i shareholders’ equity As a
result, adjustments must be made to the shareholder base which would more appropriately reflect thewr permanent capital nature

£'000 31 March | 31 March Notes
2007 2006

Shareholders' equity | 542 485 | 226 492

Less perpetual preference shares issued by holding companies (292 173)] (215 305)

Convertible debt included in subordinated habilities 19 079 28 016

Less goodwill and intangble assets (excluding software) (219 854) (189 700)

Net tangible asset value | 049 537 845 503

Number of shares in 1ssue 6093 5932

CCD's g8 180 Relates to convertible debt
mentioned above

Treasury shares (304) (405)

Number of shares in issue in this caleulation {million) 5877 5707

Net tangible asset value per share (pence) 178 & 1489




Total third party assets under management

£'milhon 31 March | 31 March
2007 2006
Private Banking funds under advice 2532 | 888
UK and Europe 951 642
South Afnica | 275 | 0C6
Australia 306 240
Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking 2) 836 20 944
South Afnica Private Client Securities 7 436 7 844
Rensburg Sheppards plc *14 400 i3 100
Property Activities i 825 1 846
Investec Asset Management 29 893 31 653
UK and nternational 13095 Il 820
Southern Africa 16 798 19 833
Total third party assets under management 56 086 56 331
31 March 2007 UK, Europe| Southern Total
L'milhon & Qrther Africa
Private Banking | 257 I 275 2532
Private Chent Portfolio Management and Stockbroking *14 400 7436 21 836
- Discrelionary - | 297 nfa
- Non-discretionary - 6 139 nfa
Institutional 6 070 |0 855 16925
Retai 7 025 5943 12968
Property Actvilies . | 825 1 825
Total third party assets under management 28 752 27 334 56 086
31 March 2006 UK, Europe| Southern Total
£'millon & Other Africa
Private Banking 882 | 006 | 888
Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking 13 100 7 844 20 944
- Discretionary - {338 n/a
- Non-discretionary - 6 506 n/a
Institutionat 5694 14 088 19 782
Retail 6126 5745 bl 871
Property Activities - | 846 | 846
Total third party assets under management 25 802 30 529 56 331

*  As reported by Rensburg Sheppards pic in june 2007
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Number of employees

By division - permanent employees

31 March 2007

Private Banking
UK and Europe
5A and Other
Australia

Toral

Private Clent Portfoho Management and Stockbroking
5A and Other
Total

Private Chent Activinies Total
UK and Europe

SA and Other

Australa

Total

Capital Markets
UK and Europe
SA and Other
Australa

Total

Investment Banking

UK, Eurepe and Hong Kong
SA and Other

Australia

USA

Total

Asset Management
UK and Europe

SA and Other
Total

Property Activities
UK and Europe
SA and Other
Total

Group Services and Other Activities
UK and Europe

SA and Oiher

Awustrala

Total

Total number of permanent employees

429

I 305
78
1812

191
191

429

1 496
78

2 003

276
348

38
662

143
139
33

320

231
603
834

248
251

212
642

86
940

5010




By geography 31 March|31 March|31 March|3| March
2007 2006 2005 2004
UK and Europe | 294 1166 I 308 | 43!
South Afnca and Other 3476 3114 2 648 2627
Awustralia 235 168 140 12
USA 5 5 67 75
Israel - - - 213
Temps and contractors 420 # # #
Total number of employees 5430 4453 4 1863 4 458

# The treatment of temps and contractors for headcount disclosure purposes was not consistently apphed across all divisions The
line of business iInformation now only reflects permanent headcount The geographical Information has been presented for
comparalive purposes Historical information did include temps and contractors

Operating profit (before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation
and excluding income from associates) per employee

By division PB* | PCSB*| CM* IB* AM* PA* | GS5O*| Toual
group
Nurmber of employees - 31 March 2007 I 9414 205 715 336 924 273 10361 5430
Nurmnber of employees - 31 March 2006 1 598 167 530 287 730 258 823 | 4453
Number of employees - 31 March 2005 i 280 45 445 245 723 225 830 4183
Average employees - year to 3| March 2007 | 763 186 623 312 857 266 929 4942
Average employees year to 3| March 2006 | 439 | **I57 488 266 757 242 827 4176
Operatung profit™ - 31 March 2007 (£000) 154203 | 12016 |117302 {91088 | 68 112 | 14 144 (965)] 455 900
Operating profit” - 31 March 2006 (£'000} 101 655 | 10253 | 66991 [100 623 | 59376 | 18598 | 24 577 (382 073
Operaung profit per employee*
- 31 March 2007 (£'000) 872 646 1883 | 2919 795 532 )] 923
Operating profit per employee ™™
- 31 March 2006 (£'000) 06 653 1373 3783 784 769 297 915
By geography UK & Southern Australia Cther Total
Europe Africa geographies group
Number of employees - 31 March 2007 L 412 3778 235 5 5430
Number of employees - 31 March 2006 156 3114 168 5 4453
Number of employees - 31 March 2005 {308 2648 140 67 4163
Average employees - year to 31 March 2007 | 289 3 446 202 5 4942
Average employees - year to 31 March 2006 ] 105 2 881 154 36 4176
Operatmng profit™ - 31 March 2007 (£'000) 156 859 268 673 29 987 38i 455 %00
Operatng profit™ - 31 March 2006 (£'000) 100 834 265410 15 950 (124) 382 073
Operaung profit per employee*
- 31 March 2007 (£'000) 1217 780 1485 762 923
Operating profit per employee”™
- 31 March 2004 (£'000) 913 921 1036 34 915

*  Where PB=Private Banking PC5B=Prwate Client Stockbroking CM=Capital Markets |B = Investment Banking
AM=Asset Management PA= Property Actvities GSO=Group Services and Other Activities

~

Excluding operating income from associates

~* Based on average number of employees over the period

** Adusted for the sale of Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite to Rensburg pic
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Eight year review

Salient features*

For the year ended 31 March** 2007 2006 } 2005 2004 2003 2002| 2001 2000
Income statement and selected returns

Adjusted earmings attnbutable to ordinary

shareholders before goodwill and non-operating

items {£'000) 300 704 (230 GI7 |149 510 | 106 203 | 89 668 |127 613 |100 906 | 87 246
Headline earmings (£'000) 294 881 [222 805 |147 037 | 105 873 | 83595 {115 777 [100 906 | €7 246
Operatng profit before goodwill, non-operating

items and taxation (£'000) 466 585 |388 767 |224 124 1132 260 | 85 762 |158 567 {133 196 [123 474
Operating profit. Southern Africa (% of total) 576% | 68B3% | 669% | 586% | 810% | 516% ] 256% | 154%
Operating profit. UK, Europe, Australia and Other

(% of total) 424% | 317% | 331% | 414% | 190% | 484% | 744% | 846%
Cost to ncome ratio 590% | S87% | 674% | 727% | B800% | 720% | 726% | 702%
Staff compensation to operating mcome ratio 409% | 401% | 434% | 473% 1 S11% | 445% | 455% | 436%
Return on average adjusted shareholders' equity 261% | 255% 1 200% | 154% | 1319% | [(94% | 182% | 169%
Net-interest Income as a percentage of operating

income 292% | 268% | 232% | 188% | 213% | 265% | 289% 1 246%
Non-interest income as a percentage of operating

income 708% | 732% | 768% | 812% | 787% | 735% | 71i% | 754%
Effectve tax rate 263% | 273% | 288% | 2t10% 63% | 180% | 226% | 292%
Balance sheet

Total capiial resources (ncluding subordinated

habilibes (£'milhion) 2665 | 2042 | 579 ! 303 958 958 842 639
Total equity (including preference shares

and minonty interests) (£'million) 1 834 1512 | 074 805 679 768 603 555
Total assets (£'rmillion) 26300 23901 | 19917 | 15319 ] 14914 | 16957 | 15984 | 16030
Loans and advances {£'milhon) 0190 | %605 6408 | 4846 1909 | 3314 3299 3083
Loans and advances as a percentage of total assets | 387% | 402% | 322% | 3té6% | 262% | 195% | 206% | 192%
Third party assets under management (£'million) 56086 | 56331 | 33855 | 47763 | 40559 | 44219 | 43977 | 45853
Caprtal adequacy ratio  Investec plc 247% | 177% | 161% ) 173% | 142% ~ - ~
Capital adequacy rato  Investec Limiied 147% | 163% | 179% ] 151% 122% ~ ~ ~
Salient financial features and key statistics

Adjusted earmings per share before goodwill and

non-operating items (pence) # 533 419 269 208 192 280 252 220
Headline earnings per share (pence)# 523 406 265 207 179 254 252 220
Basic earnings per share {pence}# 547 538 178 120 {134) 3G 198 180
Diluted earnings per share (pence)# 504 500 171 19 (134) 28 193 179
Dwdends per share (pence)# 230 182 134 116 168 108 | ~*137 | 123
Dividend cover {(Umes) 23 23 20 I8 18 26 18 18
MNet tangible asset value per share (pence)# 178 6 1489 992 830 750 748 ~ ~
Weighted number of ordinary shares in

issue {million)# 5638 5488 5555 5115 4665 | 4565 4010 3970
Total number of shares in 1ssue (millon)# 6093 5930 5930 5930 | 5650 | 4si0 4050 1 4030
Closing share price (pence)# 658 588 311 218 123 i6l 346 497
Market caprtalisation (£'mulhon} 4009 | 3488 | 844 1292 695 742 1400 | 2005
Number of employees in the group 5430 ) 44531 41963 4458 4874 | 5529 | 4836 | 4441
Average ZAR/L exchange rate 1338 143 1147 1202 1504 365 1082 993

*  Refer to definitions on page 236

** From 2000 to 2004 numbers are reperted in terms of UK GAAP and for 2005 2006 and 2007 n terms of IFRS

~

Calculatron not comparable

~* The dmdend for 2000 and 2001 was set in Rand and the dvidend thereafter was determined 1n Pounds Sterling The Rand
dridend per share for 2000 and 2001 was 620 cents and 750 cents respectively
# For comparative purposes histoncal mformation has been adjusted for the 5 | share split that took place on 4 September 2006




Integrated global management

Global roles

Chief Executive Officer - Stephen Koseff
Managing Direcior - Bernard Kantor

structure

Executive Di

rector - Alan Tapnack

Group Rusk and Finance Director - Ghnin Burger

Geographic business leaders

South Africa Uruted Kingdom Austraha SE Asa
Andy Lenh Bradley Fned Geoff Levy Ruchard Forlee
Glynn Burger Bran Schwartz
Dawnd Lawrence
———
Prate Banking rd
Steven Heilbron (
%]
3
v Private Chent d
8 Stackbroking Support structures
- Henry Bumendhat  SA
a R A Dev Eameres
W Capraal Markets Chief Integratilg Officer - Allen Zimbler
o Dravid van de-walt
o Corporate Governance Interny Audn and Complance - Bradley Tapnack
= Enanca-aad Sp -
0 Investrnent Banking yd — IT  Ingrid D4vid and Simon Shapiro
"« Bradiey Fried and Marketing Raymond van Niekerk
g Andy Leith Risk Management  Ciaran Whelan
~ e ehe e e ret e T e Dot
Z’ Asset Management /
> Hendni du'Tort
e
Property Acuvines /
Sam Hackner

Group operating structure
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Qur stralegic goals and cbjectives are motvated by the desire to develop an efficient and integrated business on an internationat scale
through the actve pursuit of clearly established core competencies in our principal business areas Qur core philosephy has been to
buld well-defined value-added businesses focused on serving the needs of sefect market niches where we can compete effectively

’ Prvate Chent / Capital Markers - Investment / Asset / Property
Acuvities Banking Management Acuvities
Prvate Banking + Specalsed Lending Corporate Finance * Institutional = Fund Management
¢+ Private Client Structured Dernvatrves * Insttutonal Research, + Retal * Listed Funds
Porifolio Management Securtiisation Sales and Trading + Irading and
and Stockbroking Specalist funds Direct Investments Development
+ Private Equity = Property Managernent
Australia Australia Australia = Hong Kong Southern Afrca
Souhemn Afrnca *+ Southern Alrka Hong Kong Southern Africa UK and Europe
* UK and Eurppe + UK and Europe Southern Africa + UK and Europe
UK and Europe
USA
/ Group Services and Other Acuwities
+ Central Serwces Central Funding International Trade Finance
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Private Client Activities

Partner of choice from wealth creation to wealth managernent

Scope of activities

Private Chent Actvities comprises two businesses Private Banking and Prvate Chent Portfolo Management and Stockbroking

Private Banking

Activities - Banking Actrities
- Growth and Acquisition Finance
- Investment Management and Adwvisory Services
- Specialised Lending
- Structured Property Finance
- Trust and Fiduciary Services

Target market - Ultra ugh net worth indmduals
- Actiwe weslthy entrepreneurs
- High income professionats including property developers and investors, sel-employed entrepreneurs
management buyout and management buy-in candidates and sophisticated investors

Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking

Activities - Investment portfolioc management and stockbroking

Target market Private Client Securities, South Africa High net worth indviduals
Rensburg Sheppards plc, UK Transaction concluded in May 2005, see page 43

Strategic focus

Private Banking

Investec Private Bank positions tself as the " nvestment bank for private chents” offering specialist financial services to our chosen
target market. This strategy 1s underpinned by the fundamental and aspirational philosophy of* out thinking” as opposed to out
muscling competitors

Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking
South Africa

Mission To be the premier South African pertfelic management and stockbroking house

We differentiate ocursebves by

»  Contnually demonstrating supenor portfolio management returns to chents

*  Introducing new discretionary and non-discretionary products and services

< Offering chents additional value through products developed within the broader Investec group
+ Enhancing client focus with teams offering specialist solutions to clients

= Leveraging cross-sell opportunities within she Investec group




Private Client Activities

Partner of chowce from wealth creation to wealth management

Management structure

Private Banking

Global Head of Private

Banking
UK and Europe

Regional Head

Banking and Treasury

Growth and Acquisition Finance
Investmenl Management

Private Chent Lending

Specialised Lending
Structured Property Finance
Trust and Fiduciary

tnvestec Bank Channel Islands
investec Bank reland

Investec Bank Switzerland
Regional Head Manchester
Finance and Operations

T

Marketing

South Africa
National Head
Regional Heads (Cape Town)

Regional Head (Durban)
Regional Head (Johannesburg)
Regional Head (Pretora}
Regional Head (Port Elizabeth)
Banking

Investment Management
Treasury

Complance

Credit Risk

Finance

Human Resources

IT

Marketing

Risk Management

Australia
Growth and Acquistion Finance

Private Clent Treasury and
Investments

Specialsed Lending
Strategic Management
Structured Property Finance
Wealth Management
Business Systems

Finance

Marketing

Operations

Risk Management

Steven Hellbron

Steven Heilbron
Linda McBain
Avron Epstein
Robert Gottheb
Kim Hillier
Wayne Preston
Nicky Walden
David Drewsenka
Paul Stevens
Robert Chfford
Mort Mirghavameddin
Michael Cullen
Peter Gyger
Richard Heggie
Chris Forsyth
Alan Bletcher
Antonia Kert

Paul Hanley

Rob Nicolella

Michael Barr

Colin Franks

Wessel Oosthuysen
Wouter de Vos

Andy Vogel

Carol-Ann van der Merwe
Warren King

Les Scott

Geoff Cooke

Michael Leisegang

Lianne [Y'Agnese

Tracey Rowe

Denton Muil

Carol-Ann van der Merwe
TimTill

Mark Joffe
Michael Sack

lvan Katz

Ashley Krongold
Colin Jensen

Tim Johansen
Robert Lipman
Angelica Stein
Kelley-Ann Axiom
Ngaire Threl{all
Steven Munitz
Mike Sargeant

Private Client Portfolio Management

and Stockbroking

Head of Private Client Secunties
South Africa
Investment Process

Finance and Operations
Cape Town region

Durban region
Johannesburg region

Pietermantzburg region
Port Elizabeth region
Preloria region

Online Services

Risk Management

Henry Blumenthal
Donald Glyn
Peter Armitage
Andrew Birrell
|onathan Bloch
Stephen Glanz
Angus Robertson
Craig Hudson
Paul Deuchar
Raymond Goss
Andrew Smythe
Andy Vogel

Len Olwier
Ockert Olvier
Alex Harding
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Contribution analysis
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Private Banking

Partner of choice from wealth creation to wealth management 2
E,
=

Overview and financial analysis 5
s
a

+  Operating profit ncreased by 52 1% to £154 4 mullion, contributing 33 1% to group profit

+ Excellent growth was achieved in all key geographies

*  Key earnings drivers

- Loans and advances increased by |1 3% to £69 bilien
- The deposit book increased by 16 5% to £56 billion
- Funds under advice increased by 34 1% to £25 billion
£'000 31 March | 31 March | Varnance | % Change
2007 2006

Net mterest income 217 435 165 308 52127 31 5%

MNet fees and commussions recenvable 109 596 70 675 38 921 55 1%

Princspal transactions 16 381 Il 657 4724 40 5%

Other operating iIncome and operating income from associates 288 (132) 420 >1000%

Impairment losses on loans and advances (6 932) I 745 8677) >1000%

Admin expenses and depreciation (182377} (147 730) (34 647) 235%

Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxatton 154 391 101 523 52 848 52 1%

UK and Europe 96 734 6f 533 35 201 572%

Southern Africa 41 413 31 981 9432 295% 39

Austraha f6 244 8 009 81235 >1000%

Operating profit before goodwill, non-cperating items and taxation 154 391 101 523 52 868 52 1%

Adjusted shareholders' equity* 478 947 372 65i 106 296 285%

ROE (pre-tax)* 38 1% 293%

Cost to income ratio 531% 59 7%

Operaling profit per employee {£'000)* 872 704 235%

*  As calkculated on pages 27 and 33

The variance in operating profit over the year can be explainad as follows

=  The sold increase In net interest ncome has been driven by
- Strong growth in leans and advances and deposits

- A strong increase in arrangement and exit fees associaled with an 8% increase in lending Llurnover

The impact of JAS 18 resulted 1 a cumulative R506 million (2006 R345 million) of lending fees in the South African business being

deferred for recognition as margin by 3! March 2010

+ Net fees and commissions recevable principally include lees in relation to trust and fiduciary services investment management
banking and {reasury actvities, as well as profit shares ansing out of lending transactions The growth in net fees and commissions
receivable has been driven by sirong actvity levels in the maority of these areas of specialisation

*  Principal transactions include the revaluations and realisations of equity and warrant positons held (these are associated with our
lending actvities and the manner in which certain of our deals are structured) The increase in principal transactions reflects the
increasing coninbution made by the Growlh and Acquisiion Finance business

Impasrment losses on loans and advances, after adjusting for £5 6 million of recoveries in the prior year increased from £3 8 milhen
to £69 million This increase 1s the result of Impairments held agamst certan transactions in South Africa

The increase 1 expenses 1s manly as a result of an increase in vanable remuneration in line with growth in profitability a 22% nse
in average headcount and investment i product development and infrastructure
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Loans, deposits and funds under advice

£'million UK and Europe Southern Africa Austraha Total %
As at 31 March |31 March|31 March {31 March|31 March |31 March|31 March|3] March| Change
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Residential 1 084 818 868 908 0 I 1962 b 737 130%
Commercial 787 721 b 609 | 559 417 319 2813 2599 82%
Cash-backed loans 19 117 - - - - 119 117 1 7%
Other 412 325 862 925 102 51 1 376 | 301 58%
Secunbised assets - - 605 424 - 605 424 430%
Total gross loans and
advances 2 402 1 981 3944 3816 529 38l 6875 6178 113%
Specific imparrments 2 2 I 10 2 | 15 13 15 4%
Portfolio impairments 2 | 3 6 - - 5 7 (28 6%)
Net loans and advances 21398 1978 3930 3 800 527 380 6 855 6158 11 3%
Asset qualty
Gross defaults 16 13 45 4t 10 } 71 55
Collateral value 15 I} 34 29 9 - 58 40
Specific Impairments 2 2 1 10 2 I 15 13
Net defaults (limited
to zero) - - 2 - - - 2 100 0%
Gross defaults as a % of
gross loans and advances 07% 07% I 1% 1% 19% 03% | 0% 09%
Total deposits 3439 2921 1 851 | 650 270 202 5 560 4773 16 5%
Nert loans and advances as at 3! March 31 March % 31 March 31 March %
2007 2006  Change 2007 2006 Change
£'mullion Home currency' mifhon
UK and Europe 21398 | 978 212% £2 398 £1 978 21 2%
Southern Africa 3930 3800 14% RS5 786  R40 749 369%
Australia 527 380 387% A1 279* A$928 378%
Net loans and advances 6 855 6 158 1l 3%
*  Includes A% 189 milkon acquired from Rothschilds
Deposits as at 31 March 31 March % 31 March 31 March %
2007 2006  Change | 2007 2006  Change
£'mullion Home currency 'million
UK and Europe 3439 292 17 7% £3439 £2 924 177%
Southern Africa | 851 1 650 122% R26 277 RI7 687 486%
Australa 270 202 337% AB655 AZ495 323%
Total deposits 5 560 4773 16 5%
Funds under advice as at 31 March 3f March % 31 March 31 March %
2007 2006  Change | 2007 2006  Change
£'milion Home currency ‘'million
UK and Europe 951 642 48 1% £951 £642 48 1%
Southern Alfrica I 275 I 006 267% RI8I1HT  RIO 784 679%
Austraha 306 240 275% A740 A%586 263%
Total funds under advice 2532 | 888 34 1%




Private Banking

Pariner of choice from wealth creation 1o wealth management

Analysis of total income by area of specialisation

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
6 9% 7 5%
54% 4 6%
19 6%
25 9%
48 9%
54 6%
15%
12 0% 23%
10 8%
0 Structured Property Finance 0 Growth and Acguistion Finarke O Specalsed Lending
0 Banking Actrities D Investment Management and Adwvisory Services O Trust and Fidudary Seraces

Developments

UK and Europe

-

The Structured Property Finance team concluded a number of significant clent led cross-border transactions s Europe and has
continued expanding its distribution capacity in London Manchester and Ireland

The Banking business has significantly expanded its distrbution capacity and continues ta innovate in the mortgage arena Deposit
raising and general banking actwvities have commenced in Switzerland and Jersey

The Growth and Acquisiion Finance business has enhanced 1its portfolio of transactions with a good pipeline of exis The product
set has been expanded to nclude asset based lending, with an emphasis on recewvables financing in addiion to mezzanine and
equily

The Investment Management business continues to win significant private client portfole mandates A materal uphft in profitability
and the talent pool has also been achieved We continue to gain scale in cur key focus areas which include the provision of
advisory services and specialised opportunities to our clients

The Guemnsey based bank continues to successfully penetrate the Channel Islands market for depostt raising and 1s a key prowider
of hquidity for the Private Bark in Europe In additron, good progress n both the investment Management and Structured Property
Finance activities has been achieved

The Trust and Fiduciary business has enhanced profitabiity through efficiencies together with the successful integration of the
Quorurn Management Limited business The business 15 an mtegral part of the Private Bank offering and continues to meaningfully
support the deposit raising and nvestment acivities of the bank.

We are on track to rolt out an online banking functicnality by the end of 2008 and a transactional banking product 1s under review
This 1s aimed at further bolstering client acquisiion and retention in general banking actmities

Divisional review
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South Africa

The Structured Property Finance and Growth and Acquisition Finance teams completed 29 transactions, prowiding R2 7 bidlion in
funding for black economic empowerment inftiatives

The Wealth Management team's increased focus on the ultra-wealthy South Afncan private client led to a significant increase m
assets under advice

The pnang strategy for transactional banking was revised from being transaction based te a consolidated monthly fee The change
has had a matenally favourable impact on client behaviour and client acquisiion wath notable progress being made with chents
engaging Investec as thew pnmary banking partner

Sigrificant Investment in information technology relating to the Banking specialisation was undertaken as a result of the
constderable increase in volumes of online banking transactions resutting from chent acquistion and chient usage

We securiused RI 4 billion of our commercial loans under the first mulu-borrower commeraial securiisation undertaken in
South Africa

Australia

The private chent actnities resutting from the acquisiion of NM Rothschild & Sons (Australia) Limited were successfully mtegrated
into the business

Qur regional expansion continued into Brisbane and more recently Perth with the introduction of a pnvate chent offening
Structured Property Finance expanded its distnbution capability, enhanced its sectoral focus and increased s focus on equdy
participations

We ncreased our lending capability wath the launch of a new business line, Specialised Lending, which focuses on providing
sophisticated gearing solutions for high net worth chents

The money market offering was enhanced through product mnovatiorn and an improved service capability

We exited our first two significant Growth and Acquisiton Finarnce transactions through an initial public offering ({PO) and trade
sale respectively and continue to look for opportunities to build a portfolro of investments ‘
We successfully distributed A%$200 million of specialist opportunities originated by the bank and increased high net worth funds
under advice by 26 3%

\We are developing a platform for third party co-investment oppertunities to be offered to target clents

There 15 substantial investment under way io increase brand presence and distribution capability across all regions

Outlook

On the assumption that current market conditions prevail the earnings outlook across all geographies 15 positve with good deal
pipelines in place

There are planned growlh strategies In each junsdiction, which include the expansion of distribution capability together with new
strategic intbiatves




Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking

Partner of choice from weaith creation to wealth management

Overview and financial analysis

»  Operaling profit ncreased by 327% to £22 | million, contributing 4 7% to group profit
*  Private chent funds under management in South Africa grew by 25 6% from R84 | bilhion to RI05 6 billon

£'000 31 March | 31 March | Varance | % Change
2007 2006

Net interest income 6 480 (474) (58 8%)
Net fees and commussions recevable 28 053 30 264 (2211) (7 3%)
Principal transactions 3137 631 2 506 >1000%
Other operating income and operating income from assoctates 10 065 6 389 3676 575%
Admin expenses and depreciation (19 180} (21 122} | 942 (9 2%)
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating 1items and taxation 22 081 16 642 5 439 127%
UK and Europe G 065 7 399 2 666 360%
Southern Afnica 12016 9243 2773 300%
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation 22 081 16 642 5 439 N7%
Adjusted shareholders' equity* 42 927 37122 5 805 156%
ROE (pre-tax)* 442% 408%

Cost to income ratio 46 5% 559%

Operating profit per employee (£:000)* 646 653 (1 136)

*  As calculated on pages 27 and 33

The variance in operating profit over the year can be explained as follows

+ The South African Private Client business benefited from higher asset levels and mncreased volumes over the year
* Investec's UK Private Chent Stockbroking business, Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite was sold to Rensburg plc on 6 May 2005 We
retain a 47 1% interest in the combined entty, Rensburg Sheppards plc Prior to 6 May 2005 the results of Carr Sheppards

Crosthwaite have been consolidated into the group's results After 6 May 2005 the results of the combined entity Rensburg
Sheppards plc have been equity accounted and the direciors' estimate of these results are included in the Iine term ‘operating
income from asscciates” (the £10 | milhon income reftected above 1s post an esumate for tax of approxamately £5 million)

Developments

UK and Europe

Rensburg Sheppards plc released its results for the year ended 31 March 2007 on (3 june 2007 Sahent features of the results

extracted directly from the aznnouncement released by the company include

"Key pomnts

*  Profit before tax of £257 milion (16 months ended 31 March 2006 £13 0 million)
*  Adjusted* profit before tax of £359 million (16 months ended 31 March 2006 £29 | milhon)

*  Basic earmings per share of 37 5p (16 months ended 3| March 2006 209p)

- Adjusted* basic earmings per share of 57 ip {16 months ended 31 March 2006 55 Ip)
«  Proposed final dvmdend of |15p per ordinary share, gving a total dvdend for the year of 22 5p
«  Inrespect of the acquisiton of Carr Sheppards Crosthwaile the achievernent by 31 March 2007 of future annualised pre-tax cost

synergies of approximately £55 miflion per annum

= Group funds under management at 31 March 2007 of £14 40 bikon (31 March 2006 £ 13 |3 billon), an increase of 9 7%

*  Before amorusation of the client relationships intangible asset, share-based payments relatng to the Employee Benefit Trust {'EBT'},

reorganisation costs and profit on disposal of avallable-for-sale investments These items amount 10 2 net charge before tax of
£102 million (16 menths ended 31 March 2006 £16 | million) and a net charge after tax of £8 6 million {16 months ended

31 March 2006 £125 milhon)*

Divisional review
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South Africa

+ Revenue Increased substantially over the prior period assisted by higher trading volumes

Funds under management as at 31 March|31 March % 31 March| 31 March %
2007 2006 | Change | 2007 2006 | Change
R'milkon £'million
Discretionary 18419 14 343 284% | 297 | 338 (31%)
Nen-discretionary 87 177 69 744 250% 6139 6 506 (56%)
Total 105 596 84 087 256% 7 436 7 844 (5 2%)
R'milhon 31 March| 31 March
2007 2006
Net flows at cost over the period
Oiscretionary | 065 2799
Non-discretionary 2316 I3 957
Total 3381 | *16756

*  lncludes HSBC funds acquired of R134 billtion (R2 | bilhon discretionary and R11 3 billien non-discretionary)

QOutlook

South Africa

*  Market condiions were strong over the past year, encouragng many private clients to enter or reman in the stock market. Thes
was partly driven by the flaw of funds into emerging economies given their favourable valuation fundamentals compared Lo
developed economies Although valuations can be supported by local undertying fundamentals, there are concerns that given the

record price and Index levels, driven by strong  performances from resource counters the South African market remains

vulnerable to external shocks that will affect emerging econormies
+  Revenue from stockbroking advisory and execution activities s expecled to increase above that of the prior year, atthough at a
modest rate This 15 dependent on current market conditions remaining benign
+  Revenue from portfolio maragement activities 15 expected to increase, given the base effect of higher portfolic values




Capital Markets

Speciahst structuring and advisory business

Scope of activities

The growth and development of the business aver the last few years has caused us to reflect on the appropniateness of the narme Treasury
and Specibsed Finance The name 1s not reflectve of our core actviies and has caused some confusion in the market. as a result from
now on we will rebrand oursetves Investec Capral Markets This does not mean a change of direction of the business

The Capnal Markets division prowdes a wide range of specialist products, services and solutions 1o select corporate clients, public sector
bodies and nstitutions The division undertakes the bulk of Investec's wholesale debt, structuning propaetary trading, capital markets and
dervatves business

Strategic focus

Our objectives include
+  Conbnuing to reman a focused and specialised business, targeting markets and products where we can be distinctive and
compelitive
= Seeking through strong discipline, that 1s centred on clients and delwery of structured products
- Asset creation opportunities
- Product structuring and distnbutton opportunities
- Trading, hedging and proprietary market opporiunities
- Adwisory mandates
*  Creating blatforms for the ongination and securitisation of internal and third party orignated banking assets on a sustainable basis
«  Developing our market leading position, focusing on growth initiatives and growing a portfolio of quality term assets
«  Continung to concentrate on Systems processes and automation, to ensure maximum competrive advantage and long-term cost
savings
»  Taking advantage of opportunities to use our specalist skills to launch specialist funds
« Inwvesting in the future and targeting growth

Management structure

Global Head of
Caprtal Markets

UK and Europe

David van der Walt

Southern Africa
Regional Head

Commodities and Resource Finance

Corporate Treasury

Richard Wainwright
Dharmesh Kaylan
Gary Gorman

Regional Head
Balance Sheet and Interest Rates John Barbour

David van der Walt Equity Derwatives (South Africa and

International) Milion Samios

Commaodities and Resource Finance

George Rogers

Financal Products

Mark Currie

Corporate Forex (UK) James Arncld Foreign Exchange Grant Barrow
Equiy Derratives Mark Roessgen Interest Rates Brett Hoplans
Fixed Income Options Dawd Kantor Project Finance Michael Meeser
Foreign Exchange Prutlp Wells Structured and Asset Finance David Kurming
Principal Finance (UK and Europe)  Andy Clapham Anton Millar
Principal Finance (US) Ruth Leas Balance Sheet Management Clive Sindelman
Michael Schewitz Regional Head Maurtius Craig McKenzie

Project hinance
(UK and International)

Maurice Hochschild

Operations

Stuart Spencer

Austraha

Structured and Asset Finance Alistarr Crowther

Operations (UK and International)  Kevin McKenna Regional Head

Regional Head Ireland Michael Cullen Commodities and Resource Finance

Corporate Treasury Ireland Ausling Dodgson {Australia)

Equity Finance reland Loman Gallagher Commodities and Resource Finance

Operatrons Ireland Alan Byrne {Internatonal) Jose de Nobrega
Prncipal Finance Darren Klein
Project and Infrastructure Finance  Cosmas Kapsanis

Mark Schneider

Dawd Phitlips

Jeff Duncan-Nagy

Jose de Nobrega

Anthony Hawke

Structured Finance
Balance Sheet Management
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Contribution analysis

/

Operaung profit* Employees Adjusted shareholders equity™*
100% — 100% _ — 100% — —~—
132
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|, ——
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% 0% 0%
aCapatai Markets aRemamder of Investec group

* Before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation and excluding Group Services and Other Activities
s* As caleulated on page 27

Operating profit™ - track record
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Trend reflects numbers as at the year ended 31 March The numbers prior to 31 March 2005 were reported in terms of UK
GAAP Amounts are shown before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation




Capital Markets

Specialist structuring and advisory business

Overview and financial analysis

= Strong growth continued as operating profit increased by 75 3% to £117 3 milion, contributing 25 1% to group profit

»  Growth was underpinned by coniributions from all our core value dnvers adwising, structuring assel creation, distibution and

trading
» The lending book grew by 32% to £3 | bilion

£'000 31 March | 31 March | Variance | % Change
2007 2006

Net mterest income 89 078 71228 17 850 251%
Net fees and commussions recewvable 80 190 55 878 24312 435%
Princpal transactions 102 700 55098 47 602 864%
Other operating income and operating Incorme from associates (n (72) 6l (847%)
Imparment losses on loans and advances (9 925) (12 342) 2417 (196%)
Adrmin expenses and depreciation (144 741y (102 874) (41 867) 407%
Operating profit before goedwill, non-operating items and taxation 117 291 66 916 50 375 75 3%
UK and Eurcpe 51 409 32 507 28 902 >1000%
Southern Africa 56 145 43 560 12 585 289%
Austraha 9737 849 8 888 >1000%
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation 117 291 66 916 50 375 753%
Adjusted shareholders’ equity* 358 724 293 542 65 182 232%
ROE (pre-tax)* 37 7% 273%

Cost to income ratio 532% 56 5%

Operating profit per employee (£000)* 1883 1373 37 1%

*  As calculated on pages 27 and 33

The variance in operatng profit over the year can be explained as follows

»  Net interest Income benefited from an increase in advances higher actiity levels within a number of the businesses estabhshed
over the past two years and the acquisiion of NM Rothschild & Sons (Austraha) Limited (effective 7 july 2006)

» The increase in net fees and commussions recevable (s attributable to a solid performance from the advisory and structuring
businesses in all geographies, with a number of mandates closed successfully, particufarly in Project Finance, Structured Finance and

Equrty Finance

+  Princspal transactions reflect a significantly improved trading performance on the back of structured transactions and ncreased
clent business In South Africa this was helped by increased market volathity and hquidity as wel as revaluations and realisations of
investments in the Structured Finance and Resource Finance businesses In the UK and Australia we benefited from profits earned
n the Prinaipal Finance {secuntisation), Commodities and Resource Finance and Structured Finance businesses Further analyss 15

provided below

+ Impairment losses on loans and advances in local currencies remained fargely in ne with the prior year

+  Expenses increased largely due to an increase :n average headcount (staff have been hired to progress new initiatives) greater
variable remuneration in ine with strong growth in profitability, and an increase In costs associated with complying with new and

forthcoming regulatory requirements

Divisional review
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Analysts of principal transactions (£'000) 31 March | 31 March | Vanance
2007 2006

UK and Europe

Trading activities 3203 | 463 | 740

Principal Finance 23 906 6277 17 629

Commodities and Resource Finance 16102 5296 4 806

Structured and Asset Finance 20 602 811l 12 491
57 813 21 147 36 666

Southern Africa

Trading activities |7 441 11 092 6 349

Balance sheet management 6372 1 604 (5232

Financial Products 21319 | 235 i 084

Lending areas 13038 7903 5135
39 (70 31834 7336

Austraka 5717 2117 3 600

Total 102 700 S5 098 47 602

Loans

£'million UK and Europe Southern Africa Australia Total %

As at 31 March|31 March|31 March|31 March| 3| March|31 March|31 March| 31 March| Change

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Loans | 282 942 I 434 | 862 141 25 2857 2829 b 0%

Assets to be securiised/

warehouse assets 242 172 - - - - 242 172 407%

Total gross loans and

advances 1 524 | B14 1 434 1 B62 141 25 31099 3001 30%

Specific impairments 5 5 5 8 8 I 8 14 (28 6%)

Portfolio impairments - i 2 - - I 2 (500%)

Net loans and advances 519 I 109 | 428 | 852 133 24 3080 2985 312%

Asset quality

Gross defaulls 18 5 24 25 *8 | 50 3|

Collateral value I - 24 22 - - 35 22

Specific impairments S 5 5 8 8 | 8 14

Net defaults {limited to zero) 2 - - - - 2

Gross defauits as a % of

gross loans and advances 2% 04% | 7% | 3% 60% 40% I 6% | 0%

*  Acouired as part of the Rothschilds acquistuon

Net loans and advances as at

31 March 31 March

%

31 March 31 March %

2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change
£'miflion Home currency 'million

UK and Eurcpe | 519 | 109 370% £1 519 £1 109 37 0%
- Loans | 277 937 363% £l 277 £937 363%
- Assets to be secuntised/warehouse assets 242 172 407% £242 £172 4 7%
Southern Africa | 428 t 852 (229%) R20 275 RI9 855 21%
Australia 133 24 >1000% A$3Z3* AF58  >1000%
Net loans and advances 3080 2985 32%

*  Jncludes A$338 million acquired from Rothschiid s




Capital Markets

Specialist structuring and advisory business

Developments

UK and Europe

The European Principal Finance business 1s fully established and closed a number of transactions dunng the year, with vanious deals
in the pipeline The strong performance of the US business was negatively affected by the volatriity in the US sub-prime market,
where a number of far value adjustments were required

The Acquisition Finance business continued to perform well

The Project Finance dwision closed the St Barts and St Helens hosprtal projects, realising significant fees The St Barts deal 1s the
fargest PF] project to date in the UK.

Activity continued in the arrcraft finance market and we eamed strong fee income from this area during the current perted, with
mandates of mare than £05 billon completed

The Fixed income Options Trading business commenced operations dunng May 2006 and volumes increased steadily The desk 1s
fully resourced and an mmproved performance 1s expected going forward

There are two fund iMiatives under way a structured credit fund and a resources fund The resources fund 15 established with seed
caprtal of $40 mifion and further capital raising 15 expected The credit fund was delayed due to volatilty n credit markets

A platform for the secuntisalion of third party omgnated residential mortgages in Ireland was launched called Nua The first

assets are being underwritten

The resources sector conbinues to be active and we benefited from increaseg deal flow and good posiioning within this market,
Subsequent to the year end, we balstered our Equity Dervative Sales and Structuring business with a number of high calibre hires

South Africa

Deal activity in most of our lending areas was strong but we were negatvety affecled by unexpected repayments,

resulting i a lower than anticipated closing advances book.

We mcreased our market share significantly in the equity dervative listed products market through an ongoing focus on innovation
and service levels

The central Derwvative Sales and Structuring team continued to be successiul reflected by increased levels of chent flows and
profitability on the trading desks

Qur focus 1n the debt capral markets area was rewarded with numerous successful securiisations concluded in the financial year
and significant mandates received for deals yet to close We continue to concentrate on establishing platforms to prowide
securitisable assets

The dvision holds numerous equity related positions which are linked 1o underlying advances The results were pesitively affected
both through reahsation of certain of these posiions and through the increase In valuaticn of positions held at year end

Austraha

The dvision benefited from the integrauion of the refevant businesses within NM Rothschild & Sans (Austrahia) Lirited and now
has an increased presence :n Commadities and Resource Finance, Project and Infrastructure Finance and Principal Finance as well
as a larger lending book, The acquisiion increased the loans and advances book by A$338 mill:on

The newly established Commodities Desk contributed significantly ta earnings during the year and enabled us to provide clients
with a full product suite across a range of interest rates, foreign exchange and precious and base metal products

The Rothschild's acquistion has been successful with people, clients and businesses embedded effecively transforming Capital
Markets into a significant banking business within Australia

The year ahead will see the strengthening of our erigination capabilty, coupled with the development of new businesses in the
areas of Princpal Finance Secuntisation and Acquisiion Finance

Outlook

The strategy has not changed We continue to remain a focused specialist business targeting markets where we can be distinctive
and competitive focusing on our core value drivers

In the UK and South Africa we will continue to strive for depth and greater penetration In Austrahe we will look for opportunities
lo broaden our franchise

Secunusation and capital markets are a key focus In partcular we will look to onginate assels in higher margin niche areas to be
funded through secuntisation In the capital markets

We wall continue o pursue our strategy around speciahst funds

Momentum in the business is good

Markets remain favourable and we are stll targeting growth in excess of the group target. although are unlikely to achieve the
levels of the recent past. We will cantinue to irvest in the business to ensure continued growth in the medium term
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Investment Banking

integrated business focused on local chent delivery with international access

Scope of activities

We engage In a range of nvestment banking activities and position ourselves as an integrated business focused on local chent defvery
with International access We target clients seeking a highly customised service, which we offer through a combination of domestic
depth and expertse within each geography and a chent centnc approach

Activities - Corporate Finance
- Instiwtional Research, Sales and Trading
- [Direct investments
- Prwate Equrty

Target market - Major hsted and unlsted corporations
- Fund managers

- Government
- Parastatals

Strategic focus

Mission To be a premier international nvestment bank distinguished by our leadership in chosen niches, our people and ther
approach, and our bond with our clients

Qur primary objectives are to secure our current positionings and Lo contnue bullding our operations with a strong focus on
enhanang overall profitability

UK and Europe

Cur strategic cbjectives are to

»  Become a pre-eminent full service mid-market investrment bank.

+  Leverage cur highly rated product and service offering internationally, specifically in the US and Europe
»  Offer addibional corporate services such as private equity and debt advisory speciaisation

+ Increase the use of capital to reinforce our mid-market offering

+  Achieve greater sector specialisation in Corporate Finance

South Africa
Corporate Finance

Cur strategy Is to

+ Take advantage of our leading posiion in the South African market

+ Improve the size and profile of cur client base with a focus on servicing exasting chents and undertaking new client nbatives
+ Identfy apptopriate 1nvestment banking transactions, mei gers and acquisitions and {PO oppor tunities

+  Continue with our strategy relating to black economic empowerment.

* Improve cross-border actvity

Institutional Research, Sales and Trading

Cur strategic objectives are to

+  Be the top rated South African specialist broker as determned by our target chent base
+  Broaden our research base lo ensure appropriate coverage and to renforce our South Afnican distinctiveness
+  Further leverage our research product nto the UK and US and selectively target key European chents
+  Conbinue to grow related product offerings




Investment Banking

Integrated business focused on local client delivery with international access

Direct Investments and Private Equity

Our strategy 15 to

Focus on quality, not quantrty, of investiments, in selected ndustnes

identiy and pursue transacttons with the potential for significant value unlocking in the short 1o medium term

Target platform nvestments that can be grown sigrificantly through the implementation of an agreed strategy operating n
industries that will benefit strengly from econormic growth in South Africa

Co-invest with experienced executives and non-executives with a proven track record strategic investors and empowerment

partnerships built on trust

+  Concenirate on closer co-operation with black economic empowerment platform investee companies

*  Convert our current transaclion pipeline

Australia

Our objectives are to

«  Builld an integrated business model of advisory private equity and direct investments, to maxirise market opportunities
»  Continue to focus on global collaboration to enhance cross-border activity
»  Mantain a disciphned approach to Private Equity and Direct Investment actiities in refation to deal oniginat:on participation n

competrive processes and transaction valuatians

Management structure

Joint Global Heads of

Investment Banking

UK and Europe
Regional Head

Investment Banking

Investec Securrties institutional
Stockbroking

Ireland

Finance

IT and Operations

South Africa

Regional Head
Corporate Finance

Investec Securities Institutionat
Stockbroking

Finance and Operations
Direct Investments
Private Equity

Finance

Australia
Regional Head
Corporate Advisory
Private Equity
Direct Investments

Hong Kong

Regional Head

Bradley Fried
Andy Leith

Bradley Fried
Dawvid Currie

Craig Tate
Michael Cullen
Ray Milner
Trevor Gatfield

Andy Leith
Kevin Kerr
Hugo Steyn

Craig Tate
Kevin Brady
Andrew Birrell

Khume Shuenyane

Thomas Prins

Caroline Thomson

Robert Slater

Geoff Levy
Ben Smith
John Murphy
Geoff Levy

Richard Forlee

Divisional review



Divisional review

Contribution analysis .
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Investment Banking

Integrated business focused on local client delivery with international access

Overview and financial analysis

»  Operating profit decreased by 9 6% to £91 2 million, contributing 19 6% to group profit

£000 31 March | 31 March | Varance | % Change
2007 2006
Net interest income (2 457) 2216 4673 =1000%
Net fees and commussions recewable 91 904 82 633 9 271 112%
Principal transactions 73719 97 864 {24 145) (247%)
Other operatng mcome and operating income from asscciates 45 629 307 45322 >1000%
Impairmert lesses on loans and advances N 722 (723) >1000%
Admin expenses and depreciation (117 559} (82 812) (34 747) 420%
Operatng profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxauon 91 235 100 930 (9 695) (9 6%)
Corporate Finance 15 8%0 Il 608 47282 369%
Inststutional Research, Sales and Trading 14 394 14982 (588) (39%)
Direct Investments 18 148 34218 (16 070} (47 0%)
Private Equity 42 803 40 122 2 681 67%
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation 21 235 100 220 {2 695) (9 6%)
UK and Eurape 23 294 29 631 (6 337) (21 4%}
Southern Africa 60 632 65 887 (5 255) (80%)
Australia 7309 5412 | 897 351%
Operating profit before goodwill non-operaung items and taxation 91 235 100G 930 (9 695) (% 6%)
Adjusted shareholders' equity* I30 816 63 875 66 941 >1000%
ROE (pre-tax)* 68 6% 171 8%
Cost to ncome ratio 56 3% 452%
Operatng profit per employee (£/000)¥ 2919 3783 (228%)
*  As calculated on pages 27 and 33
Developments
Corporate Finance and Institutional Research, Sales and Trading
£000 3t March | 31 March | Varmance ] % Change
2007 2006
MNet interest income {1 147} 13 {1 190) >1000%
MNet fees and commussions recevable 91 544 79 768 Il 776 14 8%
Principal transactions 12774 10 095 2679 265%
Other operating Income ang operating income from associates (15) - (19} 100 0%
Imparment losses on loans and advances (N (44) 43 (97 7%)
Admin expenses and depreciation (72 871 (63 277 (% 599) 152%
Operaung profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation 30 284 26 590 3694 139%

The variance in operating profit over the year can be explained as follows

+  The Corperate Finance operations benefited from a strong deal pipeline across all geographies, parlicularly in South Afnica with a

number of mandates closed successfully

«  The Institutional Stockbroking operations in South Afnca were positvely affected by increased volumes over the period In the

UK cammissions were negatively affected by regulatory changes and consequent competstive pressures

+  Principal transacton income reflects a sohd perfermance by the dual isted arbitrage and SA/UK hedge book actwvities in South
Afiica and the Equity Trading business in the UK, partially offset by a weaker performance by the UK market making actvies
+  The increase n expenses largely relates to a rise n headcount in certain busnesses and an ncrease In varable remuneration

Divisional review

53



Dvisional review

54

Corporate Finance

UK and Europe

We benefited from good levels of merger and acquision (MBA} activity The IPO market was subdued at the begmning of the
year but activity levels improved significantly duning the second haif

Eight IPOs were concluded during the penod, the most significant being Southern Cross Healthcare PLC, Clinphone PLC and
Styles & Woed PLC

We completed 24 M&A transactions with a value of £25 billon (2006 (4 transactions with a value of £1 | bilhor)

We completed 21 fundraisings during the year, raising in aggregate £597 millon (2006 21 transactions, raising £634 million)

We continue to buld the quality and size of the corporate chent st, gaining 25 new brokerships, with the total number of quoted
clients now at 31 The average market capitatisation of these chents 15 £272 milbon

South Africa

We mantained our strong positioning with a good fevel of actvity

Our focus was on M&As, corporate restructuring activitres, IPOs and black economic empowerment transactions

We retained all our major chents and ganed several new mandates during the period, particutarly for black economic
empowerment transactions and IPOs

Corporate Finance transactions during the period ncreased to 140 (2006 119), with a value of R52 bithon (2006 R31 2 billion)
Sponsor broker deals completed during the penod increased 1o 161 (2006 128) with the value increasing substantially to

R70 | bullon (2006 R28 & billion)

The Corporate Finance dvision was ranked first in volume of M&A transactions and second in general corporate finance by
volume i the Dealmakers Magazine Survey for Corporate Finance {2006 calendar year)

The Sponsor division was ranked first in volume of M&A transactions and in general corperate finance in the Dealmakers Magazne
Survey for Sponsors (2006 calendar year)

The Sponsor and Corporate Finance dwvisions were also ranked first and second respectively in volume of M&A transactions in the
Ernst & Young review for M&A (2006 calendar year)

Austrakia

There 15 increasing awareness and recognition of the Investec brand within the Australian market

We adwised on 15 transactions (2006 20} valued at approximately A38 7 billion (2006 A%6 5 billion)

We focused on bullding our capabilities in Brisbane and strengthening our presence in Melbourne

We continue to expand our sector specialisation and launched our resource advisory capability leveraging off opportunities in
Western Australia

We experienced strong cross-border actvity, particularly in the resources and renewable energy sectors between Australia and the
rest of the group

institutional Research, Sales and Trading

UK and Europe

While volatile markets and unbundiing affecied the growth of secondary commissions compared 1o the prior year, trading revenues
reflected upward momentum

Qur sector buld out 1s now complete with the introduction of two new sectors during the year, namely Soeciahty and Other
Finanaals and Construction and Building

The qualty of our research was highlighted in the Sunday Times/Starmine Survey published in January 2007, in which we were
placed first across all UK brokers for FTSE 250 recommendations in the UK We also achieved the number one ranking in the
Investors Chronicle AlM survey

We recently established a sales desk in New York to accelerate our LK offering in that market

We continued to make substantial investments in our trading and execution capacrty

South Africa

Strong agency performance was driven by active market volumes and greater international penetration

We broadened our stock coverage and filled key gaps in our research offering to underpin our Sauth African distinctiveness
Further to our stock associabion inmative, leading market share positions were achieved in the key dual hsted shares

Qur Prime Broking operation performed well, exceeding expectations n the growth of funds on the system and new client
mandates

Good progress was made across our key product offerings




Investment Banking

Integrated business focused on local client delivery with international access

Direct Investments and Private Equity

£'000 31 March | 3| March | Vanance | % Change
2007 2006
Net interest income {1 310) 2173 (3483)| (>1000%)
Net fees and commissions recewvable 360 2 865 (2 505) (87 4%}
Principal transactions 60 945 87 769 (26 824) (30 &%)
Other operating income and operating Income from associates 45 644 307 45 337 >1000%
Impairment losses on loans and advances - 766 (766) 100 0%
Admin expenses and depreciation (44 688) {19 540) (25 148) >1000%
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxaveon 60 951 74 340 (13 389) (180%)

The variance in eperating profit over the year can be explamned as follows

+  Prinoipal transaction income represents the year to date cumulative increasefdecrease in the value of the dvision’s direct
nvestments and private equity portfolios, the profit/loss on realisation of these nvestments, and dividends and other income

recewved Further analysis 1s prowided below

+  Other operating income relates to the operating results of two nvestrents held wathin the Private Equity portfolio, which have
been consolidated wrth the respectve mcome and expenses reflected in other operating ncome and administration expenses
These investments generated a net loss after tax and minonty interest of £2 3 milkon Any realisation of these investments in
excess of their carrying values will be recognised as income from principal transactions The two investments are Global Ethanol

Holdmgs Limited and idatech LLC (see page 204 for further information}

The increase Iin expenses largely relates to the consoldation of the two investrnents mentioned above (expenses amounted to
£25 milhon), partially offset by a decrease in variable remuneration given lower profitability in certan of the divisions

Value of trading investments on balance sheet at 3|1 March 2007

£'milhon Listed Unhlisted | Advances Total
UK Private Equity 9 6 - I5
SA Direct Investments 23 39 9 71
SA Private Equity - 83 6 89
Australia 2 - - 2
Hong Kong Direct investments 2 5 - 7
36 133 15 184
Neote excludes our two investments {mentioned above) which have been conschdated
Value of trading investments on balance sheet at 31 March 2006
£'million Listed Unhsted | Advances Total
UK Private Equity ¥ 7 - 8
SA Direct Investments 24 35 & 65
SA Private Equity - 77 9 86
Australha 5 3 - 8
Hong Kang Direct Investments 10 - - G
50 122 15 187
Analysis of operaung profit for the year to 3| March 2007
£'miilhion Realised | Un- |Dividends| Interest | Income | Funding Net |Expenses| Net
realised and other costs | income profit
UK Private Equity 13 (19 04 366 364 - 364 (285) 79
SA Direct Investments 03 169 31 12 215 (46) 169 (4 1) 128
SA Private Equity 37 280 78 0l 396 (7 379 72) 307
Austraha - - - 65 65 - 65 (23) 42
Hong Kong Direct
Investments 62 |5 - 02 79 - 79 (26) 53
Total bLS 445 {13 446 19 (63) 1056 (44 7) 609
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Analysis of operating profit for the year to 31 March 2006

£milhion Realised| Un- |Dividends| Interest | Income | Funding | MNet |[Expenses] Net
realised and other] costs | income profit
UK Prvate Equity 103 - - 06 109 - 109 30 78
SA Direct Investments 23 316 05 19 363 (30) 333 70) 263
SA Private Equity 134 175 460 o7 376 13 363 (58) 305
Austraka - 08 - 29 37 - 37 (an 26
Hang Kong Direct
Investments - 96 - - 96 - g6 (25) 71
Total 260 595 65 61 98 1 {4 3) 938 (195) 743

UK, Europe and Hong Kong

We continued to seek appropriate imvestment opportunities, to enable us o leverage off the skills and knowledge base of
the group and we also increased the resources in this area.

South Africa

The Direct Investments portfolio increased significantly from R697 milion at 31 March 2006 to R1 012 mifhon at 31 March 2007
This was driven by & good performance from the underlying investments and further investment acquisiions The opportunistic
mvestment side of Direct Investments was not as active this year compared to previous years because opportunities wy this part of
the business tend to anse in weaker stock market conditions

We continued to expand the capacity of our Private Equity investments through acqusitions and capital expenditure The Private
Equity portfolio was approximately Rl 266 mulkon at 31 March 2007 (March 2006 R922 million)

Austraha

We completed the equity rasing of A$200 million for Investec Wentworth Private Equity Fund 3 The total size of the Private
Equity Funds 15 A$480 million

We successfully completed three new investments

The nvestment porifelio continued to perform strongly

Qutlook

Corporate Finance

Black economic empowerment, IPOs and M&A transactions are expected to continue to drive activty n Scuth Africa

The pipeline looks positive across all geographies and we continue to bulld our client base

An enhanced team structure together with increased brand awareness and national reach, provides a solid platform for future
growth cpportunities across all areas of the Australian business

Institutional Research, Sales and Trading

The UK business has strengthened ds posilicning in the market while further growth 1s expected to come from hedge funds and
increased distribulion into the WS and Europe

The South African business remains well positioned to capitalise on current market condittons The focus on broadening the
research product. combined with increased internationat leverage, the stock association programme and improved traction from
new imtiatives, has improved the outlook for the operation

Direct Investments and Private Equity

We remain active in seeking direct mvestment opportunities, while continuing to unlock further value from the portioho and
bulding quality black economic empowerment platforms
The comparies n our Private Equity portfolio are all trading 1n kne with expectations and the outlook remains positive




Asset Management

Investment specialist focused on performance and client needs

Scope of activities

We offer a comprehensive range of portfolio management services and products to mstitutronal and retall chents

UK * Growang mutual fund {OEIC) business

+ Recogrised player in institutional market.
+ Leading public sector quidity management provider

Southern Alrica

+ Market leader in mutual funds (urut trusts) and portfolio products
« One of the largest third party instiutional managers

Cross border

Strategic focus

+ Growing offshore mutual funds provider to Asia, Europe, UK, the Americas, Southern Africa and other

offshore markets
* Institutional services to sovereign funds and central bank chents

Misston To exceed chent expectations of investment performance and service

We intend to achieve this by

+  Delivering sound investrment performance across all propositions

+  Providing exceptional clent service

+  Recogrising capacity constrants (alpha and service) where relevant
*  Being at the forefront of product mnovation

*  Drmng diversity worldwade

Management structure

Global Head of

Asset Management Hendrik duTot

Chief Operating Officer

Kirm McFailand

UK and international

Investments

4Factor Equities
4Factor Equrty Research
Contrarnan

Mulu-asset

Fixed Income

Domenico Ferring
Mark Breedon
James Hand
Adastair Mundy
Philip Saunders
John Stopford

Mutual Funds (UK and Europe) Dawvid Aird

Mutual Funds (Asia)
Mutual Funds (Amencas)
Institutronal (UK)
Institutional (US)
Marketing

South Africa

Managing Director
Deputy Managing Director
Managing Director

(Africa, excluding SA)
Investments

Equitres

Frxed Income
Communications

Philp Yeung
Richard Garland
Mark Samuelson
Steve Padden
Sarah Mcleland

John Green
Thabo Khojane

Ade Arimashahun
John McNab

Sam Houlie
Andre Roux
Jeremy Gardiner
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Contribution analysis
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Asset Management

investment specialist focused on performance and chent needs

Overview and financial analysis

»  Operating profit ncreased by 14 7% to £68 1 millon, contributing 14 6% to group profit
*  Assets under management decreased by 5 6% to £29 9 billion

£'000 31 March | 31 March | Variance | % Change
2007 2006

Net interest income 5242 4 050 I 192 29 4%
Net fees and commissions recevable 180 539 | 65 890 14 649 B8 B%
Other income 2775 | 54 I 261 833%
Imparment losses on loans and advances - {16} 6 100 0%
Admin expenses and depreciatson (120 444y (112 062) {8 382) 75%
Operating profit before goodwil, non-operating stems and taxation 68 112 59 378 8738 147%
UK and international 17555 10 609 6946 655%
Sauthern Africa 50 557 48 767 | 790 37%
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating 1tems and taxation 68 112 5% 376 8736 14 7%
Adusted shareholders' equity* 123 214 140 042 {16 831) (120%)
ROE (pre-tax)* 44 9% 363%

Cost to ncome ratio 639% 65 4%

Operating profit per employee (£'000)*~ 795 784 b 4%

*  As cakulated on page 27 and 33
™ Includes Silica {third party administration business)

The varance in operaung profit over the year can be explained as follows
UK and international

+  Operating profit grew by 65 5% to £17 6 millon
+  Growth was underpinned by the general momentum of the business and strong mutual fund sales

»  Assets under management increased to £13 | billon on the back of net flows in excess of £1 bithon for the reporting period

Southern Africa

»  Operating profit grew by 37% to £506 milion (2007 R676 8 milion, 2006 R322 2 milkon an increase of 22 67%)

*  Investment performance generally remained good resutiing in a rise in performance fee revenue from R210 millon to

R263 millon

= Assets under management benefited from strong mutual fund sales however on the institutional side, client restructures and

rebalances and structural outflows from the ex-Fedsure book resuited in net outfiows for the period

+ The final transfer of the ex-Fedsure boak (R 9 billion} to Liberty tock place in the second half of the year

Costs

» The increase in expenses 1s largely due to a nse in vanable remuneration in line with the strong growth i profitability and an

increase in headcount to drive future growth opportunities
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Assets under management*

Business type Geographic Asset class
100% — 100% —_— 100% —
424 438 34
pu—
| — pu—
56 562 606
0% | 0% | 0% |
aﬁetall ﬂUK and intemational aﬁxed income and cash
Institutional GSouthcm Afnca ﬂEquny
Movement in assets under management*
Total UK and Southern Africa
international
£ milion £'million £'million Rands
31 March 2006 31 653 11 820 19 833 212 658
MNew chents/funds 1 539 b 071 468 6 482
Existing chent/fund net flows (V 644) 80 (I 724) (23 360)
Net flows (105) I 151 (| 256) (16 878)
Market moverment (I 655) 124 {t 779) 42 990
31 March 2007 29 893 13 095 16 798 238770
Institutional 6 Q70 10 855
Retail 7 025 5943
£'milhion Total Instututional]  Retail
31 March 2006 3] 653 19 782 11871
New chents/funds 1539 | 380 159
Existing chent/fund net flows (} 644) (3 373) 1 729
Net flows (105) (1 993) | 888
Market movement (I 655) (864) 7eh
31 March 2007 29 893 l6 925 12 968
UK and international 6 070 7025
South Alrica |0 855 5943
Sales (gross inflows)
£'midlion 31 March | 31 March £'million 31 March{ 31 March
2007 2006 2007 2006
Institutional 3789 2 540 Fixed interest and cash 4104 3628
Retail 6276 6811 Equrty 5il4 4 625
10 065 9 351 Balanced 847 | 098
10 065 9 351

= Managed basis




Asset Management

Investment specialist focused on performance and cltent needs

Developments

UK and international

Good investment performance from the equity and mult-asset propositions

- 86% of mutual funds by value and 64% of mutual funds by number are in the first or second quartile over three years

- 67% over three years and 92% over five years of inststutional proposiions outperformed their benchmarks

The institbional business reported increased traction and started to benefit from the strong performance across our investment
proposition

The UK onshere mutual funds busmess grew from £3 2 bilhon to £4 2 billion an increase of 30 9% with net sales of £8703 mulhon
Notably, the Cautious Managed Fund passed through the £1 billion market - the first fund in the mutual fund range to do se

Key awards won over the penod included Global Money Managerment's Pension Fund Award 2007 for Fixed Income Manager of
the Year in the UK, Lipper's Best Large Equity Group of the Year for Switzerland and Morningstar's Small Company of the Year for
equity funds in Germany

The offshore funds continued to achieve strong sales, particularly from Asia (Hong Kong and Tarwan)

Investec Asset Management {(IAM) in the UK mutual fund industry

£'million 31 March | 31 March | 31 March
2007 2006 2005
IAM assets under management 4230 323! 2020
Total industry size 447 888 382 670 282 283
Market share 09% 08% 07%
Size ranking in industry 33rdof 113 {37thof |18 [43rdof 118
Industry net retal sales 13 805 {1818 3729
IAM % of industry nat retail sales 51% 68% 73%
Industry gross retail sales 59 973 45 693 30823
IAM % of industry gross retail sales 22% 29% | 8%

Sourced from data from the Investment Management Association
Sales for the | 2-month perod

UK and global retail investment performance

By value of funds

One year Three years Fourth quartile
71%
Fourth
quartile quartle
201% 7I1%

First quarcile
17 6%

Third
quartile
9 4%

First

Second |
ul quartle
s 2t

Second quarule
42 9%
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By number of funds

One year

Fourth
quartile
26 7%

First quartile
28 9%

Third
quartile

2
00% Second quartile
4 4%

Three years
Fourth quarule
16 7%
First
quartile
333%
Third
quartile
19 0%

Second quartile

Calculated from Lipper datg
Excludes cash, cosh plus and iquidity funds

UK and global instituttonal investment performance
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Southern Africa

*  Long-term :nvestment performance remains good

- 69% of mutual funds by value and 53% of mutual funds by number are in the first or second quartile over three years
- Over three years 100% and over five years 89% of insttutional propositions outperformed their benchmarks

+ The Africa inttiative has been established as a wiable investment option In the eyes of investors, resulung 1n good flows from several

large investors

+  The Liberty/Stanlb transfer of ex-Fedsure assets was completed in the second half of the year

Key awards won over the period are

- Best Larger Group over three and five years - Standard & Poors fund awards

- ACl/Personal Finance Raging Bull award for the Best Offshore Global Equity Fund and Offshore Management Company of the

year

- Second place overall - PlexCrown Offshore Survey March 2007




Asset Management

Investment specialist focused on performance and chent needs

Investec Asset Management (IAM) in the South African unit trust industry

R'million 3| March | 31 March | 31 March
2007 2006 2005
IAM assels under management 55910 40 867 27 166
Total ndustry size 596 072 485 410 339 812
Market share 9 4% 84% B80%

Size ranking in industry
Industry gross sales
1AM % of gross industry sales

Sourced from data from the Association of Collectve Investments
Soles for the | 2-month period

4th of 34 3rd of 28 3rd of 26
480 032 393 186 295 891
87% 9 0% 87%

South African retall investment performance

By value of funds

/ One year Three years
Fourth quartile an;th quartile
Therd
First quartle quarttle
33 e% 0%
First
Third quartile
guartile 55 5%
50 2%
Second quarcle
14 0% 133%
By number of funds
/ One year Three years
Fourth quartile Faurch quartile
2% 6 7%
First quarule
313 3%
First
quarule
40 0%
Third
quarule
40 0%

Third
quarcife
33 3%

Second quarule
22%

Second
quartile
13 3%

Calculated from Standard & Poors’ Datastream data
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South African institutional investment performance

/

H00% — — - (—
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aAbove benchmark

| year 2 years pa 3 years pa 5 year: pa

Calculated from Alexander Forbes data

Outlook

= Momentum across the business remains positive
+  Asolid long-term track record and growing demand for specialist high performance producl support the fundamentals of the
busmess




Property Activities

Leading fund management consohdator, seeking selective trading opportunities

Scope of activities

*  Property Fund Management

+  Property Services

+ Property Projects (development and trading)
*  Listed Property Portfolio Management

Strategic focus

UK and Europe

Ve are making progress in expanding our property modei in the UK Lo include property fund management and aligning the strategic
focus of the UK business with that of South Africa

South Africa
Property Fund Management

Qur sirategy has been to
»  Grow assets under management.
*  Pursue the strategic acquisiion of ndividual properties and portfolics

Property Services

Our strategic objective 15 ntegrally inked to the growth of Property Fund Management

Subsequent to the year end we sold our property fund management and property administration businesses to Growthpont
Properties Limited

Property Projects

QOuwr strategy 1s to
+  Source development and trading opportunities to create value and trade for profit within agreed risk parameters

Listed Property Portfolio Management

Qur strategic objectives are to

«  Substantially ncrease our assets under management

+  Attract foreign investment inte South African ksted property equities
+  Develop global property products

Management structure
Global Head of

Property Activities Sam Hackner
South Africa

Regional Head Sam Leon

Fund Management Norbert Sasse
Property Services Andrew Cox
Property Projects Robin Magid

Listed Property Portfcho

Management Angelique de Rauville

Finance Dave Danalg
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Contribution analysis

/

Operating profic® Employees Adjusted shareholders equicy**
30 16
100% 100% 100%
70 984
959
o% 0% | 0%
aPererty Actaties aRemamder of Investec group

* Before goodwill, non-pperating items and taxation and excluding Group Services and Other Actevities
** As calculated on page 27

Operating profit™ - track record
/

£'mn

20 186
182
Pl

15 141

piu
101
10

Tal0c
)

2000 2001 002 2003

S

~  Trend reflects numbers as at the year ended 31 March The numbers prior to 31 March 2005 were reported in terms of UK
GAAP Amounts are shown before goodwill, non-operating items and taxabion




Property Activities

Leading fund management consolidater, seeking selectve trading opportunities

Overview and financial analysis

+  Operating profit decrease by 239% to £14 1 milion, contributing 3 0% to group profit.
* Funds under management increased by 3! 0% ta R25 9 bilhon (2006 RI9 8 bilon)

£'000 31 March | 31 March | Varance | % Change
2007 2006

Net interest income (5801 (4 002) (1 799) 450%
Net fees and commissions recewvable 28 354 20 586 7768 377%
Other wicome 11847 21 944 (10 097) (460%)
Admin expenses and depreciation (20 256) {19 930) (326) | 6%
Operaung profit before goodwill, nan-operating items and taxation 14 144 18 598 (4 454) (23 9%)
UK & Europe 1292 2023 {731) (36 1%)
Southern Africa 12 852 16 575 (3723) (225%)
Operatng profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxauon 14 144 I8 598 {4 454) {23 9%)
Adjusted shareholders' equity* 19 975 17 124 2 851 166%
ROE (pre-tax)* 500% 768%

Cost to income ratio 589% 517%

Operating profit per employee (£'000)* 532 769 (308%)

*  As calculated on pages 27 and 33

The variance in operating profit over the year can be explained as follows

»  Excluding the revaluation of investment properties, the South African dvision showed an improvement in operating profit largely
due to
- Strong equity and property market fundamentals
- Anncrease in funds under management
- Realised gains on the sale of propertites

+  Revaluation of investment propertes net of funding costs amounted to £1 | milhon (2006 £64 million) The lower contribution 1s
due to increased funding costs

Outlook

UK and Europe

* Refer to strategic focus on page 65

South Africa

«  Property fundamentals continue 1o be positve, with lower vacancies, ncreasing rentals in alf sectors and reasonably stable financing
costs

*  Development opportunities also remain positive, hawever there are concerns on the avalability of skils and the increased cost and
shor tage of building matenals
A shortage of pnime zoned land has become ewident, drving land prices to unprecedented levels, particularly industral land

*  Subsequent to the year end we sold our property fund management and property administration businesses 1o Growthpont
Properties Limited

Divisional review
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Group Services and Other Activities

Group Serwaces mcludes the Central Services and Central Funding functions, while Other Actvities predominantly includes the

International Trade Finance business and Assurance Actrvities

Scope of activities

Central Services - Corporate Affairs
- Corporate Socal Investmerit
- Economics Research
- Faciues
- Finance and Operations
- Head Office
- Human Resources
- Information Centre
-_Information Technology

- International Financial Insttutrons

- Investor Relations

- Legal and Tax

- Marketing

- Organssation Development

- Regulatory Internal Audit and Complance
- Risk Management

- Secretanal

- Staff Shares Division

Other Activities

International Trade Finance (ReichmansCapital)
- Trade, asset and debtor finance

Management structure

Banking and Institutions

Chiel integrating Officer

Corporate Affairs and Sustamability

Corporate Governance Internal Audrt and Comphance
Corporate Sociat Investment

Facihties
Finance and Operations
Human Resources

Informauon and Business Inteligence Centres

Information Technology

International Financial tnstitutions
Investor Relations

Legal

Marketing

Organisation Development

Rusk Management
Secretarial and Staff Share Schemes

Tax

RexchmansCapital

Dawid Lawrence
Allen Zimbler

Carole Mason (5A)
Bradley Tapnack
Setlogane Manchidi (SA)
Ruchard Vardy (UK)
Craig Gunnell
Rayanne [acobson
Allen Zimbler (UK}
Tracey Rowe (SA)
Bruce Braude (UK)
Amanda Ritchie (SA)
Stacey Lee-Yates (5A)
Ingrtd David

Simen Shapiro
Helmut Bahrs

Ursula Nobrega
Dawvid Nurek
Raymond van MNiekerk
Caryn Solomon (UK)
Rene Dembo (SA)
Ciaran Whelan

Les Penfold

Panka;y Shah (UK)
Justin Cowley (5A)
Robin Jacobson
Howard Tragonsky
John Wilks




Group Services and Other Activities

Overview and financial analysis

£'000 31 March | 31 March | Vamance | % Change
2007 2006
International Trade Finance 5462 4 505 957 21 2%
USA continuing bustnesses - (1209 120 {1000%)
UK Traded Endowrments (109) (47 (62); >1000%
Assurance Activities | 646 Il 518 (9 872) (857%)
6999 15 856 (8 857) {559%)
Central Funding 66 981 66 777 204 03%
Central Services (74 649) (37 851) (16 798) 290%
Operaung (loss)/profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation (669) 24 782 (25 451)} =>1000%
£'000 - 31 March 2007 UK & Southern Australla Other Total
Europe Africa group
International Trade Finance 2957 2 505 - - 5462
UK Traded Endowments - (109) - (109)
Assurance Activities - | 646 - - | 646
Central Funding (4 516) 63716 7 400 381 66 981
Central Services (31 408) {32 700) (10 541) - {74 649)
Opaeratmg (Joss)/profit before goodwill, non-operating items
and taxaton {32 967) 35058 (3 141) 381 (669)
£'000 - 31 March 2006 UK & Southern Australa Other Total
Europe Africa group
International Trade Finance 2192 2313 - 4 505
USA continuing businesses - - (120) (120)
UK Traded Endowments - 47 - (47)
Assurance Aclivites - b 518 - - 11518
Central Funding (5 616) 67 020 5375 (2) 66 777
Central Services {22 542) (31 407 (3 902) - (57 851)
Operating profit/(loss) before goodwill, non-operating items
and taxation {25 966} 49 397 | 473 (122) 24 782
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Developments

International Trade Finance

+  Notwithstanding higher interest rates and a volatile exchange rate, we continued to add new chents across the board

Assurance activities

«  Aprofit of £1 6 millon (2006 £115 milion) was generated from Assurance Activiies, which represents the residual earnings from
the businesses that were retained following the reinsurance of the group nsk business on 31 December 2004

Central costs

*  We have a policy of allocating costs that are housed In the centre that are in effect, performing a function for the dvisions of the

group

« There are certain costs that are strategic in nature wiuch have not been allocated for pure segmental disclosure, amounting to
£746 million {2006 £57 9 million) However, a portion thereof (£61 & million) 15 allocated to the operating divisions for purposes
of determining return on adjusted capital per business segment. Refer to page 27 for further details

+  Central costs ncreased from £57 9 million 1o £74 6 million, largely as a result of an increase in vaniable remuneration given

increased profitability

Central Funding

*  We have a business model of mamntaiming a central pool of capital with the am of ensurmg that economies of scate with respect

to corperate nvestments funding and overall management are obtained

« Varmous sources of funding are employed, the determmation of which depends on the spedific financial and strategic requirements

the group faces at the relevant point in time

« The funds raised are apphed towards making acquisitions funding central services and debt obligations, and purchasing corporate

assets and nvestments not allocated 1o the five operating dvisions

£'000 31 March | 3| March | Varance | % Change
2007 2006
Net interest ncome {excluding interest on sub-debt and debentures) 86 040 63 992 22 048 34 5%
Other income 40 235 59 024 (18 789) (31 8%)
i26 275 123016 3259 26%
Interest pard on sub-debt and debentures (54 963) (52911} (2 052) 39%
impairment losses on loans and advances 794 b 771 (977) (552%)
Admin expenses and depreciation (5 125) (5 099) (26) 05%
Operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxation 66 981 66 777 (204) 03%

The vartance in operating profit over the year can be explained as follows
+  Net interest income was posiuvely affected by increased cash holdings
» The decline in other income reflects

- A lower level of return on certan of the assets in the South African portfolio
- Aloss of £34 million ansing on the dervative hedging of the preferred securities issued by a subsidiary of Investec plc from
Euros into Pounds Sterling This exposure 1s hedged with the equal and opposite impact reflected n earmings attnbutable to

minarities




Philosophy and approach

The group recognises that an effective risk management function 1s fundamental to its business Taking international best practice into
account our comprehensive risk management process, involves idenufying understanding and managing the nsks associated with each
of our businesses

Resk awareness, control and compliance are embedded in our day-to-day actmties

Group Risk Management (part of Group Services) independently monitors manages and reports on our nsk as mandated by the board
of directors through the Board Risk Review Committee Business units are ullmately responsible for managing risks that anse

We monitor and control risk exposure through credit. market. hquidity, operational and legal risk reporting teams This approach is core
to assurning a tolerable risk and reward profile, helping us to pursue growth across our business

Group Risk Management operates within an mtegrated geographical and dmsional structure, in Iine with our management approach,
ensuring that the appropriate processes are used 1o address all nisks across the group Group Risk Management has specialist divisions
in the UK and South Africa and smaller risk divisions in other regions, to promote sound risk management practices

Group Risk Management divisions with international responsibility are locally responsive yet globally aware This helps to ensure that all
Inibiatives and businesses operate within our defined risk pararmeters and objectives

Group Risk Management continually seeks new ways to enhance its techniques However, no bank can completely or accurately predict
or fully assure the effectiveness of its policies and procedures for managing risk.

Group Risk Management's objectives

Group Risk Management's objectives are to

= Be the custodian of our risk management culture

= Set, approve and monitor adherence to risk parameters and kmits across the group and ensure they are iImplemented and achered
to consistently

* Aggregate and monitor our exposure across nsk dasses

« Co-ordinate rnisk management activities across the organisation covering all legal entities and junisdictions

»  Give the boards reasonable assurance that the risks we are exposed to are identified and to the best extent possible managed
and controlled

+  Faaitate varous risk commuittees, as mandated by the board

Integrated global risk management structure

Group Risk and Finance Director - Glynn Burger Global Head of Risk - Ciaran Whelan

Divisional and geographic roles Global UK and Europe South Africa Austraha
Credit Risk - lan Wohlman Justin Cowley Mike Sargeant
Gary Laughton
Market Risk Mark Trolip Boaz Schechter Mark Trolhp Adam Rapeport
Asset and Liability Management Cyril Daleski | Wendy Robinson | Cynl Dalesk Peter Binetter
Operational Risk Colin Fiddes Bharat Thakker Colin Rddes Gavin
Brandenburger
legal Risk Dawvid Nurek Lauren Ekon Dawvid Nurek, Mare-Lyse
Eliatamby
Internal Audit Bradley Tapnack Noel Sumner | Brigid Schrieder Mary Tiong
Compliance Bradley Tapnack | Richard Brearley Geoff Cook Behnda Dorfan

Risk management
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Risk management framework, committees and forums

A number of committees and forums dentify and manage nsk at both a business unit level in various locations and at a group level, as
shown In the diagram and described more fully below These committees and forums operate together with Group Risk Management
and are mandated by the board

Investec plc and Investec Limited - Board of Directors

! ! !

Audit and Audit Sub-Committees DLC Capiral Commuttee Board Ruisk Review Commuttee

“ I

Exccutive Risk Review Farum

| |

Audit and Complance Group Credit Comrrutiees

Implementauon Forums

Group Deal Farum

Group Market Rusk Forum

Incernal Compliance
Audic

Asset and Liability Committees

Operavonal Risk Commutter

Goup Legal Risk Forum

I

Group Risk Management

T T

Australa Bowsswana Hong Kong Mauntus South Africa, UK Europe and the USA

I

Banking Trading, Secunues Asset Management, Property Acuvities




Committee

Function

Board Risk Review Committee

Members executive and non-executive directors
(serior managernent by invitation)

Chairman Stephen Koseff (CEQ)

Frequency bi-monthly

See page 115

Executive Risk Review Forum

Members executive directors and serior managernent
Chairman Stephen Koselff (CEC)
Frequency weekly

See page |16

Group Credit Committee

Members executive and non-executive directors and serior
management

Charrman Glynn Burger (Group Risk and Finance director)
Frequency weekly

Considers and approves the granting of credit to

counterparties in excess of the mandates granied to dmisional

and other credit forums on a global basis

Sets the level of cur maximum acceptable counterparty

geographic, asset, concentration and industry exposures

Reviews and approves changes (o ¢redit policy and

methodoioges, ncluding

- large exposure policy - dealing with the controt of
concentration risk and exposure measuremnent methodology

- Provisioning policy - dealing with the classificabon of past due
amounts and minimum acceptable prowvisions

- Excess management policy - dealing with the classification of
excesses and prescribed escalation procedures

- Long dated exposure by counterparty and instrument type

- Property valuation policy - specifies the framework for
valuation of physical security

Group Deal Forum

Members executive and non-executive directors and senior
management

Chairman Glynn Burger (Group Risk and Finance director)
Frequency weekly

Considers, approves and mitigates the risks inherent i any
acquisiticn disposal new product or cther non-standard
transactions that we are considering

Group Market Risk Forum

Members Global heads of nsk, market risk and the trading
desks, senior management, members of the market risk
teams and other members of Group Risk Management
Chairman Mark Trollip (Global Head of Market Risk)
Frequency weekly

Manages market risk by identifying and quantifying risks on the
basis of current and future expectations and ensuring that
trading occurs within defined parameters

Reviews market risk limits

Considers new business initatives with a market nisk element

Asset and Liabihty Committee

Members executive, semor management, econormist, treasurer,
business heads and Head of Asset and Liabthty Management
Chairman Glynn Burger {Group Risk and Finance director)
Frequency monthly (or ad hoc if required)

Sets our funding and liqurdity policy and non-trading interest
rate risk policy, which translates into a suite of hrmits that define
our risk appetite

Direcis the implementation of the methodeology techmques,
models and risk measures

Reviews the structure of our balance sheet and business
strategies, taking into account market conditions including
stress tests

Maintains kquidity contingency plans

Risk management
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Committee Function .

Operational Risk Committee

Members (UK) Chuef Risk Officer, Head of Operational Rusk +  Promotes sound operational nsk management practices

and senior management »  Considers operational nsk reports covening significant risk
Charman Bharat Thakker (UK} and Colin Fiddes (South Afrca) events information secunty outsourcing and business continuity
Frequency quarterly (LUK} and semi-annually (South Africa) » Considers and recommends the upgrading of operational risk
in South Africa operational risk reports directly to the Board Risk management techniques in line with sound operational risk
Review Committee managernent practices

Group Legal Risk Forum

Members executive directors, senior management and dwvisional = Considers and manages legal risks throughout the group
legal managers

Chairman David Nurek (Global Head of Legal Risk)

Frequency half-yearly {or ad hoc If required)

DLC Capital Committee

Members executive and non-executive directors and serior = Seepage ilé
management

Chairman Stephen Koseff (CEQ)

Frequency every six weeks

DLC Audit Committee

Members non-executwe directors « Seepage |13
Charman Sam Abrahams (non-executive dwrector) «  The Internal Audit Comphance and Operational Risk
Frequency minimum of three times a year Departments report to the Audit Committee

Risk policy and procedures

In our ordinary course of business, we are exposed to vanous nisks, including credit market, interest rate and hquidity, operational legal !
and reputalional risks

Below 1s an overview of these types of 1isks and related developments that occurred during the period under review

Credit nsk management

Credit risk description

Credit 11isk represents the potental loss 10 the group as a result of
* A counterparty being unable or unwilling to meet its obligations
+ A detenoration in the credit quality of thurd parties 1o whom we are exposed

Credit nisk anses from two types of transacuons ‘
= Lending transactions and positions in debt instruments (the risk that a counterparty to a transaction will be unable or unwilling to |
repay capital and interest on Ioans and advances as they fall due})
«  Denvative transactions giving nse to settlement and replacement risk. Settlement risk 1s the nisk that the settlement of a transaction
does not take place as expected with us effecting required settlements as they fall due but not recenng settlements to which we
are entitted Continuous linked settlement and exchange settlement reduce the level of settlement risk in the banking system
Replacement risk 1s the msk that a dervative instrument needs to be replaced following defauli by the originat counterparty and
that such replacement 1s done at a cost which equates to the mark-to-market of the trade at the date of replacement.

The nature and degree of credit nsk vary depending on the type of business transactions entered




Credit nisk governance structure

To manage, measure and mitigate credit sk, we have independent credit commuittees in each geography where we assume credit nisk.
These committees operate under board approved delegated limits, policies and procedures A centralised decision making structure
wath decentralised hrruts 15 the basis on which apphcations for credit are assessed There 1s a high level of executrve and non-executive
ivolvement in credit deciston making forums Decentralised mits tend to be relatively low to ensure a high degree of centralised
involvernent in all areas where credit nisk is incurred All decisions to enter a transaction are based on unanimous consent.

In additon to the Group Credit Committee, the following specialist forums assist in managing, measuring and monitoring credit risk.

*  Watchhst Commuittee, which reviews the management of distressed loans, potential problem loans and exposures in arrears that
require additional attention and supervision

» Corporate Watch Committee which oversees and manages exposures that may potentally become distressed as a result of
changes In the economic environment or adverse share price movements, or that are vulnerable to volatile exchange rate or
nterest rate movements

Country nisk appetite 15 approved as required by the Credit Committee as part of the normal credit application process Country risk
appetite 15 generally mited to that required for speafic transactions entered with counterparties whese credit quality and ability to
service thewr debt are dependent on the socio-economic environment of the country of application The crecitworthiness ability and
desire to maintain capital flows, together with past management expenience relating to the cross-border nisk, will be considered i
assessing whether deal based limrts are within the appetite of the group and legal entity in question

Management and measurement of credit risk

We use the following fundamental principles to manage credit nisk

* A clear definiion of our target market

* A guantitative and qualitative assessment of the creditworthiness of our counterparties

» Appropriate credit granting critena

»  An analysis of all related risks including concentration nsk (concentration nsk considerations Include asset class ndustry,
counterparty and geographical concentration)

*  Prudental hmits

*  Repular monitoring of existing and potential exposures once faciities have been approved

* A high level of executive involvernent i and non-executive awareness of decision-making and review

Consistent regular reporting of credit risk exposures within our operating units 1s made to management, the executives and the board
The board regularly reviews the appetite for credit nsk, which 1s documented in risk appetite staternents and policy documents and
implemented by our Group Credit division

Credit risk in the UK and Europe

The UK and European group comprises businesses in the UK including a branch in lreland ang banking businesses in the Channel islands
and Switzerlang

Credit risk arises mamnly through our Private Banking and Capital Markets activities, which include inter-bank placements and asset
finance actvities Some settlement risk 15 assumed i the Investment Banking division but 15 to approved market counterparties

Private Bank

The Private Bank has businesses in the UK (London and Manchester) ncluding branches in Ireland, the Channel Islands and Switzerland
Credit risk anses from the following activities which we undertake in the division structured property finance, private client fending,
specialised lending growth and acquisition finance, and asset based lending on recewvables and stock

The Structured Property Finance area prowides senior debt, mezzanine and equity funding for property transacuions covering the
residential and commercial markets Our exposure to the property market 15 well diversified with ne indmidual concentration risk. Our
properties are well located residential or good quality commercial assets with recogrised lenant covenant. Qur property assets are
located in the UK with limited exposure to retad property assets in Germany and Switzerland, which are anchored by major European
retail covenants Client quality and expertise are at the core of our credit philosophy, ensunng a low probability of defauli Furthetmore
robust debt service cover ratios and reasonable loan to values ensure a low level of expected loss which 1s supported by low historical
actual losses Where a more commercial view 15 taken on debt structure and leverage, significantly increased returns are expected All
faciliies are reviewed at least annually and property values are monitored by our appointed panel valuation firms Committees revievs
and monitor our mezzanine and equity property funding exposure on a quarterly basis

Growth and Acquisiion Finance provides mezzanine or composite debt funding to successful entrepreneurs, management leams
private eguity houses and UK based mid-market companies that are mplementing acquisition and orgamc growth strategies Deal sizes
typically range between £8 mullion and £20 mulhon Credit risk 15 assessed agamst the debt service coverage and robustness of the cash
generation for the business both historically and against forecasts Other factors mclude the quality of the management team and the
amortisation profile of the debt package

Risk management
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Asset Based Lending provides working capial and business loans secured on collateral or assets used in the conduct of the business,
for example, account recevables inventory, plant and machinery, and property We also prowde advances aganst cash flow or other
assets such as commuitted ncome or rights Lending ncludes variable funding on varable assets and term loans on fixed assets

Speciabised Lending provides bespoke credit faciliies and hedging options to high net worth individuals and financially sophisticated
chients This invalves securities lending agamnst holders of isted equities and transaction facilitation, where we work with chients, law firms
and trust companies to facilitate financial plareing and structunng for their chents We also provide funding secured on sports and media
related cash flows, ncluding intellectua! property nghts and sponsorship transactions where certanty of serviceability, chent quahty and
experlise are key considerations

Private Client Lending provides bespoke mortgages and secured lending to high net worth and high income indviduals Loan sizes
range between £05 million and £10 million with long-term durations Credit risk 15 assessed aganst robust debt serwicing cover ratios
Lending 1s underpinned by good quality assets, including residential and commercial property, bank guarantees discrebicnary investment
portfolios and cash depostts In determining serviceability we also consider the iquidity of the chent, including cash reserves and iiquid
asset holdings Funding is charactersed by long-term annuity ncome and a histoncally jow probability of default Property assets are
located predomnantly in the UK with imited exposure to prime residential areas in France and Spain All facilities are reviewed at teast
annually and property values are monitored by our apponted panel valuation firms

Caprtal Markets

The bulk of Caprtal Markets actvities are conducted from London

As part of the daly management of hiquidity, the treasury function places funds with banks and other financial institutions These
professtanal counterparties are highly rated with credit nisk of a systemic nature

Our trading book consists of positions n interest rates, foreign exchange, commodities and equities Credit risk arises from standard
trading risks such as seltlement counterparty and replacement risk.We maintain a thorough risk process that reviews and monitors al!
potential credit nsks inherent In customer trading facihites These positions are marked to market daly with margin calls where
necessary Lo mitigate credit exposure in the event of counterparty default

Within the Structured Finance business, credit risk can anse from struclured finance, project and resource finanang, asset finance
acquisiion finance and corporate lending aclvibies There are approved lmits specifying the maximum exposure to each indwidual
counterparty to ensure there 1s no concentraion nisk. Facilties are secured on the assets of the underlying corporate The credit
appelte for each counterparty 1s based on the financial strength of the principal borrower, underlying security and cash flow

While most of the activities of our Capital Markets division are concentrated in Europe, any exposure to counterparties outside this
Jurisdictson 1s miligated through a strngent country msk approval and monitoring process. and covered by poliical risk insurance where
deemed appropriate

Our Principal Finance (secunuisation) area has a ‘'non-conforming” mortgage onginalion platform Assets are gathered from
intermediaries and administered externally These assets are well spread and are warehoused on a short-term basis and secunitised
penicdically The group also securiises assets that it has onginated In ts Asset Finance business

Investment Banking

Credit exposures arise from trading actviies with market counterparties These are all on a delivery versus payment basis, through
major share exchanges Credit risk only occurs in the event of counterparty falure and would be inked to any mark to market losses
on the underlying secunty

Credit rnisk in South Africa

Credit risk 15 assumed mamly through our Private Banking Capital Markets, and Asset Finance actvities (ReichmansCapital)

Private Banking

Our lending praduct, offered through our structured property and growth and acquisition finance actvities supports the needs of our
chents Central to our credit philosophy 1s the concept of sustainability of Income through the cycle As such the client base has been
defined to nclude high net worth clients {who through diversification of income streams will reduce income volatility) and ndnduals
with a profession which has histoncally supported a bugh and sustainable ;come stream wrespective of stage in the economic cycle
The combination of low probability of default ¢lients (due ta our riche focus) and low and decreasing loan to value ratios results in a
low level of expected loss, which has been borne out by historical expenence of actual losses

Residential mortgages and commercial property make up the bulk of our lending exposure Exposure to commeroial retal and
industrial properties are generally at conservative loan to value ratios Income producing assets are generally substantially let with good
quality anchor tenants




Exposure to the South African property market 1s well spread among the regions in which we mainly operate (Pretoria Johannesburg,
Cape Town, Durban and Port Elizabeth) This risk is mitigated by reviewang all properties offered as secunty prior to advancing funds
Our internal valuers or a bank approved panel of exiernal valuers also regularly review commercial property values Furthermore,
serviceability of a loan advanced against property 15 a primary consideration in the credit assessment process and not only asset value
Clients have used and are increasingly using fixed rate funding, which should mitigate potential upward shifts in interest rates and
increased interest rate volatitity

Caprtal Markets

lavestee Corporate Treasury prowides money market and foreign exchange products to corporates and investors We are an active
market maker in the spot and forward US Dollar/Rand interbank markets Trading transactions giving rise to 1ssuer seltlement and
replacement risk were among the primary areas of potential credrt risk in the year under review Scenario analyses were performed
regularly for clients whose exposures showed a material level of volatility as a result of these factors

The Specialised Finance, Project Finance and Resource Finance businesses lend money on a structured basis to corporates, government
and institutions, with full recourse, to either a suitable asset or to the balance sheet of the entity to which the funds are advanced

Typical assets that are funded nclude property. plant and equipment, infrastructure and movable assets Credit imits are set for each
counterparty and monitored to ensure nisk 1s mitigated The credit appetite for each counterparty is based on the financial strength of
the principal borrower, underlyng secunity, cash flow and, in the case of trading products, the nature of the underlying security traded

The Resource Finance business may be exposed to countries presenting complex legal and political risks Extensive knowledge of Afrca
(which represents the bulk of the exposure in this business unit), good technical and financial skills and strong adherence to prudent
country risk limits ensure that concentration nsks are wefl managed Exposures are monitored continuously and assets provided as
security 101 support of borrowing faclives are generally easily realisable Most of the Resource Finance business activities form part of
the corporate asset class (as defined by Baset Il), since recourse in the event of default will be to the tolal assets of the corporate and
nol merely the resources being financed Transactions are structured so that scenanios resulting in increased exposure coincide with
increased profitability of the entity being financed and thus a relatively stable expected loss .

ReichmansCapital

ReichransCapital 1s an asset finance business which operates on a premium margin business mode! for small and medium sized
corporates The business 1s a relatively small component of the overall credit risk we accept,

Credit risk in Mauritius

Investec Bank (Mauritius) Limited offers various barking services and its primary business actiities are corporate lending, property
finance and structured finance, servicing corporate and private clients Prudential limits have been set and are monitored daly to ensure
that should excesses occur, they are identified tmeocusly and remedial action 1s taken promptly if necessary

Investec Bank (Maurrtius) Limited s an autonomous subsidiary of Investec Bank Limited It has a decentralised credit approval and
management process In compliance with our group credit philosophy. palicy and procedures, as well as the Central Bank of Mauritius’
regulatory framework.

Credit risk in Australia

Investee Bank (Australia) Limited operates within a clearly defined framework for managing crednt risk. The policies and procedures for
credit risk management are consistent with those of the group and comply with the prudential standards 1ssued by the Australian
Prudential Regulatory Authorily

Credit risk 15 assumed through transacting with target private and corporate clients project and resource finance, and the placement
of surpius hquidity with highly rated domestic banks and financial insttutions

Asset quality analysis - credit risk classification and provisioning policy

It 1s our pohcy that each operating dwision makes prowision for specrfic Impairments and calculates the appropriate level of portiolio
impairmenis promptly when required and on a consistent basis This 1s in accordance with established group guidelines and n
conjunction with the Watchlist Commitiee In our financial statements credit losses and impairments are reported in accordance with
iFRS

The information provided below reflects the guidelines and definians that we have applied for assessing the asset guality of our credit
exposures (see page 78) These defimtions and guidelines are consistent with IFRS RS differs from the requirements laid out in the
Basel Accord {Base! Il) which 15 to be adopted as a benchmark by banking regulators as from | Jaruary 2008 IFRS focuses on the
concept of incurred loss, whereas Basel Il centres on the concept of expected loss The reconciling differences are prumarily due to the
fact that IFRS impairments only reflect a decrease in the value of credit risky assets where a' loss trigger event” has occurred, and cnly
that portian of the expected loss which has actually been incurred at the reporting date A loss trigger event s an event which exhibits
a high correlation to the crystalisation of loss
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Regulatory and
economic capital
classificavion

IFRS smpairment treatment Arrears,

default and
recoveries
classffication

category

Descriptton

Performing assets

For assets which form part of a Current

homogenous portfolic a portfolio Specal menton

mparrment 1s required which recognises
asset impairments that have not been
indwidually dentified The portfolio
impairment takes into account past
events and does not cover impairments
to exposures ansing out of uncertan
future events By defintion, this
mparment 1s only calculated for credit
exposures which are managed on a
porticho basis and only for assets where
a loss trgger event has occurred

» Obligor 1s experiencing difficulties that may

threaten the bank's position

Ultmate loss 1s not expected, but may occur if

adverse conditions persist.

Credit exposures overdue for more than 60 days

and less than 90 days will at a mimimum be

included in "Special mention” (or a lower quality

category)

Supplementary reporting categones

- Past due 0-14 days past payment due date

- Past due 15-29 days past payment due date

- Arrears 30-59 days past payment due date

- Special mention 60-89 days past payment due
date

Assets in default

Specific mpairments are evaluated on a2 Sub-standard

case-by-case basis where objective

evidence of impairment has arnsen fn

determining speciiic impairments, the

following factors are considered

+ Business unit's exposure to the
customer

Capability of the client to generate

sufficient cash flow to service debt

obligations and the ongoing viability

of the client's business

Likely dividend or amount recoverable

on liquidation or bankruptcy

+ Nature and extent of claims by other
creditors

* Amount and timing of expected cash

flows

» Wel! defined weakness that may lead to probable
loss if not corrected

Probable that asset will become impaired

The bank I1s relying, to a laige extent on available
security The primary sources of repayment are
insufficient to service the remaining contractuat
principal and intet est amounts and the bank has to

rely on secondary sources for repayment. These
secondary sources may include collateral, the sale
of a fixed asset, refinanaing and further capital
Credit exposures overdue for more than 90 days
and less than 180 days will at a mimimum be
included i “Sub-standard” (or a lower quality
category) Any fully secured exposures will be
ncluded in “Sub-standard” (or a lower quality
category) where they are overdue by mare than
|2 months

Realisable value of security held (or  Doubtfu!
other credit mitigants)

Abihity of the chent to make

payments in the foregn currency, for

foretgn currency dencminated

accounts

Assets are considered to be mpared but not yet
considered a final foss due to same pending factors
such as a merger, new financing or capital injection
These factors may strengthen the quality of the
relevant exposure

Credrt exposures are not adequately secured The
said weaknesses make collection in full, on the basis
of currently existing facts conditions and values,
highly questionable and wmprobable

Credit exposures overdue for |80 days or more
witl at a minimum be included in “Doubtful (or a
lower guality catepory)

Loss

Credil exposures classified as Loss are
considered to be uncollectable once collection
efforts, such as realisalion of collateral and
institution of legal proceedings, have been
unsuccessful

Assets in this category are expected 1o be written
off in the short term since the likelhood of future
economic benefits resulting from such assets 15
remote




Asset quality and impairments

£'milhon 31 March | 31 March
2007 2006
Total loans and advances to customers (gross of impairments) 10 230 9 646
Spealfic iImparrments 33 31
Portfolio impairments 7 10
Total impairments 40 41
Gross default loans 123 21
Sub-standard 42 21
Doubtful 41 48
Loss 40 22
Less security 94 62
Net default loans (pre impairments held against these loans) 29 29
Adequacy of impairments
Specific impairrments as a % of loans and advances to customers 032% 032%
Portiolo impairments as a % of net loans and advances to customers 007% 010%
Total impairments as a % of loans and advances to customers 039% 043%
Total impairments as a % gross default loans 3252% 4505%
Total mparments as a % of net default loans 13793% 141 38%
Specific imparments as a % of gross default loans 2683% 3407%
Spectfic mpairments as a % of net default loans 11379% 106 90%
Gross default loans as a % of loans and advances to customers | 20% 094%

Asset quality by geography

£'million Loans |Portfolio| Specific | Total Graoss | Security | Net
and tmpair- | impair- | impair- | default held default
advances| ments ments ments loans against loans
default
loans
31 March 2007
UK and Europe 4012 pi 6 8 34 26 8
Southern Africa 5545 5 |7 22 71 59 12
Australia 573 10 10 |8 2 9
Total group 10 230 33 40 123 94 29
31 March 2006
UK and Europe 31238 | 7 8 i I 8
Sauthern Africa & 004 g 23 32 70 51 19
Austraha 404 | I 2 - 2
Total group 9 646 10 31 41 91 62 29

As part of our Basel process we have revisited the definitions applied n terms of our asset quality information and refined these
across divisions and geographies There have been some minor changes as a result, and the 2006 nformation as depicted above has

been restated accordingly Definitions applied are explained on page 78
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Loans and advances to customers by loan type

At 31 March 2007 2006
£000
Category analysis
Commercial property loans 3486799 | 2816243
Residential mortgages 1 932566 | | B72 477
Leases and mnstalment debtors 340 050 306 933
Corporate and public sector loans and advances 2764 650 | 2864 206
Other private bank lending 1 461590 | 1352 121
Other loans and advances 544 586 433 735

10230241 | 9645715
Speafic imparment (33 194) (31 056)
Portfolio imparrment {6 795) (10 070)

10 190 252 | 9 604 589
/ Loans and advances to customer by loan type Loans and advances to customer by loan type

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
53% 45%
4% 140%
29 1%
341%
27 0%
197%
19 4%
18 9%
3% 32%

m Commercial property loans m Residential mortgages
8 Corporate and public sector 8 Other private banking
ioans and advantes lending

n Leases and instament debtors
& Other loans and advances




Securitisations

As mentioned on page 76 the UK has developed a Principal Finance business over the fast two years In South Africa our securitisation
business, which forms part of our Structured Finance unit, was estabhshed approximately six years ago when the debt capital markets
commenced development in South Africa Over this tme we have arranged a number of corporate bond and commercial paper
programmes and third party securitisations Furthermore we have securiised assets we have onginated in our Private Banking business
1n South Africa

The primary motrvations for the securstisation of asseis within cur Private Banking dmision are to
* Prowide an alternative source of funding

* Prowide a source of revenue

*  Act as a mecharusm to transfer risk

* Leverage returns through the retention of equity tranches in low default rate portfolios

For accounting purposes, the full amount of the securitisation assets are reflected on the face of the balance sheet where Investec plc
Investec Limited or any of their subsidraries retain an effective equity stake in the special purpose securtiisation vehicle, whather or not
the risk on the assets has been transferred to third parties Where the majority of risks and rewards have been transferred to third
parties, only the retained portion is reflected on the balance sheet

The tabte below shows securitised assets which were onginated on the balance sheet of an Investec group entity and subsequently
transferred to a securiisation vehicle and the full amount of the securttisation 1s reflected on the face of the group's balance sheet The
analysis excludes nvestments in asset backed securities where the underlying assets were not orginated by the group and for which
no obligation by way of a hquidity faciity exists

As at 31 March 2007 2006
£'milhon

First loss tranches 10 5
Second loss tranches 5 5
Investment In securitisation paper 15 9
Investment in securitisations 30 19
Liquidity facilities 53 75
Total value of securitised assets retained by Investec group entity 83 94
Total value of securitised assets held by third partes 524 330
Total value of securitised assets subject to the hquidity faciity® 604 424

*  These assets refate to the South Alnican private banking book

Credit nisk mitigation

The bulk of collateral taken by the group within the Private Bank division, which makes up a substantial portion of our on balance sheet
assets 15 commercial and residential real estate Commercial real estate generally takes the form of good qualty property underpinned
by strong third party leases Residential property is alse generally of a high quality reflecting our chents' appetite for investments in
destrable locations In the period under review, there was ongoing strong growth in the value of commercal and residential real estate
i all our key operating jurisdictions (UK, South Africa and Austraha) Thrs will result in increases in the valuation of secunty and
consequently decreasing loan to value ratios Other common forms of collateral in the retall asset class are motor vehicles, cash, shares
and share portfolios

The bulk of coliateral receved is considered to be hiquid as a result of strict iquidity pelicies for financial collateral and the strength
and relatve hquidity of real estate markets, particularly in areas where chent investment 15 concentrated

The bulk of credit mitigation within cur Treasury activiies 1s in the form of netting {primarity International Swap Dealers Association
Global Master Securities Lending Agreement and International Securiies Master Agreerment) and margiming agreements (primarily
through Credt Support Agreements) Where we have signed netung agreements for which the enforceability is supperted by external
legal opinion within the legal jurisdictron of the agreement the exposures for all product categories covered by such agreements will
be stated net of any labilities owing by Investec to the agreement counterparty for those product categories

We are implementing a group-wide centralised security register The current practice 1s to record security value and nature in source
systems when received and revalue the security annually or as required by the credit committee The credit administration system
inctudes a functionality to prevent the release of security wathout approval from an authorised credit forum
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Credit risk year in review
Basel Il

From a credit risk perspective there has been sigmificant investment i people and technology in order to re-engineer existing credi
process in such a way as 1o meet additional requirements of the junsdictional regulators which are in the process of being aligned to
the Internauonal Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital Standards issued by the Bank of International Settlements This re-
engineering of creait processes 1s being conducted within the context of Invesiec’s core credit phitosophy

UK and Europe

The loan portfolo increased by 24 0% to £4 0 billion, driven largely by solid growth in our Structured Property Lending and Acquisition
Finance businesses

We have seen sustained growth in the UK housing market driven by the shortage of housing and net immugration These trends are
expected 10 be mantamed or stabilise in 2007, where growth in the UK property market is estimated at 6%, led by continued price
rises in prime southern locations Ireland and Scotland The marginal increases in UK inierest rates, aganst a backdrop of anticipated
house price correction, has had a minimal effect on our core dlient base of high net worth and market professional individuals who
can afford rate nses and have significant equity at risk.

The European residential markel has seen moderate growth, driven by solid market fundamentals, further yield compression and
ongong development in Eastern Europe Growth s expected to continue in 2007, with estmated price increases in some parts of
Central Europe of up to 20%

Continued demand from the emerging markets and strong supply/demand fundamentals from mvestars and speculators has led to
record gains of up to 43% in commodities prices This has resulted n the increased viability and profitability of marginal producers and
demand for resource financing atongside a further focus on price risk hedging for wholesale consumers

The US sub-prime mortgage market experienced increased volatility and higher defaults as a result of an oversupply of property, higher
interest rates and the qualty of borrowers Qur exposure 15 imited to the extent of a small number of equity posiions Substantially,
our warehouse risk on these transactions 1s underwritten predominantly by other financial institutions Our exposure in this sector
remains low

The qualily of the overall loan portfolie n the UK and Europe remains satisfactory with gross default loans as a percentage of total
loans of 0 85%

South Africa
The loan portfolic increased by 22 5% to R78 4 billien

Cver the past financial year, a number of financial market trends had an impact on the assessment of our credit nsk. These trends

include
Upward pressure on interesl rates (the prime lending rate ncreased from 105% at 31 March 2006 to 125% at
31 March 2007) but a negative yield curve indicating an expeclation of future interest rate cuts

+  Moderate levels of Rand volatiity and a substantial depreciation in the Rand aganst the US Dollar

«  Highly volatile and high real pnces of ol and metals {both base and precious)

+  Strong equity markets and a slowdown in the real growth of restdential and commercal property

+  Upward pressure on food prices as a result of the effects of the drought on the agricuttural sector




While the South African property market has been more resilient than that of the more established first world econormues we are
consaious of the potential effect of the combinatlon of a slowdown of growth n the property market (both global and local) and
upward pressure on interest rates For this reason, we constantly monitor property exposures by stress testing the property portfolio
This 15 undertaken by assurming a sharp fall in property values and assessing the resultant loan to value ratios, changes in the ability of
the borrower to service or repay from independent means and mterest rate shocks resulting in rental ncome falling below nterest
expenses

The high net worth and/or stable income streams shown by our target market clients provide a level of protection from decreases in
property values, should a dechirung trend occur in the future Over the past few years, as property values mcreased, these ciients buill
an eflective equity buffer, resulung in lower average loan to value ratios, which have reduced potental losses on depreciation of values

As a result of the early realisation of profits in respect of precious metal hedges (manly gold) subsequent to corporate action in the
MINING SECtor our exposure to corporate commodity producers 15 significantly lower than in the prior year

As detaded above the Rand has devalued significantly aganst the US Dollar over the past year and has shown higher levels of volatiity
compared to the prior year An increase m chent flow together with greater hedging actvity (due to higher levels of volatility) has
resulted in increased profitabety and exposure in the Treasury Foreign Exchange business

For both interest rate and foreign exchange products we have advanced exposure simulation methodologies, which enable us 1o
identify more accurately the level of potental exposures to counterparties for these trading activities These simulation methodologies
recogruse volume of trading, volatiity of products traded, deal tenor and credit mitigants in derming granular counterparty exposure
profiles (and, in so doing, allow for roll-off risk assessments)

The quality of the overall loan portfolio in Southern Africa remans satisfactory with gross default loans as a percentage of total loans
of 1 28%

Australia

The loan portfolie increased by 63 2% to A% & bilhon, driven by growth across all business streams and the acquisiion of NM
Rothschild & Sons (Australia) Limited

Market risk management

Market risk description

Market risk 15 a measure of potential change in the value of a poi tfoho of instruments as a result of changes in the financial environment
(resulting 1in changes i underlying market risk factors such as interest rates, equily markets, bond markets, commodily markets
exchange rales and volatlilies) between now and a future pomnt in tme The Market Risk Management team identfies quantiies and
manages the effects of these potential changes In accordance with Basel Il and policies determined by the board

Within our traging actvities, we act as principat with clients or the market Market risk, therefore exists where we have taken on
principal positions, resulting from proprietary trading, market making, arbitrage, underwriting and investments in the commodity foreign
exchange equity capital and money markets The focus of these businesses 15 on supporting client actmity Cur phitosophy s that trading
should be conducted largely to facilitate chents in deal execution

Market risk governance structure

To manage, measure and mitigate market risk, we have independent market nsk management teams in each geography where we
assume market risk. Local himits have been set to keep potential losses wathin acceptable misk tolerance levels A Global Market Risk
Forum (mandated by the various boards of directors) manages the market risks in accordance with pre-approved principles and
pohicies

Rusk lirits are reviewed and set at the Global Market Risk Forum and ratified at the Executive Risk Review Forum Limits are reviewed
either annually, n the event of a significant market event (eg || September 2001}, or at the discretion of servor management.

Management and measurement of market risk

Market risk management teams review the market risks on our books and ensure that we are prudently positioned, taking into account
agreed policies, prevailing markets and hquidity hedging strategies and the relationship between risk and reward

Detailed risk reports are produced dally for each trading desk These reports are distributed to management and the traders on the
desk Any unauthorised excesses are recorded and require an explanaton from the desk, mcluding a satisfactor y explanation for the
excess The production of risk reports allows for the monitoring of every instrument traded against prescribed imits Tradwng 15 also
iimited to the most kquid instruments and each traded instrument under goes various stresses and the potential loss ansing 1s assessed
Each trading desk 1s monstored on an overall basis as an additional control

Risk management

83



Risk management

84

Trading limits are generally tiered with the maost liqurd and least ‘nsky” instruments being assigned the largest hmits

The market nsk teams perform a profit attribution, where our dally traded mcome 1s attribuled to the various underlying risk factors
on a day-to-day basis An understanding of the sources of profit and loss s essential to undersianding the nisks of the business

Measurement techmiques used to guantfy the market nisk ansing from our trading actvities include sensitvity analysis, Value at Risk
{VaR) and Expected Tail Loss (ETL) Stress testing and scenarno analysis are also used to smulate extreme conditions to supplement
these core measures

VaR numbersare monitored at the 95%, 99% and 100% (maximum foss) confidence intervals ETLs are monitored at the 95% and 99%
levels

Scenano analysis considers the impact of a significant market event on our current trading porticlios We consider the mpact for the
10 days after the event, not merely the instantaneous shock to the markets The following scenarios are analysed October 1987 Black
Monday |1 September 2001 and the December Rand cnisis in 2001

AllVaR models while forward-looking, are based on past events and depend on the quality of avallable market data The accuracy of
the VaR model as a predictor of potential loss 1s continuously momitored through back testing This snvolves comparing the actual trading
revenues arising from the previous day's closing positrons with the one-day VaR calculated for the previous day on these same positans
if the revenue 15 negative and exceeds the one-day VaR, a “back testing breach” 1s considered to have occurred

VaR 95% (one-day)

3| March 2007 Investec Investec Consol-
£'000 ple Limited dated
Commodities 79 26 93
Equity derivatives F24 458 475
Foreign exchange 5 66 62
Interest rates 77 40 103
Consoldated* 179 495 518
High 539 979 | 034
Low 130 196 267
Average 238 459 586
31 March 2006 Investec Investec Consol-
£'000 ple Limited dated
Commodilies 36 - 36
Equity dervatives 212 289 4G4
Foreign exchange 8 133 131
Interest rates 14 134 59
Consolidated* 203 34| 478
High 820 1 013 b 330
Low 160 108 204
Average 373 514 771

*  The consohdated VaR for each desk and each entity 1s lower than the sum of the indmdual VaRs
This anises from the correlation offset between the vanous assel classes




The graphs below show total daly VaR. and profit and loss figures for the trading activties of Investec plc and Investec Limited over the
reporting period The values are for the 99% one-day VaR 1e 99% of the time, the total trading actvities will not Jose more than the
values depicted below Based on these graphs, we can gauge the accuracy of the VaR figures

Investec plc daily profit and losses (pnl) vs 99% VaR
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The tnvestec plc graph above shows no exceptions for the past financial year The Invesiec Umited VaR numbers show two exceptions
for the period under review as a resull of losses sustained on the Interest Rates desk due to adverse moves in South African consumer
price inflation

ETL 95% (one-day)

31 March 2007 Investec Investec Consoli-
£'000 ple Limited dated
Commodities 126 47 141
Equity dervatives 158 643 669
Foreign exchange 6 t70 166
Interest rates 150 55 181
Consohdated* 248 692 736

*  The consohdaled ETL for each desk and each entity 15 lower than the sum of the mdividual ETLs
This arises from the correlation offset between the various asset classes
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ETL 95% (one-day) (continued)

31 March 2006 Investec Investec Consoli-
£'000 ple Limited dated
Commodities 46 - 46
Equity dervatives 268 392 483
Foreign exchange 10 219 212
lnterest rates 23 181 161
Consolidated* 219 447 535

*  The consohdated ETL for each desk and each entity 1s lower than the sum of the mndmdual ETLs
Ths arises from the correlation offset between the various asset classes

The portfolio stress tested under extreme conditions (15 standard deviations) will result in a loss of £22 million in investec plc
£4 6 million n Investec Limited and £6 7 milhion on a consoldated group basis {based on a one-day holding penod}

Stress testing

31 March 2007 Investec Investec Consoli-
£'000 ple Limited dated
Commaodities 602 197 799
Equity dervatives 946 3508 4 454
Foreign exchange 37 509 546
Interest rates 587 347 934
Consohdated 21472 4 561 6733
31 March 2006 Investec Investec Consols-
£'000 plc Limited dated
Commodities 277 - 277
Equity derivatives | 626 2212 3838
Foreign exchange 62 | 021 | 083
Interest rates 109 | 023 | 132
Consolhdated 2074 4 256 6 330

Market risk mitigation

The Market Risk Management team 1s located oulside the dealing room thereby ensuring independence The risk management software
runs independently from source Lrading systems and values all trades separately The values from the two systems are compared daily
The values from the risk system are also used for profit attmbution, another risk management tool

Risk limits are set according to gindelines set out In the group risk appetite policy and are calculated on a statistical and non-statistical
basis Statistical limits include VaR and ETL analyses at various ¢confidence ntervals, as well as “disaster ' scenarios where the 15 standard
deviation adverse market move 15 considered Histoncal VaR s used, where every ‘risk factor 1s exposed to daly moves over the past
year With the equity markets, ior example every share and index 1s considered independenily as opposed to techniques where proxies
are used

Non-statistical hmits include product mits, tenor, notional, hquidity buckets and option sensitvities ( greeks’) When setung and
reviewing these imis, current market conditions are taken nto account. Bucket imits are set on ume buckets, generally at three-month
intervals out to two years and then, on a less granular basis cut to 30 years

Market risk year in review

In South Africa, we obtained approvat of our internal model for market nsk from the South African Reserve Bank, which has put us at
the level of the advanced approach for Basel Il In terms of this modet, trading capital 1s calculated as a function of VaR al the 99%
confidence level and back testing results will be submitted to the regulator monthly In the UK all desks are currently at Capitat
Adequacy (CAD) | leve! and wall be applying for CAD Il fater in the year

'

The past year was characterised by sirong, albeit volatle growlh in the equity, commodity and bond markets These market conditions
coupled with good chient flows and product sales, resulted in a strong performance from the South Afncan Equity Dervatves desk In
the UK the business plan for the Equity Denvatives desk was re-evaluated As a result, the quantum of nsk on the desk decreased A
new Fixed Income Market Making desk was established and trades options and futures on short Sterling and Euribor We obtained
CAD | mode! approval for these new options In Austrahia the acquisition of the NM Rothschid & Sons {Australia) Limited business
resulted in the introduction of commodity trading and hedging transactions in that jurisdiction The market rsk imits approved are
modest and use s low




Market risk - derivatives

We enter various dervatives contracts both as prinapal for trading purposes and as customer for hedgng foreign exchange
commaodity, equity and interest rate exposures These include financial futures options swaps and forward rate agreements The nisks
associated with dervative nstruments are monitored in the same manner as for the underlying instruments Risks are also measured
across the product range to lake nio account possible correlations

information showing our dervative trading portfolio over the reporting period on the basis of the notional principal and the farr value
of alf dervatives can be found on pages 195 and 196

The notonal principat indicates our actmty i the denvatives market and represents the aggregate size of total outstanding contracts
at year end The fair value of a dervative financial nstrument represents the present value of the positive or negatwve cash flows which
would have occurred had we closed out the mghts and obligations arsing from that instrument 1n an orderly market transaction at year
end Both these amounts reflect only dervatives exposure and exclude the value of the physical financial instruments used to hedge
these positions

Balance sheet risk management

Balance sheet risk description

Balance sheet risk management encompasses the financial risks relating 1o our asset and lability portialios comprising iquichty, funding
concentration and non-trading interest rate nisks on balance sheet.

Balance sheet risk governance structure

Regional Asset and Liability Management Committees (ALCOs), within each geography, are mandated by their respective boards of
directors and the group to manage the balance sheet risks on a consistent basis with pre-approved principles and pohcies, using regional
expertise and local market access Detaled pohcies cover both domestic and foreign currency funds and set out sources and amounts
of funds necessary to ensure the continuation of our operations without undue interruption The size materiality, complexity, maturity
and depth of the market as well as access to stable funds deterrmine the rsk appetite for the region Spealfic statulory requirements
further dictate what policies are adopted in each region

The Balance Sheet Risk Management team independently identifies quantfies and monitors msks, providing independent governance
and oversight of the Treasury actwities {within the Capital Markets drasion) and the execution of the bank’s policy to management.
ALCO the Executive Risk Review Forum the Board Risk Review Committee and the board of directors

Balance sheet risk mitigation

The Treasury function centrally directs the rasing of wholesale labilities, establishes and maintans access to stable funds with the
appropriate tenor and pricing charactenistics and manages liquid securities and collateral The Treasury function is the sole mterface with
the wholesale market for both cash and dervative transactions and aclively manages the hquidity mismatch and non-trading interest
rate nsk anising from our asset and hability portfolios It 1s required to exercise tight control of funding liquidity, concentraon and non-
trading interest rate risk within defined parameters

Balance Sheet Risk Managemént combines traditional gap analysis and quantitative models, including stress tests This 1s designed to
measure the range of possible future liquidity needs and potential distribution of net interest income and economic value over varous
scenarios covering a spectrum of situabions 1n which we could find ourselves and prepare accordingly The modelling process 1s
supported by ongoing technical and economic analysis

Our balance sheet nsk position 1s regularly reperted to management, the Executive Risk Review Forum, the Board Risk Review
Commuittee and the board of arectors

Non-trading interest rate risk description

Non-trading snterest rate risk 15 the impact an nel interest earnings and sensitivity to economic value as a resull of increases or
decreases In Interest rates arising from the execution of our core business strategies and Lhe delivery of products and services o our
customers

Sources of interest rate nsk include volatiity and changes i Interest rate levels yield curves and spreads These affect the interest rate
margin reahsed between lending income and borrowing costs when apphed to our rate sensitrve asset and hability portiohos We are
also exposed to basis nsk which 1s the difference in repricing characteristics of two floating-rate indices, such as the South African prime
rate and three-month Jibar
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Management and measurement of non-trading interest rate risk

Non-trading interest rate risk 1s measured and managed from an earmings and economic value perspective The arm 1s 1o protect and
enhance net interest Income In accordance with the board-approved risk management framework. The standard tools that are used to
measure the sensitvity of earnings to changes in the level and shape of interest rates are the repnang gap, net interest income
sensitvity and economic value sensitenity This 1s consistent with the standardised interest rate measurement recommended by the Basel
Il framework for assessing banking book interest rate risk.

Operationally non-trading interest rate risk 15 transferred from the onginating business to the Treasury function and aggregated or
netted The Treasury function implements appropriate balance sheet strategies Lo achieve a cost-eflective source of funding and
mitrgates any residual undesirable rnisk.

Interest rate nsk arising from fixed interest Joans and deposits with a term of more than one year 1s materially hedged through the
purchase and sale of interest rate swaps on a back-to-back basis

The Treasury function also has a mandate to take advantage of opportunites which may anse during changing interest rate cycles by
tactically responding 1o market opportunities within predefined nisk imits

We base our interest rale risk management processes on the following steps

= Measurement and assessment of interest rate mismatch gaps detaling the sources of interest rate exposure at a pont n tme
This forms the basis for translation nto interest ncome sensitvity analysis and economic value sensitivity analysis, where
appropriate, over a range of interest rate scenanos

+ Technical interest rate analysis and econamic rewiew of fundamental developments by geography and globat trends

« fmplementation of appropriate balance sheet hedging strategies to achieve a cost-effective source of funding and mitigate any
residual undesirable risk.

= Daly management ol interest rate nsk by the Treasury function, subject to ndependent ALCO review

The tables helow and on the following page show our non-trading interest rate mismatch These exposures affect the interest rate
marg realised between lending income and borrowing costs

UK and Europe - interest rate sensitivity gap

At 3| March 2007 Not > 3 >3 > 6 > | >5 Non- Total
£'mullion months months | months year years rate non-
but <6 but but trading
months | < | year | <5 years
Assets
Cash and short-lerm funds {banks and non-banks) 6514 IS - - - 4 670
Negotiable securities | 124 213 444 24 3 1 I 818
Loans and advances to customers 3198 390 68 194 87 - 3937
All other assets (602) 65 333 17 541 404 758
Total 4371 683 845 235 631 418 7183
Funding
Deposits (4 738) (386) (348) (84) 2% - (5 583)
All other habilites (82) (20) (3) (223) (339) (933)] (1 600)
Total (4 820) (406) (351} (307) (3696) (933)| (7 183)
Economic hedges 611 (1 048) 149 (75) 363 - -
Interest rate repricing gap te2 (771) 643 (147) 628 (515} -
Cumulative repricing gap 162 (609) 34 (113} 515 - -




South Africa - interest rate sensitivity gap

At 31 March 2007 Not > 3 >3 > 6 > | >5 Non- Total
R'million months months | months year years rate non-
but < 6 but but trading
months | < | year | <5 years
Assets
Cash and short-term funds (banks and non-banks)| 33 494 - - - - -] 33494
Negotiable securibies 10 797 2 048 2 664 706 452 | 362 18 029
Loans and advances to customers 59 832 677 t 070 9470 3285 185 74 519
All other assets 139 138 113 329 153 13762 14 634
Total 104 262 2 863 3847 10 505 3890 15 309 | 140 676
Funding
Deposits (7O 250)] {5930y (4663) (I 296) (756) (146)] (83041)
All other liabihues (25728) (4906} (3995)| (3445)| (1908 (i7653)] (57 635)
Total (95 978)] (10 836) (8658) (4741) (2664)| (17 799)| (140 676)
Economic hedges 3471 2775 F 110 3957y (3399 - -
Interest rate repricing gap 11755 (5198)] (3701) | 807 (2173)] (2490) -
Cumulative repricing gap 11 755 6 557 2 85 4 663 2 490 - -
Australa - interest rate sensitivity gap
Ac 31 March 2007 Not > 3 >3 > 6 > | >5 Non- Total
A$'million months months | months year years rate non-
but < & but but trading
months | < | year | < 5 years
Assets
Cash and short-term funds (banks and non-banks) I 033 65 48 15 - - b6l
Negotiable securities - - - 39 8 - 47
Loans and advances 1o customers 1 362 51 26 144 26 3 1612
All other assets - - - - - 318 318
Total 2 395 6 74 198 34 321 3138
Funding
Deposits (2 008) (66) (28) (166) (9 (N (2278)
All other labilties 79 - - - (22) (759) {860)
Total (2 087) (66} (28) {166) (31) (760)| (3 138)
Economic hedges 84 (6) {7 {55) (16) - -
Interest rate repricing gap 392 44 39 (23) (13) {(439) -
Cumulative repricing gap 392 436 475 452 439 -
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Liquidity risk description

Liguidity risk 1s the risk that we do not have suffictent cash to meet our financial obligations, especially in the short term, at acceptable
costs

Sources of hquidity nsk include unforeseen withdrawals of demand deposits, resincted access to new funding with appropnate maturity
and interest rate charactenstics, mability to hquidate a marketable asset timeously with rmirimat risk of capital loss, unpredicted customer
non-payment of a loan obligation and a sudden increased demand for loans

Management and measurement of iquidity risk

Liquidity management 15 wital for protectng our depositors, preserving market confidence, safeguarding our reputation and ensuring
sustainable growth Through acuve lquidity management, we seek to preserve stable, reliable and cost-effective sources of funding To
accomplish this, management uses a variety of igudity nsk measures that ¢onsider market conditions, prevailing interest rates, lguidity
needs and the desired matunty profile of kabilties

We are an active participant in the global financial markets We have instituted vanious offshore syndicated loan programmes to broaden
and dwersify term-funding in supplementary markets and currencies, enhancing the proven capacity to borrow in the money markets
These markets serve as a cost-eflective source of funds and are a valuable component of our overali lquidity management. Decistons
on the timing and tenor of accessing these markets are based on relative costs, general market condrtions, prospective views of balance
sheet growth and a targeted liquidity profile

We place great value on the establishment of strong relationstups with all our investors and we mamtan an aclive presence in lhe
money markets in each geography In which we operate

We acknowledge the importance of our private chents as the principal source of stable and weil dversified funding for our Private
Bank risk assets We continue to develop products to attract and service the investment needs of our Private Bank clients Although
the contractual repayments of many customer accounts are on demand or at short notice, in practice such accounts remain a stable
source of funds Our Private Bank continued to successfully raise private chient deposits through a period of significart asset growth

We engage in transactions that involve the use of both special purpose entities and asset securtisation structures in cannection with
the sale of certan mortgages Securitisation represents a relatively modest proportion of our current funding prefile but provides
additional flexibility and source of iquidity These entities form part of the consolidated group balance sheet as reported Cur funding
and hquidity capacity 15 not reliant on these entities to any matenal extent.

Qur hquidity management processes are based on the following elements using principles set out by the Financial Services Authonty

(FSA), the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) and the Australian Prudental Regulatory Authonty (APRA)

*  Mantenance of a stock of readity available, high quality iquid assets and near cash iy excess of the statutory requirements as welt
as strong balance sheet liquidity ratios

» Preparation of cash flow projections (assets and habilities) and funding requirements corresponding to the forecasted cash flow
mismatch which are translated into short- and long-term funding strategies within each legal entty and globally

+  Maintamnmg an appropriate mix of term funding

* Management of concentration risk, being undue reliance on any single counterpart or counterpart group, sector, market, product,
instrument. currency and tenor

= Daly monitoring and reporting of cash flow measurement and projections. for the key peniods for iquiditly management, against
the risk hmits set.

+  Performing assumptions-based scenario analysis to assess potential cash flows at nisk.

»  Mantenance of depositor confidence

»  Mantenance of iquidity contingency plans and the idenuficatron of alternative sources of funds in the market. This 15 to ensure that
cash flow esttmates and commitments can be met in the event of general market disruption or adverse business and economic
scenanos, while minimising detrimental long-term implications for the business

We are currently unaware of any crcumstances that couid significantly detract from our ability to rase funding approprate Lo our
needs

The tables that follow show our kquidity mismatch, which represents our contractual cash obligations and commercial commitments




UK and Europe - liquidity view

At 31 March 2007 Demand Up to 1-3 3-6 6 lwi | >5years Total
£'000 | manths | months | months years
menth to
| year

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 30 861 - - - - - 30861
Loans and advances to banks 238275 | 504 590 IS 600 15057 54 547 10779 | 838848
Cash equwvalent advances to customers 55 23155 - - - - 23210
Reverse repurchase agreements and
cash collateral on secunties borrowed |l 979 936 - - - - - - [1979 936
Trading securities 179 910 47 730 | 166332 17 285 983 20 730 58 300 | 491 270
Dervatrve financial instruments 193 637 35417 2901 4380 12 064 17553 b 308 | 267 260
Investment securrties 606 | 166811 | 225033 | 214320 | 495486 | 281 403 7514 |1 391 173
Loans and advances to customers 456 606 | 269823 | 348 161 | 320096 | 391 642 |1 956525 | 261 3%0 |4 004 242
Other assets 543 76t | 266095 70 321 31011 2422 12038 6205 931953
Interests in associated undertakings - - - - - 53165 533 165
Deferred taxation assets - - 2101 17328 3 220 22 649
Property, plant and equipment - - - - | 120588 | 120588
Goodwill - - - 148694 | 148 6%4
Intangible assets - - - - - - 17 628 17 628
Total 3623648 |1 313620 | 828347 | 602249 | 904 698 |2 360 124 688 792 |10 321 477
Funding
Depostts by banks 57094 | 358275 7670 57 346 99 858 | 775060 | 160800 [t 516 123
Derwatve finanual nstruments 67 471 4906 - - | 382 72 - 73 8312
Other trading habifities 4] 645 54 607 - - - - 96 252
Repurchase agreements and cash
collateral on securities lent | 598 128 - - - - - - |1 598 128
Customer accounts 823759 | 766717 |l 680228 | 143 064 96 347 1 257 518 26 975 |3 794 609
Debt securities in 1ssue -] 115650 | 112086 90 815 | 350 128 {2 853 - | 681 531
Cther labiliies 637 967 | 298725 60618 39 586 28 985 4439 485 |i 070 805
Current taxation labilties 992 46 - 33046 - 4121 - 38 205
Deferred taxaton habilities - - - 109 | 033 8 249 9 391 9 391
Pension fund habilities - 46 139 139 278 B53 11 | 467

3227056 |1 598973 |1 860742 | 364016 | 577 087 |1 055949 | 196 520 (8 880 343
Subordinated habilties (including
convertible debt) - - 1 -| 2573B6{ 304192 | 561578 | 561578
Total 3227056 [1 598973 |1 860 742 | 364 Q16 | 577 0B7 {1 313 335 500712 [9 441 921
Liguidity gap 396 592 § (285 353)¢1 032 395)| 238233 | 327611 |1 046789 | 188079 | 879557
Cumulative hiquidity gap 396 592 | 111239 § (921 155)] (682 922)( (355 311)] 691 477 | 879557 -
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South Africa - iquidity view

At 31 March 2007 Demand{ Upto -3 3-6 6 fto5 | >5years| Total
R'miflion | months | menths | months years
month 10
| year

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 851 - - - - - - a5t
Loans and advances to banks 2127 17 448 | 674 i 939 15 4 - 23207
Cash equivalent advances to customers 7 458 1 978 - - - - 9436
Reverse repurchase agreements and
¢ash collateral on securities borrowed 2917 - - - - - 2917
Trading secunities 12 984 6072 75 2497 9%6 | -1 22624
Derwvative financial instruments 5310 - - 120 - 458 14 5902
Investment securities 27 123 264 - - - - 414
Leans and advances to customers 987 1916 2779 4219 6920 31015 30573 78 409
Other assets * 2085 3 661 459 39 B4 599 31106 10033

34 746 31 198 5 251 8814 8015 32076 33693 | 153793
Funding
Deposits by banks 356 4 987 704 59 595 6113 145 12 959
Dernvative financiat instruments 5342 9 - - 2 317 - 5 670
Repurchase agreements and cash
collateral on securities lent 2378 - - - - - - 2378
Customer accounts 39 109 6 688 13 66% 6003 5 794 | 269 542 73074
Debt securities in issue - 3804 7180 5631 6 702 7 464 89 30 870
Other habilies ** 3101 5 450 916 | 290 308 2 549 920 4 534

50 286 20938 22 469 12 983 13 401 17712 | 696 | 139 485
Suberdinated labilities (including
converuble debt) - - - - 3029 - 3029
Equity - - - - - - 11279 11279

50 286 20938 22 469 12 983 13 401 20 744 }2975 | 153793
Liquidity gap (15540)| 102601 (17218)| (4169 (5386 14335 20718 -
Cumulative iquidity gap {15 540)| (5280)| (22 498)| (26667)| (32053)| (20718) - -

* includes deferred taxation assets, other assets property and equipment Investment properties goodwitl and intangible assets
** |ncludes other trading labilities, current taxation kabiities deferred taxation labilities and other habilities

The above table excludes assets and habihties refating to the long-term assurance business attributable to pohcyholders




Australia - hquidity view

At 31 March 2007 Demand| Upto 1-3 -6 6 lto5 | >5 years Total
A$'000 ! months | months | months years
month to
| year

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - 29017 - - - - 29017
Loans and advances to banks - 91510 46 30} 28 842 - 12 581 - 179254
Trading securtties 6192 - - 23 113 82 353 52 481 164 140
Derwvative financial istruments - 13 446 14 385 |12 869 42 131 79 210 -| 162040
Investment securities H40 436 1 179 490 | 375 504 65 193 37 470 65 445 - | 863538
Loans and advances to customers 20 006 45 884 | 238491 | 143598 | 284 003 | 629 742 | 146 454 || 608 178
Deferred taxation assets - - - - - |3 286 |3 286
Other assets - - 18 034 - - - 18 034
Interests in associated undertakings - - - - - - 41586 41586
Property and equipment - - - - - - 5221 5224
Goodwill - - - - - 49 133 49 133
Intangible assets - - - - - - 538 538
Investment in subsidiary comparves I I
Total 266 634 | 359346 | 674681 | 291 670 | 445957 | 8392459 | 256 218 |3 133 965
Funding
Dervative financial instruments - 7818 8 364 7 483 24 497 46 056 - 34 218
Customer accounts 493 369 | 350353 98 684 |6 300 17826 | 116695 -1 093 227
Debt securities in 1ssue 52357 149 164 53827 | 156338 | 477478 | 315673 - {1157 715
Current taxation habilties - - - 11 552 - - - Il 552
Other habilities 40 - - 55 60! - - 55 641

498 644 | S07 335 | 160875 | 247 274 | 5i9 801 | 478 424 - 2412353
Subordinated liabiities (including
convertible debt) - - - - - -] 00512 100512
Total 498 644 | 507335 | 160875 | 247274 | 519801 | 478424 | 100512 |2512 865
Liquidity gap (232 009 (147 989)| 513 806 44 395 | (73 844)| 361 035 155706 621 |00
Cumulative hquidity gap (232 009)| (379 998)| 133808 | 178203 | 104 359 | 465394 1 621 100 -
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Balance sheet risk year in review

The last financial year was characterised by a rising global interest rate environment.

Pound Sterhing Interest rates - the monetary policy cycle moved back into a tightening phase, with the UK
Monetary Policy Committee raising base rates in August 2006 Further moves followed 1in November 2006 and January 2007 to
take the level of official rates up to 525% at year end The yield curve 1s factoring in a further increase over the coring months
Euro interest rates - the European Central Bank continued to raise its refinancing rate over the year at intervals of between two
to three months Rates currently stand at 375% There is strong consensus that policy will be tightened soon Significant
uncertainties exist around the outlook for interest rates during the second half of 2007 and beyond

Rand interest rates - the menetary policy cycle moved back into a tghtening phase, with the SARB Monetary Policy Commitiee
raising the repo rate four tmes in 2006, in 50 basis pont ncrements Consequently, the repo rate ended the year at 9 0% and
the prime rate at 12 5% The yeld curve at the end of March 2007 was factoring in a sharp decrease i rates in the mid 1o longer
end, and only a very modest hike in the short end

Austrahian nterest rates - 2006 was a year marked by diverse state growth patlerns across Australia High commodity prices hifted
profits and busingss investment rose to record highs Inflaion hung around at the top end of the Reserve Bank of Australia's desired
range and aganst this background the Reserve Bank raised the cash rates three times, by a total of 075%, 1o 625% by
November 2006 The Reserve Bank has been signalling its intentions from a “balance of risks” perspective for some tme now and,
as the March 2007 quarier came to a close, the markel was pricing in another 025% rise

USD interest rates - the Federal Open Market Committee continued 1o raise the Fed funds target gradually at the beginning of
the financial year, bul there has not been a pohicy move since the June 2006 meeting which took cfficial rates up to 525% Senior
Fed officials continue to express disquiet over the current fevel of inflation and the risk that it might not fall, but the yield curve 15
pricing in the next move (o be a cut

We successfully embarked on several term debt funding instiateves This allowed us to maintain iquidity well above internal and external
iquidity targets, while growing our profitable lending portfolios These initiatives were designed to further diversify sources of funding
and matntain surplus medium-term iguidity at low rates to facilitate asset growth Key intiatives included the following

Investec Bank Limited raised a $340 million five-year syndicated loan at LIBOR plus 35 basis points in January 2007 This was done
to diversify support for the Rand balance sheet across term and geography and to exploit improved investor sentiment towards
emerging markets We also set up a $1 5 billion EMTN programme, which is listed in Luxernbourg for similar reasons

Investee Bank (UK) Limited launcheg three Schuldschen transactions in November 2006 raising e370 million three-year money
at a spread of 25 basis points over three-month Eurnbor The 280 milkon transaction was a record in terms of size for the
Schuldschein market. The deal attracted 16 banks, most of which had not previously participated in any of our other funding
transactions The proceeds of the ssues witl be used to fund longer dated assets on Investec Bank (UK}
Limited's balance sheet. freeing up inter-bank capacity to fund shorter dated assets

investec Bank (UK) Limrted implemented a successfu! Upper Tier It capital raising exeraise n jJanuary 2007, raising £350 million
10-year capital at swaps plus| 21 basis points al-in The order book reached £1 9 billion and we had 12 orders of £50 million or
more

investec Bank (UK} Limited's Central Treasury smplemented tri-party repo agreements which enabled us to hquedy our FRN holdings
as required and thereby faalitate our ability to fund the Dubhn branch up to el 5 bithon over short periods

Investec Bank Austraba Limited acquired and integrated the banking business of NM Rothschild & Sons (Austraha) Limited
{Rothschild's) in July 2006 This acquisition included gaining access to more than A%l 6 bilion of funding and over A% bilhon of
hquid and treasury trading assets We also integrated the former Rothschild's Debt Issuance Programme infrastructure and
confirmed relationships with a wide range of new funding counterparties In addition to our Moody's rating, we undertock ard
gained an nvestment grade rating from Fitch Ratings Going ferward we expect to refresh our Debt Issuance Programme and
undertake an inaugural domestic bond i1ssue lo raise medum-term funding and conbinue Lo develop Investec Bank (Australia)
Lirmited’s profile in the domestic and regional debt markets while bullding new and deepening existent wholesale funding
relationships

Cn the Rand funding side there was rapid growth in balance sheet deposit and surplus cash sizes The three are linked as we
respond appropriately 1o rapid asset growih and increases in Private Bank call funding Risks to income increased as the prime-ibar
gap narrowed This was largely due to pressures from banks competing to raise term deposits to fund high asset creation
Income pressures were exacerbated by the increasing opportunity cost of holding hquid assets as banks foughl 1o balance rising
needs with imited supply




Operational risk management

Operational risk definition

Operational risk 15 defined as the risk of loss or earnings volatiity anising from faled or inadequate internal processes, people and
technology or from external events

We recognise aperational risk as a significant nisk category, and strive to manage this within acceptable levels through the promotion
of sound operational risk management practices

Operational risk governance structure

A common understanding of the definibion of operational nsk and its impact throughoul the organisation 1s key to the successful
management of operational risk.

The governance structure for Operattonal Risk Management 15 outlined below

Board

The board reviews and maonitors operational risk through the Board Risk Review Committees and Audit Committees

Group Operational Risk Management

An independent speciaist Group Operational Risk Management funclon promotes consistent and sound operational nsk management
practices and processes across the group, including enterprise nsk programmes, e g business continuity and financial crime In addition,
subject matter experts focus on information security and change management

Sentor management

Senior management 1s responsible for the implementation and management of operational risk at business unit level through a network
of embedded risk managers Embedded rnsk managers are responsible to Group Operational Risk Management for compliance with
and implementation of the operational nsk management framework

Operational risk management framework

We have implemented an operational risk management framework as well as policies, practices and a technology system to provide a
comprehensive means of promoting operational nsk management throughout the group The framework sets out a structured and
consistent approach to implementing a systematic effective and eflicient process across the organisation 10 manage operational risk
and thereby improve business performance and regulatory complhance

+  Operauonal risk identification and risk assessments
The risk assessmenl process I1s central to the operational risk management framework A qualitalive risk assessment 1s conducted
using an :dentfied unverse of operalional risks contamned it a risk assessment framework, as a first slep 1o promote consistency
The assessment of risks and controls 1s conducted at indvidual business urit and review levels Risk assessments are subject to
treatment and escalation N terms of our operational risk appetite policy

*  Operational risk events
We respond (o risk events with appropriate analysis and actions to correct and minimise losses and imprave controls Thresholds
are in place for the monitoring and escalation of recorded events, which are in ine with the risk appetite policy

¢« Operatonal risk ndicators
Indicators provide information that allows management to assess the effectiveness of the controls and to highlight potenual ssues

Enterprise risk programmes

Business continurty risk

Business conunuity encompasses the planning design operation and management of business processes and technologies to minimise
the disruption caused in the event of a disaster (or business nterruption) Semior management 1s responsible for maintaimng a cnsis
management as well as a business conunurty capability for each of our geographscal locauons A network of business contnuity
coordinators has responsibility for embedding our business continuity capability Thus capability 1s subject 1o independent monitoring,
review and assessment by both Group Operational Risk Management and Internal Audit

Information security risk

Qur nformation secunity process 1s based on the internationai standard (SO 17799 which promotes common processes and standards
across all business units and country operations Information security risk 1s assessed as part of the risk assessment framework
Information security 15 overseen by our Group Information Security Officer
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IT change management risk

Change management includes all systems changes to live and business continuity environments Changes follow approval and adequate
testing before implementation A consistent process, n terms of group policy, 15 followed to ensure a smooth transition during
implementation and to minimise business disruption resufting from the ehanges The change management process 15 implemented and
managed at business unit level In accordance with global policy

Financial crime

Financial cime and fraud risk are considered key operational nsks The focus 15 on risk identification, loss investigation, recovery and
prosecution, and recommending enhanced practices to mitigate this risk.

Incidents of fraud are investigated, recovery iniated and legal action implemented It 15 our policy to take conclusive action on all
financial crime that 1s 1dentified as being perpetrated against us Case nformation 1s collected and compiled by the speciabists in the
correct manner; to faciltate the legal process and obtain the necessary convictions

In order to assess chent quality, regular reviews of the chent database are conducted with comparisons to an international database of
“undesirable persons”

Suspicious, unusuat and threshold transactions are momitored, assessed investigated and reported as required by legrslation n the
junisdictions m which we operate A number of reports were made during the year Our Legal division reviews all proposed reports

The Group Information Qfficer deals with all requests for mformation receved from regulatory and snvestigatory agencies and
emerging trends in financial ¢rime are monitored

Insurance

We mantain adequate insurance to cover key nisks operational and other Qur insurance process and requrements are the
responsibility of the Group Insurance Manager

Operational risk year in review

Operational risk exposure within the group continued to be addressed and reported

Dunng the year, we continued to embed our operational risk practices across the group Our strategy prowides for continuous
development to ensure that cur framewaork and practices are appropriate and adequate for our business, and in ine with regulatory
requrements In addition we continue to develop and enhance our policies, practices and processes @ hne with leading practice
Industry developments are monitored through active participation in industry forums

A number of engagements with regulators took place during the year as part of our Basel Il programme The Standardised Approach
application requitements in the jurisdictions are being met An internal assessment of our operational risk practices has been
undertaken to evaluate compliance with Basel || requirements, and we are of the view that we are substantially meeting these
requirerrients

During the year, the processes around the gathering of internal data were refined Risks above our threshoid were reported to the
Board Risk Review Committee and are being appropriately treated

Certain key risk indicators are tracked and continue to be an area of focus

Business conuinuity risk was a focus for regulators in South Africa and the UK during the year Particpatrion in regulatory inihatives
confirmed that our business continuity practices are approprate and adequate Certain minor inaidents were effectively responded to
without disruption to the business but highlighted the need for ongoing attention to operations resilence and partial disruption
recoverability The management of this nsk remains a focus

Infor mation secunity traning was rolled out to all staff 1o increase the awareness of mformation security risk.

Financial crime remans a concern Duning the year vanious internal and external incidents were dentified and responded to in order
to munimise losses and recover assets or to report suspicious transactions to the authorities




Legal risk management

Legal risk 1s the rnisk of loss resulting from any of our nghts not being fully enforceable or from our obligaions not being properly
performed This includes our nghts and obligations under contracts entered into with counterparties Such nisk 15 especially apphcable
where the counterparty defaults and the relevant documentation may not give rise to the nghts and remedies anticipated when the
transaction was entered

Our objective 1s to identify manage, monitor and ritigate legal nisks throughout the group We seek to actively mitigate these risks by
identifing them, setting minimum standards for their management and allocating clear responsibility for such management to legal risk
managers, as well as ensuning compliance through proactive monitoring

The scope of our actvities 1s continuously reviewed and includes the following areas
* Relationship contracts

» Legslation/governance

*  Litigation

+ Corporzate events

*  Duai Listed Companies siructure

« Inadent or crisis management

+  Ongoing quality control

The legal risk policy 15 1mplemented through

» Identfication and ongomg review of areas where legal risk s found to be present

+  Allocation of responsibility for the development of procedures for management and mitigation of these risks

+ Installation of appropriate segregation of duties so that legal documentation s reviewed and executed with the approprate level
of iIndependence from the persons involved in proposing or promoting the transaction

+  Ongoing examinauon of the inter-relationship between legal risk and other areas of sk management, so as to ensure that there
are no gaps’ In the risk management process

«  Establshment of minimum standards for mitigating and controlling each risk, including the nature and extent of work to be
undertaken by our internal and external legal resources

+ Establishment of procedures to monitor compliance taking nto account the required minimum standards

+  Establishment of legal nsk forums, bringing together the various legal risk managers to ensure we keep abreast of developments
and changes :n the rature and extent of our activities, and to benchmark our processes against best practice

Overall responsibility for this policy rests with the board The board delegates responsibilty for implementation of the policy to the
Global Head of Legal Risk The Global Head assigns responsiility for controiing these risks to the managers of appropriate
departments and focused units throughout the group

A Legal Risk Forum 1s constituted 1n each significant legal entity within the group Each forum meets at least half-yearly and more
frequently where business needs dictate and 15 chaired by the Global Head of Legal Risk or an appointed deputy Minutes of the
meetings are crculated to the Chief Executive Officer of each legal entity

Reputational risk management

Reputational nsk s the risk caused by damage to an organisation's repulation name or brand Such damage may result from a
breakdown of trust, confidence or business relationships Reputational risk may alsc arse as a result of other risks manifesting and not
being mitigated

We have various policies and practices to mitigate reputational risk, inciuding a strong values statement that is regularly and proactivety
renforced We also subscribe Lo sound corporate governance practices, which require that actwities, processes and decisions are based
on carefully considered gprinciples

We are acutely aware of the impact of practices that may result n a breakdown of trust and confidence In the organisation Ve
regularly reinforce our policies and practices through iransparent communication, accurate reporting, continuous group cutture and
values assessment, internal audit and regulatory compliance review, and risk management practices

Caprtal management

The management of the capital at our disposal (s paramount to our success Strategically, we focus on ensuring that we only enter
business activities that are expected to earn appropriate returns on our capital and satisfy the demands of our shareholders Our
objective s to Increase shareholder value through a group-wide disciphne that Iinks capital allocation and structuring, performance
measurement, Investment decaisions risk management and capital-based incentive compensation into one integrated framework

Risk management

97



Risk management

38

Philosophy and approach

The Investec group comprises Investec ple (and its subsidiaries) and Investec Limited (and sts subsidiaries) In terms of our DLC
structure, these two companies are treated separately from a credit perspective This is notwithstanding the shareholder arrangements
that are 1n place to ensure that shareholders have common economic and voting interests as if Investec plc and Invested Limited were
a single unified enterpnse Furthermore the UK Financial Services Authonity regulates investec ple and the South African Reserve Bank
regulates Investec Limied

Consequently, the management of capital 1s undertaken on a"'slo bass at the lowest level but considered in aggregate from a group

perspective Regardless of the statutory ertity, we recognise that the key principles relating to the purpose of capital are to

*+  Allow each area to grow organically and achieve its business objectives as strategically determined by executive management and
approved by the relevant boards of directors

+  Gwe us the opportunity 1o explore acquistion opportunities that will allow us to position curselves withn our chosen markets

+  Protect us aganst losses and risks inherent in the business, which would otherwise affect the secunty of funds deposited with or
loaned to the various banking entities

Within our capital management emvironment, a key assumpton 1s the understanding of the difference between “internal” capital and
‘regulatory’ capital The former refates to the resultant caprtal determined when all risks are considered (including reputational and
business risks) and 15 currently derved from the regulatory caprtat used by each drasion The quanufication of all matenal risks across
the group 1s being re-assessed in accordance with the second Pillar of Basel IL, but the pnnciples are already embedded within our
business

At the heart of this distinction lie the fundamental mplications flowing from the widespread practice of Economic Value Added
incentive schemes, which embaedy, as their base, nternal capital This means that all transactions we canduct have 10 be considered in
the context of ther implications on capital This 1s to ensure that the operators achieve the threshold targets in terms of return on
capital to shareholders as this has a direct impact on thew incentive remuneration The benefit of such a practice 1s that the management
of capital 1s conducted at the level of deal iInation This compels a wider population {(beyond the formal governance committees) to
understand the capal imphcations of business activity and ensure that risk 1s priced appropnately

As this has been embedded in our culture and philosophies, it 1s regarded as a cornerstone to the comprehensive management of
capital

Responsibility for capital management

The Investec plc and Investec Limited boards of directors are ultmately responsible for the respective sifo's capital management. At
the highest leve! the boards have delegated direct responsibiity for capital management to the DLC Caprtal Committee to oversee
the components contributing to effective control and use of caprtal This forum was constituted n June 2002 and 1ts roles and
responsibriibies are discussed on page |16

In order Lo feed nto this forum, lnvestec plc convenes a separate Caprtal Commutiee on a weekly basis so as to monitor the capital
posiicns of Its various subsidiaries, n particutar the businesses i the UK and Australa A formally constituted capial management
committee also exists in Austraha The Southern African operations meet monthly through the DI Forum, which analyses regulatory
information, including caprtal use i Investec Bank Limited and Investec Bank (Mauritius) Limited Thus structure ensures that capital is
acuvely managed from the lowest reporting level and cascades up to the uttimate responsible body - the DLC Capital Commitiee

Organisational structure

in terms of capital management, the components of the organisational structure are as follows
= The business urits, especially those which conduct their business out of a regulated entity and use large amounts of capital (Private
Bank and Capital Markets) The transactional consultants wathin the business units consider the capital implicatrons on a deal-by-
deal basis as this ulumately affects the internal capral used and hence the priong and profitability of the transaction
*  Risk management
- As part of credit sk management the presentation of transactions 1 conducted through the governance structures within the
rsk management function At the deal structuring and <redit approval phases, the capital implications of transactions are
considered independently from the business unit presentation to Caprtal Management, to ensure that each transaction 1s accurate
and reasonable This serves as an additional verification of the caprtal implication of the particular transaction
- As part of market risk management, the market risk management team performs the quantification of the trading capital used
by the trading actmaties throughout the group This 15 tested for reasonableness at the various capital management forums
explained above
- As part of operational risk management, the quantfication of the operational capital used 1s conducted and reported to the
Executve Risk Review Forum on a regular basis
- Underpinning all risk management functions 1s their IT support dvision, which ensures that all applications we use to calculate
and report risk information are functioning properly and reconale to underlying source systems




+  Group Finance

- The financial control functions throughout the organisation work closely with risk management to ensure that capital reporting
15 accurate appropriate and timely
The responsibility for regulatory reporting forms part of the Finance function
Furthermore, Group Finance and Group Risk, as part of the annual audit process, ndependently determine the internal capital
per business unit as it forms the basis of the aperating units' ncentrve remuneration
- As with fusk Management, the Group Finance T dmision plays a cntical role in ensuring the integrity of the ledger and all

supporting apphcations which contribute to the regulatory and business intelligence reporting processes

Basel ||

We intend to implement the Basel [l Standardised approaches for credit and operational nisk across our dvisions and geographies from
January 2008, moving to the Advanced approaches over time For market nsk in the trading book, we currently adopt a combination
of the EUJ CAD | model approach and mternal value-at-nisk medels and we intend to move to the latter across all jurisdictions i the
near future The Basel il imptementation & taking account of our long-term sustainabibity and strategic view The evaluation extends to
the entire rsk and operational environment, including the infrastructure and data framework to ulimately support the advanced
approach

While the adoption of the Basel Il framework may have a significant impact on the capital management process, the process will allow
greater flexibiity for us to manage our <apnal requirements through a better understanding of risk and reward From a philosophical
standpaint however, the use of risk to manage the business will not change The reason 15 that the acute sensitivity of transactions to
capital use 15 already embedded in our deal/credit approval and performance measurement ethos {as detalled above)

The underlying process for determining capital adequacy relative to our chosen risk profile will remain essentially the same However,
under Basel || the basis for quantfication of required capital will become more sophisticated

In terms of the current process, the following features exist

*  Board and senior management oversight in relation to the natuwre and level of nsk taken and how this risk rejates to cepital
adequacy Strategic plans oullne our capital needs, anticipated capital expendrture, target caprtal level and structure and exteinal
capital sources

*  Sound capilal assessment thiough the establishment of capital adequacy goals supported by a process of internal controls reviews
and audits 1o ensure the integrity of the overall management process

+ Comprehensive assessment of tisks by a number of gavernance committees guided by methodologies and poiicies, supparted by
sophisticaled systems which ensure the adequacy and compieteness of information on which decisions are based To this end,
detalled reports are prepared 1 egularly on our risk profile and capital needs

The adoption of Pillar Il through our internal capital model allows us to manage nsk more effectively and o target performance
accurately on the basis of nsk. This will enable an extension to the current internal capital model by allowing for a greater understanding
of the sources of all nsk capital at a transactional level

Conclusion

We optimise the use of our capital through a nigorous risk based approach 1o performance and risk management Capital 1s managed
closely for return and nisk from the incepton of a transaction This approach ensures that the linkage of risk to targeted caprtal levels
13 entrenched in our deal facilitation culture

This results in a capital management process driven Dy capital adequacy goals which are closely monitored by strategic capital plans
These strategic capital plans are approved by a sub-committee of the board
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Internal Audrt

Internal Audit prowides objective and independent assurance to the board that management processes are adequate for identifying the
significant risks to which we are exposed and that the control environment 15 effective enough 1o manage these nisks Internal Audit
recommends enhancements to risk management, control and governance processes where weaknesses are identified

An Imternal Audst charter approved by the Group Audit Committees and reviewed annually, governs our internal audit actrity The
charter defines the role, objectives, authority and responsibilities of the function

As a result of the silo specific regulatory responsibriiies anising from our DLC structure, there are two group Internal Audit dvisions
located in London and Johannesburg responsible for Investec pic and lnvestec Limited respectively An Internal Audit funcuion reporting
Into Investec plc also exists 0 Sydney The combined functions cover all of the geographies in which we operate

All the Internal Audn departments use similar nsk based methodologes and co-operate techrucally and operationally The heads of
Internal Audit report at each Audit Committee meeting and have a direct reporting line to the Charman of ther enuly's Audit
Commuittee They operate independently of executive management but have ready access to their focal Chief Executive Officer and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee For admirustrative and co-ordination purposes, they also report to the Global Head of Corporate
Governance and Complance

Annually, Internal Audit conducts a formal risk assessment of all businesses, ncorporating management's assessment of risk, which is
documented within the Enterpnse Risk Assessor Operational Resk system A comprehensive risk based annual audit plan 15 denved from
this assessment, which identifies areas of focus These are then confirmed with executive management and approved by the responsible
Audit Commuttee High risk businesses and processes are audited annually with other areas covered at regular intervals based on ther
nsk profile There 1s an ongoing focus on identifying fraud risk as well as auditing technology risks given our dependence on IT systems
In the past year, there was also a focus on reviewing and prowiding assurance on our readiness for Basel Il and other new regulatory
requirerments We also llaise with the external auditors to ensure a complementary approach and avoid duphcation The annual plan 15
reviewed regularly to ensure that it remains relevant and responsrve given changes in our operating environment. The Audit Committee
approves any changes to the plan

Internal Audnt proactively reviews its practices and resources for adequacy and appropnateness, to meet cur increasingly demanding
corporate governance and regulatory environment Avudit teams comprising well-qualified, experienced staff ensure that the function
has the competence to match our dwverse requirements Where specific specialst skills or additional resources are required, these wilt
be obtaned from third parties as appropriate The Internal Audit resources are subject to review by the respectve Audit Carmmittees
at least once a year

Significant control weaknesses are reported. in terms of an escalation protocol to the Audit and Compliance Implementation Forums
where rectification procedures and progress are considered and monitored at a detaled level by management The Audit Committee
recewves a report on significant issues and actions taken by management to enhance controls




Compliance

Compliance risk 1s the nsk that we fail to comply with the letier and spirtt of all statutes regulations superwisory reqguirements and
industry codes of conduct which apply to our businesses We seek to bring the highest standard of complance best pracuce to all our
Jjurisdictions In keeping with our core values, we also endeavour to comply with the highest professional standards of integrity and
behaviour, which builds trust.

We are subject to extensive supervisory and regulatory governance in the countres in which we operate The South Afncan Reserve
Bank 15 our lead regulator Significant business developments in any of our operations must be approved by the Reserve Bank as well
as by the business's home country regulatory authority

Under the DLC structure, both Investec ple and Investec Limited maintain separate Complance structures Each Compliance structure
operates under terms of reference which are approved by s hsted company board and Audit Commuttee Each Compliance structure
15 headed by a Group Conpliance Cfficer, who operates independently from operational management and 15 responsible for ensuring
adequate management of compliance 11sk within therr silo Each Group Compliance Officer reports to the Chief Executve Officer of
their histed company as well as to the Global Head of Compliance, who 1s ultmately responsible for management of the Compliance
function of both listed groups The Group Comphance Officers have unrestncted access to the Chairman of ther Audit Commitiee

The Compliance dvisions cperate under matrix management reporting structures and are decentrabised throughout the businesses
Lnder these arrangements, Complance Officers are appointed to alf sigmificant business units and report to the business heads, but
remain under the general supervision of Group Compliance Where appropriate, certan cross-enterprise comphance functions, such
as Compliance Monitoning are centralised and report directly to the Group Comphance Officer

Compliance risk 15 managed through internal palicies and processes, which include legal regulatory and other technical requirements
relevant to the business The Comphance Officers provide regular training to ensure that all employees are familiar with regulatory
obligations They also provide advice on regulatory 1ssues Comphance staff independently monitor the business units Lo ensure
adherence 1o polces and procedures and other technical requirements

Compliance stafl work closely with business and operational units 1o ensure consistent management of comphance risk. The group's
Comphance Officers are charged with developing and maintaining constructive working relationships with regulators and supervisors
in all our geographtes

UK and Europe - year in review

Regulatory activity in the UK and Europe during the year focused on the implementation of various European directives and initiatives
of the UK's Financial Services Authonty (FSA) These included

+  More principles based regulation

*  Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MIFID)

« Treating Customers Farly (7 CF)

+  Capital Requirements Directive

More principles based regulation

We have been monitoring the FSA's Better Regulation Action Plan, which ams to improve future regutation in the UK This plan s
underpinned by the FSA's objective to become a more principles based regulator by moving the balance of financial services regulation
towards high-level principles rather than detaled rules and puidance  Our Compliance function i closely mnvelved with the
development of more principles based regulation The business has dealt effectively with practical 1ssues arising out of the principles
based mitiatives to date These include TCF, the deletton of the money laundering sourcebook in favour of high level principles and
proposals to delete the training and competence sourcebook.

MIFID

Durmng 2006 we began implementing MIFID Ve engaged external consultants to conduct an impact analysis of the implementation
of MIFID on our businesses The impact analysis formed the basis for scoping our implementation project. As part of the project
governance, we established an implementation steering committee, comprising sentor executives and a working group Implementation
ts progressing n line with expectations ahead of the | November 2007 UK mplementation date MFID includes more detalled
requirements on the effective 1dentification and management of conflicts of interest than the current regene We are finalising work on
a wide-ranging conflicts of interest project to address MiIFIDY requirements and ensure we remain ai the forefront of good practce
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TCF

In ine with the FSA's expectations for 2006 we continued to embed TCF throughout the Iife cycle of transactions ang nto our business
The TCF agenda 1s closely aligned to our core values to treat people farly and act with integrity We have benchmarked our progress
on TCF and we contmue 10 meet good practice standards

We also continue to develop the capabiliues of the London based control room and transaction monitoring funcuons This area 1s
particularly dependent on eflective use of information technology it has focused on systems developments to enhance our ability to
identify conflicts of interest and aggregate and disclose holdings and dealings information for regulatory purposes and monitoring of
trading behaviour The Compliance monrtoring function developed and enhanced its approach to risk based monitoring A significant
number of business specific and thematic reviews were completed

The Insh branch applhed significant resources to implementing a new Consumer Protection Code Ths introduced a broader definitron
of consumer” and significantly changed the regulatory landscape for the provision of financial services to consumers in lreland

South Africa - year in review

Implementation of Financial Intelligence Centre Act and Protection of Constrtutional
Democracy aganst Terrorist and Related Activities Act

The implementation of the Financial Intelligence Centre Act and Protection of Constitutional Democracy against Terrorist and Related
Actmvities 1s ongoing As required by the legislabon new clients are required 1o undergo a signiicant process at the take-on stage to
ensure thal they are adequately «dentified and verified prior to transacting The allocated time pertods set by the South African Reserve
Bank for the re-identification of existing clients expired during 2006 Accordingly and, as required by legislation all existing Investec
chents who have not been adequately identified or venfied have had their accounts frozen, subject to our receipt of the outstanding
inforration and documentation

The focus during the year was on ongong implementation of internationat best practice standards of ant-money laundening and anu-
terror financing i the banking environment These standards include

*  Risk weighting of clents according to the money laundering and/or terror financing risks they pose

+ An enhancement of the Client Acceptance Policy to accommodate this risk weighting

+ A comparison of chent lists to databases of adverse client information (including persons named on the Urited Nauons hsts)

+  The ongoing mantenance of a client's identification and venfication and risk weighting

Implementation of the National Credit Act 34 of 2005

The National Credit Act 2005 (NCA) governs the granting and management of credit and comes into aperation on | June 2007 The
NCA applies to all categores of credit agreements we enter with aflected parties, at armss length [t focuses on consumer protection,
specifically the prevention of reckless credit behaviour combating over-indebtedness and curbing discnminatory lending practices The
Act imposes strict requirements on credit providers ncluding disclosure to consumers, advertising and marketing practices complants
and pricing

Affected entities within the group have successfully applied to the National Credit Regulator for registration as credit providers A
project plan has been implemented to ensure that the affected entities will be compliant with the provisions of the NCA by the
effective date

Comphance monrtoring

A project was initiated to ahgn the existing compliance monitoning process with the operational risk processes The project entails the
adoption of the Enterprise Risk Assessor risk based methodoiogy used by the Operational Risk division

The first phase of the project involved a comprehensive analysis of all acts, regulations rules gundance naotes and codes of conduct
affecting each of the operating units the performance of a 1isk assessment of each underlying regulatory nisk, and the idenufication and
recarding of al! controls the operating units use to mitigate such risks

The second phase of the project involves a review of the compliance monilaning programmes used within the operabing units and the
design and migration of a fully comprehensive risk based monitoring programme onto the Enterprise Risk Assessor software




Mauritius - year in review

Following the significant legislative changes that were introduced i the previous year, the regulatory environment remained stable
Investec Bark {Maurtius) Limited adopted, and 15 an active participant in the comphance projects initated by the South African
Complhance function

Australia - year in review

Dunng the past year the Australian regulatory environment underwent continued reform This ncluded new legislation Australian
Securtties and Investments Commussion palicy statements and Australian Prudential Regulatron Authonity standards speaifically on Fit
and Proper” requirements for responsible persons and a new standard on governance for banks

Anti-money laundering

With the enactment of the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorism Financing Act 2006 in December 2006 and the pubhication
of various anti-money laundering rules, businesses affected by the new laws {including ourselves) can start planming for compliance The
Act will be implemented in stages with commencerment dates of obligations ranging from immediately 1o 24 months These obligations
inchude customer identification and verification, record keeping, establishing and maintaining an Anu-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terronsm Financing programme, and ongoing customer due diligence and reporting (suspicious matters, threshold transactions and
international funds transfer instructions)

Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority (APRA)

The APRA has finahsed certan standards requiring us to implement and update vanous internal processes For instance the APRA Fit
and Proper standard which was finalised n 2006, seeks to ensure that responsible persons have the appropriate skills, expenence and
knowledge for ther role and act with honesty and integrity This strengthens the protection given to depositors and stakeholders We
conducted fit and proper assessments of each responsible person’ and have notfied APRA of the detalls of each nominated
“responsible person

Financial services reform

Reforms of the Australian regulatory environment have been aimed at streamlining the regulatory process, while maintaining the highest
standards of market mtegrity and consumer protection Reforms introduced in the Financial Services Reform Act (FSRA) in March 2002
{which became effective |1 March 2004) were inlended to reduce compliance costs, while facilitating the entry of new market
participants and the introduction of new services and products However, in March 2007 the Australian government, recognising that
there was sull room for improvement published the Corporale and Financial Services Regulation Review Dralt Corporations
Amendment Regulations and Commentary (Draft Regulations) The Draft Regulations are part of the government's progress towards
a simpler regulatory system arising out of the Corporate and Financial Services Regulation Review, which started in Apnil 2006 The
Draft Regulations are a significant step towards reducing the regulatory burden on business and helping to make the systern more user-
friendly for consumers However, there are still a number of 1s5ues In relation to these proposed regulations which require fine-tuning
and, in a few instances, reassessment of whether some of the underiying objectives of the review process are being achieved

Licensing

Various Investec Australian Financial Serwvices Licences have been amended to reflect recent changes in our activities as well as the
addiion of the acquired NM Rothschild & Sons (Austrahia) Limited businesses

Group processes implemented to address conflicts of interest

It has become increasingly important to ensure that actual or potental conflicts of interest are managed appropnately A project has
been imtiated across the group to identfy areas where conflicts of interest may anse and to ensure that appropriate processes are
implemented to erther avord or manage these To facilitate this process, a conflicts of interest control room 1s being established to
manage conflicts of interest within the group

Compliance
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Credit ratings

In general we were assigned strong ratings for credit quality, capacity for timely repayment and financial strength In terms of our Dual
Listed Comparues structure, Investec plc and Investec Limited are treated separately from a credit point of view As a result, the rating
agencies have assigned ratings to the significant banking entities within the group, namely Investec Bank (UK) Limited, Investec Bank
Limited and Investec Bank (Australia) Limited Certain rating agencies have assigned ratings to the holding companies, namely Investec
plc and lnvestec Limited

Raungs for Investec plc

Moody's
Short-term deposit rating Prime-2
Long-term deposit rating Baal

Ratings for Investec Bank (UK) Limited - a subsidiary of Investec plc
Frtch

Indraidual rating B/C
Support rating 5
Foreign currency short-term rating F2
Foreign currency long-term rating BaB+
Global Credit Rating Co

Short-term rating A2
Long-term rating A-
Moody's

Financial strength rating C
Short-term deposit rating Prime-2
Long-term deposit rating A3

Ratings for Investec Bank (Australia) Limited - a subsidiary of Investec plc

Moody's

Financial strength rating C-
Short-term deposit rating Prime-|
Long-term deposit rating A3
Fitch

Indvidual rating Cc
Suppor t rating 2
Foreign currency short-term rating F3
Foregn currency long-term rating BBB

Ratings for Investec Limited

CA Ratings

Local currency short-term rating (za) Al+

local currency long-term rating (za) AA-

Frtch

Individual rating B/C

Support rating S

Foreign currency short-term rating F3 (positive outlook}

Foreign currency long-term rating BBB {positive outiook}




Credit ratings (continued)

Ratings for Investec Bank Limited - a subsidiary of Investec Limited

CA Ratings

Local currency short-term rating
Local currency long-term rating

Caprtal Intelligence Ratings

Dormesuc strength rating
Foreign currency short-term rating
Foreign currency long-teim rating

Fitch

lndividual rating

Support rating

Foreign currency short-term rating
Foreign currency long-lerm rating
Local currency short-term rating
Local currency long-term rating

Global Credit Rating Co

Lacal currency short term rating
Local currency long-term rating

Moody's

Financial strength raung

Globai local currency deposit long-term rating

Foreign currency deposit long-term rating
Foreign cuirency deposit short-term rating
Nationai scale long-term raling

MNationai scale short-term rating

(za) Al+
(za) AA-

A3
BBB-

B/C

2

F3 (positive outlook)
BBB (positve outlook)
FI (zaf)

A+ (zaf)

Al+ (za)
AA- (za)

C

A2

Baal (positive cutlcok)
Prime-2

Aalza

Plza
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Introduction

Investec 15 committed to promeoting sustainable confidence in our conduct as a business and a corporate citizen

While the board oversees the overall process and structure of corporate governance, each business area and every employee
worldwide 15 responsible for promoting good corporate governance practices

In formulating our governance framework, we apply leading corporate governance practices pragmatically so as to
+  Exercise effective review and monitoring of our activities

* Enhance the capital market's perception of us

¢+ ldentfy and miigate significant risks, including reputational risk.

= Promote informed and sound deasion making

+ Protect our brand

= Secure the trust and confidence of all stakeholders

+  iLead to effectveness efficiency, responsibility and accountability

+ Facihiate legal and regulatory complance

»  Ensure sustanable business practices including social and environmental actvities

»  Disclose the necessary group nformation to enable all stakeholders 1o make a meaningful analysis of our actions

Our values and philosophies are the framework aganst which we measure behaviour, practices and aclwities, to assess the
characteristics of good governance Our values require direclors and employees to behave wath tegnity consistently and
uncompromusirgly displaying moral strength and conduct which promotes trust

Sound corporate governance 15 implicit 1n our values culture, processes, funclions and orgamisational structure and the structures
designed to formalise oversight of and to ensure that the values reman embedded in all businesses and processes We continue to
refine these structures, and a wntten Statement of Values which serves as our Code of Ethics

We operate under 2 Dual Listed Companies {DLC) structure, which requires adoption of the corporate governance regulations of the
UK and South Africa

Other international business units operate in accordance with the corporate governance recommendations of their jurisdictions, but
with clear reference at all trmes to our group values and culture




Governance framework

Our governance framework can be depicted as follows

Investec ple and Investec Limited - Board of Directors

DLC Mominauon Committee

Audrit and Audit Sub-Commuttees

Board Risk Review Committee

DLC Remuneration Committee

DLC Czpral Commuittee

3

Executive Risk Review Forum

Audit and Comphance
Implementauen Forums

Group Credit Committees

Group Deal Forum

Group Market Risk Forum

Internal Complance
Audit
Asset and Liabihty Committees
Operavonal Risk Committee
Goup Legal Risk Forum
Group Rusk Manzgement
Yy
Stakeholders

[employees shareholders, government, regulatory bodies chents suppliers, communites)

Corporate governance
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Board statement

The board management and emgployees of Investec are in full support of and committed to complying with the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules and Listing Rules of the United Kingdom Listing Authority (UKLA), the |SE Limited (JSE) Listings Requirements,
regulatory requirements in the countries in which we operate, the London Combined Code (2006) and the King Code of Corporate
Practices and Conduct (King I} in terms of which all stakeholders are assured that we are being managed ethically and in complance
with the latest legislation and best practices

The board 5 of the opinion that Investec complied with the Principles of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice contained in
section 1 of the London Combined Code (2006) as well as King 1|, during the period under review, except as outlined below

London Combined Code A 3 | and King Il - Independence of the Chairman
Since 2005, the Chairman of the board 1s not considered to be independent but continues to enhance his status as a non-executive
director

This opinion of the board 1s based on the practices below, which were in operation during the period under review

Financial reporting and going concern

The directors are responsible for monitoring and reviewing the preparation integnity and relability of the Investec plc and Investec
Limited combined financial statements, accounting pelicies and the information contained in the annual report

In undertaking this responsibility the directors are supported by an ongoing process for identifying evaluating and managing the
significant nisks we face and preparing the nformation contained 1n this annual report This process was in place for the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial staternents The process 1s implemented by management and
independently monitored for effectiveness by the Audit Risk and other sub-committees of the board, which are referred to below

Our financial statements were prepared on the going concern basis, taking inte consideration
+ Corporate governance practices

+  Accounting policies adopted

+  The nature and complexity of our business

* The risks we assume, and their management and mitigation

*  Key business and control processes in operation

*  The operation of board commuttee support structures

*  Operational soundness

*  Our credit rating and access to capital

The board 1s of the opinion, based on its knowledge of the group, key processes in operation and specific enquines, that there are
adequate resources to support the gioup on a going concern basis over the next year

Board of directors

Role and responsibilities

The board 15 accountable for the performance and affairs of Investec, It 1s respensible for the adoption of strategic plans, moritoring
of operational performance and management, ensuring an effective risk management strategy and our complhance wilth applicable
legislation

The board meets itis objectives by reviewing and guiding corporate strategy, approving key policies ang objectives, understanding the
key risks we face, and determining our risk tolerance and approving and reviewsng the processes in operation to mitigate themn

The board has defined the limits of delegated authority It s responsible for assessing and managing nsk policies and philosophies,
overseeing major capital expenditure, acquisiions and disposals approving the establishment of businesses, and approving the
ntroduction of new products and services

In fulfilling its responstbiities, the board 1s supported by management, which 1s required to implement the plans and strategies approved
by the board The board monrtors management's progress on an ongoing basis




Furthermore the board directly or through sts sub-committees

Assesses the quantitative and qualitative aspects of our performance through a comprehensive system of financial and non-financial
menitoring This Involves an annual budget process, detaled monthly reporting, and management strategic and operational updates
= Approves annual budgets and business plans

*  Monitors our compliance with relevant laws, regulations and codes of business practice

= Meonitors our communication with all stakeholders

* lIdentfies and monitors key risk areas and key performance indicators

*  Reviews processes and procedures to ensure the effectiveness of our internal systems of control

* Evaluates the performance of senior management and considers succession planning

The board seeks to exercise leadership integnty and judgement in pursuit of our strategic goals and objectives, to achieve long-term

sustainable growth and prosperity

Composition, structure and process

Membership

In terms of the DLC arrangements, the boards of Investec ple and Investec Limited are identical and manage Investec as if it were a
unified economic enterprise At the end of the penod under review, the board, excluding the Chairman, compnsed four executive
directors and twelve non-executive directors As set out below, the board concluded that the majorily (e eight) of the non-executive
directors are independent in terms of the London Combined Code and King || Biographical details of the directors are set oul on
pages |45 to 148 The names of the directors, the year of thewr appointment, therr independence status and whether they will retire

and seek re-election at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, are set oul in the table below

Date of appointment Independent Last Retiring
Investec Investec elected and seeking
plc Limited re-election
in 2007
Executive directors
S Kosefl (Chief Executive Officer) 26 jun 02 06 Oct 86 - 2006 No
B Kantor (Managing Director) 26 jun 02 08 jun 87 - 2004 No
GR Burger {Group Risk and Finance Director) 03 Jul 02 03 Jul 02 - 2004 Yes
A Tapnack Ol Jul 02 Ol lul 02 - 2004 Yes
Non-executive directors
HS Herman (Chairman) 26 Jun 02 01 Jan 94 No 2006 Yes
SE Abrahams 26 Jun 02 21 Oct 96 Yes 2006 Yes
GFO Alford 26 Jun 02 26 Jun {2 Yes 2004 Yes
CA Carolus |8 Mar Q5 I8 Mar 05 Yes 2005 No
H Fukuda OBE 21 juf 03 21 Jui 03 Yes 2005 No
GMT Howe 21 Jut 03 21 Jui 03 Yes 2005 No
DE Jowelt 26 Jun 02 01 Jan 89 No 2006 Yes
iR Kantor 26 Jun 02 30 Jut 80 No 2006 Yes
Sir C Keswick {Senior Independent Director) 26 Jun 02 26 Jun Q2 Yes 2005 No
MP Malungan 26 Jun 02 26 Jun 02 No 2005 No
Sir D Prosser 23 Mar 06 23 Mar 06 Yes 2006 No
PRS Thomas 26 jun 02 29 Jun 81 Yes 2006 Yes
F Tt 30 Jan 04 30 jan 04 No 2004 Yes
Independence

In accordance with the London Combined Code in excess of half the board {excluding the Chairman) comprised non-executive
directors considered by the board to be independent within the meaning of and with regard to the criteria set out in the London

Combined Code and King 1l

A summary of the factors the board has taken into account in determining the independence of directors 1s detaled below
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Chairman

The Chairman, Hugh Herman ss nat considered to be independent At the time of his appointment, his dutres included promoting the
group and ntroducing chents but excluded making day-to-day executive deasions His role was full sme and he sat on certan
management forums He was also included in various management incentive and share ownership schemes For these reasons, he 1s
not considered by the board to be mdependent in accordance with the London Combined Code and King Il However the Chairman
has continued to enhance his status as a non-executive director through distancing himself from executive responsibiiiies

Relationships and associations

lan Kanter 1s the brother of Bernard Kantor, Investec's Managing Director Fani Titc and Peter Malungary are the Chairmen of Tiso Group
Lirmited and Peu Group (Propnetary) Limited respectively, companies that have a material relationship with Investec Limited This s as
a result of the empowerment transaction cenchuded in 2003 i hght of the Financral Sector Charter in South Africa Untit recently, Donn
Jowell was the Chairman of Jowell Glynn Marars Inc, the South African legal adwisors to Investec Limited Donn has now joined
Werksmans

The board concluded that as a result of these relationships fan, Faru Peter and Donn could not be considered in terms of the London
Combined Code and King Il, 1o be independent. Although lan Fani, Peter and Donn are not independent the board 15 of the view that
ther skils knowledge, experience and atiributes are nonetheless valuable to the organisation and trust that they will use therr
independent judgement when making decisions which could possibly impact the organisation as well as our stakeholders

Attendance at risk management meetings

Sam Abrahams regularly attends, by nvitation, certam risk management committees of Invesiec Limited The board considers his
attendance at these committees to be desirable 1n terms of developing an understanding of the day-to-day 1ssues facing the business
This allows fum to discharge his responsiblities more effectively as a member of the board and Charman of the Investec plc and
Investec Limited Audit Committees The board therefore concluded that Sam retains independence of character and judgement

Tenure

The board does not believe that any director has served on the beoard for a period which could materially interfere with the director’s
ability to act n Investec's best interests The board concluded that Peter Thomas and Sam Abrahams, desprte having been directors of
Investec for more than nine years, retain both financial independence and independence of character and judgement

The board does not believe that any director who has served for more than nine years 1s not independent In the spiit of compiying
with the highest standards of corporate governance, each such director stands for annual re-election

Notwithstanding the guidelines set out in the London Combined Ceode and King H, the board 15 of the view that most of the nen-
executive directors are independent of management and promote the interests of stakeholders The balance of executive and non-
executive directors 15 such that there 1s a clear division of responsibility to ensure a baiance of power, such that no one individual or
group can dominate board processes or has unfettered powers of decision making The board believes that it functions effectively and
evaluates its performance annually

Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of directors

The board considers that the skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of the directors are appropriate for their responsibiities and
our actvities The directors bring a range of skifls to the board, :ncluding

+ International and operational experience

«  Understanding of the economics of the seclors in which we operate

*  Knowledge of the regulatory environments in which we operate

+  Financial and banking experience and knowledge

The skills and experience profile of the board 1s reviewed regularly by the DLC Nomination Commuttee to ensure an appropriate and
relevant board composition from a governance and effectiveness perspective

Board and directors' performance evaluation

The current year's annual evaluation was based on recognised codes of corporate governance and covered areas of the board's
processes and responsibifities accarding to leading practice

Each director completed the evaluation, after which the Chairman conducted individual one-on-one discusstons

The results of the evaiuation were colfated and reviewed by the Head of Corporate Governance and Compliance and reported to
the board by the Chairman Matters identified during the evaluation, which required attention, were scheduled for appropr ate action




Terms of appointment

On appointment, non-executive directors are provided with a letter of appointment The letter sets out, among other things the
expected time commitment of non-executive directors, details of our poley on obtaining independent advice and, where approprate
detalls of the board committees of which the non-executive director 15 2 member We have a policy that insures directors aganst
certain habilives they may incur in carrying out ther duties

Induction and training

On appointment, directors are provided with an induction programme talored to their needs A programme of formal presentations
to the directors on regulatory and governance matters was implemented and, as part of the directors' ongeing development, the
Company Secretary liaises with the directors to source relevant seminars and conferences which directors attend, funded by Investec

Presentations are made to the board by management of the business and support functions During the year. directors attended
seminars on matters concerning corporate governance remuneration policy and IFRS Directors have access to the heads of risk
management, control functions and business unrts

All directors have access to Linklaters' “Blue Flag Directors' Duties”, an online reference and traming tool for directors mantained by
Investec plc's legal adwvisors Linklaters Blue Flag comprehensively covers legal and regulatory aspects of directors’ duties, inciuding
indmidual conduct, the board and relations with stakeholders

Independent advice

Through the senior Independent director, individual directors are entitled 1o seek professional Independent advice on matters related
ta the exercise of ther responsibilities at the expense of Investec No such advice was sought duning the 2007 financial year
Remuneration

Detalls of the directors' remuneration and remuneration process are set out in the "Remuneration report” on pages 121 to 138

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The respective responsibilities of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are set out in writing, clearly defined and have board
approval The Chairman leads the board and 1s responsible for ensuring that the board recewes accurate, timely and clear information
to ensure that the directors can perform therr duties effectively

Detals of the Chairman's external directorships are set out on page [46 The board does not consider that the Chairman's external
commitments interfere with his performance and responsibilities to Investec The board 1s satisfied that the Chairman makes sufficient
tme available to serve Investec effectively

The board has not appointed a Deputy Chairman

Senior Independent Director

Sir Chips Keswick was appointed Semior Independent Director on 7 July 2004 He s availlable to address any concerns or questions
from shareholders and non-executive directors

Company Secretaries

Benita Coetsee replaced Selwyn Noik on | February 2007 as Company Secretary of Investec Limited and Dawid Miller replaced Richard
Vardy on 2 May 2007 as the Company Secretary of Investec plc They are responsible for the flow of nformation to the board and its
committees and for ensunng compliance with board procedures All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretaries whose appointment and removal are a matier for the board Les Penfold 1s the Global Head of Company Secretarial and
co-ardinates and drives our secretarial functions

Board meetings

The combined beards of Investec plc and lnvestec Limited met six times during the year Three board meetings were held in the UK
and three in South Africa, n line with the requirements of our DLC structure Furthermore, the boards of Investec plc and Investec
bLimited hetd one addrtional meeting each in the UK and South Africa respectively

The Chairman 1s respensible for setting the agenda for each meeting, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and Company
Secretaies Comprehensive information packs on matters to be considered by the board are provided to directors in advance

The non-executive directors met during the period under review in the absence of the executrve directors Detals of directors'
atiendance at board meetings are shown in the table on the foliowing page
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investec plc and Investec Limited board Number of meetings held| Number of meetings Independent
during the year attended during the year
Executive directors
S Koseff (Chief Executive Officer) 6 6 -
B Kantor (Managing Director) 6 6 -
GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director) 6 6 -
ATapnack 6 6 -
Non-executive directors
H Herman (Chairman) 6 6 No
SE Abrahams 6 6 Yes
GFO Alford 6 6 Yes
CA Carolus 6 6 Yes
H Fukuda OBE 6 5 Yes
GMT Howe ] 5 Yes
DE Jowell & 4 No
IR Kantor 6 5 No
Sir C Keswick (Senior Independent Director) 6 6 Yes
MP Malungani [ 6 No
Sir D Prosser 6 6 Yes
PRS Thomas 6 6 Yes
FTit 6 6 No

Re-election of board members

All directors are subject to re-election at the Frst Annual General Meeting following thewr appointment Thereafter in accordance with
the Articles of Association of Investec plc and Investec Limited at least one third of the direclors will reure at each Anrual General
Meetng In comphance with the London Combined Code A7 2, non-executive directors who have served on the board for more than
nine years from the date of ther first election are re-elected annually Retiring directors are subject to an assessment of therr
performance before re-appantment Brographical detalls of the directors standing for re-efection at the 2007 Annual General Meeting
are on pages 145 to 148

Roard committees

The board 15 supported by key commuttees, as follows
+ DLC Audit Committee
+  Investec plc Audit Cornmittee

- Audit Sub-Committees

- Audit and Compliance Implementation Forums
+  Investec Limited Audit Committee

- Audit Sub-Committees

- Audit and Comphance Implementation Forums
+ Board Risk Review Committee

- Executive Risk Review Forum

- Various specialist nsk committees and forums as described i the risk management section on pages 71 10 105
»  DLC Nomination Commuttee
+  DLC Remuneration Committee
= DLC Capital Commitiee

These committees have specific terms of reference, appropriately skiled members independent non-executive director membership
senior management partcipation and access to speaafist adwce when necessary

Audit Committees

In terms of cur DLC structure, the board has mandated authority to the Investec ple Audit Commitiee and the Investec Limited Audit
Committee to be the audit committees for those respective companies A DLC Audit Committee has also been created to assist the
board with matters common to Investec plc and Investec Lirmited




Role and responsibilivies
The responsibilities of the Audit Committees include

.

Reviewing and making recommendations for the board's approval of our combmed and indmwdual company reperts and financial
statements and other pubhshed financial reporting documents

Reviewng the approprateness of the combined group's and indmidual companies’ accounting policies and ther application
Overseeing the external audrt process in the review of reports and accounts

Considenng the external audit scope, fees and audit findings

Reviewing Internal Audrt plans, reports capacity and capability and the reliance by the external auditors on the work and findings
of Internal Audit.

Reviewing non-audit services provided by the external audriors

Focusing on aur compliance with legal requirements accounting standards and the relevant histing requirements

Implementing measures to mantain effective systems of internal financial control and for reporting non-financial operating data

We believe that the Audit Committee has the necessary expertise to discharge its responsibilites effectively The committee's terms
of reference are avalable on our website

Membership and attendance
Details of membership. relevant qualifications and experience as well as attendance at Audit Committee meetings are shown below
and on the opposite page

DLC Audit Committee Number of Number of |Independent Qualifications and experence
meetings held|  meetings
during the |attended during
year the year
SE Abrahams (Charman) 4 4 Yes FCA CA (5A) - Sam 1 a former nternational partner
and South African Managing Partner of Arthur
Andersen
GFQ Aliord 4 4 Yes BSc (Econ) FCIS FIPD MSI - George 15 a former Head
of Private Banking and Personnel at Kleinwor t Benson
Group and was a semor adwisor to the UK Financial
Services Authority
GMT Howe 4 2 Yes MA {Hons) - Geoffrey 1s a former Managing Partner
at Clifford Chance ELP and Director and Group
General Counsel of Robert Flemng Holdings Lid
DE jowell® 4 2 No B Com LLB - Dann was previously Charman of and
a consultant to Jowell Glyn & Marais Inc, the South
Alfrican legal adwisors to Investec Limited He 1s now a
director of Werksmans Attormeys
Sir C Keswick 4 4 Yes Sir Chips 15 a former Charman of Hambros Bank
Limited and Hambros PLC and former director of
Anglo American plc
Sir D Prosser 4 4 Yes BSc (Hons) FIA - Sir Davd was previously Chief
Executive of Legal & General Group PLC and
Chairman of the Financial Services Skills Cauncil
PRS Thomas 4 4 Yes CA (SA) - Peter was the Managing Director of
The Urusec Group Limited
Investec plc Number of | Number of |Independent Qualficatons and experience
Audit Committee meetings held]  meetings
during the |attended during
year the year
SE Abrahams (Chairman) 4 4 Yes See above
GFO Alford 4 4 Yes See above
GMT Howe 4 4 Yes See above
Sir C Keswack 4 2 Yes See above -
S D Prosser 4 4 Yes See above
PRS Thomas 4 4 Yes See above

*  For an overview of the factors leading the board to conciude that DE Jowell 1s not independent, see pages 109 and 110
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Investec Limited Number of | Number of | Independent Qualificauons and experience

Audit Commuttee meetngs held]  meetings
during the lattended during

year the year
S E Abrahams (Chairman) 4 4 Yes See above
GFO Alford 4 4 Yes See above
GMT Howe 4 4 Yes See above
DE Joweli* 4 3 No See above
Sir C Keswick 4 2 Yes See above
Sir D Prosser 4 4 Yes See above
PRS Thomas 4 4 Yes See above

*  For an overview of the factors leading the board to conclude that DE Jowell 15 not independent, see pages 109 and |10 DE jowell
15 entitled to attend the Investec pic Audit Committee but 1s not a formal member of the commitiee

Audit Sub-Committees

Audit Sub-Committees for Investec plc and Investec Limied have been established o allow senior managers of the business units, who
do not attend the man Investec plc and Investec Limited Audit Commitiee meetings, to meet with the nsk and contral functions and to
provide mput on the risk and control environment of the business unit. The members of the Investec plc and Investec Limited Audit
Commitiees are entitled 16 attend these meetings and, as a matler of practice at least one non-executive member generally does so

Audit and Compliance Implementation Forums

Audrtt and Compliance implementation Forums have been established for Invesiec pic and Investec Limited and their principal operating
subsidiaries Each Audit and Compliance Implementation Forum is attended by key executives and heads of rsk and control functions
MNon-executive directors have an open nvitation to attend These forums monitor and report on the implementation of recommendations
and other matters that the relevant Audit Committee considers important and facilitate the timely escalation response and understanding
of nsk and control matters that require a response from management. The forums are key in enhancing risk and control consciousness
and the associated control environment of the group The forums also support and provide important naght to the Audit Committees
Finally, the forums act as a filter, enabling the Augt Committees to concentrate their efforts on matters of appropriate materiality

DLC Remuneration Committee

Role and responsibilities
Detalls of the role and responsibiliues of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the ' Remuneration report on page 122

Membership and attendance
Details of membership and attendance at Remuneration Committee meetings are shown below

DLC Remuneration Committee Number of Number of Independent
meetings held meetings
during the attended
year during the year
GFO Alford {Chatrman) 6 6 Yes
GMT Howe 6 6 Yes
Sir C Keswick 6 4 Yes

Addrtional meetings are held throughout the year when necessary

DLC Nomination Commaittee

Role and responsibilities

The Nomination Committee 1s responsible among other things, for

*  Regularly reviewing the board structure, size and composition and making recommendations 10 the board on any changes that are
deemed necessary

+  Identifing and nominating candidates for the approval of the board 1o fill board vacancies as and when they arise as well as putbing
in place plans for succession, n particular, of the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

*  Making recommendations to the board for the continuation {or not) in service of a director

»  Recommending directors who will be retinng by rotation to be put forward for re-election

The committee's terms of reference are avatlable on our website




Membership and attendance
Details of attendance and membership are shown below

DLC Nomination Committee Number of Number of Independent
meetings held meetings
during the year] attended
during the year
HS Herman (Chasrman) 2 2 Nao
S E Abrahams 2 2 Yes
Sir C Keswick 2 2 Yes

Board Risk Review Committee

Role and responsibilities
The purpose of the cemmittee 1s to ensure that

+  All decisions of the board on msk management policies and procedures are implemented and monitored throughout Investec
+  The risk management structure 1s adequate, with sufficient resources and budget, and exceptions are reported to the board
¢ Exposure limits for market, counterparty and credit risk are ratified

+  There 15 an ongoing process of risk and control entification particularly for any changes to business objectives and the bases of

measuring risk

The Board Risk Review Committee defines the processes by which internal financial control risk 1s assumed and monitored The Group
Risk Management division provides the expertse processes and technigues from which the processes can be built and monnered dailly

A number of committees are dedicated to aspects of nsk management and report directly to the Board Risk Review Committee and the
board These include the Asset and Liabiity Commitlees, Group Credit Committees Group Market Risk Forum, Group Deal Forum

Operational Risk Forums and Group Legal Risk Forum

Membership
Chairman S Koseff (Chief Executive Officer)
Membership Non-executive directors

SE Abrahams
GFO Alford
GMT Howe
DE Jowell

Sir C Keswick
PRS Thomas
FTit

Executive directors

GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director)
B Kantor (Managing Director)

A Tapnack

Meeting frequency

Bi-rmonthly
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Executive Risk Review Forum

Role and responsibilities

The Executive Risk Review Forum supplements the Board Ruisk Review Committee and sts purpose is to

* Evaluate the most significant risks we face in the ordinary course of business (credit, market, hqurdity, operational legal and
repuiational)

* Ensure that bmits are adhered to and that agreed recommendations to mitigate nsk are implemented

» Act as agent of the board to ensure that all decsions of the board en risk management policies and procedures are implemented
and monitored throughout the group

* Ensure the group-wide nisk management structure 1s adequately resourced and has an appropriate budget

+  Provide regular reports to the board focusing on effectiveness of the control framework

» Provide regular reports on group-wide adherence to regulatory requirements and advise on how changes to regulatory
requirermnents will affect us

*+  Ensure that there Is an ongaing process of nisk and cantrol identification, particutarly in line with any <hanges to business objectives,
such as the commencement of a new trading area or product stream

Membership

Chairman S Kosefl (Chiel Executive Officer)
Membership Executive directors

GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director)
B Kantor {Maraging Director)

A Tapnack

Senior management
B Fried

C Dalesk

R} Cowley

PR Jacobson

CM Lawrence

8 Tapnack

MTrolhp

DM van der Walt

R) Wainwright

KT Whelan

IR Wohlman
Meeting frequency Every Friday except on Board Rssk Review Committee dates

DLC Capital Committee

Role and responsibihities
Our capital management framework (see pages 97 to 99) seeks to optimise the use of our capital by determining
*  The optimal amount of total caprtal commensurate with our overall nsk profile in order to
- Support business strategies, ncluding any inherent growth assumptions
- Meel targeted credit ratings and regulatory ratios
- Prolect against losses, maintain iiquidity and support our capital requirerments to cater for future oppertunistic acquisiions
« Capital altocation to actvities with the most favourable returns and highlighting those actvties which are unduly capital intensive
»  The most efficient compostion of our capital base

Against this background, the DLC Capital Commuttee 15 responsible for
+  Determining the DLC group's capital requirements and proposals for the issuefbuy-back of equity and/or secondary capital raisings
« Corporate restructuring for acquisitions
«  Considering, with a view to ultimately approving internal restructures proposed within the Investec plc and Investec Limited groups
*  Econemic capital management, which involves monitoring the caprtal posittons of each business unit and its composition relative to
the whole In fulfiling this function, the committee reviews the following
- The amount of capital currently used within each business unit
- Forecasts of the needs avallabiity and usage of capital
- Changes f any, required in the allocation or composmen of caprtat
- Implications to capital ansing out of corporate actions for example, acquisitions, divestments and internal restructures
*  Approving trading capital hmits used by the regulated entities 1n Secuth Afnica and the delineation between trading and investment
assets acquired/held by the group




Membership

Chairman S Koseff (Chief Executive Ofiicer)
Membership Non-executive directors

SE Abrahams

DE Jowell

Executive directors of DLC and subsidiary boards
GR Burger {Group Risk and Finance Director)

B Kantor (Managing Director)

ATapnack

B Tapnack

Seror management
S Burgess

R Jacobsen

L Penfold

Meeung frequency Every six weeks

Management and succession planning

Global business unit heads geographic management, and the heads of central and group service functions are appointed by executive
management and endorsed by the board, based on the skills and experience deemed necessary to perform the required function In
general, managers do not have fixed term employment contracts and there are no employment contracts with managers for a term
of more than three years Qur management structure, reporting lines and the dmsion of responsibilities are bullt around a geographic,
dmvisional and functional network, as depicted on page 35

Each strategic busmess unit has an executrve management committee and s responsible for taking and implementing operational
decisions, managing risk and aligning dvisional objectives with the group strategy and vision

Matters of succession are considered regularty Decision making (s spread ta encourage and develop an experienced pool of talent
Internal control

We have adopted the Turnbull guidance ( Internal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’ 1ssued by the Insttuie of
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales in 1999 and revised in 2005), and continued to embed the principles throughout the
group during the year under review Cognisance has also been taken of the King l Code requirements in South Africa

Risks and controls are reviewed and montored regularly for relevance and effectiveness The Board Risk Review Commitiee and Audit
Committee assist the board i this regard Sound risk management practices are promoted by the Group Risk Management function,
which 15 independent of operational management

The board recognises its respansibility for the overall sk and control framework and for reviewing its effectiveness

The overall system of internal control 1s designed Lo mitigate, not eliminate, significant nisks we face and was in place for the year under
review It 1s recogmised that such a system prowides reasonable, bul not absolute, assurance aganst material errcr, omission
musstaternent or loss This 15 achieved within the group through a combinauon of risk dentification, evaluation and monitoring processes
appropriate decision and oversight forums and assurance and control functions such as Group Risk Management Internal Audit and
Compliance These ongoing processes were in place throughout the year under review

The process which indludes risk and control dentfication 15 completed and assessed at business unit level Each business unit 1s
empowered with the responsibility and accountabity for management of its own risk. Each business unit follows a consistent sk
assessment crocess as contaned in the nisk assessment framework, which 1s facilitated by Group Operational Risk Management. Risks
ta sharehclder value are identrfied, and controls and mitigants for each risk are identified and evaluated The action plans and tisk and
control 1ssues ansing from this process are reviewed regularly al the relevant executive and management commitiees based at a
business unit level

Internal Audit reports any control recommendations to semvor management, Group Risk Management and the relevant Audit
Committee Appropriate processes including review by the Audt and Comphance Implementation Forums, ensure that tmely
corrective actions ae taken on matters raised by Internal Audit Significant nsks are reviewed weekly by the Executive Risk Review
Forum and monthly by the Board Risk Review Committee Matenal nciderts and losses and significant breaches of systems and controls
are reporied to the Board Risk Review Commuttee and the Audit Committee Reports from the Audit Committees Board Risk Review
Committee and Risk and Control functions are reviewed at each board meeting
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Internal financial controls

Internal financial controls are based on established policies and procedures Management 1s responsible for implementing internal
financiat controls, ensuring that personnel are sutably qualfied and that an approprate segregation exists between duties and
independent review These areas are monntored by the board through the Audit Commitiees, reviewed by Group Resk Management
and independently assessed by Internal Audit and Compliance

Processes are in place to monitor internal contral effectiveness, identfy and report materal breakdowns, and ensure that umely and
appropriate corrective action 15 taken

The directors consider that our system of internal control I1s appropriately designed to

* Prowide reasonable, although not absolute, assurance of both the integrity and rehability of financial information
* Identdy and appropriately mitigate signdicant risks

» Safeguard, venfy and maintain accountabality of assets

= Mitigate nsk exposure to fraud and rmisappropnation

*  Support business objectives and sustanabiiity under normal and adverse operaung conditions

* Ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Risk management

The board s responsible for the total process of nsk management and the system of internal control A number of commitiees and
forums assist in this regard Senior management 1s responsible for identifying risks and implementing appropriate mitigation and controls
within their businesses An independent Group Risk Management division, which 1s accountable to the board 15 respongible for designing
and reviewing the process of risk management Group Risk Management reports regularly to the Board Risk Review Committee and
the Executive Risk Review Forum

Risk management 1s discussed in more detall on pages 71 to 105
Internal Audit

Each significant jurisdiction has an Internal Audit presence that 15 appropriate for the size nature and extent of business conducted
Smaller geographies are supported by the Internal Audit teams of the Investec plc and Investec Limiled groups

A nisk based audit approach 15 followed and the Audit Commitlee approves annual audit plans

Heads of Internal Audit report to the Charmen of the relevant Audit Commiitees and to the Head of Corporate Governance and
Comphance

For further details on the Internal Audit funclion, see page 100
External audit

Our external auditors are Ernst & Young LLP and Emst & Young Inc The ndependence of the external auditors 15 recogmised and
reviewed with the auditors by the Audit Committee each year

The Audit Committees meet with the external auditors 1o review the scope of the external audit, budgets and any audit matters arising

The external audtors attend Audit Committee meetings and have access to the Charrman of each Audit Committee
Recommendations on the rotatton of auditors, as laid out In the UK Audibing Practices Board Ethica! Standard 3 as well as arcular
16/2004 of the South Afncan Banks Act, were adhered to during the period under review

MNon-audit services are dealt wath 1n terms of an agreed policy which states that

* OQur external audtt firms will have internal standards and processes to momitor and mamtain their independence and these must
be presented to the Audit Committees on an annual basis These will be considered based on the explicit exclusions contained mn
existing rules and guidelines

+  Safeguards must be in place to ensure that there s no threat to the objectmty and ndependence in the conduct of the audit,
resuting from the prowision of non-audit services by the external auditors

Total audit fees paid to all auditors for the year were £58 million (2006 £5 5 million), of which £0 4 milion {2006 £0 émullion) reiated
1o the prowision of non-audit services

Compliance

We recognise our responsibility to conduct business in accordance with the laws and regulations m the countries and areas n which
we operate The Comphance function 1s supported by complance officers in the business units For further details on the Compliance
function, see pages 101 to +03




Regulation and supervision

W are subject to external regulation and supervision by vanous supervisory authorities the man ones being the UK Financial Services
Authority (FSA). the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) and the Austrahian Prudential Regulatory Authonity (APRA) Some of our
businesses are subject to supervision by the South African Financial Services Board

In terms of the DLC structure the SARB Banking Superwision Department 1s the lead supervisor of the combined Investec group
comprising investec pk and Investec Limited The SARB 1s the supervisor of lnvestec Limited while the F5A 15 the supervisor of Investec
plc We strive to establish and mamtain open and actve dialogue with regulators and supervisors Processes are in place to respond
proactively and pragmatically to emerging 1ssues and we report to regulators and supervisory bodies regularty Where appropriate we
participate in industry commuittees and discussion groups to mantain and enhance the regulatory environment in which we operate

Communication, public disclosure obligations and stakeholder relations

The board recognises that effective communication 15 integral In buiiding stakeholder value and 1s commtted to providing meaningful,
transparent, timely and accurate financial and non-financial information to primary stakeholders, which are defined below The purpose
is to help these stakeholders make meamingful assessments and informed investment decisions about the group

We endeavour to present a balanced and understandable assessment of our postion by addressing material matters of significant
interest and concern We also seek to highlight the key risks to which we consider ourselves exposed and our responses to minimise
the impact of these risks Another objective 15 to show a balance between the posttive and negatve aspects of our actmvities, m order
to achieve a comprehensive and fair account of our performance

Our primary stakeholders include employees, shareholders, government, regulatory bodies, dients, suppliers, raung agencies the media
communities and industry mnvestment analysts The board appreciates the mportance of ensuring an appropriate balance n meeting
the diverse needs and expectations of all our stakeholders and building lasting refationships with them

As a requirement of our DLC structure, we comply with the disclosure obligations contained m the applicable listing rules of the UK
Listing Authority and the JSE Limited and other exchanges on which our shares are listed and with any public disclosure obligations as
required by the FSA and SARB We also recogrise that from time to time we may be required to adhere to public disclosure obligations
in other countries where we have operations, for example Australia The board s commuitted to adopting the better and/or stricter of
the existing governance and regulatory standards between the UK and South Africa

The investor Relations division has day-to-day responsibilty for ensurlng‘appropnate communication wath stakeholders and, together
with the Company Secretarial division, ensures that we meet our pubtic disclosure obligations

We have a board approved policy statement in place to ensure that we comply with all relevant public disclosure obligations and upheld
the board's communication and disctosure philesophy

The processes that we have adopted to ensure that we comply with all public disciosure obligations are set out below

«  Significant announcements are released directly to the market va the services offered by the Londen and Johannesburg stock
exchanges In terms of our DLC structure announcements are released virtually simultaneously on all exchanges, thereby ensuring
fair treatment of all stakeholders Coptes of these announcerents are placed on the Investec webste as soon as possible following
confirmation of release on the relevant exchanges but at the very least wrthin 24 hours

= We mamntan a comprehensive investor relaions website which ensures that all stakeholders readily have access to historical and
current nformation

+  We host at least four nvestor presentations a year two before we enter a closed peried and two on the day we release interim
and year end results investor presentations are broadcast live via video conference from our offices n the UK and South Afrnca
Stakeholders are notified of these events via the stock exchange news services and are welcome 1o attend and engage with
executve and non-executive directors Stakeholders also have the option of using a ive telephone conference facility or accessing
the audio webcasts of the presentation via our website Occasionally we are invited to atiend nvestor conferences at which we
present on our financial and operational performance

+  Regular contact 15 mamtaned with major stakeholders through a comprehensive investor relations programme which includes
meetings with execubive management, investor road shows and presentations to the mvestment community commurication by
emall regular tefephone conferences and haison with private sharehclders in response to their enquiries The Invester Relations
division reports back regularly to the operating divisions, the group executve and the board on matters and concerns raised by
stakeholders Copies of analyst, rating agency and other relevant reports are also circulated to the board

+  Qur communication policy focuses on ensuring that all employees worldwide are kept mformed of business developments and
actviies Our quarterly magazine, Impact, provides all employees worldwide with information on the latest events within Investec
Furthermore, we have comprehensive intranet sites in South Africa the UK and Australia, which keeps employees updated on
group developments and topics of interest Urgent notices are sent to all staff through our nternal email system

Corporate governance

19



Corpornte governance

120

«  All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting and o raise 1ssues and participate in discussions on items
mncluded i the notice of the meeting The meeting enables the board to commuricate with shareholders and for shareholders 1o
ask guestions n person The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nommation Committees as well as the Senior Independent
Drrector attend the meeting to respond to relevant questions All valid proxy appointments are recorded and counted and, at
general meetings, a schedule of the proxy votes cast 15 avafable to all shareholders We propose a separate resolution on each
substantially separate issue and do not bundle resofutions together inappropriately All resolutions are determined on a poll
Shareholders are requested to approve our report and accounts and cur remuneration report. The outcome of the voting on the
items of business are released on the stock exchange news services and posted on our website after the meeting

Duning the year, the Chief Executive Officer, the group Managing Director and other members of executive management continued to
meet with sharehalders in the UK, Europe, the USA and South Afnica, to understand thewr issues and concemns and discuss matters
relating to our actvities and performance No new material or price sensilive mnformation 1s provided at such meetings Non-executive
directors will attend meetings If requested and, as mentioned above feedback on arry 1ssues or concerns raised by investors 1s prowded
to the board

In March 2007 the Charman and the non-executive directors hosted a lunch with shareholder representative organisations in the UK,
10 help develop a balanced understanding of their ssues and concerns We will continue to engage these bodies, to remain informed
of emerging governance i1ssues

Dealings in securities

Dealings in securtties are subject to the Personal Account Dealing Policy that has been in operation for a number of years The policy
15 based on regulatory guidance and industry practice and was updated following the introduction of the Securrty Services Act and the
tnclusion of the Market Abuse Directive, effective from | July 2005

The policy discourages speculative trading and highhights the canflict of interest in which an employee's personal interest may not
conflict in any way with the interest of the Investec group or any of ils chents shareholders or potential shareholders

The Markel Abuse Directive requires us 1o disclose transactions in shares and related secunities by all persons discharging management
responsibiities and their “connected persons ' These include directors and senior executives of the group

Directors' dealings

The Remuneration report as set oul on pages 2] to 138, contans detalls of Investec shares held by directors Directors' dealings
in the securties of Investec plc and Investec Limited are subject to a policy based on regulatory requirements and governance best
practice

Al directors' dealings require the prior appraval of the Complance division and the Chairman or, in the Chairman's absence, Sam
Abrahams or Sir Chips Keswick All dealings of persons discharging management responsibilities require approval by line management,
the Complrance division and the Chairman

Values and code of conduct

We have a strong organisational culture of entrenched values, which forms the cornerstone of our behaviour towards all stakeholders
These values are embodied In a wntten Statement of Values, which serves as our Code of Ethics and 15 continually reinforced

We view all employees as the custodians of ethical behaviour, which 1s renforced through internal processes polictes and procecures
As such, all new employees are inwted and strongly encouraged to attend an induction process at which our philosophies values,
culiure, nsk management and compliance procedures are explained and drscussed

Our Organisatien Development team plays an important role in faciitating the understanding and ongoing practice of our values,
philosephies and culture In addiion ta our values, acceptable business practices are communicated through the Human Resources
practices manual, which 15 avallable on our intranet.

We continually sirive to conduct our business with uncompromising ntegrity and faimess so as to promote trust and confidence n
the banking industry

Sustainable business practices

We have an acute awareness of the need for longevity and durability across all our businesses, and an ingrained understanding of the
practices that underpin sustanabidity Our tnple bottom line approach 1s documented on pages |39 and 140 and further detail can be
found on our website at www investec com/grouplinks/obr




Statement from the Chairman of the Board Remuneration Committee
- an overview

The remuneration report was prepared by the Remuneration Commitiee and approved by the board

The board believes that a properly consututed and effective rermuneration committee 1s key to improving the link between directors'
pay and performance, with the utimate am of enhancing our competitiveness The primary purpose of the committee 1s to determine
our policy on the remuneration of executive directors and the remuneration package for each executve director The commutiee 1s
made up of non-executive directors and executive directors are not involved in determining their own remuneration packages

Remuneraton report

This report describes our remuneration policy (which has remained unchanged) and directors’ remuneration for the 2007 financial
year

During the period. In addition to its regular business, the commtttee continued to focus specifically on

+  Talent management and the retentton of sermor management and executives

+  The appropriateness of the quantum of, and balance between, fixed and varable remuneration for executive directors

+  The appropriateness of the varicus share option and long-term incentive plans currently in place, including inter alia, grant levels
dilution imits, performance cntena and vesting schedules

Key points to note for the period under review mclude

«  Qur total shareholder return was |5 4% for Investec plc in Pounds Sterhing and 53 3% for Investec Limited in Rands This compares
to a return of 20 5% for the FTSE 350 General Finance Index Since listing on the London Stock Exchange in 2002, Investec plc has
significantly outperformed the FTSE 350 General Finance Index (see graph on page |30)

+  Investec has performed strongly in the current financial year with adjusted earnings attributable 1o ordinary shareholders before
goodwill and non-operating items ncreasing by 30 7% 1o £300 7 mithon (2006 £2300 million) This performance has been
recognised in the remuneration decisions at all levels

+  Executive directors hold | 9% and 3 3% of the issued share capital of Investec pic and Investec Limited respectively Non-executive
directors hold 09% and 5 1% of the issued share capital of Investec plc and Investec Limited, respectively (see table on page |33)

124

The report complies with the provisians of the 2006 London Combined Cede, Schedule 7A of the UK Companies Act 1985, the LK
Financial Services Authority Listing Rules the South African King 1l "Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct” and the JSE Limited
Listing Rules Additional iInformaticen has alse been ncluded to reflect the most common enquines receved

Furthermore the auditors are of the cpinion that the audtable part of this report on pages |31 to 138 was properly prepared, in
accordance with Schedule 7A of the UK Companies Act 1985

The committee unanimously recommends that you vote to approve this report at the 2007 Annual General Meeting

Signed on behalf of the board

LAV

George Alford
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

15 June 2007
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Composition and role of the committee

The members of the Remuneration Commuttee throughout the year were George Alford (Chairman) Geofirey Howe and Sir Chips
Keswick. The members are independent non-executive directors and are free from any business or other relationship which could
materally interfere with the exercise of their Independent judgement The commuittee's principal responsibilities and objectives are to

*  Determine and agree with the board, the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of executive directors and executive
management {comprising ndmduals discharging managenial responsibilities who are the global heads of our core areas of actvity
and are members of our global operations forum)

* Ensure that quahfied and experienced management and executives will be provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and will be, in a fair and responsible manner rewarded for their contrbution to our performance

* Determine targets and objectives for any performance refaled pay schemes for directors and execulive management

*  Determine wrthin the terms of the agreed policy, the total ndwidual remuneration packages of executive directors and executive
management including, where approprate, bonuses incentive payments and share scheme awards

+  Owersee any major changes in our employee benefit structures

» Ensure that the comments recommendat:ons and rules within the UK and South Africa pertaining to directer's remuneration are
given due regard in determining the packages of executive directers The committee 15 authorised by the beard to seek any
information it requires from any employee in order to perform its duties

The committee's terms of reference are avalable on our website

Meetings

The committee met six times during the fingncial year with full attendance other than for two meetings which Sir Chips Keswick was
unable to attend The Company Secretary of Investec plc acts as Secretary to the committee Executive directors do not attend these
meetings although the Chairman of the board has attended on one occasion The Chairman of the committee reports on the activities
of the committee at each meeting of the full beoard

Advisers to the committee

Where appropriate the commitlee has access to independent execulive remuneration consultants The setection of the adwisers is at
the discretion of the committee Chairman, and Investec funds any expenses relating to the appointment of exiernal consultants

During the financial year, the commuittee continued to use the services of its adwisers New Bridge Street Consultants LLP which

* Benchmarked, reviewed and prowided adwice on competiive levels and forms of pay (salanes and bonuses) for the executive
direclors

*  Benchmarked reviewed and prowided advice on competitive fevels of pay for the non-executive directors

Furthermore we have used the services of Linklaters, which have adwised on a number of 1ssues pertaining to our mcentive plans
Linklaters is one of Investec plc's legal advisers

Certan specialst dmisions within the group for example, Human Rescurces and the Staff Shares division prowide supporting
information and documentation relating 1o matters that are presented to the committee This includes for example comparative data
and motivations for proposed salary, bonus and share awards The employees within these specialist dwvisions, which prowide support
to the committee are not board directors and are not appainted by the committee Whiie executive directors have the night to address
any meeting of the commuttee, they play no role in the determination of their remuneration package or that of any other executive
director




Policy on executive directors' and employees' remuneration

Qur phiosophy 15 to employ the highest calibre indviduals, who are characterised by integnty intellect and mnovation and who adhere
and subscribe to our culture, values and philosophies We strive to nspire entrepreneurship by prowiding a working environment that
stmulates extraordinary performance, so that executive directors and employees may be positive contributors to our clients ther
communittes and us

We reward executive directors and employees for therr contribution through payment of an industry competitive annual package, a
variable performance reward and ownership in the form of share incentive scherme participation Qverall rewards are considered as
important as our core values of work content (greater responsibility, vanety of work and high level of challenge) and work affiliation
{entrepreneurial feel to the company and unique culture) in the attractton, retention and motivatton of employees

We have a strong entrepreneurial merit and values-based culture, characterised by passion, energy and stamina The ability 1o five and
perpetuate our values culture and philosophies i the pursuit of excellence 15 considered paramount i determining overall reward
levels

Both the type of people the orgamisation attracts, and the culture and ermvironment within which they work, reman crucal n
determining our success and long-term progress

The key prnciples of our remuneration policy for executive directors and employees which were consistently applied during the
financial year are as follows
»  Reward programmes are designed and administered to align directors’ and employees' interests with those of stakeholders
» Reward programmes are clear and transparent, in order to retain ndividua! interest in, and 'dentilication with our short and long-
term success
= Total rewards comprise a fixed and variable component
+  Total compensation (base salary pension, benefils and incentives) 1s targeted to the relevant competitive market (see below) at
upper quartile levels for supenor performance
+ A significant proportion of rewards, ncluding annual and long-term incentive components, are explicitly inked to the performance
of the business and the indmdual business units We recognise the performance of the business and the indvidual As indicated
above qualitative and quantitatve issues form an integral part of the determination of reward levels
+ Reward levels are targeted to be commercially competitrve, on the following basis
- The most relevant competitive reference points for reward levels are based on the scope of responsibility and indmdual
contributions made
- Appropriate benchmark, ndustry and comparable organisations' remuneration practices are reviewed regularly
- For executive directors, the FTSE 350 General Finance firms provide the most appropriate benchmark.
- For employees, a combimation of firms from the JSE Financial 15 and the I'TSE 350 General Finance sector offer the most
approprate benchrark.
- The committee also reviews on an individual basis data on other international banks with whom we compete
- The committee recogrises that we operate an international business and compete with both local and international
competitors in each of our markets
- In order to avoid disproportionate packages across areas of the group and between executives, adjustments are made at any
extremes to ensure broad mtemnal consistency Adjustments may also be made to the compettive posttioning of pay
components for indmduals in cases where a higher level of mvestment 1s needed in order to bulld or grow erther a business
unit or our capability in a geography
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Policy on non-executive directors' remuneration

The board agrees and determines the fees of non-executive directors and the fees are reviewed annually The board's policy s that
fees should reflect indvidual responsibrities and membership of board commitiees The fee structure covers the duaf roles that the
directors perform for the UK listed Investec pic and the South African listed Investec Limited boards The fee structure for non-
executive directors (except the Chairman) for the 2007 and 2008 financial years is shown below

Non-executive directors' remuneration 2007 financral year As approved by the board for the
2008 financial year

Basic fee £45 000 per year £50 000 per year
Charrman of the OLC Audit Committee £35 000 per year £40 000 per year
Chairman of the DLC Remuneration Committee £30 000 per year £30 000 per year
Member of the DLC Audit Committee £12 000 per year £12 500 per year
Mamber of the DLC Remuneration Committee £12 000 per year £12 000 per year
Member of Investec Bank (UK) Limited board £8 000 per year £8 500 per year
Member of the Investec Bank Limited board R20 000 per meeting R22 500 per meeting

Fees are also payable for any additional tme
committed to the group including attendance
at certain other meetings

Buring the 2007 financial year, the Chairman recewved a total fee of £340 000 for his services as a director and 1L 1s intended that he
wili recerve £340 0G0 for the 2008 financial year

Non-executive directors may notl paruicipate in our share option plans or our long-term share incentive and pension plans Prior to
the implementation of our Dual Listed Companes (DLC) structure in July 2002, certan non-executive directors did participate in
Investec Group Limited's (now tnvestec Limited's) leveraged equity plans

There 15 no requirement for non-executive directors to hold shares in the company The company has left this choice to the discreticn
of the non-executive director

Service contracts and terms of employment

Qur executive directors have indefinite contracts of employment terminable by either party giving six months' written nobice to the
other Fach executive director 1s entitled to receive a basic salary and 1s also eligible for an annual bonus, the armount of which will be
determined at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee Furthermore the executive directors may elect to sacnfice a portion
of ther annual salary to receive company benefits such as a travel allowance and medical ad The full costs of these benefits will be
deducted from ther annual salary The centracts of employment do not contain prowvisions for compensatton payable on early
termination

Executve directors are permitied to accept outsde appointments on external boards or commitiees so long as these are not deemed
to interfere with the business of the Company Any fees earned by executives in this regard are not retained and are given back to the
respective companies

MNon-executive directors do not have service contracts and letters of appointment confirm the terms and conditions of their service
The letters of appointment do not contain provisions for compensation payable on early termination Unless the non-executive
directors resign earfier or are removed from therr positions, they will remain appointed as directors untif the dose of our annual general
meeting 1n 2008 (subject to rotational re-election as directors at the 2007 meeting and in terms of the provision of the Arucles of
Association All non-executive directars who have been members of the board for longer than rine years are subject to annual re-
efection and a resolution will be proposed at the 2007 Annual General Meeting to mcorporate this commitment into our Articles of
Association) Thase directors seeking rotational re-election at the 2007 Annual General Meeting are shawn on page 109

Biographical details of the directors of the board

These details can be found on pages 145 to 148




Dates of appointment to the board

The boards of Investec plc and Investec Limited are separate and subject to separate legal obligations for each company In terms of
the DLC arrangements, they comprise the same persons who are authorised as boards to manage Investec as if 1t were a unified
economic enterpnse Details on the dates the directors were appaointed to the board can be found on page 109

Policies on the components of remuneration and employment

The reward package for executive directors and employees comprises
+  Base salary and benefits

*  Annual bonuses

« Long-term share incentive plans

The committee reviews the elements of the reward package relative to appropriate benchmarks and other comparable organisations,
the contribution by the individual and the business as a who!s, the value of Indviduals in perpetuating our values and culture and the
possible replacement cost of such indmiduals

The elements of the reward package as listed above, are discussed below and the components for each direclor are detaled in tables
accompanying this report.

Base salary and benefits

Salaries are reviewed annually and reflact the relative skills and experience of, and contribution made by the indmiduat

Benefits are targeled at competitive levels and are delivered through flexible and tadored packages Benefits :nciude pension schemes
Iife, disability and personal acadent insurance medical cover, and other benefits, as dictated by competitive local market practices Only
sajaries are pensionable, the annual bonuses paid are not pensionable Our disclosure of executive directors' salaries on page |31 has
been dane on a gross basis (e incdlusive of pension fund centnbutions from the company)

It 15 the company's policy to seek to set base salanes {including benefits} al median market levels However base salaries have in many
instances dropped below this level as annual Increases in the recent past have largely been in line with prevailng inflation rates and
have not been mcreased to median market levels due to a desire n currenl circumstances, o maintan a low level of fixed costs

Annual bonus

Annual bonuses are closely Iinked to buanass performance, based on target business unit performance goals determined in the main
by Economic Value Added (EVA) profit performance against pre-determined targets These targets have been in force, and unchanged,
for the past few years and are subject to periodic review, with varying levels of return required for each business umit reflecting the
state of market maturity, country of operation risk, capital invested (capital intensive businesses} ar expected expense base {fee based
businesses) Indvidual annual ncentive fevels are allocated from the EVA pool based on indimdual performance, as determined by the
committee Furthermore as discussed previously, qualitative 1ssues are mtegral in the determination of annuat bonuses

In this regard if business and indwidual perfermance goals are achieved or bettered the variable element of the total reward package
is kely to be substantially higher than the relevant target market given that base salaries are currently below median market levels This
15 to ensure that overall reward levels are positioned at the upper quar tile level for supetior performance, in ine with our overniding
remuneration policy

Executive remuneration structure - assessing the balance between fixed and variable remuneration
As explained n the prior year's report, the committee undertook a thorough assessment of the executive remuneration structure
which resulted m the removal of the annual bonus hmst This practice was maintaned during the 2007 financial year

The foliowing points are worth noting n this regard

* Based on nput from the committee’s external advisors during the financial year it 15 evident that base salaries of executive director
have remaned below the median external market levels

= The committee remains reluctant to significantly increase the fixed component of the executives' remuneration package, due 1o a
desire Lo mantain a jow level of fixed costs and to ensure that fixed cost increases for executives remain in line with other
emptoyees across the group
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= In conjunction with this view and based on the committee's belief of delivering a signsficant proportion of rewands linked to the
performance of the business, the objective of upper quartde levels of total compensation for superior performance will stili be
achieved through higher performance linked variable pay

* The committee thus stll believes that an upper imit on the bonus award 1s inappropniate given the remuneration practices within
the group and n similar financial services businesses

The remuneration packages of the execulive directors for the 2007 financial year have been determined in accordance with this
philosophy Our policy remains 4o larget at median salares and upper quartile for tolal compensation in order to hmit the increase in
fixed costs

Share option and long-term share incentive plans

We have a number of share option and long-term share incentive plans that are designed to hink the interesis of directors and
employees with those of shareholders and long-term organisational interests, through performance and risk-based equity grants

Prior to the implementation of our DLC structure and our listing on the London Stock Exchange in July 2002, we had a number of
share option, share purchase and leveraged share schemes in place that were appropriate for a South African histed company However,
at the time of the Londen hsting 1t was necessary for us to consider implementing a mare internationally recogrised share scheme
structure and philosophy As a result, a number of share apuon plans were introduced to cater for regulatory, tax and other
considerations pertamning to the vanous junsdictions in which we operated At the same time, however, a decision was taken to maintain
the schemes that were In place prior to the London listing until the allocations made in terms of those schernes matured While this
gives rise to what appears to be a multiude of schemes the philosophy and practical implications are farty simple - the appropriate
level of equity allocation 15 determined for each employee and then awards are made out of the scheme that 15 considered most
appropriate for that indvidual given histher location, tax and regulatory environment

The share option and long-term share incentive plans in operation and in which the directors are eligible to participate, are summarised
in the table below and further details are provided on our website

During the 2006 financial year the commiliee implemented the Share Matching Plan 2005 (which was approved by shareholders in
November 2005) As a result the committee does not currently intend to grant further options to executive directors under ihe other
existing share option plans

Executive directors collectively hold approximately 2 4% of our 1issued share capital

Leveraged equity plans

A group of servor and executive managers, including certam Investec plc/livestec Limited directors, who have or can have a significant
impact on the business were granted partrapaton (prior to the implementation of the DLC structure) in a feveraged equity plan
known as Fintique I, which was established in 1996 Further details on Fintique |l are provided in tables accompanying this report and
on our websiie

Summary of Investec's share option and long-term share incentive plans

Plan Eligibiiey Date | Opuons/| Maximum |Performance| Vesting Options Total
imple- shares award per | conditions? period granted | 1ssued as
mented indvidual’ during at 3|
the year’| March
20074.‘5[&
Current share plans
investec plc |+ New and 28 Aug Investec plc [+ Cumulatve  |Growth in Tranches of Nit | Number
Share Oplion| exisung UK full- (2002 it of headine EPS > | 50%, 25% and 2261 010
Plan 2002 tme employees 2500 000 |UK RPI plus 3%|25% at the
(approved - grants up to across all compounded  [third, fourth % of 1ssued
plan) the value of option plans |annually over |and fifth share capital
£30 000 * In any the pertod of janniversanes of company
« Directors and financial year [the grant respectively 06%
executives 1%
remunera-

tion package




Summary of Investec's share option and long-term share incentive plans

(continued)

Plan Eligibihzy Date | Opuons/{ Maximum | Performance| Vesung Options Total
imple- shares award per { conditions? period granted } issued as
mented individual' during at 31
the year'| March
2007+
Current share plans
Investec plc |* New and 28 Aug Investec plc |+ Cumulative |Growth in Tranches of 706 5i8{ Number
Share Option| existing full-ume |2002 et of headline EPS > |25% each on 5 BO5 08I
Plan 2002 employees 2500000 |UKRPI plus 3%|the second
{unapproved |* Excluding across all compounded  |third fourth % of 1ssued
plan) employees in 5A, option plans |annually over [and fifth share capital
Botswana, * In any the periog of |anniversartes of company
MNamib»a and financial year |the grant 5%
Maurttius 1%
» LK employess - rermunera-
grants exceeding tion package
£30 000
* Directors and
executives
Investec plc |* New and 28 Aug Cash + Cumulative  |Growth in Tranches of llast grant |Number
Share exisung full-ume (2002 settled st of headhne EPS > |25% each on |made on |275 590
Appreciation | employees based on 2500000 |UKRPI plus 3%|the second, |17 June
Option Plan |* Excluding the across al compounded  |third, fourth 12003 % of 1ssued
2002 employees in SA increase in | option plans |annualiy over |and fifth share caprtal
Botswana the * Inany the period of |anniversanes of company
Namibia and Investec financial year |the grant 01%
Maurrtius Limited 1%
* UK employees - share price | remunera-
grants exceeding tion package
£30 000
= Directors and
executives
Investec = New and 20 June Investec + Cumulative [Growth in Tranches of {Last grant | Number
Lirmited existing full-time (2002 Limited and| limit of headline EPS > 125% each on [made on |9 816 057
Secunty employees in SA, Investec plef 2 500 000 |UK RP! plus 3%|the second 14 Dec
Purchase and| Botswana across al compounded  {third, fourth [ 2005 % of issued
Option Narmibia and option plans |annually over  jand fifth share capital
Scheme Mauritius * In any the period of {annversaries of company
Trust 2002 {* Directors and financial year |the grant | 6%
executives Ix
remunera-
tron package
Long-term incentive plans’
Investec | » New and |6 Mar Investee picf+ Cumulative |None 75% 1n year 4 { 6933 730| Number
Uimited Sharg]  existing full tme |2005 lirnst of and 25% 1n 17 248 095
Incentive Plan{ employees 2 500 000 year 5
- nil cost + Excluding across all % of 1ssued
options employees in SA option plans share capial
Botswana * Inany of company
Narubia and financial year 4 5%
Mauritius %
+ Excluding remunera-
executive uon package

directors
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Summary of Investec's share option and long-term share incentive plans

g (continued)
g
g
2 Plan Eligibiity Date | Options/ | Maximum | Performance| Vesting Options Total
% imple- shares award per | conditions! period granted | 1ssued as
E mented individual’ during at 31
o« the year’| March
20074!516
Long-term incentive plans’
Investec + New and 16 Mar Investec » Cumulative [None 75% end of 6 627 281 | Number
Limited existing full ume | 2005 Limited hmt of year 4 and 17380 I t1
Share employees 1n 5A, 2 500 Q00 25% end of
Incentwe Botswana across all year 5 % of 1ssued
Plan- ril cost | Namibia and optien plans share capital
optians Mauritius * In any of company
+ Excluding financial year 76%
executive Ix
directors remunera-
tion package
Share * Executive 14 Nov Matching |+ A maximum|Vesting scale | 75% i June Nill Number
Matching directors 2005 awards of of 750 000  |over the 2009 and 2 300 000
Plan 2005 Investec invesiment  period based |25% in June
Limited and] shares may |on normalsed |2010 % of 1ssued
Investec plc{ be invested |EPS growth in share capita
128 shares in in the plan  [excess of UK of company
the ratio of | each tme  |RPI wath 0% 06%
I | against | the planis  vesting f EPS
shares operated growth is less
tnvested In than 4% plus
plan by the RPlpa and
director | G0% vesting 1T
EPS growth s
in excess of
RPi plus 12%
pa
Plan introduced in terms of our empowerment transaction
The Irvesiec |* Employees of IS5 May Investec » 500 000 None Tranches over| 3 166 500| Number
Limited Investec Limited |2003 Limited indnidual eight years 10118525
Security who are Afnican, mit in terms
Purchase Coloured or of this % of 1ssued
Scheme Indian indviduals scheme share capita
2003 * Excluding + Cumulative of company
executive hmit of 45%
directors 2 500 000
across all
option plans
+ In any
' financial year
Ix
remunera-
tion package




Plan Eligibility Date | Opuons/ | Maximum | Performance| Vesung Cpucns Total
imple- shares award per | conditions? period granted | issued as
mented individual' during at 31
the year’| March
20074
Share plans introduced prior to implementation of the DLC structure
Investec * Employees - I Nov Investec ¢ Cumulative |None Tranches of |Lastgrant | Number
Group excluding SA, 1999 Group it of 25% each on |madeon 20| | 415 720
Limited Botswana, Limited 2 500 0CO the second, [june 2002
UK Share Namibia and (preor o across all third fourth  |No further | % of 1ssued
Option Plan | Mauritius implemental option plans and fifth grants will be| share capitat
* Drrectors and ton of * Inany anniversanes |made of company
executives DLC financial year 02%
structure) Ix
(now remunera-
Investec ton package
Limited and
Investec
ple)
Investec * Employees in S5A|25 Nov Investec v Cumulatve  |None Tranches of |lastgrart | Number
Lirmited Botswana 1988 bimited and|  hmit of 25% each on |madeon2 {3 346 178
Security Narmibia and Investec ptc| 2 500 000 the second,  |[May 2002
Purchase and| Mauritius across all third, fourth  |No further | % of 1ssued
Option » Directors and option plans and fifth grants will bej share capital
Scheme Trust] executives * |n any anniversaries |made of company
financial year G 5%
Ix
remunera-
tion package
Notes

1

The limits for allocations to employees and executve management during a financial year may be exceeded if the directors
determine that exceptional crrcumstances make it desirable that options should be granted in excess of that hmit.

These conditions require growth in headline earnings per share (EP5) over the relevant aplion period to equal or exceed the UK
Retail Price Index (RPI), plus 3% compounded annually over the same period In choosing the performance targets for this plan, the
committee considered the menits of EPS-based targets against other possibilities, such as comparative performance or comparative
growth in return on average shareholders' funds (ROE) agamnst a basket of other comparwes The cammitiee determined that EPS-
based targets are mosl appropriate as they measure our undet lying growth The commuittee intends Lo continue to apply this during
the 2008 financial year but keeps the whole matter of the suitability of target-inked share based remuneration under periodic
review This note does not apply to the Share Matching Plan 2005 which has different performance conditrons as approved by
shareholders (further information 1s available on our website)

This represents the number of options issued to all participants For further details, see the Directors' Repori on page 155 More
details on the directors' shareholdings are also provided in tables accompanying this report.

Ditution limits Investec 1s commitled to following the Association of British Insurers' (ABl) guidelines and accordingly, as from the
date of the implementation of our DLC structure (29 July 2002) the maximum number of new shares which may be 1ssued by the
company under all of the share plans (in respect of grants mace after July 2002} may not exceed [0% of the 1ssued share capital
of the company over a roling ten year period The committee regularly monitors the uthsation of dilution imits and available
headroom to ensure that these guidehines are complied wath The 1ssued share capital of Investec plc and Investec Limited at
34 March 2007 was 381 6 millien shares and 227 7 millon shares respectively As announced on the stock exchange news services,
84 million Investec ple and 7 7 milion Investec Limited shares were issued to the staff share schemes duning the year

The market price of an Investec plc share as at 31 March 2007 was £6 58 (2006 £5 88), ranging from a low of £495 to a high of
£6 76 during the financial year

The market price of an Investec Limited share as at 3F March 2007 was R93 30 (2006 R62 60), ranging from a low of R59 06 to
a hugh of R94 60 dunng the financial year

The rules of these long-term mcentive plans do not allow Investec to issue new shares to the plan to satisfy any awards made to
parucipants nor may awards be made to executive directors
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Performance graph total shareholder return

‘We have implemented a DLC structure, in terms of which we have primary hstings in London and Johannesburg The listing on the
London Stock Exchange (LSE) took place on 29 July 2002 although we have been listed in South Afnca since 1986

Schedule 7A of the UK Compamies Act 1985 requires this report to nclude a performance graph of Investec plc's total shareholder
return (TSR) performance against that of a broad market index We found 1t difficult to locate an appropriate group of companies to
benchmark ourselves against because of our specialist actvities A number of comparues within the FTSE 350 General Finance Index
conduct simlar activities to us, akthough they do not necessarily have the same geographecal profile Nevertheless we believe that this
Is the most appropriate index against which to measure our performance on the LSE

The graph betow shows 1he cumulative shareholder return for a holding of our shares {in blue) in Pounds Sterting on the LSE compared
to the average total shareholder return of other members of the FTSE 350 General Finance Index It shows that at 31 March 2007 a
hypothetical £100 nvested n Investec plc at the ume of sts histing on the LSE in july 2002 would have generated a total return of £549
compared with a return of £208 If nvested i the FTSE 350 General Finance Index Investec plc has therefore outperformed the FTSE
350 General Finance Index over the period

During the period from | Aprit 2006 to 31 March 2007, the return to shareholders of Investec plc (measured in Pounds Sterling) and
Investec Limited (measured in Rands) was 15 4% and 53 3%, respectively This compares to a return of 20 5% for the FTSE 350 General
Finance Index

The market price of our shares on the LSE was £6 58 as at 31 March 2007 ranging from a low of £4 95 to a high of £6 76 duning the
financial year Furthermare the market price of our shares on the JSE Limited was R93 30 as at 31 March 2007, ranging from a low of
R59 06 to a hugh of R94 &0 during the financial year
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Note
Schedule 7A of the UK Companies Act 1985 requires that the gragh shows TSR for the five years ending with the relevant financial
year The :information for Investec ple 15 however, only avallable since 1ts sting on the LSE in July 2002




Audited information

Directors' annual remuneration

The following table shows a breakdown of the annual remuneration (excluding share based payments and equity awards) of directors
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Name Salaries, Total Gross Annual Total Total
directors other remun- bonus remun- remun-
fees and benefits eration eration eration

other
remun-
eration
20072 2007 2007 2007 2007 2006*
£ £ £ £ £ £

Executive directors

S Koseff (Chief Executive Officer) 315 644 69 356 385000 | 3050000 3435000 | 2215000
B Kantor (Managing Director) 354 796 30 204 385000 | 3050000 | 3435000 | 2215000
GR Burger {Group Risk and Finance Direclor) 212 944 48 177 261 121 ] 2250000 | 2511 128 | 18017223
ATapnack 244 167 29137 273304 1 1 050000 | 1323304 991 341
Total Pounds Sterling | 127 551 176 874 | | 304 4251 9400 000 | 10 704 425 | 7 222 564
Non-executive directors

HS Herman (Chairman) 340 000 - 340 000 - 340 000 300 000
SE Abrahams 152 471 - 152 471 - 152 471 128 430
GFO Alford 107 000 - 107 000 - 107 000 87 000
C Carolus 45 000 - 45 000 - 45 000 40 000
H Fukuda OBE 45 000 - 45 000 - 45 000 40 000
GMT Howe 76 000 - 76 000 - 76 000 65 000
DE Jowell 185 506 - 185 506 - 185 506 193 920
IR Kartor 53 000 - 53 000 - 53 000 47 000
Sir C Keswick 77 000 - 77 000 - 77 000 67 000
MP Malungary 53 965 - 53 965 - 53 985 46 562
Sir D Prosser® 57 0Co - 57 Q00 - 57 GCO 6 700
PRS Thomas 127 977 - 127 977 - 127 977 13 428
FTi 53 944 - 53 966 - 53 966 45 249
Total Pounds Sterling 1 373 885 -| 1373885 -1 1373885 | | (80289
Total Pounds Sterhing 2 501 43¢ 176 874 | 2678310 | 9400000 | 12078310| 8402853

Notes
' Gross remuneration comprises base salary and other benefits (see pont 2 and 3 below)

Gross remuneration of § Kosefl, B Kantor and A Tapnack has increased on average by approxamately 50% The gross remuneration
of GR Burger 1s determined in Rands and converted into Pounds Sterling, thus the dechne in his gross remuneration (as reflected
in Pounds Sterkng) 15 as a result of Rand deprecaton In Rand terms GR Burger's gross remuneration increased by 6 8% from
R2 458 000 to R2 625 000 Gross remuneration increases for other employees across the group have generally been in the range
of 4% to 10% and the increases awarded to executive directors are consistent with this

3 The executive directors recewve other benefits which may include pension schemes, fe, disability and personal accident insurance,
and medical cover, on similar terms to other senior executives

Executive directors' bonuses reflect the significant improverment in adjusted earnings atinbutable to ordinary shareholders before
goodwill and non-operating rtems of 307% to £3007 miien the improvement in the return to shareholders of Investec ple and
Investec Limited of 15 4% (Paunds Sterling} and 53 3% (Rands) respectively, and indvidual contnbution to the group's performance
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* A breakdown of the components of the reward packages for the executive directors in the 2006 financial year 1s as follows

Name Salary Total Gross Annual Total
other remune- bonus remune-
benefits ration ration
£ £ £ £ £

Executive directors

S Kosefl (Chief Executive Officer) 287 627 77 373 365000 { 185000G | 2215000
B Kantor (Managing Director) 333 539 31 461 365000 | | 850000 | 2215000
GR Burger {Group Risk and Finance Director) 218 266 62 957 281 223 | 1520000 | 1804 223
ATapnack 215 000 26 341 241 34| 750 000 991 341
Total Pounds Sterling | 054 432 198 132 | 1252564 | 5970000 | 7222 564

¢ Appointed to the board with effect from 23 March 2006

Retirement benefits

None of the executive directors belong to a defined benefit pension scheme and all are members of one of our defined contribution
schemes The total contribution to these schemes, payable by the company, included in the total salary of the director or ncuded in
benefits paid as highlighted in the tables above, s as follows

Name 2007 2006

Executive directors

5 Kosefl (Chief Executive Officer) 49 828 56 653
B Kantor (Managing Direcion) 21 021 20 549
GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director) 29418 32262
ATapnack 24 417 21 500
Total Pounds Sterling 124 684 130 964

Executive directors' total assumed cost to company

The table below provides an indication of the total cost to the company i relation to executrve directors' remuneration Total cash
paymenits and benefits reflect the information disclosed in the tables above The IFRS accounting charge (in terms of IFRS 2) reflects
the cost that has been expensed by the company in its income statement in the relevant period in relation Lo share options and long-
term mcentive awards that have been granted Lo the executives Further details on these equity awards are provided in the tables that
follow

Name Salary, bonus| Accounting Total Salary, bonus| Accounting Total
and other | IFRS charge | assumed and other | IFRS charge | remuneration
benefits n relaton |remuneravon|  benefits in relavion expense
to equity expense to equity
awards awards
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
£ £ L £ £ £
Executive directors
S Koseff (Chief Executive Officer) 3 435 000 662087 | 4097087 | 2215000 275198 | 2490 198
B Kantor (Managing Director) 3 435 000 653331 | 4088331 ( 2215000 257436 | 2472436
GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director) 2511 121 552800 | 3063921 ( 180f 223 271752 | 2072975
ATapnack P 323 304 179 591 | 502 895 991 341 78 885 | 1070226
Total Pounds Sterling 10 704 425 | 2047 809 | 12752234 | 7 222 564 883 271 | B 105835

Directors' shareholdings, options and long-term incentive awards

The company's register of directors’ interests contains full detals of directors’ shareholdings options and long-term incentive awards
The Lables that lollow provide information on the direciors' shareholdings, options and long-term incentive awards for the year ended
31 March 2007




Directors' shareholdings in Investec plc and Investec Limited shares as

at 31 March 2007

Name Beneficial and % of shares Beneficial and % of shares
non-beneficial interest n 1ssue' non-beneficial nterest In i1ssue’
Investec plc? Investec plc Investec Linuted® Investec
Limited
| April 31 March | 31 March I April 3| March 3IMarch
20086* 2007 2007 2006* 2007 2007

Executive directors

S Kosell 57287 865 | 4845383 3% 928 180 420 265 02%
B Kantor* 1 500 | 500 - | 8330220 | 6336200 28%
GR Burger 2753275 | 2410095 06% 432 385 432 385 02%
ATapnack - - - FB5 105 185 105 01%
Total number 8042640 | 7256978 19% | 9875890 | 7373955 33%

Non-executive directors

HS Herman I 541 505 | 1369915 4% 44 525 44 525 -
SE Abrahams 30 000 30 CO0 - - - -
GFO Alford - - - - -
C Carolus - - - - - -
H Fukuda OBE 5000 5 000 - - - -
GMT Howe - - - - -
DE jowell 311 700 [ 700 - - - -
IR Kantor | 583 555 | 380 Q66 04% 2250 | 2126536 9%
Sir C Keswick 15750 1S 750 - 9 250 9 250 -
MP Malungani® - - -1 7728890t 772889 34%
Sir D Prosser - 10 000 -1 - - -
PRS Thomas 501 650 415 855 01% 255 955 255 955 01%
FTud - B - | 540 000 | 540 000 07%
Total number 3989 160 { 32381286 09% [ 9580870 [ I 705 156 51%
Total number 12031 800 | |0 495 264 28% [ 19456 760 | 19079 11} 8 4%
Notes

The total number of Investec ple and Investee Limited shares in issue as at 31 March 2007 was 381 6 million and 2277 millien
respectively

The market price of an Investec plc share as at 31 March 2007 was £6 58 (2006 £5 88), ranging from a low of £4 95 to a high of
£6 76 during the financial year

The market price of an Investec Limited share as at 31 March 2007 was R93 30 (2006 R62 60} ranging from a low of R59 06 to
a high of R94 60 during the financial year

In addibon to his shareholdings reflected in the table above B Kantor has an interest in options over Investec Limited shares, the
details of which are as follows

* B Kantor sold | 250 000 call options at a strike price of R84 00 per option expining on 2§ August 2007

* B Kantor purchased 500 000 call options at a strike price of R84 00 per option expiring on 21 August 2007

* B Kantor sold 500 000 call options at a strike price of R4 00 per option expinng on 2| August 2007

* B Kantor purchased 750 000 pul options at a strike price of R82 00 per option expinng on |5 August 2007

* B Kantor purchased 750 000 put options at a strike price of R66 00 per option expiring on 21 August 2007

« B Kantor sold 750 000 put options at a stnke price of R66 00 per option expiring on |5 August 2007

ln November 2003, Investec Lirmited concluded an empowerment transacuon with Tiso Group (Tiso) Peu Group (Proprietary)
Limited (Peu), a broad-based Entrepeneurship Development Trust and an Employee Share Trust in terms of which they acquired a
25 1% stake in the issued share caprtal of lnvestec Limited MP Malungani 1s the Charman of Peu and F Titi 1s the Chiel Executive
Officer of Tiso

On 4 September 2006 the group implemented a 5 | share spht of Investec plc and investec Limuted shares The information as at
} April 2006 has been restated accordingly
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Directors' interest in preference shares as at 3| March 2007

Name Investec Bank Limited investec pic
| April 31 March | April 31 March
2006 2007 2006 2007
Executive directors
S Koseff 3000 3000 21 379
Non-executive directors
HS Herman’ I 135 I 135 -

Notes

«  The market price of an Investec Bank Limited preference share as at 31 March 2007 was R103 10 (2006 R12301)

«  The market price of an Investec plc preference share as at 31 March 2007 was R124 99 (2006 n/a, anly 1ssued in August 2006)
'S Kosefl acquired an interest 1n the preference shares of Investec Bank Limited on 13 August 2003 at a price of R10000

S Koseff acquired an interest in the preference shares of Investec plc on 3 August 2006 at a price of R11038
2 HS Herman acquired an interest in the preference shares of Investec Bank Limited on |3 August 2003 at a price of RI00 00

Directors' attributable interest in Investec plc and Investec Limited
shares through a leveraged equrty plan called Fintique Il as at

31 March 2007

Name Entitlement to Investec Entitlement to Settlement Total
plc shares Investec Limited shares period enttlement
(1e Investec
plc and
Investec
Limited
shares)
-% Interest
in scheme
i April 31 March L April 31 March 31 March
2006! 2007 2006* 2007 2007
Executive directors
S Koseff 918 420 918 420 539 395 539 395 i April 2007 to 82%
31 July 2008
B Kantor - - 221 500 221 500 i April 2007 | 2%
to 31 july 2008
GR Burger 629 520 629 515 369 715 369 715 I April 2007 56%
to 31 July 2008
ATapnack - - 68 340 168 340 | April 2007 09%
to 31 July 2008
Non-executive directors
HS Herman 451 045 451 045 264 900 264 900 | April 2007 40%
to 31 July 2008
IR Kantor' 251 180 - 147 520 - | April 2007
to 31 july 2008
Total number 2250653 1998980 | 711370} 1§ 563850 199%




Notes

Fintique il was constituted on 31 July 1996 via a speaial purpose vehicle (SPV), imitially available to 235 selected executives, semior
managers and directors Participants acquired units in the SPV, where the undertying instruments are compulsory convertble
debentures which convert into 4 430 Investec shares for every 1 000 units in Fintique Il The scheme was funded through cash
contrbutions from paruicipants and the upfront sale of the income stream on the debentures and the right to the redemption
proceeds A total of 40 million urits were issued in terms of the scheme converting inte approximately 17 8 milkon shares

All the shares to which the directors are entitled in terms of the Fintique 1l scheme are fully tradeable and so ‘ fully vested " as the
term 13 understood n the UK, and can be taken up at a price of R833 per share, based on the valuation of the scheme as at
31 March 2007 The market price of an Investec ple share and an Investec Limsted share as at 31 March 2007 was £6 58 and R93 30
respectively While the combined Investec plc and Investec Limited share entitlement will remain unchanged. the mix of Investec ple
and Investec Lirnited shares may vary from time to time The directors are at risk for any shortfall on maturity of the scheme

In terms of the scheme | Kantor disposed of his entitlements in respect of 25 684 Investec plc shares at a market price of R87 30
and 15 085 Invester Limited shares at market price of R86 Gl on 15 March 2007 The remaining entittements in respect of 225 496
Investec ple shares and 132 435 Investec Limited shares are now disclosed as part of hus shareholdings as reflected on page 133
On 4 Septernber 2006 the group implemented a 5 | share split of Investec plc and Investec Limited shares The infermation as at
t April 2006 has been restated accordingly

Directors’ interest in options as at 31 March 2007

Investec plc shares

Name Date of | Exercise | Number |Exercised| Opuens | Balance | Market Gross Period exercisable
grant price of Investec| during granted/ at price at | gains made
plc shares the lapsed 31 date of on date
at | April | year' | during the| March |exercise'| of exercise'
2006° year 2007
Executive
directors
S Koseff 20 Dec | R2239 82 500 41 250 - 41 250 JR8980 |R2 780 663 | Vestng scale in terms of
2002 the scheme rules Veesting
ends 20 Mar 2008
B Kantor 20 Dec £159 1130675 57 770 - 72905 | £624 £268 631 | Vesting scale in terms of
2002 the scheme rules Vesting
ends 20 Mar 2012
GR Burger | 20 June | R3290 { 157500 |78 750 - | 78 750 |[R7032 | R2946 825 | Vesting scale n terms of
2002 the scheme rules Vesung
ends 20 Mar 2008
20 Dec | R2239 82500 |41 250 - 4) 250 |R%231 | R2 884 200
2002
ATapnack | 28 June £210 §118 130 59 060 - 15%070 | £503 £173 0461 Vesting scale in terms of
2002 the scheme rules Vesting
ends 20 Mar 2012
20 Dec £159 | 130675 57 770 - | 72905 | 668 £294 049

2002
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Directors' interest In options as at 31 March 2007 (continued)

Investec Limited shares

Name Date of | Exercise | Number |Exercised| Opuions | Balance | Market Gross Penod exerasable
grant price | of Investec [ during | granted/ at price at | gains made
Limited the lapsed 3| Marchi date of on date
shares at | year' | duringthe| 2007 jexerase'| of exercise!
| April 20067 year
Executive
directors
S Koseff 20Dec | R2226 | 42500 |21 250 - | 21 250 |RB775 | RI 391 663 | Vestng scale :n terms of
2002 the scheme rules Vesung

GR Burger | 20 June | R329C | 92500 46 250 - 46 250 |R6621 ] RI 540 588 | Vesting scale i terms of
2002 the scheme rules Vesung
ends 20 Mar 2008
20 Dec | R2226 | 42500 |21 250 - 21 250 |R889F | RI 416313
2002
ATapnack | 20 June | R3290 | 69 370 |34 690 - 34 680 |R6600 | RI 148 239 | Vesting scale in terms of
2002 the scheme rules Vesting

ends 20 Mar 2008

ends 20 Sept 2007

Notes

MNc new grants were made to executive direciors during the financial year The market price of an Investec plc share as at
31 March 2007 was £6 58 {2006 £5 88),ranging from a low of £4 95 to a hugh of £6 76 during the financial year A total of 381 6 milhon
Investec plc shares were in issue as at 31 March 2007 The market price of an tnvestec Limited share as at 3| March 2007 was R93 30
{2006 R62 60), ranging from a low of R5% 06 to a high of R94 60 during the financial year A total of 227 7 milion Investec Limited
shares were in issue as at 31 March 2007

i

Details with respect to options exercised

S Koseff exercised his options and sold 41 250 Investec plc shares and 21 250 Investec Limited shares on 27 December 2006,
when the share price was R89 80 and R87 75 per Investec plc and Investec Limited share respectively The performance condiions
with respect to these options were met

B Kantor exercised his options and soid 57 770 Investec plc shares on 20 December 2006 when the share price was £6 24 per
Investec plc share The performance condiions with respect 1o these options were met.

GR Burger exercised his options and sold 78 750 Investec ple shares and 46 250 Investec Lirmited shares on 14 September 2006,
when the share price was R70 32 and R66 21 per Investec ple and Investec Limited share, respectively The performance conditions
with respect {o these options were met. Furthermore, GR Burger exercised his options and sold 41 250 Investec pic shares and
2| 250 Investec Limrted shares on |5 January 2007, when the share price was R92 31 and R88%91 per Investec plc and Investec
Limited share respectively The performance conditions with respect to these options were met,

ATapnack exercised hus options and sold 34 690 Investec Limited shares on 14 September 2006, when the share price was R66 00
per Investec Limited share The performance conditions with respect to these options were met. On {8 Septernber 2006 A Tapnack
exercsed his options and sold 59 060 Investec plc shares when the share price was £503 per Investec plc share The performance
conditions with respect to these options were met Furthermore A Tapnack exercised his options and sotd 57 770 Investec plc
shares on 3 January 2007, when the share price was £6 68 per Investec plc share The performance conditions with respect to
these options were met

On 4 September 2006 the group implemented a 5 | share split of lnvestec pic and Investec Limited shares The information as at
1 April 2006 has been restated accordingly

General comments

5 Kosell's and GR Burger's aptions were granted i terms of the Investec Limited Share Option and Purchase Scheme Trust 2002
B Kantor's and A Tapnack's opuons were granted in terms of the Investec plc Share Option Plan 2002

The options granted on 20 June 2002 and 20 December 2002 were made for no consideration

The options granted on 20 December 2002 have certain performance conditions atiached which require growth in headline
earnings per share over the relevant option penod to equal or exceed the UK RPI plus 3% (compounded annually over the same
period) There were no performance condiions attached to the options granted on 20 June 2002




Directors' interest in the Share Matching Plan 2005 as at

31 March 2007

Name Date of Exercise | Number of | Balance Period exercisable
grant price Investec plc at
shares at 31 March
I April 2006 2007
Execuuve directors
S Koseif 21 Nov 05 £000 750 000 750 000 | 75% of the matching award 15 exercisable
on 30 June 2009 and 25% on 30 june 2010
B Kantor 21 Nov 05 £000 750 000 750 000 | 75% of the matching award 15 exercisable
on 30 June 2009 and 25% on 30 June 2010
GR Burger 21 Nov 05 £000 600 000 600 000 | 75% of the matching award 15 exercisable
on 30 June 2009 and 25% on 30 June 2010
ATapnack 21 Nov 05 £000 200 000 200 000 | 75% of the matching award 15 exercisable
on 30 June 2009 and 25% on 30 june 2010
Notes

This plan was approved by shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on 14 November 2005 The plan 15 considered
essential In improving our fong-term prospects for recruitment and retention of key indwviduals The plan also provides further algnment
of the interests of shareholders and management as the committee believes that a significant element of remuneration should be linked
to our ability to deliver sustainable results to shareholders and at the same time enable management to share in these results Further

details on the plan are avalable on our website

' On 4 September 2006 the group implemented a 5 t share split of Investec plc and Investec Lirmited shares The information as at

P April 2006 has been restated accordingly

Summary. total interest in Investec plc and Investec Limited ordinary
shares, options and long-term incentive awards as at 31 March 2007

Investec plc

Name Beneficsally | Finuque |l Options Share Balance Balance
and nen- Matching |at 31 March| at | April
beneficially Plan 2007 2006

held

Executive directors

S Kogeff 4 845 383 918 420 41 250 750 000 | 6555053 | 7038785

B Kantor I 500 - 72 905 750 0G0 824 405 882 175

GR Burger 2410095 629515 120 000 600 000 | 3759610 | 4222795

ATapnack - - 131 975 200 000 331 975 448 805

Total number 7256978 | | 547 935 366 130 | 2300000 11 471043 | 12592 560
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Summary: total interest in Investec plc and Investec Limited ordinary
shares, options and long-term incentive awards as at 31 March 2007

(continued)

Investec Limited

Name Beneficially | Fintuque ll Options Share Balance Balance
and nan- Matching | at 31 March| at | April
beneficially Plan 2007 2006

held

Executive directors

S Koseff 420 265 539 395 24 250 980 %10 | 1510075

B Kantor 6 336 200 221 500 - 6557 700 | 8551 720

GR Burger 432 385 369 715 67 500 - B69 600 937 100

A Tapnack 185 105 168 340 34 680 - 388 125 422 815

Total number 7373955 | 1298 950 123 430 8796335 | 11421710

Notes

The total number of Investec plc and Investec Limited shares in ssue as at 3| March 2007 was 381 6 million and 2277 milkon,
respectively The market price of an Investec plc share as at 31 March 2007 was £6 58 (2006 £5 88), ranging from a low of £495 to a
high of £6 76 during the financial year The market price of an nvestec Limiled share as at 31 March 2007 was R93 30 (2006 Ré2 60),
rangng from a low of R59 06 to a high of R94 60 during the financal year

Conclusion

The Remuneratton Committee will continue to ensure that reward packages remain competitive, provide appropriate incentive for
performance and take due regard of our culture, values and philosophies The committee will keep the existing remuneration
arrangements, as discussed in this report, under review dunng the 2008 financial year




Introducing Our Business Responsibility

Taking stock

During the reporting period, we thought afresh about sustanability and our cbligations in this regard

We had spent the past several months observing internaticnal developments, where momentum relating to chmate change, especially,
had grown, and where businesses, selectively, had begun to vocalise a response

We had alse noted the changing economic dynamics relating to sustanability matters The emergence of ethical consumerism for
nstance, coincided with a greater effort by business to embrace the opportunities, and risks associated with first-mover advantage in
the targely unexplored commercial territory represented by the environment

We recognised that the tme for prevaricating on the 1ssue of environmenta! sustainabilty was fast coming to an end Since we had
previously regarded sustainability in the non-financial sense as being almost exclusively synonymous with corporate social mnvestment
we knew that in tackling sustainability afresh, we had to return to first pninciples

Consequently, we revisited who we are and what our core purpose 15 Greater clarity on this would foster the subsequent evolution
of a more considered concerted approach on how to take sustanability forward within Investec

Our historic approach

Sustainability has however, always been a focus for us Our grasp of how to manage our operating environment and ensure sustaned
financial success is indicated by our substantizl efforts in recent years towards

» Creating a balanced portfolio of businesses
+ , Attaining our financizl objectives
*  Mantaining strongly entrenched internal practices of corporate governance nsk management and people development.

We have also understood equally well the importance of giving back to the communities in which we operate Our traditional focus
on non-financial 1ssues has tended to be driven out of cur home base in South Afnica and concentrated on the backlog of socio-
economic needs In the country

Our sowal investiment activities take into account the destre to do the right thing and adopt an entrepreneurial approach, and nclude
groundbreaking work on CIDA City Campus and The Business Place which has won us many accolades, and Black Economic
Empowerrment (BEE) in South Africa We were the first bank in South Africa to effect change at an ownership level, before the Financial
Sector Charter came into being We have also become a recognised leader in the 1dentsfication, finanang creation and replication of
BEE platforms

For our non-South African businesses, sustainability has tended to concentrate on the need to grow, bulld critical mass and ensure the
successful integration of businesses acquired A sustainability mindset beyond the financial has not really had the chance to be
developed This makes it all the more gratifying that our UK business last year despite the absence of a formalised group approach won
the prestigious City of Londen prize for best of breed practices in the field of waste management

Moving forward

in considering what sustainability means for Investec we recogrnise that we have already accomplished a lot The missing element,
however 15 the environment which we have only flirted with in the past

The tme for a greater focus seemed appropriate Our internalional businesses had grown sufficently to be able to think more broadly
about sustainability These businesses were also urging the importance of environmental considerations as outside South Africa,
environmental sustainability has become the prevailing political mantra

When considering our core purpose we factored m the potential for banks to unlock finance to assist In provding answers to the
world's pressing problems as well as cur own ability 10 be entrepreneurial, add value and unlock potential We factored in our own
track record of going for the gap, and sought to :dentify whether a more integrated sustainabilty approach might aflow us to do so
again

Finally, however we agreed that our mandate 1s best represented by our desire to creaie sustained wealth for shareholders and
stakeholders, and to use our entrepreneunal slills base 10 foster, finance and reproduce these skills in others We dentdied that

+  YWe are not in the market for virtue, for virtue's sake

* There are abundant different facets to sustanability all diverse and manifold, which we probably cannot tackle equally, or all at once

*  We would rather leverage our existing skills base to be a force for good, since this had already underpinned our financal
sustanability for so long

We then identfied the key national prioribies for each of our principal geographies As clear areas of commanality exisled across our
mternational businesses, we were able to dewise an overall sustanability philosophy for the group

How far did we agree we were prepared 1o go in our sustainabiity approach? [n determining the scope of our endeavours, should we
Just do the basics (meet legal and compliance reguirements) go the extra mile (more than merely ticking the box) or seek to exert
leadership (influence prevating thinking)?

Our Business Responsibilicy
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We concluded thal none of these needed to be mutually exclusive and that L might be appropriate for us to take a leadership position
tn some areas while dong the basics in others For instance as the first South Afnican bank to effect BEE change at ownership level,
this represents a clear instance of our being willing to take a leadership position Similarly, our wilingness to assume a leadership role
15 also shown by our founding partner involvement with CIDA City Campus and our development of The Business Place hubs for
entrepreneurs

We alse concluded that, in driving forward sustainability wathin Investec, we needed 1o allow the different geographies and business
unils to determine therr own areas of emphasis Rather than on a top-down basis sustanability must be allowed to evolve i hne with
diffenng business unit requirements Our WK and Australian busmesses may therefore put cimate change high on the agenda, while
South Africa may concentrate on socio-economic issues such as alleviating poverty, tackhing unemployment and providing educational
mitiatives to equip the youth to meet the demands of the marketplace

Finally, we also changed the type of language we use on sustamnability, with a view to making it more user-fnendly and relevant 1o our
business From now on sustainability for Investec 15 Qur Business Responsibiity This will extend to a range of financial and non-financial
considerations, including, for the first tme our physical and natural environment

Getting to grips with the environment

We are still familiarising curselves with what the environment should mean to a specialist investment banking group and have not
adopted any inviolable commitments on this front We will allow our environmental conscience to evolve and have not yet determined
whether our obligations should extend to more than doing the basics 1€ seeking to reduce our own consumption of scarce natural
resoQurces

Ourinitial approach has been to create internal awareness on our environmental impact, to foster dialogue and to identfy some quick
wins In reducing our overall footprint In South Africa, we launched a "Think 15% More™ campaign at the end of the reporting period
Designed to sensitise our employees to environmental sustainability and to introduce the need for behavioural change, we identified
reduced paper consumption as the first internal objective The reduction of our environmental footprint will mean much more aver
time, and we have begun exploring what else we can do

In determining our environmental emphasis, we allow for the possibility that, as our businesses move beyond an initial awareness of
environmenlal sustainabilily, there may be scope for leadership opportunities o emerge, whether in the design of new praducts or the
explotation of emerging commercial opportiunity For example, although not driven by sustainabilily our adoplion of a stralegic position
in the allernative energy sector was motivated by an appreciation of potential commercial opportunity

In the past 18 months, international momentum around environmental sustainability has grown significantly Our own efforts have not
been unduly mfluenced by this trend Rather, we have chosen to move gradually. in a way that makes sense to us and In the spiil of
our new Qur Business Responsibility philosophy

The year ahead wilf see much more internal dialogue around this phidosephy Introduced enly at the end of the reporting period much
stll needs 1o be done on processing this Internally However, n seeking Lo take Our Business Responsibility forward, we are driven by
a much more obvious common sense of purpose than before In the past, our sustainability endeavours have been largely opportunistic
rather than the result of a formalised grand design This may well continue 1o be the case bui the decision to devise a formal philosophy
and generate 4 framework for engagement around Our Business Responsibility was motivated by stakeholder input as well as our own
desne to be able to contextualise our eflorts

Looking forward

The evelution of Qur Business Responsibility journey will be driven largely by the different business units and geographies, although
there will be an attempt to oversee, direct, coordinate, unify and integrate our overall approach from the centre Sustainabihity has been
a permanent agenda item for the main board for sometime has since extended through to all boards and will remain an important
area of focus

In this year's report (renamed Our Business Responsibility Report), we adopt a slightly new reporting format to give a sense of what
our business pillars and key central support areas believe their responsibiities to be This we hope, will be buillt on and nformed by
more active Input from our external stakeholders

In seeking to enunaate a phitosophy on Our Business Responsibility we are looking to re energise our previous sustainability efforts
Our newly adopted philosophy 15 as follows

In pursuit of sustanable profits, we seek to be a positive nfluence in all our business actvities In each of the societies n which we
operate We do this by empowening communities through entrepreneurshup and education, recognising the true vatue of dwversity and
addressing the challenges posed by climate change and the use of natural resources

This will enable us to offer stakeholders a mare easily understood and more fully integrated sense of our triple battom hne approach
In this vein, we expect the year ahead to generate a growing sense that Our Business Responsibility 1s an important driver of who we
are, how we do things, and the results we hope to achieve Our new-found focus on the environment, however, will net occur at the
expense of the other aspects of sustanability from an Investec perspeciive where intensive focus wall continue to be the order of the
day

The 2007 Our Business Responsibility report can be accessed on our website at www investc com/grouplinks/ob:




Shareholder analysis

The group has mplemented a Dual Listed Comparues (DLC) structure n terms of which it has primary listings both in Johannesburg and
Londan Investec plc which houses the majonty of the group’s non-Southern Afncan businesses was listed on the London Stock Exchange
on 29 july 2002 Investec plc also has a secondary listing on the |SE Limited (JSE) investec Limited, which houses the group's Southern
African and Maurrtius operations, has been hsted in South Africa since 1986 and 15 also listed on the Botswana and Namibian Stock
Exchanges

On 4 September 2006 the group implemented a 5 | share spht of Investec plc and Investec Limited shares

As at 31 March 2007 Investec plec and Investec Limrted had 381 6 mdiion and 227 7 million ordinary shares in 1ssue, respectively

Spread of ordinary shareholders as at 31 March 2007

Investec plc ordinary shares in 1ssue

Number of Holdings % of total Number of % of 1ssued
shareholders shareholders shares in 1ssue share capital
2322 | 1o 500 242 667 670 02

2 301 501 - 1 000 240 | 762 199 05
3139 } 001 - 5000 27 7 414 049 19

615 5001 - 10 000 64 4 544 660 12

694 10 0C1 - 50 000 72 I5 806 338 41

173 50 001 - 100 000 I8 12 599 492 33

358 100 00t and over 37 338818 799 888

% 602 1000 381 613 207 1000

Investec Limited ordinary shares in issue

Number of Holdings % of total Number of % of 1ssued

shareholders shareholders shares in 1ssue share capital

2309 | to 500 359 588 019 03

| 283 501 -1 000 200 989 403 04

I 717 | 00 -5 000 267 4021 883 i8

317 500t - 10000 49 2321 152 10

461 10 001 - 50 000 72 10 748 433 47

127 50 001 - 100 000 20 %376 179 41

216 100 001 and over 33 199 626 351 877

6 430 1000 227 671 420 1000

Shareholder classification as at 31 March 2007
Investec ple % holding Investec % holding
number of Limited
shares number of
shares

Pubhic* 367 516 337 964 {171 415 9565 753
Non-public 14 096 870 36 | 56255 455 247
Non-executive directors of Investec plc/investec Limited** 3238 286 08 2 436 246 Il
Executive directors of Investec plc/lnvestec Limited 7270473 |9 7 381 870 33
Investec staff share schemes 3588t 09 | 19381 764 85
Tiso Group Limited** - - | 14000 000 51
Peu Group (Proprietary) Lirmted* ™ - - | 13055558 57
Total 381 613 207 1000 (227 671 420 100 0

*  As per the [SE listing requirements
** 1 MNovember 2003 Investec Limited implemented an empowerment transaction The shareholdings held by F T and
MP Malungami (non-executive directors of Investec) are shown under the holdings of Tiso Group Limited and Peu Group

{Proprietary) Limited, respectively
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Largest shareholders as at 31 March 2007
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g
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g In accordance with the terms provided for in Section 212 of the UK Companies Act 1985 and Section 140A of the South Afncan

e Companies Act, 1973, the group has conducted investigations into the registered holders of ts ordinary shares (inchuding nrominee and

'_é asset management comparies) and the results are as disclosed below

g

2 Investec plc
Shareholder analysis by manager group Number %

of shares holding
| Barclays Global Investors (UK and US) 25276 326 66
2 Public investment Commussioner (ZA) 24 493019 64
3 JPMorgan Asset Management (UK and US) 23568 702 62
4 Legal & General Investment Management Ltd (UK) 14817 387 39
5 Investec Secunities Lirited (ZA)** 12964 783 34
& Morley Fund Management Ltd (UK) 12 794 939 34
7 Jupiter Asset Management Limied (UK) i2 345 562 32
8 Old Mutual Asset Managers (ZA) 11973 8%6 31
9  State Street Global Advisars (UK, US, |P and FR}) Il 493732 30
10 Schroder Investment Management Ltd (UK) 8 B84 465 23
Cumulative total 158 612 811 415

The top |0 shareholders account for 41 5% of the total shareholding n Investec plec This nformation 1s based on 2 threshold of 20 000

(42 shares Some major fund managers hold additional shares below this which may cause the above figures 1o be marginally understated

Investec Limited

Shareholder analysis by manager group Number %
of shares holding

| Public Investment Commussioner {ZA) 24 569 804 f08
2 lnvestec Staff Share Schemes (ZA) 19 381 764 85
3 Oid Mutual Asset Managers (ZA) 16 384 922 72
4 Investec Asset Management (ZA) 14 037 074 62
5  Tiso INL Investments (Pty) Ltd (ZA)* 14 000 000 61
6 Entrepreneurial Development Trust (ZA)* 14 000 000 &1
7 Peu INL Investments | {Pty) Ltd (ZA)* 13055 555 57
8 Polans Capital (Pty) Limited (ZA) 9958 172 44
9  RMB Asset Management (ZA) 7 470 551 33
10 Investec Secunties Limited (ZA)** 6911 846 30

Cumulative total 139 769 688 613

The top 10 shareholders account for 61 3% of the total shareholding in Investec Limitec This information 15 based on a threshold of
20 000 shares Some maor fund managers hold addiuonal shares below this, which may cause the above figures o be margnally
understated

*  In November 2003, investec Lumited implemented an empowerment transaction in which empowerment pariners and an
employee share scheme acqurred 25 1% of the equity shareholding i Investec Limited
** PManaged on behall of clents




Geographic holding by beneficial owner as at 31 March 2007

Investec plc Investec Limited
272115 5222108
17 18
47 gl
68
50 4
270
Bl 4

m Uk and Europe n South Afnca m USA B South Alnca u USA m Other countries

B Other countries & Channel Islands W Luxembourg UK and Europe ® Country unknown  ® Channel lslands

® Seotland B Below threshhold B France & Below threshold
Share statistics
Investec plc ordinary shares in issue
For the year ended 3| March' 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Closing market price per share (pence)?
- year end 658 588 314 218 123
- highest 676 507 347 236 192
- lowest 495 304 t84 122 121
MNurmber of ordinary shares in issue (million)? 3816 37310 3730 3730 3730
Market capitalisation (€' million)? 2511 2194 | 160 B2 459
Daity average volume of shares traded ('000)? 28325 | 4890 7410 4980 3495
Price earmngs ratio* 124 {40 He 105 63
Dovidend cover {(imes)’ 23 23 20 I8 | 8
Dividend yield (%)* 35 31 43 53 88
Earrings yield (%)* 81 71 86 95 156
Investec Limited ordinary shares in 1ssue
For the year ended 31 March 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Closing market price per share (cents)’
- year end 9330 & 260 3560 2 506 I 530 2 600 3940
- highest 9 460 6 650 3 800 3020 3488 4916 5560
- lowest 5906 3410 2156 I 550 | 530 2 600 3 840
Number of ardinary shares in ssue {rmillion)? 2277 22C0 2200 2200 1920 4810 4050
Market capitafisation (R'mullion)® 56 848 37121 PARRRI 14 860 8 645 14 196 19 286
Market capitalisation (£'million) 4 009 3488 I 844 | 292 695 742 I 400
Daily average volume of shares traded ('000)** 6197 4780 5105 4950 5270 - -
Notes

' Investec plc has been histed on the LSE since 29 July 2002

! On 4 September 2006 the group implemented a 5 | share spht of Investec plc and Investec Limited shares Historrcal information

has been restated for comparative purposes

> The LSE only include the shares in 1ssue for Investec plc 1e 381 6 million in calculating market capralisation, as Investec Limited 1s

not incorporated i the UK

' Calculations are based on the group’s consclidated earnings per share before goodwill and non-operating tems and dwadends

per share as prepared in accordance with IFRS and denominated in Pounds Sterling

5 The |SE have agreed o use the total number of shares in 1ssue for the combined group, comprising Investec Limited and Investec

ple, n calculating market capitalisabion 1e a total of 609 3 million shares in 1ssue
*  Information prior to the implementation of the DLC structure in 2002 15 not comparable
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Organisational structure

Irwestec plc

LSE pnmary listing
JSE secondary isting

4
v

MNon-Southern African

operatons

T

¥

v

The diagram below depicts our DLC structure and our main operating subsidianies

Sharing agreement

[nvestec Bank
{UK) Lirmnized

Investec Asset
Management
Limited

|

Investee
Holdings
Australia Limited

i

Investec Bank
{Austraha)
Limited

Note
All sharehoidings 1n the ordinary share capitai of the subsidianes are [00%, unless otherwise stated

Investee Limuted
JSE prmary listing

.
&
-4
Southern African operations
v v v \i
Investec Bank Investec Investec Asset Investec
Led Securiues Lud Management Property Group
Holdings (Pry) Led Holdings Lid

Investec Bank
(Mauritivs) Led

Reichmans Ltd

The directorate of the main operating entiies and subsidiaries are indicated on the pages that {ollow




Directorate Investec plc and Investec Limited

Executive directors

Name Ageat  Qualficattons Current Investec committee Brief biography Area of
3i directorships membership expertse
March
2007
Chief Executive
Officer
Stephen Koseff 55 BCom CA (SA) The Bidvest Group Beoard Risk Review Stephen joined Investec n Finance
H Dip BDP MBA  Limited, JSE Limited ~ Commuttee and DLC 1980 He has had dverse
Rensburg Sheppards  Capital Committee experience within Investec
ple and a number of as Chief Accounting Officer
Investec subsidiaries and General Manager of
Banking, Treasury and
Merchant Banking
Managing
director
Bernard Kantor 57 Phumetela Garning Board Risk Review Bernard joined Investec n Finance
and Leisure Limited  Committee and DLC 1980 He has had vared
Rensburg Sheppards  Capital Commitiee experience within Investec
plc and a number of as a Manager of the Trading
Investec subsidiaries dnsion Marketing Manager
and Chief Operating Officer
Group Risk
and Finance
director
Glynn R Burger 50 BAcc CA(SA) Investec Bark Limited  Board Risk Review Glynn joined Investec in Finance

H Dip BDP MBL

and a number of

Investec subsidiaries

Committee and DLC
Capital Commuttee

1980 His positions within
Investec have included Chief
Accounting Officer Group
Risk Manager and Joint
Managing Director for
South Africa

Adan Tapnack 60 BCom CA (5A)

Investec Bank (UK}
Limited and a number

of lnvestec
subsidiaries

Board Risk Review
Commuttee and DLC
Capital Commitiee

Alan s a former partner of  Finance
Price Waterhouse and
former Managing Director
of Grey Philhps Bunton
Mundell and Blake, a leading
South Afrcan marketing
services group Alan joined
Investec In 1991 and has
held the positions of Chief
Fimance Officer and Chief
Executive Officer of Investec
Bank (UK) Limited and
Chief Executve Officer of
Investec's UK operations
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Non-executive directors

&
[
E Name Ageat  Qualficauans Current Investec committee Brief biography Area of
2 31 directorships membership experuse
@ March
3 2007
<
Non-executive
Chawrman
Hugh 5 66 BALLBLLD (hc) Growthpont Nomination Hugh practised as an Law
Herman Properties Limited, Committee attorney before joirung Pick
Pick 'n Pay Holdings 'n Pay, a leadng South
Limited, Pick 'n Pay Afnican retail group, where
Stores Limited and a he became Managing
number of investec Director
subsidianes
Sam E 68 FCA CA (54) Investec Bank Limited DLC Audit Sam 1s a former Finance
Abrahams Foschir Limited, Committee, lwestec  international partner and Auditing
Super Group Limited  plc Audit Commttee, South African Managing .
and Phumelela Investee Limited Audit Partner of Arthur Andersen
Gaming and Leisure  Commitiee,
Limited Nomination
Committee, Board
Risk Review
46 Committee and DLC
Capital Commutiee
George FO 58  BSc (Ecom) FCIS  Investec Bank (UK) DLC Audit George 15 a former Head of Banking
Allord FIPD MSi Limited Committee, Investec  Private Banking and Regula-
pic Audit Commuttee, Personnel at Klerwort tiens
Investec Limuted Audit  Benson Group and was a Finance
Comrmttee senior adwvisor to the UK
Remuneration Financial Services Authonty
Committee and
Board Risk Review
Commitiee
Cheryl A 48 BA (Law) B Ed De Beers - Cheryl acted as the South  Sustan-
Carolus Consolidated Mines Adrican High Commussicner  able
Limited, IQ Business to London between (998  develop-
Group (Pty) Limited and 200! and was Chief ment
Fenner Cenveyor Executve Officer of South  Educa-
Belting South Afnca AfncanTourism She s tion

(Pty) Limrted, Ponhalo
Holdings (Pty)
Limirted, Investec
Asset Management
Holdings (Pty) Ltd
and Executive
Chairperson of
Pectona Group
Holdings (Pty)
Limited

Chairperson of South
African National Parks




Name Age at  Qualfications Current Investec commuitiee Brief biography Area of
3l directorships membership expertuse
March
2007
Huruko Fukuda 60 MA (Camtab) DSc  Charman Calber - Huruko was previously Finance
OBE Global Investments Chief Executive Officer of  Asset
Lid, Aberdeen Asian the World Gold Counail, Manage-
Smaller Companies and senior adwisor at Lazard ment
Investrnent Trust PLC She 15 former vice Chairman
She is an adwiser to of Nikko Europe plc and a
Metro AG, Centaurus partner of James Capel &
Capital Lt and Aspis Co and a former director of
Bank SA. ABValvo and of Foreign
and Colonial Investment
Trust pic
Geoffrey MT 57 MA (Hons) Jardine Hoyd DLC Audit Geoffrey 15 a former Law
Howe Thompson Group ple  Committee, Investec  Managmg Partner of Chfford
(Charman} The |P ple Audit Committee  Chance LLP and was
Meorgan Overseas Investec Limited Audit  Director and Group
Investment Trust ple  Committee, General Counsel of Robert
and Nationwide Remuneration Fleming Holdings Lid He s
Buitding Socrety Committee and also a former Charman of
Board Risk Review Railtrack Group ple
Committee
Donn E Jowell 65 BCom LLB lrwestec Bank Limited, DLC Awudit Donn s a director of Law
Wits Donald Gordon  Committee, Investec Werksmans Inc, and former
Medical Centre, |CI Lirmited Audtt Chairman and founder of
Limned and Committee, Board Jowell, Glynn and Marais,
Werksmans Inc Rusk Review Investec's South Afncan legal
Committee, DLC adwvisors
Capital Committee
lan R Kantor 60 BSc (Eng) MBA Instnger de Beaufort - Former Chief Executive of  Finance
Holdings SA (in which investec Limited
Investec holds an
8 6% interest), Bank
Insinger de Beaufort
NV where he 1s
Chairman of the
managerment board
Senior
independent
director
Sir Chups 67 - investec Bank Limited, DLC Audit S Chips 15 former Finance
Keswick De Beers SA Arsenal  Committee, Investec  Chairman of Hambros Bank

Holdings Plc and plc Audt Commitiee,

Arsenal Football Club  Investec Limied Audit

Plc Committee,
Remuneration
Committee,
Nomination
Committee and
Board Risk Review
Committee

Limited and Hambros PLC
and a former director of
Anglo American plc He was
on the Court of the Bank of
England
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Non-executive directors (continued)

[+
<
E Name Age at  Qualifications Current investec committee Brief biography Area of
2 31 directorships membership expertse
é March
g 2007
=z
< M Peter 4% BCom MAP LDP  Super Group Limited Peter 15 Chairman and Finance
Malungaru (Chairman), founder of Peu Group
Phumelela Gaming (Proprietary) Limited
and Lesure Limited
(Chairmany), tnvestec
Bank Limmed, Investec
Asset Management
Heoldings (Pty)
Limnted and a number
of Peu subsidiaries
Sir David 63 BSc {(Hons) FIA Pippbrook Limited, DLC Audit Sir Dawid was previously Finance
Prosser Epsom Downs Cormmittee, Investec  Chief Executive of Legal &
Racecourse Limited,  plc Audit Committee General Group PLC joining
The Royal and Investec Limited  Legal & General m 1998 as
Automobile Club Audit Commuttee Group Director
Limited and (Investments) becoming
Intercontimental Deputy Chief Executive in
48 Hotels Group PLC January 1991 and Group
Chief Executive in
September 1991 Sir Dawnd
was previously Chairman of
the Financial Services Skills
Counci
Peter RS 62 CA (SA) Investec Bank Limited, DLC Audit Peter was the former Finance
Thomas various lnvestec Committee, Investec  Managing Director of The
comgpanies and |CI plc Audit Committee, Unisec Group Limited
Lirmited Investec Limited Audit
Committee and
Board Risk Review
Commitiee
Fam Tru 44 BSc {Hons) MA Investec Bank bimited  Board Risk Review Fani 15 Chief Executive Finance
MBA (Chairman), AECI Committee Officer of Tiso Group
Limited and Investec Limrted
Asset Management
Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Notes

+  The cates on which the directors were apoomnted to the boards of investec ple and Investec Limited can be founc on page 109
*  Details of the Investec committees cani be found on pages 11210 |17




Directorate

Investec Bank Ltd

A subsidiary of Investec Limited

Hugh 5 Herman {64)*
BA LLB LLD (ho)
Non-Executve Chairman

David M Lawrence (56)
BA(Econ) (Hons) MCam
Deputy Chairman

Sam E Abrahams (68)
FCA CA(SA)

Glynn R Burger (50}
BAcc CA(SAY H Dip BDP MBL

Donn E Jjowell (65)
BCom LLB

Bernard Kantor (57)
CTA

Stephen Koseff (55)
BCom CA(SA) H Dip BDP MBA

M Peter Malungani (49)
BCom MAP LDP

Karl-Bart XT Socikwa (38}
BCom LLB MAP IPBM

Bradley Tapnack {60)
BCom CA(SA)

Peter R S Thomas (62)
CA(SA)

Fam T (447
BSc (Hons) MA MBA

Christina B Tshili (43)
CA (5A)

*  Resigned | June 2007

** Appointed as non-executive Chairman { June 2007

Investec Asset Management
Holdings (Pty) Ltd

A subsidiary of Investec Limited

Hugh § Herman {66}
BA LLB LLD (he)
Non-Executve Chairman

Hendrik | duTort (45}

BCom (Law) BCom Hons (cum laude) MCom (cum laude)

MPhil (Cambridge)
Chief Executve Officer

Cheryl A Carolus {48}
BA (Law) B Ed

Gail Daniel {39}
BA (Hons) MBA

Domentce Ferrin (38)
BCom

Noluthando Gosa (44)
BA (Hons) MBA

John Green (41)
BCom LLB

Bernard Kantor (57)
CTA

Thabo Khojane (34)
BA (Econ) (Hons) BSc (Eng)

Stephen Koseff (55)
BCom CA(5A) H Dip BOP MBA

M Peter Malungani (49)
BCom MAP LDFP

Kim M McFarland (42)}*
BAcc BCom CA(SA) MBA

John McNab (40}
BEng MEng CFA

Bradley Tapnack {60)
BCom CA (5A}

Fani Tt (44)
BSc (Hons)y MA MBA .

~ British
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Investec Securities Ltd

A subsidiary of Investec Limited

Hugh S Herman (66)*
BA LLB LLD {hc)
Non-Executive Chairman

Sam E Abrahams (68)
FCA CA(SA)

Reg 5 Berkowitz (70)
Natal Law Certificate

Andrew § Birrell (37)
BBusSc FFA FASSA ASA

Henry E Blumenthal (48)
BCom BAcc CA(SA)

Kevin Brady (40)
BA (Hons)

Stephen Koseff {55)
BCom CA(SA) H Dip BDP MBA

Andy W | Leith (47)%*
BCom CA(SA)

Kevin P McKenna (40)
CA(SA)

*  Resigned | Apnl 2007
¥+ Appointed as non-executive Chairman | Apnl 2007

Investec Property Group Ltd

A subsidiary of Investec Limited

David Kuper {72)
Non-Executive Chairman

Glynn R Burger (50)
BAcc CA(SA) H Dip BDP MBL

Richard W Cunniffe (46)24

Dave A ] Donald (55)
BCom CA H Dip Tax Law

Sam Hackner (51}
BCom CA(5A)

Hugh S Herman (66)*
BA LLB LLD (he)

Stephen Koseff (55)
BCom CA(5A) H Dip BDP MBA

Sam R Leon (57}
BA LLB (London)

David M Nurek (57)
Oip Law Dip Advanced Company taw

Norbet L Sasse (42)
BCom (Hons) CA(5A)

Ronnie Sevitz {63)

~  Resigned | Apri 2007
" Resigned 18 January 2007




Investec Bank (Maurrtius) Ltd

A subsidiary of Investec Bank Ltd

Hugh 5 Herman (66)
BA LLB LLD (he)
Non-Executve Chairman

Pierre de Chasteigner du Mee (54}
ACEA FBIM FMAAT

Angehique A Desvaux de Marigny (31)
LLB Barrister-at-Law
Mantrise en Droit (Unwersite de Pans |-Panthéon - Sorbonne)

David M Lawrence (56)
BA(Econ) (Hons) MCom

Craig C McKenzie (46)
BSc MSc CFA

Peter RS Thomas (62}
CA (5A)

David M van der Walt (42)
BCom (Hons) CA {5A}

Investec Bank (UK) Limited

A subsidiary of Investec plc

Hugh § Herman (66)
BA LLB LLD {hc)
Non-Executive Chairman

Bradley Fried (41)
BCom CA(5A) MBA
Chieft Executrve Officer

George F O Alford (58)
B3¢ {Econ) FCIS FIPD MSI

Bernard Kantor (57)
CTA

lan R Kantor (60)
BSc(Eng) MBA

Sir Chips Keswick (67)

Stephen Koseff (55)
BCom CA(SA) H Dip BDP MBA

Alan Tapnack (60)
BCom CA(SA)

David M van der Walt (42)
BCom (Hons) CA (SA)

lan R Wohlman (52)
ACIB
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Additional information

Investec Asset Management

Limted

A subsidiary of Investec plc

Hugh S Herman (66)
BA LLB LLD {he)
Non-Executive Chairman

Hendrik J du Toit (45)

BCom {Hons, cum laude) MCom {cum laude) MPht

(Cambridge)
Chief £xecutive Officer

David Aird (39)

Domenico Ferrimi (38}
BCom

Howard Fhght (58)
MA MBA

Bernard Kantor (57}

Stephen Koseff (55)
BCom CA(SA) H Dip 8DP MBA

Kim M McFarland (42)
BAcc CA(SA) MBA

Mark | Samuelson (42)
BCom CFA

Phihp Saunders (49)
MA (Hons)

Bradley Tapnack (60)
BCom CA (SA)

investec Bank (Australia) Limrted

A subsidiary of Investec Bank (UK)
Limited

David M Gonski (53)
BCom LEB
Non-Executive Chairman

Geoffrey Levy (48}
BCom LLB FFIN
Chairman

Brian M Schwartz (54)
FCA
Chiefl Executive Officer

Alan H Chonowatz (52)
BAcc MCom CA{SA)

Stephen Koseff (55)
BCom CA(5A) H Dip BDF M3A

Richard A Longes {6!)
BA LLB MBA

Robert C Mansfield (55)
BCom FCPA

John W Murphy (54)
BCom MCom ACAFASA

Kathryn Spargo (55)
BA LLB {(Hons)

Bradley Tapnack (60)
BCom CA{SA)

Peter RS Thomas (62)
CA(SA)




Directors’ report

Business review

investec 1s an international specialist banking group that prowides a diverse range of financial products and services to a niche chent
base in three principal markets, the UK, South Africa and Australia as well as certain other markets Investec 1s organmised into five
orincipal business dvisions Private Clent Actvities, Caprtal Markets lnvestment Banking, Asset Management and Property Activities In
additien our head office provides certan group-wide Integrating funcions such as Risk Management, Information Technology, Finance
Investor Reiations, Marketing Human Resources and Organisational Development It 15 also responsible for the group's centra funding
as well as other activities, such as trade finance

The operating financial review on pages é to 8 provides an overview of the group's strategic position performance during the financial
year and outlook for the business It should be read :n conjunction with the sections on pages 9 to 152 which elaborate on the aspects
highlighted in this review

The direciors' report deals with the requirements of the combined consofidated Investec group, compnising the legal entilies Investec
plc and Investec Limited

Authorised and i1ssued share capital

Investec pl¢ and Investec Limited

Detalls of the share capilal are set out in note 3| to the financial statements

Investec plc

The ordinary shares and the special converlible preference shares were subdivided on a 5 for | basis on 4 September 2006

During the year the following shares were issued

« 5700 000 preference shares on 22 February 2007 at 887 pence per share
+ 9 38| 149 preference shares on 3 August 2006 at 859 pence per share

+ 2613 835 ordinary shares on 22 February 2007 at 640 pence per share

» 1830 642 ordinary shares on 23 November 2006 at 209 pence per share
+ 800000 ordinary shares on 23 july 2006 at | 054 pence per share

Investec Limited

The ordinary shares, class ' A” variable rale compulsory convertible preference shares and the special convertible preference shares
were subdivided on a 5 for | basis on 4 September 2006

Duning the year the following shares were issued

+ | 100 000 ordina: y shares on 4 July 2006 at Ri64 50 per share (this occurred prior to the 5 for | share spitt)

+ 2173 785 ordinar y shares on 20 November 2006 at R3] 94 per share (this occurred after the 5 for | share spht)

+ 800 000 special convertible redeemable preference shares on 4 July 2006 at RO 001 per share (ths occurred pror to the 5 for |
share spht})

« | B30 642 special convertible redeemable preference shares on 20 November 2006 at R0 0002 per share (this occurred after the
5 for ¥ share spht)

+ 2613 835 specal converlble redeemable preflerence shares on 19 February 2007 at RC0002 per share (this occurred afler the
5 for | share split)

Financial results

The combined resuts of Investec plc and Investec Linuted are set out in the financial statements and accompanying notes for the year

ended 3| March 2007
Ordinary dividends

Investec plc

An interirn dividend was declared to shareholders as follows
+ 10 pence per ordinary share to non-South African resident shareholders (2006 7 6 pence) registered on |5 December 2006

Financral stacements (Investec plc and Investec Limited)
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+  to South African resident shareholders registered on |5 December 2006, a dvidend paid by Investec Limited on the SA DAS share,
equivalent to 5 pence per ordinary share and 5 pence per ordinary share paid by Investec plc

The dividends were paid on 22 December 2006

The directors have proposed a final dividend to shareholders regstered on 27 July 2007, which 1s subject to the approval of the
merbers of Investec plc at the Annual General Meeting which 1s scheduled to take place on 8 August 2007 and, If approved, wili be
paid on |3 August 2007

Shareholders in Investec plc will receve a distnbutron of 13 pence (2006 106 pence) per ordinary share
Investec Limited

An interim dwidend of | 38 cenits per ordinary share (2005 89 2 cents) was declared to shareholders registered on |5 December 2006
and was paid on 22 December 2006

The directors have proposed a final dividend of 180 cents per ordinary share (2006 1254 cents) to shareholders regstered on
27 July 2007 to be pard on |3 August 2007 The final dvsdend 1s subject to the approval of members of lnvestec Limited at the Annual
General Meeting scheduled for 8 August 2007

The holders of 3 700 000 Investec Limited shares have agreed to waive their rights 1o the proposed final dividend

Preference dividends

Investec plc

Non-redeemable non-cumulative non-participating preference shares

Preference divedend number | for the period 3 August 2006 to 30 September 2006, amounting to 9 3 pence per share, was declared
to members holding preference shares regstered on 8 December 2006 and was paid on | | December 2006

Preference dividend number 2 was declared amounting to

() 302 pence per share for the period | October 2006 to 31 March 2007 n respect of the preference shares Lrading on the JSE
Limited ( JSE”) (iSIN GBOOBI9RX541)

(1) 651 pence per share in respect of the further tranche of preference shares sssued on 22 February 2007 in respect of the period
22 February 2007 to 31 March 2007 (ISIN GBCOBIN73946) and trading on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange ("CISX)

Preference dimdend number 2 will be paid to holders of the non-redeemable non-cumulatve non-participating preference shares as
recotded in the books of the company at the close of business on 29 June 2007 on 4 July 2007

Preferred securities

The second annuat distrbution, fixed at 7075 per cent on the @200 milion fixed/floating rate, guaranteed non-voting non-cumulative
perpetual preferred callable securities 1ssued by Investec Tier | (UK) LP on the 24 June 2005, 1s due on 24 June 2007 and will be paid
on the next business day, the 25 June 2007

Investec Limited

Non-redeemable non-cumulative non-participating preference shares

Preference dmidend number 4 for the peried | April 2006 to 30 September 2006 amounting to 385 cents per share was declared to
member s holding preference shares registered on 8 December 2006 and was paid on | | December 2006

N

Preference dvidend number 5 for the period | October 2006 to 31 March 2007 amounting to 428 44 cents per share was declared
to members hoiding preference shares regstered on 29 June 2006 and will be pad on 4 july 2006

Redeemable cumulative preference shares

Dwvidends amounting to R32 452 219 18 were paid on the redeemable cumulative preference shares




Directors and secretaries

Details of directors ang secretaries of Investec ple and Investec Limited are reflected on pages 145 to 148 and at the beginning of the
Annuaf Report.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Messrs SE Abrahams, GFO Afford, GR Burger, HS Herman, DE Jowell, IR Kantor,
ATapnack, PRS Thamas and FTiti retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, but being ehgible, offer themsetves for
re-election

Directors and their interests

Directors’ shareholdings and options to acquire shares are set out on pages 132 to 138

The register of directors’ interests contains full detaiis of directors' shareholdings and options to acquire shares

Share incentive trusts

Details regarding options granted during the year are set out on pages 184 and 185

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprising non-executive diectors meets regularty with senicr management, the external auditors, Operational
Rusk, Internal Audit, Group Compliance and the group's Finance division to constder the nature and scope of the audit reviews and the
effectiveness of the group's risk and control systems Further details on the role and responsibility of the Audit Committee are set out
on page |13

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP and Ernst & Young Inc have mdicated ther willingness to continue 1n office as auditors of Investec plc and Investec
Limited respectively A resolution to reappoint them as auditons will be proposed at the next Annual General Meeting scheduled to
take place on 8 August 2007

Contracts

Refer to page 124 for detalls of contracts with directors

Subsidiary and associated companies

Detals of principal subsidiary and asscciated companies are reflected on pages 228 and 2129

Major shareholders

The largest beneficial shareholders of Investec plc and Investec Limited are reflected on page 142

Special resolutions

Investec plc

At the Annual General Meeting held on 10 August 2006 special resolutions were passed in terms of which

= a renewable authority was granted to Investec plc to acquire its own shares i terms of Section 166 of the Companies Act 1985

» & renewable authonty was granted to Investec plc to allot equity securtties of the Company for cash without application of the
pre-emption rights provided by section 8% of the UK Comparues Act, {985

= An authority was granted 1o Investec plc that each ordinary share and special converting share be subdivided iInto 5 ordinary shares
and 5 special converting shares, respectively

*  valous amendments were made to the Articles of Association to reflect the changes to Lhe share capiial of Investec plc following
the subdiision of the Investec plc ardinary shares and 1he special converung shares

Finanaial statements (Investec plc and Investec Limited)
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Investec Limited

At the Annuat General Meeting held on 10 August 2006, the lollowing special resolutions were passed in terms of which

« a renewable authority was granted to Investec Limited and 1its subsidiaries to acquire its own shares in terms of Section 85 and 89
of the South African Companes Act No 61 of 1973

+ authonty was granted to Investec Limited that each ordinary share each class A varable rate compulsory convertble non-
cumutative preference share and each special converubfe redeemable preference share be subdvided on a 5 for | basis

+ Amendments were made to the Memorandum of Association to reflect the subdivision of the above mentioned shares in the
authenised share capital of the company

Accounting policies and disclosure

Accounting policies are set having regard to commeraal practice and comply with applicable United Kingdom and South Afnican law
and International Financial Reparting Standards These policies are set out on pages 165 to 173

Creditor payment policy

The group's standard practice is to agree the terms of payment with suppliers at the time of contract and make payments within the
agreed credit terms subject to satisfactory performance

Employees

The group's policy t5 1o recruit and promote on the basis of aptitude and abiiity without discnmination of any kind Appiications for
employment by disabled people are always considered bearing in mind the qualfications and abiities of the applicants In the event of
employees becoming disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure therr continued employment The group’s policy 1s to adoept an open
management style, thereby encouraging informal consultation at all levels about aspects of the group's operations, and motivating stafl
involvernent in the group's performance by means of Employee Share Schemes

Donations

During the year Investec plc made donations for charitable purposes totalling £893 067 and Investec Limited made donations for
chantable purposes 1otalling £1 781 971 During the year the group made donations of £4 048 to political parties outside the European
Union

Environment

The group 15 committed 1o pursuing sound environmental policies in all aspects of its business and seeks to encourage and promote
good environmental practice among its employees and within the community in which it operates Further infermation on the group's
sustanatility practices can be found on pages |39 and 140 and on our website

Subsequent events

Refer 10 page 423

S

David Miller Benita Coetsee
Company Secretary Company Secretary
Investec plic Investec Limited

IS June 2007




Directors’ responsibility statement

The following statement which should be read in conjunction with the auditors’ report set out on page |58 to 160, 1s made with a
view 10 distinguishing for stakeholders the respective responsibihities of the directors and of the auditors in relation to the combined
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the combined consolidated financial statemments that fairly
present the state of affars of the company and the group at the end of the financial year and the net income and cash flows for the
year. and other information contained In thes report

To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities

* The board and management set standards and management )mplements systerns of internal contrels and accounting and
information systems amed at providing reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and the nsk of fraud error or loss 15
reduced in a cost effective manner These controls, contained in estabished policies and procedures include the proper delegation
of responsibilities and authorities within a clearly defined framework, effecuve accounting procedures and adequate segregation of
duties,

» The group's internal audrt functon which operates unimpeded and ndependently from operational management and has
unrestricted access to the group Audit Committee apprasses and when necessary, recommends improvements in the system of
internal controls and accounting pracuces, based on audit plans that take cognisance of the relative degrees of nsk of each function
or aspect of the business, and

»  The group Audit Commutiee together with the nternal audit department plays an integral role in matters refating 1o financial and
mternal control, accounting policies, reperting and disclasure

To the best of our knowledge and beliefl based on the above, the directors are satisfied that no material breakdown in the operation
of the system of internal control and procedures has occurred during the year under review

The group consistently adopts approprate and recognised accounting policies and these are supported by reasonable judgements and
estmates on a consistent basis and provides additional disclosures when comphance with the speafic requirements in (FRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions other events and condiions on the group’s financial
position and financial performance

The financial statements of the company and the group have been prepared in accordance with the respective Companies Acts of the
United Kingdom and South Africa comply with Internauonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS) and Article 4 of the |AS regulation

The directors are of the opimon based on their knowledge of the company key processes in operation and speciic enquiries, that
adequate resources exist to support the company en a going concern basis over the next year These financial statements have been
prepared on that basis

It 1s the responsibiity of the independent auditors 10 report on the combined consalidated finanaial statements Their report to the
members of the company and group (s set out on page 158 of this report

Approval of financial statements

The director's report and the financrat statements of the company and the group which appears on pages 153 to 157 and pages 161
ta 235 were approved by the board of directors on 15 june 2007

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corperate and financal information included on the companies
website legisiaton in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the financial statements may differ from
legislation in other purisdictions

Signed on behalf of the board

Bernard Kantor
Managing Director

IS june 2007
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Investec plc

We have audited the group financial statements {the “financial statements™) of investec plc for the year ended
31 March 2007 which compnise the combimed consohdated income statement, combined consolidated and parent company balance
sheets, combined consolidated cash flow statement, the combined consolidated staterment of total recognised income and expense
and the related notes | to 44 These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein 'We have
also audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 15 descnbed as having been audited

This report 15 made solely to the company's members as a body, n accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditors' report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a bady, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and audrtors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accerdance with applicable United
Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Urnion, and for prepanng the parent
company financial statements and the Directors' Remuneration Report in accordance wrth applicable Unred Kingdom faw and
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Dwectors'
Responsibilities

Qur responsibility 1s to audit the financal statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financal statements give a true and far view and whether the financial statements
and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, In addition, the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Article 4 of the IAS Regulaton We
also report to you whether 1n our opinion the information given in the directors' report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you if 10 cur opimon, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or If Information specified by 'aw regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disctosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Ruies of the Finantial Services Authority and we report if it does not We are
not required to consider whether the board's statements on internal control cover all nsks and controls or form an opimon on the
effectiveness of the group's corporate governance procedures or its nsk and control procedures

We read cther information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s cansistent with the audited financial staterments
The other information comprises only the Director's Report, the unaudited part of the Directors’ Remuneraton Report, the
Chairman's Statement, the Operating and Finanoal Review and the Corporate Governance Statement We consider the implhications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or materal inconsistencies with the financial statements Qur
responsibiliies do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices
Board An audit includes examination on a test basis, of evidence relevant tc the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited R also includes an assessment of the significant esumates and
judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate
1o the group's and company's arcumstances, consistently appled and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audtt so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order o
provide us with suficent evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration Report to be audited are free from materal misstatement whether caused by fraud or other iregularity or error In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited




Opinion ,

In our opinon

*+ the group financral statements give a true and farr wiew, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union of the state
of the group's affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of ts profit for the year then ended,

+ the group financsal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation,

* the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice of the state of the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2007

* the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been propery
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

* the nformation given in the directors' report 1s conststent with the financial statements

Separate opinion In relation to IFRSs

As explained in the accounting policies of the group financial statements, the group in addrition to complying with s legal obligation to
comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the IFRSs as issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board

Financial sratements (Investec plc and Investec Limited)

In our opimion the group financial statements give a true and fair view In accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the group’s affairs as
at 31 March 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended

E.N\iiw ‘/owB L_l_?

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered audritor
London
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15 June 2007

Notes

I The maintenance and integnty of the Investec plc web site 15 the responsibility of the directors, the work carred out by the audrtors
does not nvolve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the financal statements since they were initizlly presented on the website

2 Lepslation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions




independent auditors’ report to the members of Investec Limited

We have audued the moup annuat inancal statements of Iinestec Limited ahich compree tne directors’ report, the cansolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2007, the consolidated income statement. the consolidated staterment of 1otal recogmsed income and
expenses and consohdated cash flow staterrent for the year then ended, a sumimary of significant accounting palicies and otner
explanatory rotes as se1 out on pages 153 ta 229 and the parent company annual financial s:atements of Investec Limited, which
compnse the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007 the income statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
a summary of sigrificant accounting pohaies, and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 232 to 235

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements

The company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the South Afiican Comparies Act of 1973 This responsibility
includes desigming, unplementing and mamtaining internal control relevant to the preparation and far presentation of financsal
statements that are free flrom matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applyng appropnate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the citumstances

Audrtor's responstbility

Qur responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing Those standards require that we comply vath ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financal statements are free from material rrisstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit e adence about the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, incluging the assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial
statermnents, whetner due to fraud o error In malung those nsk assessments the auditor considers internal control relesant to the
entity's preparation and far presentauon of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are dppiopnate in the
cucumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opruion on the effectineness of the entit/'s internal controt An audit also
ncludes evaluaung the appropriatenass of accounung policies used and the reasonableness of accountung estmaies inade by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financal statements

We beheve that the audit ewdence ae have obtained is suffic ent and apgroprate to provide a basis for owr audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinien, the financial statemeants present fairly in all matenal respects, the finanaial position of the group and the company as of
31 March 2007 ard of the finangial performance nd its cash flows for the sear then ended in accordance with Internatonal Finanaial
Repor ting Standards, and 1n the manner required by the South Afncan Companies Act of 1973

QM’( émg &\L

Ernsc & Young Inc
Registered Auditors
Johannesburg

|5 June 2007




Combined consolidated iIncome statement

For the year to 31 March Notes 2007 2006
£'000
Interest recewable | 233 226 934 389
Interest payable (889 311)] (675 237)
Net interest income 343 915 259 152
Fees and commissions recewable 577773 478 465
Fees and commissions payable (56 275) (41 591)
Principal transactions 3 245 463 246 059
Operating income (rom associates 17 10 685 6 694
Investment income on assurance activities 25 36 821 141 559
Premiums and reinsurance recoveries on insurance contracts 25 BO 542 164 631
Other operating ncome 4 49 685 2721
Other income 944 694 998 538
Claims and reinsurance premiums on Insurance business 25 (1114923 (293 135)
Total operating income net of insurance clams L7717 964 555
impairment losses on loans and advances 16 {16 530) (9 160)
Operating income | 160 587 955 395
Administrative expenses 5 (680 687)| (558 887)
Depreciation amortsation and impairment of property, equipment and intangibles 20123 (13 315) (7 741)
Operating profit before goodwill 466 585 l88 767
Goodwill 22 2 569 (21 356)
Cperaung profit 46% 154 367 411
Profit on disposal of group operations 24 - 73573
Profit before taxation 469 |54 440 984
Taxation 7 (119 781) (111 618)
Profit after taxation 349 373 329 368
Earmings attributable to minarity shareholders 9 054 4267
Earmings attributable to shareholders 340 319 315 101
349 373 329 368
Earmings per share (pence)
- Basic 8 547 538
- Diluted 8 504 500
Dividends per share (pence)
- interim 9 G0 76
- Final 9 130 106

Financial statements (Investec plc and Investec Limited)
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Combined consolidated statement of total recognised income and
expenses
For the year to 3} March Notes 2007 2006
£'000
Profit after taxation 349 373 329 368
Total gans and losses recogrised directly in equity {175 030} 63 079
Far value movements on avalable for sale assets 12 287 8 480
Foreign currency movements {184 847) 52 564
Pension fund actuanal (losses)/gains 29 (2 470} 2035
Total recognised income and expenses 174 343 392 447
Total recognised mcome and expenses attributable 1o minority shareholders (29 931) 23 851
Total recognised income and expenses attributable to ordinary shareholders 256 964 350 023
Total recognised income and expenses attributable to perpetual preferred securities (52 690) 18 563
174 343 392 447




Combined consolidated balance sheet

At 31 March Notes 2007 2006
£'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 102 751 190 838
t.oans and advances to banks 2476965 | 830603
Cash equivalent advances to customers 687 918 690 236
Reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securtties borrowed 2185322 756 645
Trading securities 13 2151 036 1640088
Derwative financal instruments 14 724 492 08I 287
Investment securities 15 | 776 601 | 266 673
Loans and advances to customers 16 10 190 252 | 9 604 589
Interests in assocated undertakings 17 70332 63 099
Deferred taxation assets I8 59 394 60 035
Other assets 19 | 408 59 | 272 787
Property and equipment 20 131 505 26 %16
Investment properties 21 85 424 163 049
Goodwill 22 195 883 183 560
Intangible assets 23 35 829 10 094
22 281 867 | 18 840 499
Finanicial instruments at fair value through income In respect of
labilities 1o customers 25 30249971 3628574
assets related to reinsurance contracts 25 992824 | 1431 874
26 299 688 | 23 900 949
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 2347095 | | 879483
Dernative financal instruments |4 50% 219 705 764
Other trading habilities 256 321 863 457 254
Repurchase agreements and cash collateral on secunities lent i 765 671 358 278
Customer accounts 2384848 | 8699 145
Debt securities in issue 27 3333716 2950103
Current taxation habilities 143 967 137 426
Deferred taxation labilities I8 48 048 26 210
Other habitities 28 | 790 405 | 582 856
Pension fund labilities 29 | 467 2013
19616959 | 16 798 552
Liabilit:es to customers under investment contracts 25 3004 254 | 3488 /56
Insurance labilities including unit-linked liabilties 25 20743 139 818
Reinsured habihties 25 992 824 | | 431 876
23 4634 820 | 21 859 002
Subordinated liabilities (including convertible debt) 30 830 705 529 854
24 465 525 | 22 388 856
Equity
Called up share caprtal 1731 169 165
Share premium I b 129859 | 028737
Treasury shares 32 (109 279) (96 300}
Equity portion of conwertible debentures | 2191 2191
Perpetual preference shares 1433 292 173 215 305
Chher reserves 1 134 606 |56 103
Profit and loss account I 92 766 (79 709)
Shareholders' equity excluding minarity interests | 542485 | | 226 492
Minonty interests 1134 291 678 285 601
- Perpetual preferred secunties issued by subsidiaries 241 081 278 459
- Minonity interests in partially held subsidianes 50 597 7 142
Total equity | 834 1631 512093
Total labhities and shareholders' equity 26 299 688 | 23 900 949
The durechord’ Mpmﬂd e accounts on 15 June 2007
ML
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Combined consolidated cash flow statement

For the year to 31 March Notes 2007 2006
£'000

Operating profit adjusted for non cash items 36 524 434 419 650
Taxation pard (122 881} (50 104)
Increase in operating assets (6 125 514} {2 950 085)
Increase in operating fabilities 5858320 | 2749528
Net cash inflow from operating activities 134 359 l6B 989
Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries 24 (15140 (102 600)
Cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries 24 - (364 970)
Cash flow on acquisition and disposal of property equipment and intangibles (27 583) {5589
Net cash outflow from Investing actvities (178 985)] (473 159)
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders {112 592) (84 435)
Dmdends paid 10 other equity holders (38 649) (19 940)
Proceeds on 1ssue of shares net of issue costs 90 980 12557
Proceeds on issue of other equity instruments* 151 903 132 520
Net inflow/{outflow) on subardinated debt raised/(repaid) 338 829 (2 626)
Net cash inflow from financing actvities 430 471 38 076
Effects of exchange rales on cash and cash equivalents (301 588) 73721
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 84 257 (192 373)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year | 190 183 | | 382 556
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1274440 | | 190 183
Cash and cash equivalents is defined as including

Cash and balances at central banks 102 751 190 838
On demand loans and advances to banks 483 771 309 109
Cash equivalent advances to customers 687 918 690 236
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year | 274 440 | 1 190 183

* includes equity instruments issued by subsidiaries

Note
{cash and cash equvalents have a matunty profile of less than three months)




Accounting policies

Basis of presentation

The group financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™), as adopted for
use by the European Umion (' EU”) IFRSs as endorsed by the EU are identical to current IFRSs except for the EL's amendment to IAS
39, under which the apphcation of hedge accounting requirements have been smphfied The group has elected not to apply the
amendments as adopted by the EU thus applying the more restrictive requirements under 1AS39

Accounting polices apphed are consistent with those of the pnor year

Basis of consolidation

Investec consists of two separate legal entities, being Investec plc and Investec Limited, that operate under a dual listed company
( DLC ) structure The effect of the DLC structure 15 that Investec plc and its subsidanes and Investec Limited and its subsidiaries
operate together as a single economic entity, with neither assuming a dominant role and accordingly are reported as a single reporting
entity under IFRS

All subsidiaries in which the group holds more than one half of the voting nghts or over which it has the abihty to control are
consolidated from the effective dates of acquisition (that is from when control exists) and up 1o the effeclive dates of loss of contral,
except entities which are classified as non-current assets held for sale Subsidianies classified as non-current assets held for sale are
consohdated as discontinued operations

Entities, other than subsidiary undertakings, n which the group exercises significant influence over operating and financial policies are
treated as associates In the group accounts, associates are accounted for using the equity method from the date that sigrificant
influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases except as noted below

The combined consolidated financial statements include the attributable share of the results and reserves of associated undertakings
The group's interests in associated undertakings are included in the consolidated balance sheet at the group's share of net assets of
the associate plus goodwill arising on acquisition less any impairment recognised

In arcumstances where associates or joint venture holdings arise in which the group has no strategic intention these investments are
classified as “'venture capital” holdings and are designated as held at far value through profit and loss

All intergroup balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses within the group are eliminated to the extent that they do not
reflect an impairment to the asset

Segmental reporting

A segment 15 a distinguishable component of the group engaged In providing products or services within a particular economic
environment which ts subject 1o risks and rewaras that are distinguishable from those of other segments

The group's primary segmental reporting 1s presented m the form of a business analysis (primary segment)
The business analysis 15 presented in terms of the group's five principal busimess disions and Group Services and Other Activiuies

A geographical analysis 1s presented in terms of the main geographies in which the group operates representing the group's exposure
to various economic environments

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the net excess of the purchase consideration over the farr value of net wlentfizble assets of entities acquired
Goodwill 15 capialised and tested for impairment at balance sheet dates or when there 1s an indication of imparment. Goodwill 1s
allocated to cash generating units for the purposes of testing impairment based on the synergies expected in the business combination,
with any impairments arising being recognised immediately in the ncome statement. Impairments recognised are not reversed n
subsequent penods
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Accounting policies (continued)

in circumstances where the group acquires an interest in the net farr value of the acquiree’s dentifiable assets, habilities and contingent
habhues over the cost of the acquisition, the group reassess the identfication and measurement of all assets and habihties (including
contingent habilities) following which any remaining excess 1s recogrused immediately in profit and loss

Goodwill arnising 15 denominated in the functional currency of the foreign operation and 1s translated to the presentation currency of
the group (pound sterling) at the apphcable closing rate

Share based payments to employees

The group engages in equity settled share-based payments and in certan limied circumstances cash-settled share-based payments in
respect of services recewed from employees

The farr value of the services received In respect of equily settled share-based payments 15 determined by reference to the far value
of the shares or share options on the dale of grant to the employee The cost of the share based payment 15 recogrised over the
vesting period of the grant In the income statement on a straght-line basis based on an estimate of the amount of mstruments that
will eventually vest

A lability and expense in respect of cash settled share based payments 1s recognised over the vesting penod of the grant in the income
statement on a straight-line basis, based on the far value of the instrument that will eventually vest The habiity 15 recognised at the
current fair value at each balance sheet date based on an estimate of the number of instruments that will eventually vest Subsequent
to vestung the hability 1s measured at fair value, with gains and losses recognised in the profit and loss account until such time as the
hability 1s settled

Farr value measurements are based on option pricing models, taking inte account the risk-free interest rate, volatility of the underltying
equity instrument expected dwvidends and current share prices

Foreign currency transactions and foreign operations

The presentation currency of the group is sterfing being the functional currency of Investec plc The functional currency of investec
Limited 15 South African Rand

Foreign operations are subsidiaries, associales, joint ventures or branches of the group, the activities of which are based in a functicnal
currency other than that of the reportng entity The functional currency of group entities 1s determned based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates

On consolidation, the results and financial position of foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the group as

follows

« assets and labilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet

+ income and expense ttems are translated at exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction

«  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in equity (foreign currency transfation reserve), which 1s recogrised in profit and
loss on disposal of the foreign operation

+ cash flow items are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction

Foreign currency transactions are iranslated into the functional currency of the entity n which the transaction anses based on rates of

exchange rulng at the date of the transaction At each balance sheet date foreign currency items are translated as fotlows

+  foreign currency monetary tems (other than manetary items that form part of the net mvestment in a foreign operation) are
translated using closing rates, with gans and losses recognised n profit and loss

¢+ exchange differences ansing on monetary items that form part of the net investment in a foreign operation are determined using
closing rates and recognised as a separate component of equity (foreign currency translation reserve) upon conschdation, and 1s
recognised In the income statement upon disposal of the net Investment

*  npon-monetary rtems that are measured at historical costs are translated using the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction




Revenue recognition

Interest income 1s recognised In the income statement using the effective inierest method Fees charged on lending transactions are
included in the effective yeld cakulation to the extent that they form an integral part of the effective interest yield, but excludes those
fees earned for a separately identifiable significant act. which are recognised upen completion of the act Fees and commissions charged
in heu of nterest are recogmsed as income as part of the effective interest rate on the undertying loan

The effective interest method 15 based on the estimated lfe of the underlying instrument, and, where this esimate 15 not readily
avallable, the contractual life

Commissions and fees include fees earned from providing advisory services as well as partiolio management. All such commussions and
fees are recognised as revenue when the related services are performed Fees and commussion incame are only recognised when they
can be estimated reliably

Principal transaction income includes trading profits gains and losses on financial assets and habilities designated as held at far value
and far value gains and losses on investment properties

Trading profits are shown net of the funding cost of the underlying posiions and includes the unrealised profits on trading portiolios
which are marked to market daity Equity nvestments receved in keu of corporate finance fees are included n trading secunties and
valued accordingly Trading profits gross of funding costs are disclosed in note 3

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are inialty recogrused at their fan value plus in the case of financial assets or financial habiliies not at fair value
through profit and loss, transaction costs that are drectly attributable to the acquisiion or 1ssue of the financal assets or financwal
habilities

Regular way purchase and sales transactions in respect of financial assets that require defivery of a financial instrument within the tme
frame established by market convention are recorded at trade date

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss

Financiat instruments held at far value through profit and loss include all instruments classified as held as trading and those nstruments
designated as held at far value through profit and loss

Financial instruments classified as held for trading or designated as heid at far value through profit and loss are recorded at far vatue
on the balance sheet with changes 1n fair value recognised in the income statement Financeal instruments are classified as trading when
they are held with the intention of short-term disposa! held with the intention of generaung short-term profits, or are dervatives which
are not designated as part of effective hedges Financial instruments designated as beld at far value through profii and loss are
designated as such on mitial recognition of the instrument and remain in this classification untl derecogniion  In certain instances debt
instruments which contain equity features are designated as held at far value through profit and loss

Finanaial assets and habilities are designated as held at fair value through profit and foss only «f

» it elminates or significantly reduces an inconsisient measurement or recognisen that would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or habihties or recogrising the gains and losses on them on different bases or

+  agroup of financial assets financial habilties or both 1s managed and its performance 1s evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group 15 prowided internally on that basis
to the group's key management personnel, and

= if a contract contains one or more embedded dernatives (which significantly modifies the cash flows that would be required by
the contract and is not clearly prohibited from separation from the host contract) and the group has designated the entire hybrid
contract as a financial instrument at far value through profit and loss

Held-to-maturity assets

Held to matunty asseis are non-derivatve financial sastruments with fixed or determinable payments and matunty dates Financial
assets that the group has the positive intent and abifity to hold to matunty are classified as held-to-maturity and are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment losses
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Accounting policies (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are non-derrvative financial assets with fixed or detersrunable payments that are not quoted i an active market

and exclude the following

* those thal the group ntends to trade n, which are classified as held for trading, and those that the group designates as held at far
value through profit and loss

*+ those that the group designates as avallable for sale

« those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its inital imvestment, other than because of credit deteroration
which are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss

Loans and recevables are measured at amorused cost, using the effective interest method, less imparment losses subsequent to mitial
recogniiion

Available for sale assets

Financral assets classified as avalable for sale are measured at far value on the balance sheet, with unrealised gains and losses recognised
in equity Realised gains and losses are recognised i income in the peried in which the asset 15 realised

If an available for sale instrument 1s determined Lo be impaired, the respective cumulative unrealised losses previously recogrised 1n
equity are included in the income statement in the period in which the impairment s 1dentified

Imparments on avadable for sale equity instrurnents are not reversed once recognised in the ncome statement.

Financial habilities

Financial labiliies are classified as non-trading, held for trading or designated as held at fair value through profit and loss
Non-trading habiliies are recorded at amortised cost applying the effective interest method
Held for trading liabilities or liabifiies designated as held at fair value through profit and loss, are accounted for as mdicated above

Valuation of financial instruments

The following financial insiruments are held at fair value

+  Fixed maturity secunities classified as trading held at far value through profit or loss and avalable for sale
+  Equity securities

*  Prate equity investments

»  Denvative posiions

+  Loans and advances designated as held at far value through profit and lossfavallable for sale

+  Financial habilities classified as trading or designated as held at far value through profit and loss

Where available, markel prices provide the best basis of fair value Where market prices are not available the far value s determined
by discounting the expected cash flows using market interest rates taking into account the credit quality and duration of the investment.
In certain instances model pricing may be used to determine far values For private equity investments that are net publicly traded,
management uses comparisans to simidar companies relevant third party arm's length transacttons and other information specific to
the investment




Impairments of financial assets held at amortised cost

Financial assets carried at amortised cost are imparred 1f there 15 objective evidence that the group would nol recerve cash flows
according to the ornginal contractual terms Financial assets are assessed for objective evidence of imparment at least at each balance
sheet reporting date The test for imparrment 15 based either on specific financial assets or collectvely on a portfoho of similar,
homogeneous assets Imparments are credited aganst the carrying value of financial assets The imparment 1s calculated as the
difference between the carrying value of the asset and the expected cash flows discounted at the ongnal effective rate An allowance
for impairment 1s only reversed when there ts objective endence that the credit quality has improved to the extent that there s
reasonable assurance of umely collectson of principal and interest in terms of the onginal contractual agreement Assets specifically
wdentified as tmpaired are removed from the portfolio assessment

To cater for any shortfall between regulatory provision requiremnents (in the respectve jursdictions) and impairments based on the
principles above, a transfer 1s made from distributable to non distrbutable reserves being the regulatory general nisk reserve The nen
distributable regulatory prowsion reserve ensures that minimum regulatory provisioning requirements are maintained

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset or a portien thereof, s derecognised when the group’s nghts to cash flows have expired, or when the group has
transferred its rights to cash flows relating to the financial assets, including the transfer of substanually atl the risk and rewards associated
with the financial assets or when control over the financial assets has passed

A financial hability 15 derecogmised when it 15 extinguished that 15 when the obligation 15 discharged cancelled or has expired

Derivative instruments

All derivative instruments of the group are recorded on balance sheet at fair value Positive and negative farr values are reported as
assets and liabilities respectively and are offset when there 15 both an intenuion to settle net and a legal nght to offset exists

Denvative positions are entered into either for trading purposes or as part of the group's asset and lability management activities to
manage exposures lo interesl rale and foreign currency risks Both realised and unrealsed profits and losses ansing on dervatives are
recognised n the mcome statement as part of trading income (other than arcumstances n which cash flow hedging 1s appled as
detailed below)

Hedge accounting

The group applies either fair value or cash flow hedge accounting when the transactions meet the specified hedge accounting criteria

To qualfy for hedge accounting treatment the group ensures that all of the following condrions are met.

* At inception of the hedge the group formally documents the relationship between the hedging instrument(s) and hedged rtem(s)
including the risk management objectives and the strategy i undertaking the hedge transaction

= The hedge 1s expected to be highly effective n achweving offsetting changes in fair value or cash dows atiributable to the hedged
risk, consistent with the oniginally documented nsk management strategy for that particular hedging relationship

+ For cash flow hedges a forecasted transaction that i1s the subject of the hedge must be highly probable and must present an
exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultmately affect profit and loss

= The effectiveness of the hedge can be rehably measured, 1e the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item that are attributable
to the hedged risk and the farr value of the hedging mstrument can be relably measured

+  The hedge effectveness 1s assessed on an ongotng basis and determined actually to have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting pericds for which the hedge was designated

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when it is determined that the instrument ceases to be highly effectrve as a hedge the hedging
Instrument expires, or 15 soid, terminated or exercised when the hedged item matures or s sold or repaid or when a forecasted
transaction 1s no longer deemed highly probable

For qualfying farr value hedges, the change 1n far value of the hedging nstrument 1s recognised in the income statement Changes in
fair value of the hedged item that 1s attributable to the hedged risk are also recognised in the mcome statement

For qualfying cash flow hedges in respect of non-financial assets and labilities the change in fair value of the hedging instrument 15
inially recognised in equity and 1s released to the initial cost of any asset/hability recognised or in all other cases, to the income
statement when the hedged firm commitment or forecasted transaction affects net profit
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Accounting policies {continued)

For qualifying cash flow hedges in respect of financial assets and lrabilities, the change n far value of the hedging instrument, which
represents an effective hedge, 1s initalfy recogrised in equity and is released to the income statement in the same perod duning which
the relevant financial asset or habilty affects profit or loss Any neffective portion of the hedge 15 immediately recogmised in profit and
loss

Derwative instruments transacted as economic hedges but which do not qualify for hedge accounting and derivatives that are entered
into for trading purposes are treated in the same way as mstruments that are held for trading

To the extent that a derivative may be embedded in a host contract and the host contract 1s not carried at fair value with changes in

far value recorded in the income statement , the embedded dervative 1s separated from the host contract and accounted for as a

standalone derwvative If and only if

+  The economic characteristics and nisks of the embedded denvative are not dosely refated to the economic characteristics and risks
of the host contract

+ A separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derwative would meet the definitron of a dervative

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and habilities are offset when there 1s both an intention to settle on a net basis (or simuftaneously) and a legal right to
offset exists

Issued debt and equity financial instruments

Financial instruments 1ssued by the group are classified as habilites If they contan an obligation Lo transfer economic benefits Financial
nstruments 1ssued by the group are classified as equily where they confer on the holder a residual interest in the group The
components of compound 1ssued financial instruments are accounted for separately with the labiity component separated first and
any residual amount being allocated to the equity component

Equity instruments 1ssued by subsidiaries of Investec olc or Investec Limited are recorded as minonity interests on balance sheet
Equity instrurments are indially measured net of directly attnibutable 1ssue costs

Treasury shares represent issued equity repurchased by the group which has not been cancelled Treasury shares are deducted from
shareholders' equity and represent the purchase consideration mncluding directly attnbutable costs Where ireasury shares are
subsequenitly sold or reissued net proceeds recerved are included in shareholders' equity

Drdends on ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity at the earlier of payment date or the date thal rt 1s approved
by Investec ple (in relation te dmidends declared by Investec plc) and Investec Limited (in relation to dmvidends declared by Investec
Limited) sharcholders

Sale and repurchase agreements (including securities borrowing and
lending)

Where securities are sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them, they remain on balance sheet Proceeds received are
recorded as a habrlity on balance sheet under “repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securiies lent  Securities that are
purchased under a commitment to resell the securtties at a future date are not recognised on the balance sheet The consideration
paid 15 recognised as an asset under "reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securities borrowed'

Securities borrowing transactions that are not cash collateralised are not included in the balance sheet Secunties lending and borrowing
transactions which are cash collaterahsed are accounted for in the same manner as secunties sold or purchased subject to repurchase
commitments

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are nttially recognised at fair value being the premium recerved Subsequent to mitral recogniion, the hability under
each guarantee 1s measured al the higher of the amorused premium and the best estmate of expendriure required to settle any
financial obligatian arsing as a result of the guarantee Subsequent to nitral measurement all changes i balance sheel carrying value
are recognised In the income statement.




Instalment credit, leases and rental agreements

Where classified as a finance lease, amounts outstanding on these cantracts, net of unearmed finance charges are included in loans and
advances where the entity 1s the iessor and included in habiliues where the entity 1s the lessee  Finance charges on finance leases and
instalment ¢redit transactions are credited or debited to income in proportion to the capital balances outstanding at the rate imphcit
in the agreement.

Where classdied as operating leases, rentals payable/receivable are charged/credited in the profit and loss account on a straight lne
basis over the lease term  Contingent rentals {if any) are accrued to profit and loss account when incurred

Property and equipment

Property and equipment 1s recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments

Deprecialion 15 provided on the depreciable amount of each component on a straight-line basis over the anticipated useful fe of the
asset. The depreciable amount related 1o each asset 1s determined as the dference between the cost and the residual value of the
asset The residual value is the estimated amount, net of disposal costs that the group would currently obtain from the disposal of an
asset in similar age and condrtion as expected at the end of s useiul Iife

The current annual depreciation rates for each class of property and equipment s as follows

+  Computer and related equipment 20-33%
+  Motor vehicles 20-25%
*  Furniture and fittings 10-20%
*  Freehold buildings 2%

*  Leasehold improvements*

Leasehold improvements depreciation rates are determined by reference to the appropriate useful Ife of ds separate components
limited to the period of the lease

No depreciation 15 provided on freehold land however, similar to other property related assets, it 1s subject to impairment testing when
deemed necessary

Routine servicing and maintenance of assets are expensed as incurred Subsequent expenditure 1s only capitahsed if it s probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group

Investment property

Properties held by the group which are held for capial appreciation or rental yield are classified as nvestment properties Investrment
properues are carried on balance sheet at fair value with fair value gains and losses recogmsed i the income statement under “principal
transactions ’

Fair value of investrent property s calculated by taking into account the expected rental stream associated with the property and 1s
supported by market evidence

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date the group reviews the carryng value of non-financial assets for indication of impairment The recoverable
amount, being the lower of fair value less cost to sell and value in use, 15 determined for any assets for which an indicatron of imparment
15 rdentfied If the recoverable amount of an asset s less than tts carrying value, the carrying value of the asset s reduced 1o its
recoverable value

Impairment losses are recogrised as an expense in the incorme statement in the period in which they are dentfied Reversal of
impairment losses 15 recognised N income in the period in which the reversal 1s identified, 1o the extent that the asset 1s not revatued
to a carrying value that would have been calculated without impairment
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Accounting policies {(continued)

Trust and fiduciary activities

The group acts as a trustee or in other fiduciary capaciues that result in the holding, placing or managing of assets for the aceount of
and at the risk of chents

As these are not assets of the group they are not reflected on the balance sheet but are included at market value as part of assets
under administration

Taxation and deferred taxation

Current tax payable 1s provided on taxable profits at rates that are enacted and applicable to the relevant period

Deferred taxation 15 provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or

Iability n the batance sheel and its tax base except where such temporary differences anse

+ lrom the rutial recogmuion of goodwill

+  from the ivbial recogmtion of an asset or habidity in a transacuon which 1s not a business combination and at the tme of the
transaction has no effect on profit or loss

+ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with the vestments in subsidianes and associates where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary dilferences can be controlled and it 15 probable that the temporary differences wili not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets or labilities are measured using the lax rales thal have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax assets are recognised te the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be avalable aganst which the asset
can be utihsed

items recogrused directly in equity are net of related taxation and deferred taxation

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts in which the group assumes significant mnsurance nisk. The deposit components of insurance
contracts are unbundled and accounted for separately

Insurance premiums are recognised in Income in the period n which the group s entitled to the premm Insurance claims are
recognised in the income statement I the penod in which a contractual obligation anses for the group to make payment under an
msurance contract

Rensurance assets ang liabilities and associated premiums/claims are not offset in the income statement or balance sheet

Insurance habiives are measured at their actuanal values, and are tested lor adequacy on an annual basis Any deficiency wdentified is
recogrised in the iIncome statement

Employee benefits

The group operates various defined contrbution schemes and two closed defined benefit schemes

In respect of the defined contribution scheme all employer contributions are charged to income, as incurred iy accordance with the
rules of the scheme, and included under staff costs

The assets of the defined benefit schemes are measured at their market value at the balance sheet date and the habilites of the
schemes are measured using the projected unit credit methed The discount rate used to measure the schemes' habilities 1s the current
rate of return on an AA corporale bond at the balance sheet date of equivalent term and currency to the habilises The extent to
which the schemes' assets exceed or fall short of the schemes' labilues 1s shown as a surplus or defict in the balance sheet (to the
extent that it 15 considered recoverable) Actuanal gains and losses related to the defined benefit asset or hability are recognised
immediately directly n equity

The group has no liabiies for other post retirement benefits




Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and smparments

For intangible assets with a finite Iife, amortsation 1s provided on the depreciable amount of each intangible asset on a straght-hne
basis over the antispated useful ife of the asset (currently 3 to 8 years) The depreciable amount related to each intangible asset s
determined as the difference between the cost and the residual value of the asset The residual value is the estmated amount, net of
disposal costs which the group would currently obtain from the disposal of an intangible asset n similar age and condition as expected
at the end of ds useful Ife

Intangible assets with an indefinite life are not amortised, however they are tested for impairment on an annual basis

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs in respect of property developments that lake a substanbal period of time to develop for sale are capitabised

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are habilities of uncertam uming or amount, and are recogrused as soon as the group has created a legal or constructive
obligation which will lead to an outflow of economic resources to settle the obligation as a result of a past event Contingent assets
and conungent habdities are not recogrised on balance sheet

Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The following standards and interpretations, which have been issued but are not yet effective, are applicable to the group These
standards and interpretations have not been applied in these financial statements The group intends to comply with these standards
from the effective dates

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective for the financial
year beginning | April 2007)

The standard relates to disclosure requirements for financial instruments and replaces IAS 30 {Disclosures in the Financial Statements
of Bank and Similar Financial Institutions) and elements of IAS 32 (Financial Instruments Cisclosure and Presentation) Adoption of the
standard will change the format of disclosure presented but will not affect recognition or measurement criteria as currently applied

IFRS 8 - Operating segments (effective for the financial year beginning
| April 2009)

The standard relates to disclosure requirements for segmental information and replaces IAS (4 Segmental Reporting The group
believes that segmental information disclosure 1s closely aligned with the requirements of IFRS 8 and therefore implementation of the
standard would result in minimal changes to disclosure

Key management assumptions

In preparation of the financial statements the group makes estimations and applies jJudgment that could affect the reported amount of

assets and habtlities wathin the next financral year Key areas in which judgment 1s apphed wclude

+  Valuation of unbsted investments 10 the private equity and direct investments portfolios Key valuation inputs are based on
observable market mputs adjusted for factors that specifically apply to the indmdual iInvestments and recogrise market volatiity

+  Valuation of investment properties is performed twice annually by directors that are qualified valators The valuaton is performed
by capitalising the budgeted net mcome of a property at the market related yield appheable at the time
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Notes to the financial statements

£'000 Share Share | Treasury| Share | Share Equity
capital | premium| shares | capial’|premium| poruon
Investec | account Investec | account of
Limited | Investec ple | Investec | convert-
Limited ple tble de-
bentures
| Reconcihation of equity
At | Apni 2005 46 | 635 418 | (109 362) 119 | 393 824 2191
Movement in reserves | Aprl 2005 - 31 March 2006
Foreign currency adjustments - - - - - -
Profit after taxation - - - - - -
Far value movements on avalable for sale assets - - - - - -
Pension fund actuaral gains - - - - - -
Total recognised gans and losses for the year - - - - - -
Share based payments adjustments - - - - - -
Dwidends paid 1o ardinary shareholders - - - - - -
Drvidends paid to perpetual preference shareholders - - - - - -
Issue of equity by subsidiaries - - - - - -
Share issue expenses - - - - (556} -
Net movement in treasury shares - - 13 062 - 51 -
Movement on minorilies on disposal and acquisitions - - - - - -
Transfer from equity accounted reserve - - - - -
Transfer to capilal reserves - - - - - -
Transfer to regulatory general risk reserve - - - - -
At 31 March 2006 46 | 635418 | (96 300) 1% ]| 393 319 21N
Movement in reserves | Apml 2006 - 31 March 2007
Foreign currency adjustments - - - -
Profit after taxation - - - - -
Fair value movements on avallable for sale assets - - - - -
Pension fund actuarial losses - - - - - -
Total recognised gains and losses for the year - - - - -
Share based payments adjustments - I 112 - - -
Dwidends paid to ordinary shareholders - - - - -
Dvdends pad to perpetual preference shareholders - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares 18 873 - 41 28984 -
Issue of perpetual preference shares by the holding company - - - - -
Issue of equity by subsidiaries - - - - -
Minorities arising on acgquisiton of subsidiaries - - - - -
Share 1ssue expenses {36) - - (23) -
Net movement of treasury shares 20 660 (8513 - 32 664 -
Transfer from capital reserves - - - - -
Transfer to regulatory general risk reserve - - - -
Transfer between reserves - (5 578) - - -
Dwidends paid to minonities - - - -
Capital reduction paid to minonty . - - - - -
At 31 March 2007 46 | 674915 | (109 279) 123 | 454 944 2191




Perpetual Other Reserves Profit Share- | Minority | Total
prefer- | Capital |Avallable | Regula- | Equity | Foreign | Share | and loss | holder's | interests | equity
ence | reserve | for sale tory |account- feurrency | based | account | equity
shares | account | reserve | general ed reserves | payment excluding
risk reserve reserve mincrity
nterests
196 742 7 668 9 875 28315 470 (5814) 37540 | (266 529)| 930503 | 145108 | 1 075 611
18 563 - - - - 24 407 - - 42970 9 594 52564
- - - - - - - 35101 ] 315101 14267 | 329 368
- - 8 480 - - - - - 8 480 - 8 480
- - - - - - - 2 035 2035 - 2035
18 563 - 8 480 - - 24 407 -| 3t7 136 368586 23 861 | 392447
- - - - - - 18 065 | 156 19 221 - 19 221
- - - - - -| (84 435)] (84 435) -1 (84 435)
. - - - - -l (9 %40 (19 940 -1 (19 940)
- . - - - - - -] 132520 132520
- . - - - . - (556) - (556)
- - - - - - - 13113 - 13113
- - ; . - . ; (15 888) (15 888)
. - ; (470) - . 470 - -
5575 - - - - -1 (5575 .
- - Ao - @ ey - -
215 305 13 243 18 355 50 307 - 18 593 55 605 | (79 709)|1 226 492 285601 | 512 093
(51 690) - - T E3 17 - 1145 862)| (38 985)| (184 B47)
- - - - - - -| 340319 ] 340319 9054 | 349 373
- - 12287 - - - {2 287 |2 287
- - . - - I e @4 (2 470)
(52 690) 12 287 - (93 172) | 337849 [ 204274 (29931 174 343
- - - - - - 32878 - 33990 - 33990
- - - - -1 (12592)8 (112 592) - (H12 592
- - - - (31 850)| (31 850) -1 (31850
- - - - - - 47 86l - 47 861
131 187 - - - - - -1 131187 -1 131187
- - - - 20 949 20 949
- - - - - 21 858 2t 858
(1 679) ; . - - N T b (688)
- - - - - - - 44 811 - 44 B
704 - - - - - 701 - -
- | 21633 - -l @re3d) - . .
- - - - 5578 - - - -
- - - - - - - - (528) (528)
- - - - - - - -1 sl 6271y
292 (73 12 542 30 642 71 940 (74 579)| 94 06! 92 766 |1 542485] 291 678 |1 B34 163
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year to 31 March Private Capital |Investment| Asset Property Group Total
£'000 Client Markets | Banking | Manage- | Activiies | Services group

Activities ment & Other

Activities

2 Combined conschdated segmental analysis
Business analysis 2007
Net interest income 217 441 89 078 (2 457} 5242 (5 801) 40 412 | 343 915
Fees and commissions recevable 148 951 82 741 96438 | 219029 28 354 22601 577773
Fees and commissions payable (H1 30D (2551} (4 534)| (3B490) - 602 (56 275)
Pnncipal transactions 19518 1 102700 73719 171 11847 37508 | 245463
Operating ncome from associates 10253 (ny 147 - - 296 10 685
Investment, tncome on assurance actvities - - - - - 36 821 36 821
Premiums and reinsurance recoveries on
Insurance contracts - - - - 80 542 80 542
Other operating ncome 100 - 45 482 2 604 - | 499 49 685
Other income 167 520 | 182879 | 2012521 183314 40 201 159 528 | 944 694
Claims and reinsurance premiums on
insurance business - - (111492 (111492)
Total operating mcome net of insurance
claims 384961 | 271957 | 208 795 188 556 34 400 88 448 {1 177 117
impairment losses on loans and advances (6 932) (9 925) (" - - 328 {16 530)
Operaung income 3780291 262032 | 208794 | 188556 34 400 88776 | | 160 587
Administrative expenses (198 674) | (143 793)| (L13068)| (119542)] (20 174)] (85 436)| (680 687)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
of property equipment and intangibles (2 883) (948) (4 491) (902) (82) (4009 (13315)
Operaung profic before goodwill 176 472 | 117 291 91 235 68 112 14 144 (669)]| 466 585
Goodwill 3560 3 560 - (6 091} (2 020y 3 560 2 569
Operating profit 180032 | 120 851 91 235 62 021 12 124 28911 469 154
Profit on disposal of group operations - - - - - - -
Profit before taxation 180032 | 120 851 91 235 62 021 12 124 2891 | 469 154
Net intersegment revenue (118674y| 71903 (19 090} 688 (5 254) 70 427 -
ROE (pre-tax)* 387% 377% 686% 44 9% 500% 1% 364%
Cost Lo Income ratio 524% 53 2% 563% 639% 589% >100% 59 0%
Number of permanent employees 2003 662 320 834 25§ 940 5010
Total assets (£ milhon) 8043 12032 804 409 107 4905 26 300
Adjusted shareholders' equity {£milhon)* 522 359 131 123 20 15 | 27¢
Adjusted tangible shareholders' equity
(£ millor)* 502 345 71 il 6 15 | 050

* Refer to cakulation on page 27

Net assets by class of business 1 not disclosed as the directors do not view it 1o be meaningfut 1o provide this information by class of
business since the economic capital of certan significant businesses of the group 1s not held In or allocated to, these businesses, but 15

held centrally




For the year to 3] March Private Capiral | lnovestment]  Asset Property Group Total
£'000 Clent Markets Banking | Manage- | Activities | Services group

Activites ment . & Other

Activities

2 Combined consohdated segmental anaiysig
(¢contunued)
Business analysis 2006
Net interest income 165 788 71228 2216 4 050 (4 002) 198721 259 152
Fees and commissions recervable 11 821 58 598 86800 | 190139 20 586 10 521 478 465
Fees and commissions payable (10 882) 2 720) (4 167)] (24 24%) - 427 (41 391)
Prncipal transacuons 12288 55 101 97 864 t 514 21 387 57905 246059
Operating income from associates 6 257 (79) 307 - - 205 6 694
Investment income on assurance activities - - . - [41 559 14] 559
Premiums and reinsurance recoveries on
insurance contracts - - - - 164 631 164 631
Other operating income - - - - 557 2 164 2721
Other income 119 484 f10904 | 180 804 | 167 404 42530 | 377412 | 998538
Claims and reinsurance premiums on
nsurance business - - - - - | (293 135)] {293 135)
Total operating income net of insurance
claims 285272 7 182 132 183 020 [ 171 454 38528 | 104 149 | 944 555
Impairment losses on loans and advances t 745 (12 342) 722 (16) - 731 (9 160)
Operating income 287 017 169790 | 183742 | 171428 38528 104 880 | 955 395
Administrative expenses {166 058)| (102549 (82689)] (111 163y (19823)] (76 625)] (558 887)
Depreciation, amortsation and impairment
of property, equipment and intangibles (2 794) (325) (143) (899) (107) (3 473) {7 741)
Operaung profit before goodwill 118 165 66 916 100 930 59 376 18 598 24782 | 388767
Goodwill - - - (14 157) (7 199) - (21 356)
Operaung profit 118 165 66 916 100 930 45 219 11 399 24782 | 367 411
Profit on disposal of group operations - - (1 a74) - - 74 644 73573
Profit before taxation 118 165 66 916 99 859 45219 1399 99 426 | 440984
Net intersegment revenue (117965 109 259 (7 586) 474 (2 819) 18 637 -
ROE (pre-tax)* 303% 273% 171 8% 363% 768% (09%) 379%
Cost to income ratio 59 2% 565% 452% 65 4% S17% 769% 587%
Number of employees I 765 530 287 790 258 823 4453
Total assets (£'mullion) 7120 9 855 584 324 141 5877 2390t
Adjusted shareholders' equity (£'million)* 410 294 64 140 17 115 1 040
Adjusted tangble shareholders' equity
(£'milliony* 389 280 46 12 8 115 850

*  Refer to calculation on page 27
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year to 31 March UK & Southern Austraha Other Total
£'000 Europe Africa geographies group
2 Combined consclidated segmental analysis (continued)
Geographical analysis 2007
Net mterest income 133 056 171 821 39 024 14 343 915
Fees and commussions recevable 299 027 253 388 24 673 685 577773
Fees and commussions payable (43 778) (2 354) (143) (56 275)
Principal transactions 77789 159 921 7753 - 245 463
Operating ncome from associates 10 523 - 162 - 10 685
Investment income on assurance actvities - 36 821 - - 36 821
Premiums and remnsurance recoverres on insurance coniracts - 80 542 - - 80 542
Other operating income 44 362 2794 2529 - 4% 685
Other income 387 923 521 112 34 974 685 944 694
Claims and reinsurance premiums on insurance business - (111 492) - - (111 492)
Total operating iIncome net of insurance claims 520 979 581 441 73998 €99 | 1177 117
Impairment losses on loans and advances {6 312) (% 040) (1 178) - (16 530)
Net operaung itncome 514 667 572 401 72 820 699 | ! 160 587
Adminstrative expenses (339 409)| (298 91 1) (42 049) (318)| (680 687)
Depreciation, ameortisation and imparment of property
equipment and intangibles (7 876) (4 817) (622) - (13313)
Operating profit before goodwill 167 382 268 673 30 149 gl 466 585
Goodwill - (L 10 680 - 2 569
Profit before taxation 167 382 260 562 40 829 k1] 469 154
Taxation (37 370) (72 938} (3 473) - (1192780
Profit after taxation 130012 187 624 31 356 38l 349 373
Earnings attributable to minonty shareholders 3643 3409 2002 - 9 054
Earmings attrbutable to shareholders 126 369 184 215 29 354 38l 340 319
130012 187 624 31 356 381 349 373
Net intersegment revenue (f 988) 2513 (527) - -
ROE {post-tax}* 19 6% 371% 150% (63500%) 26 1%
Cost to ncome ratio 667% 522% 577% 45 5% 520%
Effectve lax rate (excluding Assurance Actvities) 238% 27 1% 316% - 263%
Number of permanent employees [ 294 3 476 235 5 5010

*  Refer to calculation on page 26




At 3! March UK & Southern Austraha Other Total
£'million Europe Africa geographies group
2 Combined conselidated segmental analysis {continued)
Geogrﬁphncal analysis 2007
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 31 60 12 - 103
Loans and advances to banks 766 | 635 75 i 2 477
Cash equivalent advances to customers 23 665 - - 688
Reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral on
securities borrowed | 980 205 - - 2185
Trading securities 491 1 592 68 - 2151
Denvative financial instruments 255 403 &7 - 725
Investment securibies | 392 29 356 - | 777
Loans and advances to customers 4 004 5523 663 10 190
Interests in associated undertakings 53 - 17 70
Deferred taxation assets 23 31 5 59
Other assets 932 469 7 | 408
Property and equiprment 121 g 2 132
Investment properties - 85 - 85
Goodwili 153 27 16 196
Intangible assets 18 18 - 36
10242 13 75! | 288 22 282
Other financial Instruments at fair value through ncome I
respect of
- lablies to customers - 3025 3025
- assets related to rensurance contracis - 993 - - 993
10 242 14 769 | 288 l 26 300
Liabilities
Deposits by banks | 434 913 - 2 347
Derwvative financial instruments 72 399 39 510
Other trading hiabiliies 96 226 - 322
Repurchase agreements and cash coliateral on securibies lent | 598 168 - - | 766
Customer accounts 3786 5148 451 9 385
Debt securtties in 1ssue 681 2175 478 3334
Current taxation labilities 38 71 5 114
Deferred taxation liabilities 9 19 - 48
Other lrabiiies | 070 697 23 |1 790
Pension fund habilities | - - |
8785 g 836 996 19 617
Liabilities to customers under investment contracts - 3004 - - 3004
Insurance liabilties, ncluding umit-hnked liabilities - 21 - 11
Remsured habilities - 993 - 993
8785 13854 996 - 23635
Subordinated kabilties (including convertible debt) 562 228 4\ - B34
9 347 14 082 1 037 - 24 466
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year to 3| March UK & Southern Australia Other Total
£'000 Europe Alrica geagraphies group
2 Combined consolidated segmental analysis (continued)
Geographical analysis 2006
Net interest mcome 101 086 133 965 23 544 557 259 152
Fees and commissions recevable 226 860 230 674 16 322 4 609 478 465
Fees and comrmussians payable 29 31H (rr321) (680} (279) (41 591)
Prncipal transacuions 57572 81 747 3 664 3076 246 059
Cperating income from associates 6 902 - (207) ) 6 6%4
lnvesiment income on assurance actvities - 141 559 - - t41 559
Preriums and reinsurance recoveries on insurance contracts - a4 631 - 164 631
Other operating income 1 578 [ 143 - - 2721
Other income 263 601 708 433 19 099 7 405 998 538
Claims and reinsurance premiusms on insurance business - (293 135) - - (293 135)
Total operating tncome net of insurance cfaims 364 687 549 263 42 643 7962 964 555
Impairment lasses on loans and advances {6 291) (1 919} (950) - {2 160)
Operating income 358 396 547 344 41 693 7962 955 395
Administrative expenses (248 053y (277 482) (25 378) (7 976)1 (558 887)
Depreciation and impairment of property equipment
and intangibles (2 607) (4 452) (574) (108) (7 741
Operating profit before goodwill 107 736 265 410 15 743 (122) 388 767
Goodwall - {21 356) - - (21 356)
Operatng profit i07 736 244 054 15 743 (122) 367 411
Profit en disposal of group operations 73 700 - - (127} 73573
Profit before taxation 181 436 244 054 15743 (249) 440 984
Taxation (28 387) (78 378} (4 851) - (111 &l6)
Profit after taxation 153 049 165 676 10 892 (249} 329 368
Earmings attributable to minority shareholders 6893 7374 - - 4267
Earmings attributable to shareholders 146 156 158 302 10 892 (24%) 315 101
153 049 165 676 10 892 (249) 329 368
Net intersegment revenue | 640 (2 061 421 - -
ROE (post-tax)* F4 1% 42 8% 139% (305 0%) 255%
Cost o income ratio 687% 513% 609% 101 5% 587%
Effectrve tax rate (excluding Assurance Actvities) 282% 267% 304% - 273%
Number of employees | 166 3114 168 5 4453

* Refer to calculation on page 26




At 3| March UK & Southern Australia Total
£'million Europe Africa group
2 Combined consolidated segmental analysis {continued)
Geographical analysis 2006
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 3 180 2 191
Loans and advances to banks 518 1 232 81 1 831
Cash equivalent advances 1o customers - 690 - 690
Reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral on
securiies borrowed 642 114 - 756
Trading securities 159 b 479 I I 639
Dervative financial Instruments 237 842 2 | 08I
Investment securities | 104 25 136 | 266
Loans and advances to customers 3230 5972 403 9 605
Interests in associated undertakings 62 - i 63
Deferred taxation assets 25 33 3 6l
Other assets 955 315 3 1 273
Property and equiprment i5 10 2 27
Investment properties - 63 - 163
Goodwill 125 47 12 184
Intangible assets | 9 - 10
7 082 112 546 18 840
Other financial instruments at fair value through income i
respect of
- labilities to customers - 3629 3629
- assets related to reinsurance contracts - 1 432 - | 432
7 082 16 173 646 23901
Liabidities
[eposits by banks 1 154 725 - | 879
Denvative financial instruments 46 659 706
Other trading habililes 124 333 - 457
Repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securities lent 273 86 - 359
Customer accounts 3207 5239 253 8 699
Debt securties in ssue 511 2192 247 2950
Current taxation lizbilities 37 99 | 137
Deferred taxation labilities - 25 | 26
Cther habilites 841 731 Il 1 583
Pension fund habities 2 - - 2
6 195 10 089 514 |6 798
Liabilities to customers under investment contracts - 3 489 - 3489
Insurance liabilives, including unit-knked liabiues - 140 - |40
Reinsured habilties - t 432 - | 432
6195 15 150 514 21 859
Subordinated liabilihies (including convertible debt) 226 304 - 530
6 421 15 454 5i4 22 389
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Combined consolidated segmental analysis {continued)

A geographical breakdown of business operating profit before goodwill, non-operating tems and taxation 1s shown below

For the year to 31 March UK & Southern Australia Other Total
£'000 Europe Africa geographies group
2007
Private Client Activiies 106 799 53 429 16 244 176 472
Capital Markets 51 409 56 145 9 737 117 291
Invesiment Banking 23294 60 632 7 309 91 235
Asset Management 17555 50 557 - - 68 112
Property Actwities 1292 12 852 - - 14 144
Group Services and Other Activities (32 967) 35058 (3 14l) 38 (669)
Total group 167 382 268 673 30 149 38i 466 585
2006
Private Client Activities 68 932 41 224 8 009 - 118 165
Capital Markets 22 507 43 560 849 - 66916
Investment Banking 29 631 65 887 5412 - 100 930
Asset Management 10 609 48 767 - - 59 376
Property Actrvilies 2023 16 575 - - 18598
Group Services and Other Activities (25 966) 49 397 | 473 (122) 24 782
Total group 107 736 265 410 15 743 {122) 388 767
Further breakdowns of business line operating profit before goodwill, non-operating items and taxaton are shown below
For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
Private Client Activities
Private Banking 154 391 101 523
Private Client Portfollo Management and Stockbroking 22 081 16 642
176 472 118 165
Capital Markets 117 291 66 916
Investment Banking
Corporate Finance 15 8%0 i} 608
Institutional Research and Sales and Trading 14 394 4982
Direct Investments 18 148 34218
Private Equity 42 803 40 122
91 235 100 930
Asset Management 68112 59 376
Property Activities 14 144 18 598
Group Services and Other Activities
Internatronal Trade Finance 5462 4 505
US continuing operations - (120)
UK Traded Endowments (109) (47
Assurance Activities | 646 11518
6999 15 856
Central Funding 66 981 66 777
Central Costs (74 649) (57 851)
(669) 24 782
Total group 466 585 388 767




For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
3 Principal transactions
Principal transaction income includes
Gross trading income 103 469 126 203
Funding cost aganst trading ncome {33 665) (16 832)
Net trading mncome 63 804 109 371
Fair value movement from financial nstruments designated as held at fair vaiue 142 769 99 825
Gains/(losses) on available for sale instruments 4 626 (803)
Impairments on availlable for sale instruments (1 529) -
Farr value income on mvestment properties 17 33% 28 301
Dividend income 10 360 9 340
Other income 2093 25
245 463 246 059
Farr value movement from financial nstruments designated as held at fair value includes
Far value movement of designated equity positions 103 351 79 669
Fair value movement of designaied loans and recewables net of associated derwative instruments |5 686 t87
Fair value movement of designated securities 14 464 15 245
Far value moverment of designated habilites 9 268 4724
142 76% 99 825
4 Other operating income
Rental income from properties ! 558 | 950
Gains on realisation of properties . 42 771
Operating income of non-core businesses* 48 085 -
49 685 2721
* includes income of certan private equity Investments that have been consolidated with therr
respective operating costs included in adninistrative costs
5 Administrative expenses
Stafl costs 482 050 372 643
Salaries and wages (including directors’ remuneration} 443 573 341 839
Sociaf securtty costs 23 092 |7 474
Peasions and provident fund contributions |5 385 13330
Premises (excluding depreciation) 35610 39 607
Equipment (excluding depreciation) 29 684 19 837
Business expenses** 105 911 104 258
Marketing expenses 27 432 22 542
680 687 558 887
The following amounts were paid to the auditors
Audit fees 509 4654
Audit related fees 276 214
Other services 443 635
5 815 5 500
Audit fees by audit firm
Ernst & Young 4096 3750
KPMG Inc I 635 I 620
Other 84 130
5815 5 500

Details of the directors' emoluments, pensions and their interests are disclosed in the directors' remunerabion report on pages 121 to

138

** Business expenses significantly compnise insurance costs consulting and professional fees, travel expenses and subscriptions
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year to 3| March 2007 2006
£000
& Share based payments
The group operates share option and share purchase schemes for employees, the majority of which are
on an equity settled basis The purpose of the staff share schemes 15 to promote an ‘esprit de corps’
within the orgarisation create an awareness of Investec's performance and provide an incentive to
maximise individual and group performance by allowing all staff to share in the risks and rewards of the
group Further mformation on the group share options and long-term incentive plans are prowded on
pages 132 1o |38 of the remuneration report
Expense charged to profit and toss (included in administrative expenses)
Equrty settled 27 568 18 065
Cash setiled 408 575
Total profit and loss charge 27 976 I8 640
Liabilities on cash settled options
Total hability includeg in other labilities 121 495
Total mtrinsic value for vested apprecation nghts 390 2 064
Weighted average fair value of options granted i the year
UK Schemes 43616 12 500
SA Schemes 34618 15 678
At 31 March UK Schemes South African Schemes
2007 2006 2007 2008
Number [Weightedf Number [Weighted] Number [Weghted] Number [Weighted
of share | average [ of share | average | ofshare | average | of share | average
options exercise OPCIOHSA exercise aptions exercise OPUOI"IS'H exercise
price price® price price?
£ £ ZAR ZAR
Detarls of options outstanding
during the year
Qutstanding at the beginning of
the year 27 875 005 127 {31 307 820 162 [ 34 131 575 3095 | 40515 G80 2403
Granted during the year 7 640 248 054 5170135 083 | 6627 281 Q00| 3585175 1511
Exercsed during the year* (5 198 882) 213 | (6581 710 240 | (8457 472) 3020 | (8B510895)| 3033
Expired during the year (| 286 465) 324 | (2021 240) 232 | (759 038)| 1850 | () 457 785)| 3262
Cutstanding at the end of the year| 29 029 906 084 |27 875 005 | 27 | 30 542 346 1402 | 34 131 575 2095
Exercisable at the end of the year | | 059 148 30} 1361805 367 | 3355132 | 3973 | 3957805 40714

*

~

Weighted average share price during the year was £5 81
Restated for the share subdrision of 5 shares for | that took place on 4 September 2006




6 Share based payments (continued)

The exercise price range and weighted average remaining contractual life for the options are as follows

For the year to 3| March UK Schemes South African Schemes
2007 2006 2007 2006~

Exercise price range £0 - £347 £155-£499 | RO-R5760 |R2500-R544|

Weghted average remaning contractual Iife 313 years 74 years 313 years 59 years

The farr values of optons granted were calculated using a

Black-Scholes option pricing modet For options granted

during the year the nputs into the model were as follows

- Share price at date of grant £498-f6 11 | £341-£499 R64-RBI [ R3346-R2504
Exercise price £0,£498-£6 11| £155-£430 R vl R33 4-R54 41

- Expected volatity 39% 28% -30% 35%-39% 28% -30%

- QOption life 5-525Years 5 years 5 Years 5-575 years
Expected dvidend yields 352%-403% | 315%-427% | 394%-4% | 336%-467%

- Risk-free rate 396%-510% | 423%-469% | 882%-894% | 674%-778%

Expected volatlty was determined based on historical volatiity of the respective share price over 6 months The expected atintion rates

used were determined based on historical group data, with an adjustment o actual attnition on final vesung

~

7 Taxation

Restated for the share subdivision of 5 shares for { that took place on 4 September 2006

For the year to 3| March 2007 2006
£'000
Current tax
UK
- current tax on income for the year 20983 20 124
- adustments in respect of prior years (3 161) 6 286
- corporation tax before double tax rehief 17 822 26 410
- double tax rehef {1 397) (3710
16 425 22 700
Southern Africa 65 303 80 144
Europe 7658 4 095
Australia 9328 5 804
Other 5716 | 427
88 005 91 471
Secondary taxaton on companies* 7318 689
Total current tax i1l 748 114 860
Deferred tax
UK 7679 {123
Southern Africa 38 (2 455)
Europe (109) 287
Austraha |45 (953)
Total deferred tax 8 033 (3 244)
Total tax charge for the year 119 781 L &ls
Delerred tax comprises
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 8 475 (3 025)
Adjustment in respect of prior years (442) (219}
8033 {3 244}

*

Secondary taxation on companies 1s an additional corporate tax on South African entties on decfaration of dmdends
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
£'000

7 Taxation (continued)

Items which affect the tax rate going forward are

Estumated tax losses ansing from trading actmties, avallable for relief against future iaxable mcome

UK Nl Nil
South Africa Nl MNil
Europe Nil Nil
The rates of corporaton tax for the relevant years are % %
UK 30 30
South Africa 29 29
Europe (average) 20 20
Awustralia 30 30
USA 35 35
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 469 154 440 984
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 119 781 11 élé
Effective tax rate 26% 25%
The tax charge on activities for the year 1s different to the standard rate as detalled below

Tax on profit on ordinary activities before taxation at UK rate of 30% |40 746 132 295
Tax calculated at a rate of 30%

Non taxable gain on sate of subsidiaries - (23 551)
Tax adjustments relating to foreign earmings {7 196) 2513
Taxation relating to prior years (3 605) 6 067
Goodwill and non operating stems {3209 321
Share options accounting expense 2 555 2240
Share opuions exeraised during the year {3829 {1 950}
Unexpired share options future tax deduction {1 489) (4918)
Income from associate (2 858) (! 725)
Net other permanent differences 3135 3659
Uthsation of brought forward capital losses {4 479) (3 335
Total tax charge 119 781 11 6l6




For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
8 Earnings per share
Earmings per share - pence 547 ~538
Basic earnings per share (pence} 1s calculated by dividing the earmings attributable to the ordinary
shareholders in Investec plc and Investec Limited by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in 1ssue during the year

£'000 £'000
Earnings attributabte to the shareholders per income statement 340 319 315 101
Preference dmidends pasd (31 850) (19 940)
Earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders 308 469 295 161
Earnings from future dilutive convertible instruments 974 2675
Diluted earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 309 443 297 836
Diluted earnings per share - pence S04 ~500
Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to the ordimary
shareholders of Investec plc and Investec imited adjusted for the effects of dilutive ordinary
potental shares, by the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the period plus the
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of the diutive
ordinary potential shares during the year
Weighted average total number of shares in 1ssue during the year 602 052 0%6 | ~593 166 365
Weighted average number of treasury shares (38 269 412) | (44 327 451)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 563782 684 | ~548 838 914
Weighted average number of shares resulting from future dilutive potential shares 4] 146 215 | 29424 371
Weighted average number of shares resulting from future dilutive convert:ble instruments 8787292 | 17869970
Adjusted weighted number of ordinary shares potentially in 1ssue 613716 191 | A596 133 255
Adjusted earnings per share-pence 533 ~419
Adjusted earnings per share (pence} 1§ calculated by dwviding the earmings before deducting
goodwill and non-operating items atirbutable to the ordinary shareholders afler taking into
account earnings attributable 1o perpetual preference shareholders by the weighted average
rumber of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year

£'000 £000
Earnings aitributable to sharehaolders per ncome staternent 340 319 315101
Goodwiil . (2 565) 21 356
Profit on disposal of group operations - (73 573)
Preference dvidends paid (31 850) (19 940)
Addiional earnings attributable to other equity holders® (5 196) (12 927)
Adjusted earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders before goodwill and non-operatung
items 300 704 230017
Earnings from future dilutive convertible istruments 974 2675
Dhluted adjusted earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders 301 678 232 692
Diluted adjusted earnings per share - pence 192 390
Headline earnings per share - pence
Headline earnings per share has been calculated in accordance with the defimtion in the Institute
of Invesiment Management Research Statement of Investment Practice No 1 "The Definition of
Headhne Earnings " and in terms of arcular 7/2002 ssued by the South African Institute of
Chartered Accountants, and 15 disclosed in accordance with the JSE hsting requirements 523 406

*

In accordance with IFRS dmdends attributable to equity holders 1s accounted for when a constructive liabiity anses, 1e on

declaration by the board of directors and approval by the shareholders, where required Investec 15 of the view that EPS 15 best
reflected by adjusting for earmings that is attnbuted to equity mstruments (other than ordinary shares) on an acerual basis and

therefore adjusts the paid dmdend on such instruments to accrued i armving at adjusted EPS
~  Restated for the share subdivision of 5 shares for | that tock place on 4 September 2006
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
8 Earnings per share (continued)
£'000 £'000

Earnings attributable to shareholders per income statement 340 319 315 101
Goodwill (2 589) 2t 356
Profit on disposal of group operations - (73573)
Preference dwvidends paid (31 850} (19 940)
Gains and losses recogrised on nvestment properties (after tax and minonty interests) (8 820} (20 724)
Other headline adjustments** (2 19%9) 585
Headlmne earnmgs attributable to ordinary shareholders 294 881 222 805
Earnings from future dilutive convertible instruments 974 2675
Diluted headhine earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 295 855 225 480
Diluted headline earnings per share - pence 482 ~378
** Other headhne adjustments includes, fair value of investment properties and reabisation gains/losses

on available for sale instruments
~ Restated for the share subdrasion of 5 shares for | that took place on 4 September 2006
Earnings per share - pence
As previously reported

Basic 2689

Diluted 2498
Adjusted earnings per share - pence
As previously reported

Basic 2095

Diluted 1952
Headhine earnings per share - pence
As previously reported

Basic 2030

Diluted 189 1




For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
Pence Total Pence Total
per share £'000 per share® £'000
9 Dmvdends
Ordinary dividend
Final dwidend for prior year 10 60 55 415 740 41 681
Intenm dmdend for current year 1000 57 177 760 42754
Total dvidend attributable to ordinary shareholder recognised in current
financial year 20 60 112 592 15 00 84 435

The directors have proposed a final dividend i respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2007 of 13 pence per ordinary share
The final dividend will be payable on 13 August 2007 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 27 July 2007

Ordinary dvidends per share as prewiously reported (pence per share)

Final dwdend for 2005 37
Interim dwidend for 2006 38
75
Perpetual preference dwidend 2007 2006
Pence Cents Total Cents Total

per share# | per share* | (£'million) per share | (£'miliion)
Final dwidend for prior year - 75916 20 411 504 19 5917
interim dividend for current year 930 797 50 Il 439 767 13 13023
Total dmdend attributable to perpetuat preference
sharehotder recognised in current financial year 230 | 556 66 31 850 127132 19 940

The directors have declared a final dvidend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2007 of 30 2 pence (Investec plc shares
traded on the JSE Limited) and 6 51 pence (Investec pic shares traded on the Channel isiand Stock Exchange) 428 44 cents (Investec
Liruted) and 459 04 cents (Investec Bank Limited) per perpetual preference share The final dwvidend will be payable on 4 July 2007 o

shareholders on the register at the clase of business on 29 June 2007

# Perpetual preference share dradends from Investec plc
Perpetual preference share dividends from Investec Limited and Investec Bank imited
Restated for the share subdmsion of 5 shares for | that took place on 4 September 2006

10 Miscellaneous income statement items

For the year to 3 March 2007 2006

£'000

Total foreign currency losses recogmised in iIncome except finanoal Instruments measured at fair value

through income 1139 | 222

Operating lease expenses recogmsed 1IN administrative expenses spht as follows

Minimum lease payments 32 481 33 496

Contingent rents 5 9

Sublease payments I -
32 497 33 505

Operating lease income recogrised in ncome spht as follows

Mirimum lease payments 2032 | 170

Sublease payments 4622 4 639

6 654 5 809
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March 2007

At fair value through profit

£'000 and loss
Designated at| Held-to-
Trading inception maturity
|1 Analysis of assets and habiliies by financial instrument classificavon
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - -
Loans and advances to banks 7296 - -
Cash equivalent advances to customers 48 304 - -
Reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral on secunties borrowed 2185322 - -
Trading securities I 131 857 1019179 -
Dernvative financial instruments 724 492 - -
Investment securities - 1928 144 202
Loans and advances to customers - | 173 702 -
Interests in associated undertakings - -
Deferred taxation assets - - -
Other assots 561 696 7 608 -
Property and equipment - - -
Invesiment properties - -
Goodwill - - -
Intangible assets - - -
4 658 967 2202 417 144 202
Financial instrumenis at far value through income in respect of
- liabilizes to customers - - -
- assets related to rensurance contracts - - -
4 658 967 2 202 417 144 202
Liabihues
Deposits by banks 3517 - -
Dervative financal instruments 509 919 - -
Other trading liabilies 321 863 - -
Repurchase agreements and cash collateral on secunities lent I 765 6714 - -
Customer accounts 84 853 598 979 -
Debt securtties in 1ssue 324779 316993 -
Current taxation habilities - - -
Deferred taxation labilities - - -
QOther habilities 750 425 8 299 -
Pension fund habiilies - - -
37644027 924 271 -
Liabitities to customers under investment contracts - - -
Insurance labilities, including unit-linked labehities - - -
Reinsured habilities - - -
3761 027 924 271 -
Subordinated habilities (including convertible debt) - - -
3761027 924 271 -




Financial
habilities at
Loans and | Avalable for | amortised Insurance | Non financial
receivables sale cost related Instruments Total
102 751 - - 102 751
2 469 673 - - 2 476 969
639 614 - 687 918
- - - 2185322
- - - 2151 036
- - - 724 492
- 1 630 471 - | 776 601
8519946 496 604 - - 10 190 252
- - - 70332 760 332
- - - 59 394 59 394
793 670 - - 45 185 1 408 159
- - - 131 505 t31 505
- - - 85 424 85 424
- - - 195 883 195 883
- - - 35829 35 829
12525 654 2127 075 - - 623 552 | 22 281 867
- - 3024 997 3024 997
- - - 592 824 - 992 824
i2 525 654 2 127 075 - 4017 821 623 552 | 26 299 688
- - 2 343578 - - 2 347 095
- - - - - 509 919
- - - - - 321 863
- - - - - 1 765 671
- - B 701 Clé - - 9 384 848
- 2691 944 - - 3333716
- - 113 967 - - 113967
- - - - 48 048 48 048
- - 868 997 - |62 684 | 790 405
- - - [ 467 | 467
- - 14719 502 - 212 199 19 616 999
- - - 3004 254 - 3004 254
- - - 20743 - 20743
- - - 992 824 - 992 824
- - 14719502 4017 821 212199 | 23 634820
- - 830 705 - - 830 705
- - 15 550 207 4017 821 212 199 | 24 465 525
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 3| March 2006

At fair value through prefit

£'000 and loss
Designated at| Held-to-
Trading inception matunty
Il Analysis of assets and liabilities by financial instrument classificauen (conunued)
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - -
Loans and advances to banks 8 37i - -
Cash equmvalent advances to customers 211 662 - -
Reverse repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securities borrowed 756 645 - -
Trading securities | 281 994 358 094 -
Derwatve financial instruments | OB} 287 - -
Investment securities - 9 663 i23 615
Loans and advances to customers - I 397 198 -
Interests i associated undertakings - - -
Deferred taxation assets - - -
Other assets 572 353 17 394 -
Property and equipment - - -
Investment proper ties - - .
Goodwill - - -
Intangible assets - - -
3912312 I 782 349 123 615
Financial instruments at fair value through income in respect of
liabilities to customers - - -
assets related 1o remnsurance contracts - - -
3912312 | 782 349 123 615
Liabihues
Deposits by banks - - -
Derwative financial mstruments 705 764 - -
Cther trading hatilities 457 254 - -
Repurchase agreements and cash collateral on secunties ient 358 278 - -
Custamer accounts 90 261 370 296 -
Debt securities n issue 429 203 625 086 -
Current taxation liabtities - - -
Deferred taxation liabilities - - -
Other habditres 644 313 2 358 -
Pension fund liabilities - - -
2 685 073 997 740 .
Liabiliies to customers under investment contracts - - -
Insurance habiities, including unil-inked habikilies - -
Reinsured habilities - - -
2 685 073 997 740 -
Subordinated habiliies (iIncluding converuble debt} - - -
2 685 073 997 740 -




Financial
lrabilities at
Loans and Available for amorused Insurance | Non financial

receivables sale cost related InStruments Total
190 838 - - - - 190 838
[ 740 970 81262 - - | 830 603
478 574 - - - 690 236
- - - - 756 645
- - - - | 640 088
- - - - | Q81 287
75 1 133 320 - - | 266 673
7775 895 431 496 - 9 604 589
- - - 63 099 63 099
- - - 60 035 60 035
643 380 - - 39 660 | 272 787
- - - 26 516 26 916
- - 163 049 163 049
- - - 183 560 183 560
- - 10 094 10 094
10829 732 I 646 078 - 546 413 18 840 499
- - 3628574 3628574
- - | 431 876 - 1 431 876
10 829 732 | 646 078 - S 060 450 546 413 | 23 900 949
- | 879 483 | 879 483
- 705 764
- 457 254
- 358 278
8 238 608 8 699 165
- | 895 814 2950 103
137 426 - 137 426
- - 26 210 26210
- 877 450 58 735 | 582 856
- - 2013 2013
- 13028 781 - 86 958 16 798 552
- - 3488 756 - 3488 756
- - 139 818 139 818
- - | 431 876 - | 431 876
- 13028 781 5 060 450 86958 | 21 859 002
- 529 854 - - 529 854
- - 13 558 615 5 060 450 86 958 | 22 388 856
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March Carrymng Fair value gain/{loss}
£000 value Life to Year to
date date
12 Financial assets and habilities designated at fair value through profit and loss
2007
Investment securites I 928 134 132
Loans and advances | 173 702 393 (27 383)
Trading securities | 019 179 E71 599 91 794
Other assets 7 608 547 (! 088)
2202 417 171 287 63 455
Customer accounts 598 979 10 264 (9 847)
Debt securities in 1ssue 316993 (441} (38%)
Other habilities B 299 8 299 7 867
924 271 18 122 (2 369)
2006
Investment securites 9 663 | 854 1 822
Loans and advances | 397 198 84 34| I 674
Trading securities 358 094 41 591 47 769
Other assets 17 394 (14 C00) -
| 782 349 113 786 51 265
Customer accounts 370 296 26 669 5012
Debt securifies in 1ssue 625 086 (69) (36)
Other labilities 2358 - -
997 740 26 600 4976
2007 2006
Carrying | Cumulative | Carrying | Cumulative
value unrealised value unrealsed
gans/{losses) gams/(losses)
13 Trading securtties
Listed equities 641 536 (24 929) 290 238 (16 199)
Unlisted equrties 193 121 gl 472 263 610 54 323
Promissory notes 40114 | 325 74 542 |9 848
Liqud asset bilis 270 803 2778 352 440 2 809
Debentures 349 623 4243 352 363 5 460
Bonds 655 839 4 966 306 895 23 282
2 151 036 79855 | 1 640088 89 523




|4 Dervative financial instruments

The group enters nto vanous contracts for dernvatives both as prinaipal for trading purposes and as customer for hedging foregn
exchange and Interest rate exposures These include financial futures options swaps and forward rate agreements All interest rate
contracts are transacted with other financial institutions The risks associated with denvative instruments are monitored in the same
manner as for the undertying instruments Ruisks are also measured across the product range in order {o take into account possible
correlations

In the tables below, notional principal amounts indicate the volume of business outstanding at the balance sheet date and do not
represent amounts at nsk The fair value of a derwative financial instrument represents the positive or negative cash flows which would
have occurred had the mghts and obligations ansing from that instrument been closed out by the group in an orderly market transaction

at balance sheet date

At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000 Nouonal Posiuve Negauve Notional Positive Negative
principal fair value fair value principal fair value fair value
amounts amounts
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange 7 77) 869 72518 84 429 | 6 329 855 147 723 | 520
Currency swaps 2443 222 16117 B943 | 1975392 66 507 17 983
OTC options bought and sold 278 664 1202 1514 452 627 8 458 8937
Other foreign exchange contracts 766 - - 550 037 425 388
OTC derwatives t0 494 521 89 837 94 886 | 9 307 911 223 113 28 828
Exchange traded futures - - - |42 200 2 -
10 494 521 89 837 94 886 | 9450 111 223 115 28 828
Interest rate derwvatives
Caps and floors i 245 817 1 492 1 539 | | 420738 2077 10 549
Swaps 18 905 362 159 960 168 501 |32 562 527 416 142 456 948
Forward rate agreements 38 648 708 20 311 26 059 | 56 542 387 22 062 23 255
OTC options bought and sold | 86% 740 915 368 | 1822 387 941 851
Other interest rate contracts 3 445 13 I3 | 1230477 - 5 347
QOTC dervatives 60 673 072 182 691 196 480 |93 578 516 44 222 4%6 950
Exchange traded futures 8 004 427 116 280 | 1537782 468 537
Exchange traded options 118 533 158 - 156 - - -
187 210 657 182 807 196 916 | 95 116 298 44| 690 497 487
Equity and stock index dervatives
OTC options bought and sold 496 404 56022 36 754 40 194 131 251 94 024
Equity swaps and forwards 464 643 8 456 2215 4053 183 2538
OTC derwvatives 961 047 64 478 45 969 44 247 131 434 96 562
Exchange traded futures 360 935 2011 96 8 585 - 1 054
Exchange traded options 55 630 1 276 | Q22 5¢ 790 941 331
Warrants 303 815 29110 i5 669 45 987 32 946 -
2281 427 96 875 62 756 159 609 165 321 97 947
Commodity derivatives
QOTC options bought and sold 789 618 136 656 110924 639 278 164 403 103 883
Commodily swaps and forwards | 628 409 189 826 82 333 751 982 19 737 49 052
OTC dervatives 2 418 027 326 482 193257 | 1391 260 284 140 152 935
Exchange traded futures 565 752 185 80! 143 278 695 327 169 734 167 946
Exchange traded options 467 990 57 281 78059 | | 321 183 41 095 39 260
3 451 769 56% 564 414 594 | 3407 770 494 969 360 141

Financial statements (Investec plc and Investec Limited)

195



Financial statements (Investec ple and Investec Limited)

196

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000 Notional Positive Negative Notcnal Positive Negative
principal fair value fair value principal fair value fair value
amounts amounts
14 Derivauve financial instruments {continued)
Credit derivatives
Credit inked notes bought and sold - - - 6 043 - 121
Credit swaps bought and sold * 43703 494 845 9 485 12 3
43 703 494 845 15 529 12 124
Embedded dervatives 443 888 44 993 - 128 832 34 943 -
Gross fair values 984 570 769 997 I 360 050 984 527
Effect of on balance sheet netting (260 078)}] (260 078) (278 763)| (278 763)
Trading dervatives per balance sheet 724 492 509 919 1 081 287 705 764
Effect of master neting agreements Q@77 2999 (277 299) 419 193] (419 195)
Net balances after master netting 447 193 232 620 662 092 286 569
At 31 March Group
£'000 2007 2006
15 Investment securities
Listed equities 33854 32362
Unlisted equities 30 967 23 497
Commercial paper | 277 443 %06 188
Bonds 391 546 166 599
Fioating rate notes 42 585 32385
Other investments 206 105 642
{776 601 | 1 266 673




At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
16 Loans and advances to customers
Category analysis
Commercial property loans 3486799 | 2816243
Residentral mortgages | 932566 | | 872477
Leases and instalment debtors 340 050 306 933
Corporate and public sector loans and advances 2764 650 | 2864206
Other private bank lending I 168590 | 1352121
Other loans and advances 544 586 433 735
10230241 | 9645715
Specific imparment (33 194) (31 056)
Portfolic impatirment (6 795) (10 070)
10 190 252 | 9 604 589
Specific and portfolio impairments
Reconaliation of movements in group specific and portfolic imparments
Spealfic impairment
Balance at beginning of year 3t 056 27 703
Charge to the income statement 17 379 8718
Acquired 7 740 .
Utilised {17 822) (7 340}
Exchange adjustment (5 15%) | 975
Balance at end of year 33 194 31 056
Partfolio impairment
Balance at beginning of year 10 070 8 865
Charge to the income statement (849) 442
Utilised (441) -
Exchange adjustment (1 985) 763
Balance at end of year 6 795 1G 070

Securiisations

Investec plc and Investec Limited enter into transactions in the normal course of business by which they transfer financial assets directly
to third parties or to special purpose entities These transfers may give rise to the full or partal derecognition of the financal assets
concerned The table below reflects securitised assets and related liabilities that continue to be recognised in the consalidated accounts

£'000 Carrying Carrying
amount of | amount of
transferred | associated
asset liabilities
2007
Nature of transactions
Residential mortgages 449 242 449 242
Auto loans 6% 858 69 858
Commercial mortgages 85116 85116
504 216 504 216
2006
Nature of transactions
Residential mortgages 423 243 438 343
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
17 Interests in assoclated undertakings
Interests in assooated undertakings consist of
Net asset value 6128 (1 820)
Goodwill 64 204 64 919
Investment in associzted undertaking 70 332 63 099
Analysis of the movement in our share of net assets
Al beginning of year (I 820) 4 993
Exchange adjustments (122} 107
Acquisttions 677 (11 653)
Disposal of shareholding in assoctate company (306) -
Adjustment in shareholding* 762 -
Operating ncome from associates 10 685 6 694
Dwidends receved (4 699) (1 455)
Non-operating items - (3 268}
Gains recognised In equity | 351 2762
At end of year 6128 (1 820)
Analysis of the movement in goodwill
At beginning of year 64 919 8226
Exchange adjustments 47 25
Acquisitions - 57739
Adjustment in shareholding* (762) -
Goodwill impairment - (1071)
At end of year 64 204 64919
Associated undertakings
Listed 55 657 49 045
Unlisted 14 675 14 054
70 332 63 099
Market value of isted investments 180 026 166 289
The most significant investment held in assocates in the year was Rensburg Sheppards plc ("R5") RS 15 a
hsted company on the London Stock Exchange and conducts the business of private chent stockbroking
At 31 March 2007 RS had the following shares of 10 90/91p 43 881 332 {43 314 068
Less Shares held in RS Employee Share Ownership Trust (233 600) (76 660}
43 647 782 [ 43 237 408
Holding n RS ordinary shares (%) 47 33% 47 78%

*  Dunng the year RS ssued additionat shares reducing Investec's share of net assets and goodwill

** Investec has undertaken not to vote in excess of 30% of the ssued capital of RS in the five year penod ending 6 May 2010

Significant transactions between the group and RS duning the year ended 31 March 2007, all of which are on an arm's length basis are

+  £60 million subordinated loan, which was entered into on 6 May 2005 The loan formed part of the consideration pard by RS for the
acquisition of Carr Sheppards Crosthwarte Lirmited on that date The nterest recevable on the loan duning the year amounted to

£4 305 000 (2006 £3 858 000} and nterest of £1 718 000 was recewable at 31}

(2006 £1 679 000)

* Rent of £1 25 milion (2006 158 millon} and a conirbution of £03 milion (2006 £02 millon} n respect of RS occupation of
2 Gresham Street London A further £05 million (2006 £0 4 million) was received in relation to other services provided including IT

and Internal Audit

March 2007




17 Interests in associated undertakings (continued)

£000 Assets Liabihties Revenues Adjusted
Profit
before tax*
Rensburg Sheppards plc
Year ended 3| March 2007 377 092 207 400 122 297 35923
|6 months ended 31 March 2006 420 773 262 989 117 389 29077

*

Before amartsation of client relationships intangible asset, share-based payments relating to the Employee Benefit Trust,
reorgarusation costs and profit on disposal of available for sale investments

At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
18 Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation assets
Deferred caprtal allowances 6438 '3 251
income and expenditure accruals 37 6580 23 689
Arnsing from credits on secondary tax on companies (STC) in South Africa - 8953
Asset in respect of unexpired share options 13 194 B 172
Asset in respect of pensions hability - 2420
Other temporary differences 2102 3550
59 394 60 035
Deferred taxation habhues
Unrealised fatrr value adjustiments on financial instruments 35 669 22943
Ansing on anliopated foreign dvidends 3433 -
Liability 1n respect of pension surplus 816 -
Other temporary differences 8130 3267
48 048 26210
Net deferred laxation asset Il 346 33825
Reconciliation of net deferred taxauon asset
At beginning of year 33825 31902
Charge to profit and loss (8 033} 3244
{Charge)/credit directly in equity (893) 36
Deferred tax arising on pension fund deficit movement i equity | 058 {874
Ariging on acgquisitions (395) -
S5TC credits utibsed (7 208) -
Transfer to corporation tax in respect of pensions contributions (6 541) -
Arising on disposals - (2 281)
Exchange adjustments (467) 15i8
At year end Il 346 33 825
Deferred tax on avallable for sale instruments recogrised directly in equity (4 643) (1 265)
Deferred tax on unexpired share options recogrused directly in equity 5109 | 576
19 Other assets
Settlement debiors | 055 410 980 166
Qperating leased assets in stock 53237 37793
Dealing properties 26 634 29 748
Accruals and prepayments 60 637 82 937
Pension assets 4178 3248
Other debtors 208 063 |38 895
| 408 159 | | 272 787
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March Freehold | Leasehold | Furniture | Equipment Total
£'000 properties | improve- | & vehicles

ments
20 Property and equipment
2007
Cost
At beginning of year 1136 23 065 19 106 34 895 78 202
Exchange adjustments (288) (445) (2 968) (B8 683) (12 384)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 3893 196 29 89 310 93428
Reclassifications (53) 121 (121 - (53)
Additions 1 270 1 843 2079 23292 28 484
Disposals - (253} (2 856) (1 775) (4 884)
At end of year 5958 24 527 15 269 137 039 182793
Accumulated depreciation
At beginming of year (53) (8 870} (14 486} (27 877) (51 286)
Exchange adjustrnents - 296 2020 3855 6171
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings - - - - -
Reclassifications 53 (28} 28 - 53
Disposals - 200 2119 | 332 3 651
Depreciation (3 (1 522) (1 221y (6 798) {9 554)
Imparrment Josses - {204} (119} - (323)
At end of year (13) (10 128} (11 65%) {29 488) (51 288)
Net book value 5 945 14 399 3610 107 551 131 505
2006
Cost
At beginning of year I 107 24 764 7 851 3598l 79 703
Exchange adjustiments 29 402 | 143 | 795 3 369
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings - (2 497) (559) (2 070) (5 126}
Additions - 403 1122 2 542 4 067
Disposals - {7 (451) (3 353) (38it)
At end of year | 136 23 065 19 106 34 895 78 202
Accumulated depreciation
Al beginning of year (45) (9 436) (13 198) {28 295) (50 974}
Exchange adjustments - (472) (1 156) (1 567) (3 195)
Drspesal of subsidiary undertakmgs - 2188 529 | 887 4 604
Cusposals - - 131 3720 3851
Depreciation {8 (4 150) (792) (3 622) (5572}
At end of year (53) (8 870} (14 486) (27 877) (51 286}
Net book value 1083 14 195 4620 7018 26 916




At 31 March 2007 2006

£'000

21 lnvestment properties

At beginning of year 163 049 202 352

Additions 680 12 847

Disposals (57 992) (94 524)

Revaluation 17 339 28 301

Exchange adjustment (37 652) 14 073

At end of year 85 424 163 049

The group values its mvestment properties twice annually The properties were valued by directors who

are qualified valuators The valuation 1s performed by capitatising the budgeted annual net income of a

property at the market related yield applicable at the ume Investment properties are carried at fair value

22 Goodwill

Cost

At beginning of year 250 410 249 358

Acguisiton of subsidiaries 22 675 9 487

Cisposal of subsidiares - {9 115)

Exchange adjustments (30 558) 680

At end of year 242 527 250 410

Accumulated impairments

At beginning of year (66 850) (50 045)

Income statement amount 2569 (21 356)

Exchange adjustments 17 637 4 551

At end of year (46 644) (66 850}

Net book value 195 883 183 560

Analysis of goodwill by line of business and geagraphy

UK and Europe

Private Banking 17 434 17 336

Capital Markets 13720 13787

Investment Banking 33498 6112

Asset Management 88 045 88 045
152 697 125 480

South Africa

Private Clent Portfolo Management and Stockbreking 2 550 3371

Asset Management 24 067 40 115

Property Activities 310 3601
26 927 46 487

Australia

Investrment Banking 16 259 i1 593
16 259 11593

Total group 195 883 t83 560

Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if evidence exasts that goodwill might be mparred

The recoverable amount of goodwill 1s determined based on expecled cashflows within the cash generating units of the group to which
the goodwill 1s allocated Key assumpuions within the calculation include discount rates, growth rates n revenue and related

expenditure
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

22 Goodwill (continued)

Discount rates are armved at based on pre-tax rates that reflect current market conditions, adjusted for the specific risks assocated
with the cash generating unit Growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts Cash flow forecasts are based on most recent
financial budgets for the next finzncial year ang are extrapolated for a period of 3 years, adusted for expected future events

Goodwill ansing on acquisition of £33 3 million related to the acquisition of Midwest Grain Processors LLC by Global Ethanol Holdings
and the acquisiiuon of Idatech LLC  See Note 24

On 7 july 2006 Investec Bank (LK) Limited ("IBUK") acquired the entire share capital of NM Rothschild Australia Holdings Pty Limited
and its subsidiary NM Rothschild and Sons (Austraha) Liruted {"Rothschild") resulung in negative goodwill of £10 680 000 which has
been released to the income statement At acquisttion Rolhschild changed 1ts name to Investec Australia Limited ("lAL") and on
29 September 2006 all the assets and labilities of AL were transferred to IBUK's subsidiary, Investec Bank (Australia) Limited

2007

The income statement amount comprises

- £81 millon in respect of the portfolio of businesses acquired from the Fedsure Group The imparment calculation was based on
a discounted cashflow valuation, utdising a discount rate of {0% £6 1 milllon of the Impairment was in the Asset Management
segment and £2 million was in the Property segment

- NM Rothschild and Sons (Australia) Limited was acguired in the current year at a discount to net asset value resulting in negative
goadwill of £107 million which has been released to the income statement,

2006

Impairment losses comprises

- £214 million in respect of the portfolio of businesses acquired from Fedsure Group The mparment calculation was based on a
discounted cashflow valuation, utiising a discount rate of 12 3%




At 31 March Acquired | Acqured | Internally Core Intellectual Total
£'000 contracts software | generated | technology | property

software
23 Intangible assets
2007
Cost
At beginning of year 7071 17216 | 257 - - 25 544
Exchange adjustments (3 343) 2317y 3e7) (245) (266) (6 538)
Acquisition of subsidiary - 4 - 5354 5743 110l
Additions It 635 9982 I 519 - 208 23 344
Disposals - (242) - - - (242)
At end of year 15 363 24 643 2 409 5109 5 685 53 209
Accumulated amorusavon and impairments
At beginning of year {930) (13 949) (571) - - (15 450)
Exchange adjustments 713 | 799 423 - - 2935
Disposals - 84 - - - 84
Amortisation (1510 (2212) (766) (222) (238) (4 949)
At end of year (I 728) (14 278) (914) (222) {(238) {17 380)
Net book value 13 635 10 365 | 495 4 887 5 447 15 829
2006
Cost
At beginning of year 5 066 14 624 579 - 20 269
Exchange adjustments 249 654 86 %89
Disposal of a subsidiary undertaking - (976) - - (376)
Additions 2863 3097 592 - 6552
Dhsposals (1 107) (183) - - (1 290)
At end of year 7 071 17216 | 257 - - 25 544
Accumulated amorusanon and impairments
At beginning of year (12722 (174) - - (12 896)
Exchange adjustments (572) (40) - - (612)
Disposal of a subsidiary undertaking 576 - - - 976
Disposals - 140 41 - - 181
Impairment {118) - - - - (1186)
Amortisation (814) (1771 (398) - - {2 983)
At end of year (930} (13 949) (571) - - (15 450)
Net book value 6 141 3267 686 - - G094

Charge to the profit and loss account in 2007 of £4 949 000 compnises the following
Amortisation of acquired contracis core technology, intellectual property and computer software of £4 949 000
The amortisation of acquired contracts 1s included in business expenses

Charge to the profit and loss account i 2006 of £3 099 000 compnises the following

Amortisation of acquired contracts and computer software of £2 983 000

- Acquired contracts imparment of £116 000 in respect of a property management company The impawrment calculation was based

on discounted cash flow

The amortisation and impairment of acquired contracts is included in business expenses
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

24 Acquisiuons and disposals

2007

The group made the following acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings in the year ended 31 March 2007 which were accounted for on
an acquisition basis

1 On 7 july 2006 investec Bank (UK) Limited (IBUK™) acquired the entire share capital of N'M Rothschild Austraia Holdings Pty
Limited and its subsidiary, NM Rothschild and Sons (Australia) Limited ("Rothschuld”) resulting in negative goodwill of £10 680 000
which has been released to the income statement. At acquisition, Rothschild changed its name to Investec Australia Limited (IAL")
and on 29 September 2006 all the assets and llabihtes of AL were transferred to IBUK's subsidiary, Investec Bank (Australia)
Limited (IBAL) In the perod between acquisition and the transfer of all the assets and liabilitres 1AL the profit made of acquired
company was £12 000

The acquisition was satisfied by the payment of cash Assets and labilities at the date of acquisition and total consideration pard are
disclosed in the table below

£'000 Book value | Fair value | Fair values
at date of | adjustment | at date of
acquisition acquisttion
Cash and balances at central banks 10582 - 10 582
Loans and advances 1o banks 31 950 - 31 950
Trading securities 434 309 - 434 309
Derwvative financial iInstruments 101 Q47 - 101 047
Loans and advances 1o customers 207 341 (7 725) 199 616
Deferred taxation assets | 187 | 725 2912
Other assets 3063 - 3063
Property and equipment 555 (140} 415
790 034 (6 140) 783 894
Deposits by banks 77 050 - 77 050
Dervative financial instruments 73 191 - 73 191
Customer accounts 497 024 - 497 024
Other habilities 6113 | 953 8 066
Subordinated habilities 40 634 - 40 634
694 012 1953 695 965
Net assets / fair value of net assets 96 022 (8 093) 87 929
MNegative goodwill arising on acguisition (10 680)
Fair value of consideration 77 249

n In May 2006, Global Ethanol Holdings Limited (“GEHL"), acquired a 60% holding m Midwest Grain Processors LLC, a company
engaged In the production and marketing of ethanol In the USA The acquisition was financed by the issue of equity and shareholder
loans which resulted in the Investec group hawng a 71 4% holding in GEHL During the year GEHL has also completed a small
number of acquisitons For the period since Acquisihon GEHL contributed £1 646 000 to the group's profit before tax

m On |9 July 2006, IBUK acquired a 99 73% holding in IdaTech LLC a company engaged in the development of fuel processors and
fuel call systems in the USA The acquisition was satisfied by the payment of cash For the period since Acquisiion the loss before
tax included in the group s results was £2 329 000

v On 17 October 2006 investec Property Group Limited (a subsidiary of Investec Limited) acquired a 100% holding in Spire
Property Services (Ply) Ltd, a company engaged in the management of properties The acquisition was satisfied by the payment of
cash




24 Acquisitons and disposals {contnued)

Assets and habibties at the date of acquisition and total consideration paid are set out in the table below

Other acquisitions Book value § Fair value | Fair values
£'000 at date of | adjusunent | at date of
acquisition acquisiton
Loans and advances to banks 2862 - 2 862
Other assets 14 778 - 4 778
Property and equipment 83 002 10011 23013
Intangible assets | 464 20 084 21 548
Total assets 102 106 30 095 32 201
Deposits by banks 38 432 - 38 432
Other labilibies 10 522 6 469 16 991
Deferred tax habilities - 3307 3307
Minority interests 22 9! - 22 091
Total habilivies and minorities 71 045 9776 80 821
Fair value of net assets 31 06! 20 319 51 380
Goodwill 33 355
Fair value of consideratton . 84 735
In summary total far value of consideration less cash ansing on acquisitions 151 402
2006
Acquisitions

The group made the following acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings or net assets and operations in the year ended 31 March 2006

which were accounted for en an acquisitien basts

1 InJune 2005 £2 4 mitlion of goodwill arose on the acquisition of a leasmg book.

1 In October 2005 the group acquired 100% of [ersey based trust group, Quorum Holdings Limited, resutting in £25 million of
goodwill

mIn January 2006 lavestec Portfolio Management was acquired resulting in £4 2 million of goodwill

The acquisiions were satisfied by the payment of cash Assets and habilities at the date of acquisiton and total consideration paid are
disclosed in the table below

£'000 Book value | Fair value | Far values

at date of | adjustment | at date of

vaUISIthn B.CqLHSItIOn
Loans and advances to banks 280 - 280
Loans and advances to customer 89 254 - 89 254
Intangible assets 3117 - 3117
Other assets 1 030 93 | 123
Total assets 93 681 93 93 774
Other labilues (661) - (661)
Net assets / far value of net assets 93 020 93 93 il3
Goodwill ansing on acquisiion 9 487
Fair value of consideration 102 600
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

24 Acquisiucns and disposals (conunued)

2006

Disposals

1 The group disposed of s interest in Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite Limted ("CSC") to Rensburg plc {now renamed Rensburg

Sheppards plc } on 6 May 2005

£000 £000
227 milkton Rensburg shares issued at £499 113 273
Subardinated loan 60 000
Total consideration for sale of CSC 173273
Apportionment - gan equals 52 3% of total 90 622
(as Investec retans 47 7% of Rensburg plc)
Less 52 3% of CSC's net assets (11 092)
Net assets 12 128
Goodwill 9080
21 208
Net gain on drsposal of CSC - 79 530
Net loss on disposal of other group undertakings (1027)
Garn on disposal of group undertakings 78 503
I The group completed the disposat of its broker dealer in the Unrted States, Investec {(US) Inc, on
|7 March 2006
There was no impact on goodwili

m  Total cashflow on disposal 15 as detailed in the table beiow
Goodwill 9115
Total other assets 71 059
Total habihties (502 829)

(422 655)
Minorities (15 888)
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 73573

{364 970}

~  Other minor disposals results in net adjustments of £35 000 to goodwll




At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
25 Long-term assurance business attributable to policyholders
Liabirzes to customers under investment contracts
nvestec Employee Benelits Lirmited (IEB}) 516 257 934 034
Investec Assurance Limited 2487 997 | 2554722
Insurance habilites including unit -inked habiliues - |EB 20 743 139818
Reinsurance habilites - [EB 992824 | 1431 876
Total policyholder habilities 4017 821 | 5060 450
lnvestec Employee Benefits Limited
The assets of the long-term assurance fund atinbutable to pobcyholders are detaled below
Investments 529515 | 1039611
Remnsurance assets 992824 | 1431876
Other assets 7 486 34 243
| 529 825 2505730
Investments abave comprise
Interest bearing securities 79 248 142 490
Stacks shares and unit trusts 344 043 577 511
Deposits 106 228 319610
5295191 103961t
Investec Assurance Limited
The assets of the long-term assurance fund attrbutable to policyholders are detalled below
Investments 2389 177 | 2502473
Debtors and prepayments &7 352 7618
Other assets 3] 468 44 631
2487 997 | 2554 722
Assets of long-term assurance fund attributable to policyhoiders
Investments shown above comprise
Interest bearing securities 159 395 329 137
Stocks shares and unit trusts | 448799 ] | 43% 185
Depasits 780 983 734 151
2389177 ! 2502473
The business of lnvestec Assurance Limited s that of linked business with retirement {unds
The retirement funds hold units in a pooled porifolio of assets via a linked policy issued by the
company The assets are beneficially held by Investec Assurance Limited Due 1o the nature of a linked
policy Investec Assurance Lirmited’s liability to the policyholders 15 equal to the market value of the
assets underlying the policies
Long-term assurance activities linked to policyholders
Income statement items related to assurance actvities
Investment income on assurance activities 36 821 141 559
Premiums and reinsurance recoveries in msurance contracts 80 542 164 631
Claims and remsurance premiums on insurance busimess (10149231 (293 135)
Operating expenses (4 225) {1 534)
Net income before taxation 1 646 Il 521
Taxation (477) (10 478)
Net income afier taxatron {169 I 043
26 Other trading liabilines
Short positions
equibies 245 658 378 386
gilts 76 205 78 868
321 863 457 254
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 3t March 2007 2006
£'000
17 Debt securiues in 1ssue
Bonds and medium term notes repayable
Up to one year 614 506 598 618
Greater than one year but less than five years 502 937 335939
Greater than five years 6 269 -
1123712 934 557
Other unlisted debt securrties in issue repayable
Not more than three months 782 992 961 748
Over three months but not more than one year | 261 081 | [02] 349
Qver one year bul not more than five years 165 93| 32 449
2210004 | 2015546
3333716 | 2950103
Bonds that are listed on the Bond Exchange of South Africa have maturity dates as noted below
£99 0 miliion
Final legal matunty of 20 April 2024
The group, subject to certain conditions being met, may at its discretion redeem these bonds at
an earher date but not before 20 Apnil 201 |
£89 8 million
Final legal matunty of 15 November 2029
The group, subject io certam conditions being met, may at its discretion redeem these bonds at
an earler date but not before |5 Novernber 2007
£162 0 milhon
Final legal matunty of |5 October 2031
The group, subject to certain conditions being met may at its discretion redeem these bonds at
an earlier date but not before 15 July 2009
£1409 milion
Final legal matunity of |5 November 2032
The group, subject to certan conditions being met may at s discretion redeem these bonds at
an earlier date but not before 15 Novernber 2010
28 Other habilities
Settlement liabilities | 136 578 893 340
Curnulative redeemable preference shares including acerued dividends 186 672 286 810
Other credilors and accruals 260 331 90 949
Gther non interest bearing habilibes 206 824 311757
1790405 | | 582856




At 31 March 2007 2006
£000

1% Pension commitments

Income statement charge

“Defined benefit cbligations (896) 266
Defined contributions 16 281 13 064
Pension and prowvident fund contrbutions 15 385 13 330

The group operates pension schemes throughout its areas of operation The majority of the schemes are defined contribution schernes
with the exception of two schemes in the United Kingdom being the Guinness Mahon Pension Fund Scheme ("GM Scheme®) and the
Investec Asset Management Pension Scheme ("JAM Scheme®) Both schemes are final salary pension plans with assets held n separate
trustee administered funds The schemes are closed ta new members and the accrual of service ceased on 31 March 2002 The
schemes have been valued at 31 March 2007 by qualified independent actuaries n accordance with 1AS 19 There were no unpaid
contributions, In relation (o the defined contribution schemes, outstanding at the year end

The major assumptions used were

At 31 March i 2007 { 2006 I
Discount rate 5 40% S500%
Rate of increase in salaries 300% 300%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 290% 270%
Inflation 310% 290%

Demographic assumpuons

One of the most sgnificant demographic assumptions underlying the valuation 1s mortahty The specfic mortality rates used are based
on the PMASZ ang PFAS2 base tables, altough the rate of future increases in life expectancies has been increased for the 2007
valuations The ife expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows

| 2007 | 2006 |

Male aged 65 87 85
Female aged 65 90 88
Male aged 45 88 87
Female aged 45 91 90

The assets held in the schemes ana the expected rates of return were

Value at Long term Value at Long term
2007 rate of return 2006 rate of return
£'000 expected £'000 expected
GM Scheme
Equities 40 122 7 60% 41 931 7 30%
Gikts 53873 4 60% 47 462 4 30%
Cash 1 361 525% 3782 4 50%
Total market value of assets 95 356 93175
1AM Scheme
Equities 7 363 7 60% 6231 7 30%
Gilts | 841 4 60% 2256 430%
Cash 484 525% 519 450%
Total market value of assets 9 588 9 006
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

29 Pension commitments (contnued)
The following amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in accordance with IAS {9

£000 2007 2006
GM 1AM Total GM 1AM Total

Recogrised in the balance sheet

Fair value of fund assets 95 356 9 688 105 044 93 175 9 006 i02 181
Present vaiue of obligations (91 178) {11155} (102 333) (89 927) (11019 (100 946)
Net asset/{liability) 4178 () 467) 2711 3248 (2013) 1235

Amounts in balance sheet -
Assets 4178 - 4178 3 248 - 3248
Liabity - (1 467) {l 467) - (2013) (2013)
Net asset/{liability) 4178 (I 467) 2711 3248 (2013) 1 235

Recognised in the income statement

Past service cost - (4) %) - {(187) (187)
Expected return on pension scheme assels 5272 588 5 860 4 452 487 4939
Interest on pension obligations @49 (546) (4 960) (4 478) (547) (5018)
Net return 858 38 896 (19 (247) (266)
Recogmised in the statement of recognised

tncome and expense

Actuarial {lossesygains on pian assets (3315) (254} (3 569) 8125 1177 9 302
Actuarial gains/(losses) (165) 206 41 (5 765) {630} (6 395)
Actuarial (loss)/gain (3 480) (48) (3 528) 2 360 547 2 907
Deferred tax 1 044 14 | 058 (708) (164) (872)
Actuarial (loss)/gan in statement of recognised

income and expense (2 43¢) (34) (2 470) | 652 383 2035
Actuat return/(defiat) on plan assets 2162 (334) | 828 12 162 (I 664) 10 498

The cumulauve amount of net actuanal losses recognised in the statement of recogrised i the statement of recogmised income and
expense 15 £13 | million (£9 2 milion net of deferred tax) 2006 £96 million (£6 7 milhon of deferred tax)




29 Pension commitments {conunued)

At 3} March GM 1AM Total
£'000

Changes i the fair value of defined benefic obligations

Defined benefit obligation at 3t March 2005 82 g7t 9 857 92 728
Interest cost 4 47§ 547 5018
Actuarial losses 5765 630 6 395
Past service cost - 187 187
Benefits paid {3 180) (202) (3 382)
Qpening defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2006 89 927 b 019 100 946
Interest cost 4 414 546 4960
Actuanal losses/(gains) 165 (206) “4n
Past service cost - 4 4
Benefits paid (3 328) (208} (3 536)
Closing defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2007 91 178 I 155 102 333
Changes in the fair value of plan assets

Assets at 31 March 2005 74 447 7 290 81 737
Expected return 4 452 487 4939
Actuanal gains 8125 I 177 9302
Contributions by the employer 9 331 254 9 585
Benefits paid (3 180) (202) (3 382)
Opening defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2006 93 175 2 006 102 181
Expected retumn 5272 588 5 860
Actuaral losses (3 315) (254) (3 569)
Contributions by the employer 3552 556 4 108
Benefits paid (3 328) (208) (3 536)
Closing fair value of plan assets at 31 March 2007 95 356 9 688 1G5 044
The group expects 1o make £4 | million of contributions to the defined benefit schemes in 2008

History of experience gans and losses 2007 2006 2005
GM Scheme

Defined benefit oblhigation (91 178) (8% 227) (82 871)
Plan assels 95 356 93 175 74 447
(Deficity/surplus 4178 3248 (8 424)
Experience adjustments on plan labilibes (165) (5 769) 1 731
Experience adjustments on plan assets (3 31%) 8125 | 905
1AM Scheme

Defined benefit obligation (11 155) (V1 019) (9 857)
Plan assets 9 688 9 006 7290
(Deficit)/surplus (I 467) (2013) (2 567)
Expenence adjstrments on plan habihies 206 (630) {(442)
Experience adjustments on plan assets (254) | 177 192

Financial statements {Investec plc and Investec Limited)

211




ra

Financial statements {Investec ple and Investec Limited)

[ =]

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000

30 Subordinated habiliues

Issued by Investec Finance plc

- a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Bank (UK) Limited which 1s

a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec plc

Guaranteed subordinated step-up notes 195 055 200 306
Guaranteed undated subordinated callable step-up notes 345 658 -
Issued by Investec Bank (LK) Limited
Zero coupon bonds 2t 254 25 377
Issued by Investec Australia Limited

Guaranieed subordinated medium term notes 41 077 -

Issued by Investec Bank Limited
- a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Limited

Unsecured subardinated compulsonly convertible debentures (CCD's) 19 079 23933
Class "C" unsecured subordinated CCDs - 4 (083
16% subordinaied bonds 2012 issued in South Afncan Rand 37 053 182 891
V032 12 55% Subordinated unsecured callable bonds 70 443 93 264
IVO3 16% subordinated bonds 2017 1ssued in South African Rand 101 086

830 705 529 854

All subordinated debt issued by Investec Limited and its subsidianies s denominated in South African Rand

Remaining maturity

In more than one year, but not more than two years 26 969 4 083
In more than two years but not more than five years 286 549 249 616
In more than five years 517 187 276 155

830 705 529 854

The only event of default 1 relation to the subordinated debt 15 the non-payment of principal or interest. The only remedy avaslable
to the holders of the subordinated debt in the event of default 1s to pettion for the winding up of the company In a winding up no
amount will be paid in respect of the subordinated debt until all other creditors have been paid in full

The compulsonly convertible debentures issued by Investec Bank Limited were spht at 1ssue into therr debi and equity components
The equity components were sold 1o employee share trusts The debl components were sold to third parues, represented by the
amounis above

Guaranteed subordmated step-up notes

On | March 2004 Investec Finance plc issued £200 000 000 of 7 75% guaranteed subordinated step-up notes due 2016 at a discount
Interest 1s paid annually The notes are guaranteed by Investec Bank (UK} Limited and are hsted on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
The step-up notes may be redeemed by the 1ssuer; at par, at any time after | March 201 | subject to the prior consent of the Financal
Services Authority On | March 201 | the interest rate will be reset to becormne the aggregate of 3 5% and the gross redemption yield
of the relevant benchmark gilt

Guaranteed undated subordinated callable step-up notes

On 23 January 2007 Investec Finance plc issued £350 000 000 of 6 25% guaranteed undated subordinated step-up notes callable 2017
at a discount Interest 15 pard semi-annually The notes are guaranteed by Investec Bank (UK) Limited and are hsted on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange The step-up notes may be redeemed by the issuer, at par, at any time afier 23 January 2017, subject to the prior
consent of the Financial Services Authority On 23 January 2017 the interest rate will be reset to become three month LIBOR plus
2 1 1% payable quarterly i arrears




30 Subordinated labilities (continued)

As a result on the acquisition of NM Rothschid and Sons (Austraha) Litited, as shown in note Investec Australia Limited now has the
following subordinated debt instruments in issue

Guaranteed subordinated medium term notes

A3$53 500 000 of floating rate mediurn term notes (MTN) ssued on 3 December 2004 at 3 month Bank Bills Swap Rate (BBSW) plus
| 05% The maturity date 1s 3rd December 2014 Interest s payzble quarterly up to and excluding the early redemption date 3
December 2009 After this date, if the issuers call 1s not exercsed, the interest will be the aggregate of 3 month BBSW plus | 55%
payable quarterly in arrears

A%21 500 000 of fixed rate MTN at 6 75% 1ssued on the 3 December 2004 The maturity date 1s 3 December 2014 Interest is payable
semi-annually up to and excluding the early redemption date 3 December 2009 After this date, if the 1ssuers call 1s not exercised the
MTN will convert to floating rate and the nterest will be the aggregate of 3 month BBSW plus | 55% payable quarterly in arrears

A$25 000 000 of floating rate MTN issued on |0 August 2005 at 3 month BBSW plus 090 per cent. The matunty date s
[0 August 2015 Interest 1s payable quarterly up to and excluding the early redemption date 10 August 2010 After this date f the
issuers calf 1s not exercised, the interest will be the aggregate of 3 month BBSW plus | 40% payable quarterly in arrears

Zero coupon bonds
On 31 July 2006 Investec Bank (UK) Limiled tssued 10 000 zero coupon bonds of USH! 000 each at an effective yield of 4 48% The
bonds mature on the 31july 2009

On |16 November 2004 Investec Bank (UK} Limited issued 10 434 zero coupon bonds of £1 000 each at an effective yield of 6948%
The bonds mature on the t6 November 2009

On 29 July 2004 Investec Bank (UK) Limited issued (7 000 zero coupon bonds of US$I 000 each at an effective yield of 457% The
obonds matured on the 31 July 2006

On 29 March 2004 Investec Bank (UK) Limited 1ssued 9 253 zero coupon bonds of £1 000 each at an effective yield of 6 89094% The
bends mature on 25 March 2009

Unsecured subordinated CCDs
The CCDs will convert into investec Bank Limited ordinary shares on a one for one basis on 31 July 2008 The company at its
discretion, may at the request of the holder convert at an earher date

The Investec Bank Limtted shares arising out of the conversion have been sold forward by the holder thereof to Investec Limited in
exchange for 17 869 970 Irvestec Limited ordinary shares

Class C unsecured CCD's
The equity component of the 2 GO0 000 Class C unsecured subordinated compulsonly convertble debentures were acquired by
Investec Limited on 18 June 2002 in exchange for the issue of 10 000 000 Investec Limited shares

16% subordinated bonds 2012 issued in South African Rand

RI 961 milhon (2006 - RI 961 million) Investec Bank Limited 16% local registered unsecured subordinated bonds are due in 2012
Interest 15 paid six monthly in arrears on 31 March and 30 September at a rate of 16% per annum The setllement date of the bonds
15 31 March 2012

IV02 12 55% Subordinated unsecured callable bonds

R1 000 milion (2006 - &1 000 milion) Investec Bank Limted V02 subordinated 12 55% unsecured callable bonds The bonds
redemption date is 31 March 2013 but the company has the option to call the bond on 31 March 2008 If not called the bonds will
switch to a floating rate of 3 month Jibar plus 300 basis points payable quartetly in arrears untd maturity

iV03 16% subordinated bonds 2017 issued in South African Rand

RI 435 miflion {2006 nil} lnvestec Bank Limited local registered unsecured subordinated bonds are due in 2017 Interest 15 pad at a
rate of 16% per annum until 31 March 2012, whereafter the iterest rate will change to a floating rate of 3-month Jibar plus 204 basis
potnts until maturity Interest 1s paid six monthly In arrears on 31 March and 30 September at a rate of 16% per annum The settlement
date of the bonds 15 31 March 2017
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March 2007 2006

31 Called up share capital

Investec ple

Authorised

The authorised share capital of Investec plc1s £177 500 (2006 £167 500) compnising

560 000 000 (2006 560 000 000) ordinary shares of £00002 each 277 500 000 {2006 277 500 0OC)

Special Converting Shares of £00002 each, | (2006 |) Special Voting share of £0001

each, | (2006 1) UK DAN Share of £00C) and | (2006 1) UK DAS Share of £0001

1 000 000 (2006 | 000 000} non-cumulative perpetual preference Shares of e0 01

Issued, allotted and fully pad

Number of ordinary shares Number Number
As previously reported 74 633 746
Restated for subdmision on 5 for | basts that took place on 4 September 2006 373 168 730 (373 168 730
Issued during the year 8 444 477 -
At end of year 381 613 207 (373 168 730
Nomnal value of ordinary shares £'000 £'000
Al beginning of year 74 74
lssued during the year 2 -
At end of year 76 74
Number of special converung shares Number Number
As previously reported 43 999 527
Restated for subdvision on 5 for | basis that took place on 4 September 2006 219 997 635|219 997 635
Issued dunng the year 7673785 -
At end of year 227 671 420|719 997 635
Nominal value of special converung shares £'000 £'000
At beginning of year 44 44
Issued during the year 2 -
At end of year 46 44
Number of UK DAN shares Number Number
At beginning and end of year | |
Nominal value of UK DAN share £000 £'000
At beginning and end of year * *
Number of UK DAS shares Number Number
At beginning and end of year I 1
Nominal value of UK DAS share £'000 £000
At beginning and end of year * -
Number of special voung shares Number Number
At beginning and end of year | {
Nommal value of special vaung share £'000 £'000

At beginning anc end of year

*  Less than £1 000




At 31 March

2007

2006

31 Called up share capral (conunued)
Investec Limited

Authorised

The authorised share capital of Ynvestec Limited 1s South Afncan Rand | 205 502 (2006 R | 205 502),
comprising 277 500 000 (2006 277 500 00C) ordinary shares of South African Rand 00002 each

40 000 000 (2006 40 000 000) Class* A" vanable rate compulsonly convertible non-cumulative
preference shares of South African Rand 00002 each 50 000 (2006 50 000) variable rate cumulative
redeemable preference shares of South African Rand Q 60 cents each, 100 000 000

(2006 100 000 000) non-redeemable non-cumulative non-participating preference shares of RO QI
each, | (2006 1) Dmdend Access (South Afncan Resident) redeemable preference share of | South
African Rand, | (2006 1) Dwidend Access (Non-South African Resident)redeemable preference share
of | South African Rand, 560 000 000 (2006 560 000 000) convertible redeemable preference shares
of South Afncan Rand 00002 each (spectal converting shares)

Issued, allotted and fully paid

Number of ordinary shares
As previously reported

Restated for subdivision on 5 for | basis that took place on 4 September 2006
Issued during the year
At end of year

Nominal value of ordinary shares
At beginning of year

Issued during the year

At end of year

Number of special converting shares
As previously reported

Restated for subdmsion on 5 for | basis that took place on 4 September 2006
lssued during the year
At end of year

Nominal value of special converting shares
At beginning of year

Issued during the year

Az end of year

Number of SA DAN shares
At beginning and end of year

Nominal value of SA DAN share
At beginning and end of year

Number of SA DAS shares
At beginning and end of year

Norminal value of SA DAS share - GBP
At beginning and end of year

*  Less than £1 000

Nominal value of ssued, allotted and fully paird called up share capital of Investec plc and Investec
Limited

Total cafled up share caprtal

Less held by Investec Limited

Less held by Investec plc

Total called up share capital

Number

219 997 635

7 673785

227 671 420
£'000

46

*

44

Number

373 168 730

8 444 477

381 613 207

£'000

Number
|

£'000
Number
|

£'000

173

()
169

Number
43 999 527

219 997 635

219 997 635
€'000

46

46

Number
74 633 746

373 168 730

373 168 730

£'000
5

Number
|

£'000
Number
|

£'000

169

(4)
165
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

31 Called up share capial {continued)

The Investec Limited shares were 1ssued n South Afncan Rand The amounts recorded above were calculated by reference to historic
Sterhing/Rand exchange rates

The holder of 3 700 000 Investec Limited shares has agreed to warive its nght to dvidends untd 31 March 2008 In terms of the Dual
Listed Companies Structure, shareholders have commeon economic and voting nights as If lnvestec Limited and Investec plc were a
single company These include equivalent dvidends on a per share basis, jont electorate and class rght variations The UK DAS share

UK DAN share, SA DAS share the SA DAN share and the special converting shares have been issued to achieve this A portion of
the unissued shares are under the control of the directors untl the next Annual General Meeting

Staff Share Scheme

The group operates a share option and a share purchase scheme for employees The number of ordinary shares conditionally allocated
to employees are disclosed in note 4

Movements in the number of share options 1ssued to (each option 15 In respect of one share) employees are as follows

For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
Number Number#

Qutstanding at | April 62 006 580 | 71 822 900
Issued during the year 14 267 529 | 8755310
Exercised (13 656 354)|(i5 092 605)
Lapsed (3 045 503)| (3 479 025)
Qutstanding at 31 March 59 572 252 | 62 006 580

The purpose of the Staff Share Scherne is to promote an "esprit de corps” within the organisation, create an awareness of Investec's
performance and provide an incentive to maximise Individual and group performance by allowing all staff to share in the risks and
rewards of the group

The group makes awards available to staff members wvia the underlying share trusts The particular mstrument used varies from tme (o
time depending on taxaton legislation and factors affecting the group structure Nevertheless, whatever the instrument chosen, its
underlying value depends salely on the performance 1o groups share price

At present, the practice of the group s to give all permanent staff members a share allocation based on ther annual package after
completing six months of employment. In ne with the objective of providing a long-term incentive for staff these share awards rest
over periods varying from five 10 esght years

After the inital aliocation referred to above, additional allocations are made to staff members at the discretion of group management
and depending on the individual performance, and contribution made by, the respective staflf members

The extent of the director's interest in the incentive schemes 1s detalled on page (33

~

Restated for the share subdmsion of 5 shares for | that took place on 4 September 2006




At 31 March 2007 2006
32 Treasury shares
Treasury shares held by subsidiaries of Investec Limited and Investec plc £'000 £000
Investec plc ordinary shares 33 462 32 221
nvestec Limited ordinary shares 67 610 54 629
Options held to acquire Investec plc and Investec Limited shares 8 207 9 450
109 279 96 300
Number Number?
Investec plc ordinary shares held by subsidianes 3588 111 | 17292 125
Investec Limited ordinary shares held by subsidiaries 26901 375 | 23 122 106
Investe¢ ple and investec Limited shares held by subsidiaries 30 489 486 | 40 414 231
Reconcilation of treasury shares Number Number#
Al beginning of year 40 414 231 148098 496
Purchase of own shares by subsidiary companies 25011 167 | 7 227 490
Shares disposed of by subsidiaries (3493591 2)[(14 911 755)
Al end of year 30 489 486 | 40 414 231
Market value of treasury shares £'000 £'000
tnvestec plc 23 610 101 712
Investec Limited 76 805 135023
200 415 236 735

~

Restated for the share subdivision of 5 shares for | that took place on 4 September 2006
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
33 Perpetual preference shares of holding company
Authorised
100 000 000 (2006 100 000 000) non redeemable, non cumulative, non-participating preference
shares of one cent each
10C 000 000 (2006 nd) non redeemable, non cumulative, non-partcipating preference shares of
£0C0leach
Issued by Investec Limited
22 182 000 (2006 22 182 000) non-redeemable, non-cumulative, non-partiapating preference
shares of one cent each, 1ssved at a premium of R104 49 per share 162 615 215 305
Preference shareholders will be entitled to receive dividends if declared, at a rate of 70% of prime
interest rate on RIQQ being the deemed value of the 1ssue price of the preference share held
Preference shareholders receive dividends in priority to any payment of dvidends to the holder of any
other class of shares in the capial of the company not ranking prior or pan passu with the preference
shares
An ordinary dvidend will not be declared by Investec Limited unless the preference dvidend has been
declared If dectared preference dividends are payable semr-annually at least seven business days prior
to the date on which Investec Limited pays s ordinary dvidends if any but shall be payable no later
than 120 business days after 31 March and 30 September respectively
Issued by Investec pic
9 381 149 (2006 m) non-redeemable, non-cumulatve non-participating preference shares of £001
each 1ssued at a premium of £8 58 per share 79 584 -
5 700 000 (2006 ril) non-redeemable, non-cumulative non-par Licipating preference shares of £0 01
each 1ssued at a premium of £8 86 per share 49 974 -
Preference shareholders will recerve an annual dwvidend if declared, based on the coupon rate (being
equivalent to the base rate plus 1%) multiphed by the deemed value, on a daily basis and payable in
two sermi-annual Instalments
An ordinary dividend will not be declared by Investec ple unless the preference dmvidend has been
declared If declared preference dmidends are payable semi-annually at least seven business days prior
to the date on which Investec plc pays its ordinary dvidends, if any but shall be payable no later than
} 20 business days after 31 March and 30 September respectively
292173 215 305




At 31 March
£'000

2007

2006

34 Minority mterests

Minority mterests in partially held subsidiaries
Perpetual preferred securrties issued by subsidiaries

Perpetual preferred securities 1ssued by subsidraries

Issued by investec plc subsidiaries

€200 000 000 (2006 2200 000 000) fixed/floating rate guaranteed non-voting non-cumulative
perpetual preferred securtiies (Preferred Securities) were 1ssued by Investec Teer | {UK) LF a mited
partnership organised under the laws of England and VWales) on 24 June 2005 The Preferred
Securtties, which are guaranteed by Investec ple, are callable at the option of the issuer subject to the
approval of the Financial Services Authonity, on the tenth anniversary of the issue and, I not cafled are
subject Lo a step up i coupon of one and a half times the initral credit spread above the three month
euro-zone Interbank offered rate Until the tenth anniversary of the issue, the dividend on the Preferred
Securities will be at 7075 per cent The first annual dvidend 1s due on the 24 June 2006 The issuer
has the oplion not to pay a distnbution when 1t falls due but this would then prevent the payment

of ordinary dividends by the company

Under the terms of the issue there are pravisions for the Preferred Secunties to be substituted for
preference shares issued by the company if Investec plc's capital ratios fall below the minimum level
permitted by the regulator

Issued by Investec Limited subsidiaries
IS 000 000 (2006 15 000 000) non-redeemable non-cumulative non-participating preference shares
of one cent each sssued at a prermium of R99 99 per share

Preference shareholders will be entitled to receive dwidends at a rate of 75% of the South African
prime interest rate of the face value of the preference shares held Preference shareholders recene
dwvidends in priority to any payment of dividends to the holder of any other class of shares in the
capital of the company not ranking prior or par passu with the preference shares

An ordinary dvidend will not be declared by Investec Bank Limited unless the preference dividend has
been declared If declared preference dwidends are payable semi-annually at least seven business days
prior to the date on which Investec Bank Limited pays its ordinary dmidends, «f any but shall be payable
no later than |20 business days after 31 March and 30 September respectively

50 597
241 081
291 678

136 051

105 030

241 08I

7142
278 459
285 601

139 402

139 057

278 459
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

At 3| March 2007 2006
£'000 Total future | Present [ Total future| Present
minmum value minimum value
payments payments

35 Miscellaneous balance sheet items

Finance lease receivables included in loans and advances to customers

Lease recevables due in

Less than | year 55 792 43 759 41 752 32 655

I-5 years 86 951 72724 54 502 45 187

Later than 5 years 10 975 8981 12 054 o7
153718 125 464 108 308 88 859

Unearned finance income 28 254 19 449

At 31 March 2007, unguaranteed residual values of £2 220 000 (2004 £2 |17 000) have been accrued

36 Cash flow reconaliauons

For the year to 31 March 2007 2006

£'000

Reconailiation of operating profit to net operating cash flows

Operaung profit afcer taxation 469 154 367 411

Adjustment for non cash tems included in operating profit.

Goodwill ncome statement amount (2 569) 21 356

Depreciation and tmpairment of property, equipment and mtangibles £3 315 7 741

Imparment of loans and advances 16 530 7 160

Operating income from associates (iC 685) (6 694)

Dwidends receved from associates 4699 1 455

Share based payment charges 33 9%0 19 221

Reconatiation of operating profit to net operating cash flows 524 434 419 650




At 3] March 2007 2006
£'000

37 Commitments

Undrawn facilitias | 507 542 | | 068 591
QOther commitments 37 398 |1 033

| 544 940 | | 079 624

The group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts and loan commutments in the normal
course of its banking business for which the fair value is recorded on balance sheet

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operatng leases

Less than | year 32729 28 103
I-5 years 130 112 113 663
Later than 5 years 197 371 331 147

360212 472913

At 31 March 2007, Investec was obligated under a number of operating leases for properties, computer
equipment and office equipment for which the future minimum lease payments extend over a number
of years The annual escalation clauses range between 8% and 13 5% percent per annum The majority
of the leases have renewal aplicns

Operating lease receivables
Future msrimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Less than | year 34 497 946
I-5 years 69 966 | 730
Later than 5 years 10 577 122

115 040 2798

Investec leases assets to third parties under operating and finance lease arrangements including transport
assets, machinery and property The term of the leases range between 3 and 5 years with no annual
escalation clauses The majority of the leases have renewal options

38 Conungent habilities

Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security

- guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 429 684 396 544
- assets pledged as collateral security 3565 403
Other contingent habiities 807 &1 021

430 856 457 968
The amounts shown above are intended only to provide an indication of the volume of business outstanding at the balance sheet date

Guarantees are 1ssued by Investec plc and Investec Lmited on behalf of third parties and other group companies
The guarantees are issued as part of the banking business

Legal proceedings

investec 15 party to various legal proceedings, the ultimate resolution of of which s not expected o have a material adverse effect on
the financial position of the group

A number of legat actions have been instituted agawnst investec Employee Benefits Limited (IEB) a subsidrary of Investec Limited, which
they are defending The legal claims were insututed agamnst IEB by vanous industrial pension and prowident funds The legal claims are
based primanily on allegations that IEB breached certan alleged implied terms of policies 1ssued by them [EB will only have an obligation
1o pay the legal claims once a final judgement has been made IEB's legal representative has adwised that the funds have a difficult claim
to prove and there is a reasonable prospect that IEB will successfully defend the ciaims IEB's insurers have mmdicated that the possible
claims are covered by existing insurance cover, subject to any policy exclusions

ro
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

39 Related party transactions

For the year to 31 March 2007 2006
£'000
Compensation to the Board of Directors and other key management personnel*
Short-term employee benefits 30 240 20 391
Share-based payment 3858 3008
34 098 23 399
*  Key management personnel are board directors and members of the global operations forum
2007 2006
Highest Balance at Highest Balance at
balance year end* balance year end*
during the during the
year* year*

Transactions, arrangements and agreements involving directors
and others
Particulars of transactions, arrangements and agreements entered into by
the group with directors and connected persons and companies controlled
by them, and with officers of the company, were as follows
Directors, key management and connected persons and companies
controlled by them
Loans 44 638 41 718 19 734 18 363
Guaraniees 1043 i 043 1 933 1 933
Other (10 704) {7 308) (11 480) {7 386)

34 977 33 453 10 187 12910
The above transactions were made in the ordinary course of business and
on substantially the same terms including interest rates and security as for
comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing or, where
applicable, with other employees The transactions did not invalve more
than the normal nisk of repayment.
Transactions with other related parties
S Koseff GR Burger B Kanter IR Kantor, HS Herman and DE Jowel have
an interest in Spurwing P-Investments Lirnited and Spurwing L-Investrments
Limrted, which jointly amount to a holding of 32 3% and |12 02%
respectively Loans were provided to these entities by lnvestec Bank
(Mauntius) Limited on an arms length, fully secured basts These loans were
repaid dunng the current year
Spurwing-P nvestments Limited 3 694 - 4 060 3694
Spurwing-L lnvestments Limited 1 Q50 - | 154 1 050
Other loans
Funding provided to finance the Black Economic Empowerment deat
Tiso Group Limited 22 490 20 175 7764 7764
Amounts due from associates 62 121 70 351 62 Gi5 57 440

The above oulstanding balances arose from the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms including interest rates

and securry as for comparable transactions with third party counterparties

*  The disclosure of the year end balance and highest baiance during the year 1s considered the most meaningful information to

represent transactions dunng the year




39 Related parry transactions (continued)

The group have provided Rensburg Sheppards plc with a £60 milhon subordinated loan facility which was entered into on & May 2005
The loan formed part of the consideration paid by Rensburg Sheppards ple for the acqursiion of Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite Limited
on that date The interest recenvable on the loan during the year amounted to £4 305 00 (2006 £3 858 000) and nterest of
£1 718 000 was at 31 March 2007 (2006 £1 679 000)

40 Post balance sheet events

40 | Acquisiion of Kensington Group plc

On 30 May 2007, the combined boards of Investec plc and Investec Limited ("Investec”) and the board of Kensington Group ple
(“Kensington") announced that they had reached agreement on the terms of a recommended acquisition of the entire 1ssued and to
be issued share capital of Kensington by Investec ("the Offer”) It s intended that the Offer be implemented by way of a scheme of
arrangement under section 425 of the Companies Act of United Kingdom ("The Scheme”)

Under the terms of the Offer, each Kensinglon shareholder will recesve 07 Irvestec plc share plus a special dwidend of 26 pence
(payable by Kensington) for each Kensmgton Share, valuing each Kensington Share at 5195 pence per share based on an Investec plc
share pnice of 705 pence per share on 29 May 2007 being the last business day prior to the announcement, and the entre 1ssued and
Lo be issued share capital of Kensington at approximately £283 millon The new Investec plc shares will not qualfy for the proposed
Investec final dwidend of |3p per share for the year ended 3| March 2007

The Offer 15 condiional on the approval of the Scheme by Kensington's shareholders and the sanction of the Court for a capital
reduction The acquisition 15 also subject to regulatory approvals

40 2 Disposal of the Property Fund Management and Property Administration Business of Investec Property Group Limited

Investec Property Group Limited ( IPG ) has agreed to dispose of its properly fund management business and its property
administration  business, collectively the Property Services businesses as a going concern to Growthpoint Properties Limited
(' Growthpoint '} ("the proposed transaction )

IPG 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Limited (“Investec™) and rts operations include property development, property fund
management, propertly administration and listed property investment management The property development and iisted property
Investment management businesses will not form part of the proposed transaction

The effective date of the proposed transaction, which 1s subject to the suspensive conditions set out below s | July 2007

Growthpoint has agreed to acquire IPG's interest in the Property Services businesses, for a purchase consideration of RY 393 649 600
{one billlon three hundred and ninety three million and six hundred and forty nine thousand six hundred rand), (“the purchase
consideration’ ) The purchase consideration will be settled through the issue of 87 103 100 new Growthpaint linked umits at a price
of 1600 cents per nked unit, ex distribution for the & month period ending 30 June 2007

The proposed transaction 1s subject, inter alia, to the fulfillment of the following suspensive conditions

+  The signing of binding legal agreements beltween IPG Investec Limited Growthpont and Grawthpaont's BEE partners

«  Granung of all regulatory approvals as may be required from various authorities ncluding the Competition Authorities

*  Growthpoint obtaining approval for the proposed transaction from the requisite majority of its inked unitholders i a general
meeting

4} Hedges

The group uses derratives for the management of financial risks relabing to its asset and habihity portfollos mainly associated with non-
Irading interest rate risks and exposures to foreign currency risk. Most non-trading mierest rate nisk 1s transferred from the onginating
business to the central Treasury n the Capital Markets business Once aggregated and netted,Treasury, as the sole interface to the
wholesale market for cash and dervative transactions actively manages the hquidity mismatch and non-trading interest rate rnisk from
our asset and liability portfolios In this regard, Treasury 1s required to exercise Light control of funding iquidity, concentration and non-
trading interest rate risk within defined parameters

The accounting treatment of accounting hedges 18 dependant on the classification between fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and in
particular accounting hedges require ihe identification of a direct relationship between a hedged item and hedging instrument This
relationship 15 established in hrruted crcumnstances based on the manner in which the group manages its risk exposure Below 1s a
description of each category of accounting hedge achieved by the group

Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges are entered nto mamnly 1o hedge the exposure of changes in fair value of fixed rate financial instruments attributable
to interest rates
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

41 Hedges (conunued)

At 31 March Description} Far value | Cumulauve | Current | Cumulauve | Current
£'000 of financial | of hedging gains or year gams gams or year gains
2007 instrument | instrument | losses on or losses losses on or losses
designated hedging | on hedging hedged on hedged
as hedging instrument | instrument item item
mnstrument
Assets Interest rate 5198 | 499 | 200 (1 793) (I 638)
swap
Lizbiblies Interest rate |7 077 (242) 5 196 856 (4 493)
swap
Fx currency 102 348 (102) (348) 102
swap
22377 | 605 6294 {1 285} (6 029)
2006 Descripuon | Far value | Cumulauve | Cumulative
of financial | of hedging gains or gains or
instrument | instrument | losses on losses on
designated hedged hedged
as hedging item item
instrument
Assets Interest rate 9434 6 455 (7 097)
swap
Liabiliuies Interest rate 18 500 (352) 811
swapg
Fx currency 451 451 451y
swap
Fx swap (297) (297) 297
28 088 6 257 (6 440)

Cash flow hedges

The group 15 expased to varability in cash flows on future labilities arising from changes in base interest rates The aggregate expected
cash flows are hedged based on cash flow forecasts with reference to terms and conditions present in the affected contractual
arrangements Changes in fair value are iniwally recognised in equrty and transferred to the income statement when the cash flow
occurs The nominal expected future cash flows that are subject to cash flow hedges are

At 31 March 2006 Description| Fair value Period Ineffecuve
£'000 of financial | of hedging | cash flows portion
istrument | Istrument are recognised
designated expected | in prinapal
as hedging to occur | transactions
instrument
Assets Fx contract 30 monthly
until Jul'06
Liabiities Cross 134 quarterly
currency swap until fan'08




41 Hedges {conunued}

At 31 March
£'000

2007

2006

Reconciliation of cash flow hedge reserve

At beginming of year

Changes in farr value recogrised directly in equity
Amounts removed from equity and recognised in income
At end of year

Hedges of net investments n foreign operations

The group has entered into foreign exchange contracts 1o hedge the exposure of the Investec plc group balance sheet Lo s net

investment, in Australan Dollars, in the Australian operations of the group

164
79
{243)

164

164

At 3| March Fair value | Ineffective
£'000 of hedging portion

instrument | recognised

n principal

transactions

2007 {2 982) -

2006 (2411 -
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42 Maturity analysis

At 31 March 2007 Demand Up to One Three Six One Greater Total
£'000 one month manths months year than
month to three 1o six to one to five five
months months year years years

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 90 780 H 971 - - - - 102 751
Loans and advances to banks 483 771 | | 669 426 152 642 163 570 | 039 6 521 2476 969
Cash equivalent advances 10
customers 525408 162 510 - - - - 687 918
Reverse repurchase agreements
and cash collateral on securiies
borrowed 2185322 - - - - - 12185322
Trading securities I 095 494 475 462 171 635 202722 105 042 42 381 58300 | 2151036
Derwvatrve financial instruments 542 352 40 964 8 835 18 143 79 445 82 490 2263 724 492
Investment securities 60439 249 506 398 581 241 215 510944 308 402 7514 | 1776 601
Laans and advances to customers 574 858 423 717 642 275 676 559 996 253 | 4401 094 | 2 475 486 {10 190 252
Other assets* 673 097 524 069 102 620 41 270 10423 42 620 592427 | 1 986 526

6231521 | 3557635 | 1476588 | | 343479 | 1653 146 | 4 883 508 | 3 135 990 {22 28) 867
Liabibties
Deposits by banks 60 391 704 227 57 235 61 533 14t 7751 | 161 689 160 245 | 2 347 095
Dervative financial instruments 44| 64| 8736 - t 882 16250 41 410 - 509919
Repurchase agreements and cash
collateral on securties lent | 765 671 - - - - - -1 1765 671
Customer accounts 3773974 | | 382 369 | 2683 826 572 632 511 847 395018 65182 | 9 384 848
Debt secunties in 1ssue (N} 447 32 640 092 551 965 | 1 019 201 668 B4 6269 13333716
Other habilties** 899 736 742 434 125277 187 454 51033 196 362 73454 | 2275750

694 412 { 3285087 | 3506430 | |1 375466 | | 740 106 | 2 463 348 305 150 {19616 999
Subordinated liabilives {including
convertible debt) - - - - 485 047 345 658 830 705
Equity - - - - - -1 18341631 1834163

6941 412 { 3285087 | 3506430 | 1 375466 | | 740 106 | 2 948 395 | 2 484 971 |22 2B} 867
Liquidity gap (709 891) 272 548 [(2 029 842) (31 987) (86 960)| 1935113 651 019 -
Cumulative hquidity gap {709 891)| (437 343)((2 467 185){{2 499 172)|(2 586 132)| (651 019) - -

* Includes deferred taxation assets other assets, property and equipment, iInvestment properties, goodwill and intangible assets

** Includes other trading habilities current taxation labilities, deferred taxation labilities and other habilities

The above table excludes assets and labifities relating to the long-term assurance business atributable to policyholders

For further |AS 32 risk disclosures please refer to
Credit risk - tables on pages 79 to 80

Interest rate risk - tables on pages 88 and 89

Liquidity sk - pages 91 and 93




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

42 Matunity analysis (contmued)

At 3| March 2006 Demand Up to One Three Six One Greater Total
£°000 one month months months year than
month to three o six to one to five five
months months year years years

Assets
Cash and bafances at central banks| 190 838 - - - - - - 190 838
Loans and advances to banks 309 109 | | 510 444 6517 - - 4058 475 | 1 830 603
Cash equivalent advances o
customers 660 236 30 000 - - - - - 690 236
Reverse repurchase agreements
and cash collateral on secunties
borrowed 748 793 - 7852 - - - - 756 645
Trading securities 632013 458 805 287 903 205 915 12 708 8118 34 626 | | 640088
Denwvatve financial instruments | 002 130 1613 4 669 - 4 146 52833 14 886 | | 081 287
Investment securties 6 305 239 236 234 217 208 B35 395 9/ 153 455 28 654 | | 266 673
Loans and advances to customers| 322 392 335 456 342 408 425709 1 | 154 686 | 4 669 13 | 2 354 025 | 9 604 589
Other assets* 669 359 401 634 26 099 14723 86310 113 662 473753 | 1 779 540

4541 175 | 2978 198 909 665 855182 | 1 647821 | 5002039 | 2906 419 118 840 499
Liabiliues
Deposits by banks 22731 436 (29 153028 202 832 178 499 747 434 138930 ] | 879 483
Derwvative financial instruments 617 336 | 087 20 197 522 29 393 1737 25492 705 764
Repurchase agreements and cash
collateral on securibies lent 358 278 - - - - - - 358 278
Customer accounts | 29052 | 2717 768 | 2 498 247 609 053 508 741 354 496 81 808 | 8 699 165
Debt securities in 1ssue - 307 049 713825 366 755 782 284 780 190 - 12950103
Other habilites** 1175521 375 053 |76 954 103 216 172218 168 976 33821 | 2205759

4102918 | 3836986 | 3562251 | 1282378 | 1 671 135 | 2062 833 280051 i6 798 552
Subordinated habilities {including
convertible debt) - - - 253 699 276 155 529 854
Equity - - - - - S| 4512093 ] 1512093

4102918 13836986 | 3562251 | 1282378 | 1671 135 | 2316532 | 2068299 |18 B40 499
Liquidity gap 438 257 | (BS58 788){(2 652 586)| (427 196)| (23 314)| 2 685 507 838 120 -
Cumulative hquidity gap 438 257 | (420 531)1{3 073 117)|(3 500 313} (3 523 627)| (838 120} -

-

** Includes other trading habiliies current taxation labirties, deferred taxation habihities and other habiltties

The above table excludes assets and habilities relating to the long-term assurance business atributable 1o policyholders

Includes deferred taxation assets other assets property and equipment, investment properties goodwill and intangble assets
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Principal subsidiary companies Principal activity Country of Interest
At 31 March incorporatton % %
2007 2006
43 Principal subsidiaries and associated companies
- Investec plc
Direct subsidiartes of investec ple
Investec Holding Company Limied Investment holding England and Wales 100 100
Indirect subsidiaries of Investec ple
Investec Bank (Australia) Limited Banking Institution Australia 100 100
Investec Australia Limited (formerly N Rothschilds
& Sons (Australia) Limited) Holding company Australia t00 -
Investec SA Investmert holding Luxembourg 100 G0
Investec Holdings (UK} Limrited Holding company England and Wales F00 100
Investec | Limited Investmenit holding England and Wales 100 100
Investec Bank (UK) Limited Banking institution England and Wales 100 100
Investec Group (UK) PLC Holding company England and Wales 100 100
Investec Asset Finance PLC Leasing company England and Wales 100 100
Investec Finance ple Debt 1ssuer England and Wales 100 100
Investec Group Investments (UK) Lirmited Investment holding England and Wales 100 100
Investec Investment Holdings AG Investment holding Switzerland i00 100
Guinness Mahon & Co Limited Investment holding England and Wales 100 100
Investec Bank {Channel Islands) Limited Banking institution Guernsey 100 100
Investec Bank {Switzerland) AG Banking institution Switzerland 100 100
Investec Trust (Guernsey) Limited Trust Company Guernsey 100 160
Investec Trust (Switzerfand) SA Trust Company Switzerland 100 100
investec Trust (Jersey) Limited Trust Company jersey 100 100
investec Asset Management Limited Asset Management England and Wales 100 100
Investec lreland Limited Financial Services Irefand 100 100
investec Securities (US) LLC Financial Services USA 100 -
European Capital Company Limited Project Finance England and Wales 100 100
Global Ethanel Holdings Limited Holding company Australa 714 100
GEH LLC (formally Midwest Grain
Processors LLC) Production and marketing
of Ethanal USA 428

IdaTech LLC Development of fuel

cell technology USA 867
All of the above subsidiary undertakings are included
In the consolidated accounts
Principal associated companies
Rensburg Sheppards plc Stockbrokmg and portfoho

managernerit England and Wales 4733 4778
Hargreave Hale Limited Stockbroking and portfoho

management England and Wales 35 35




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Princtpal subsidiary compamies Principal activity Country of Interest
At 31 March incorporation % %
2007 2006
44 Principal subsidiartes and associated companies
- Investec Limited
Direct subsidiaries of Investec Limited
Investec Asset Management Holdings (Pty) Ltd Investment holding South Africa 100 100
Investec Assurance Ltd Insurance company South Africa 100 t00
Investec Bank Ltd Registered Bank South Africa 100 100
lnvestec Employee Benefits Holdings (Ply} Ltd investment holding South Africa 100 100
investec Int. (Gibraltar) Limited Investment helding Gibraltar 100 100
Investec Secunties Ltd Registered Stock Broker South Africa 100 $00
Fedsure international Ltd Investment helding South Africa 100 100
Investec Property Group Holdings Ltd Investrrent holding South Africa 100 100
Indirect subsidiares of Investec Limited
Investee Asset Management (Pty) Ltd Asset management South Africa 100 100
Investec Insurance Brokers (Pty) Lid Insurance broking South Africa 100 100
Investec International Heldings (Pty) Ltd Investment holding South Africa 100 100
Investec Fund Managers SA Ltd Unit trust management South Africa 100 100
Investec Bank (Maurws) Ltd Banling institution Mauritius 100 100
Investec Property Group Ltd Property trading South Africa 100 100
Reichrrans (Pty) Lid Trade financing South Africa 100 00
Investec Employee Benefits ttd Long-term Insurance South Africa 100 100

investec Limited has no equity interest in the following special purpose vehicles, which are consolidated on the basis of the group

sharing in the majority of the risks and rewards associated with the entities

Peu Il Ltd

Securttisation entities
Private Mortgages | (Pty) Ltd
Private Mortgages 2 (Pty) Ltd
Private Mortgages 3 (Pty) Ltd
Private Residential Mortgages (Pty) Ltd
Private Commercial Mortgages (Pty) Ltd
Grayston Condurt | (Pty) Ltd

South Africa

South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
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Investec plc parent company accounts

Balance sheet

At 31 March Notes 2007 2006
£'000
Assets
Cash at bank and in hand
- balances with subsidiary undertaking 43 855 75 885
- balances with other banks 997 | 408
Amounts owed by group un‘der‘takmgs 377 030 230 759
Investments in subsidiaries b 421 446 421 446
Tax 11 8% 9787
Other assets 30 50
Prepayments and accrued income - 1 493
B5S 254 740 828
Liabilines
Bank loans c 137 262 138 930
Amounts owed to group undertakings 145 834 [4) 802
Other liabilties | 023 1 546
Accruals and deferred income 3993 13937
288 112 296 215
Equity
Called up share capital d 122 [t9
Share premium d 422 229 393 267
Perpetual preference shares d 129 558 -
Capital redemplion reserve d 50 50
Treasury shares d (1 197) (2 309
Profit and loss account d 16 380 53 4856
Total equity 567 142 444 613
Total equity and habilities 855 254 740 828




Notes to Investec plc parent company accounts

a

Accounung polices

Basis of preparauon
The parent company accounts of Inveslec plc are prepared under the histoncal cost convention and i accordance with UK
Accounting Standards

Foreign currencies

Manetary assets and liabiities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date
All foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the tme of the transaction Forward
foreign exchange contracts are revalued at the market rates ruling at the date apphcable to their respective maturises Any gan or
loss arising from a change in exchange rates subsquent to the date of the transaction 1s included as an exchange gain or loss in the

profit and loss account.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less any imparrment in value

Income

Dwvidends from subsidiaries are recogrused when paid Interest 1s recognised on an accruals basis

Taxauon
Corporation tax 15 provided on taxable profits at the current rate

b investments in subsidiaries

£'000

At beginning and end of year

421 446

¢ The company drew down on two Schuldschen loans of el 00 milion on 8 and 9 of March 2006 These loans each bear interest

at 90 basis ponts above three month EURIBOR and are repayable on 8 and 9 of March 201 |

d Statement of changes in shareholders equity

£000 Share Share | Perpetual | Treasury | Capal Profit Total
capital | premium |preference| shares |redempuon) and loss | reserves
shares reserves | account
At 1 Apri 2006 119 | 393267 - {2309 50 53486 | 444613
Allotment of special converung shares 2 - - - - - 2
Issue expenses - 23)1 (1 829} - - (1 652)
Issue of ordinary shares I 28 985 - - - - 28 986
Issue perpetual preference shares - - 131187 - -1 131187
Share based payments adjustment - - - b2 (F112) -
Profit for the year - - - - 31959 31 959
Cwvidends pad to ordinary shareholders - - - - - | (67953)] (67 953)
At 3| March 2007 122 | 422229 | 129558 (1 197) 50 16 380 | 567 142

Parent company profit and loss account

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in 5230 of the Companies Act 1985 not to present its own profit and loss account
The company's profit for the year determined in accordance with the Act, was £30 847 27t (2006 - £81 348 781}

Treasury shares

£'000 2007 2006
Treasury shares held by Investec plc

Investec plc ordinary shares | 197 2 309
Number of Investec plc ordinary shares held by Investec plc Number Number
At tApri 00 000 100 000
Restated for effect of | 5 share spht 400 000 -
At 31 March 500 000 100 000
Reconctauon of treasury shares

At | Apni 2309 -
Purchase of own shares by Investec pic - 2634
Share based payments adjustment [CAPA] (325)
At 31 March 1197 2309
Market value of treasury shares 3290 294]

The Treasury shares are being held in an employee benefit trust n relation to the Investec Share Matching Plan 2005

Dwvidends on treasury shares have not been included in the profit and loss account.
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Investec Limited parent company accounts

Income statement

For the year to 3| March 2007 2006
R'million

Interest recewable }65 168
Interest payable (78) (173)
Met interest income/(expense} 87 (5)
Principal transactions 867 951
Other income 867 951
Administrative expenses (105) {7)
Operating profit 849 939
Profit on disposal of group operations - 19
Profit before taxation 849 | 058
Taxal:on - 5%
Profit after taxation 849 999




Investec Limited parent company accounts

Balance sheet

At 31 March Notes 2007 2006
R'miflion
Assets
Loans and advances to banks 28 27
Trading securtties | -
Loans and advances to customers 3 5
Other assets - 2
Investment in subsidiartes b 6 561 6023
6593 6 057
Liabihties
Current taxation habiiues 84 84
Other habilities 827 767
91l 851
Subordinated labilities (including convertible debt) 379 379
| 290 | 230
Equity
Ordinary share capital c [ I
Share premium 5 061 48t
Perpetual preference shares d 2309 2 309
Onher reserves 62 62
Retained loss (2 130) (2 356)
Total equity 5303 4 827
Total habihties and shareholders' equity 6 593 6 057
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Investec Limited parent company accounts

Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March Share Share Capital Perpetual Profit Total
R'million capital premium reserve prefer- and loss share-
Investec account account ence account holders
Limited Investec shares equity
Limited
At | April 2005 } 4811 62 2 309 (2 697) 4 486
Retained profit for the year - - - 999 999
Share based payments - - 132 132
Dwidends accrued to ordinary
shareholders - - (687) (687)
Dwvidends accrued to perpetual
preference shareholders - - - (103) (103}
4811 62 2 309 (2 356) 4 827
At | April 2006
Retained profit for the year - - - - 849 849
Share based payments - - - - 234 234
Drwidends accrued to ordinary
shareholders - - - - (690) (690)
Dwidends accrued to perpetual
preference shareholders - - (V67) (167)
Issue of shares - 250 - - - 250
| 5061 62 2 309 {2 130) 51303




Notes to Investec Limited parent company accounts

a Accounting policies

Basis of presentation

The parent company accounts of Investec Limited are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and 1 a manner consistent with the policies disclosed on pages 165 to 173 for the group accounts, except as noted below

Foreign currencies

The presentational and functional currency for Investec Limited parent company 15 South African Rand Al foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded and transalated to the functional currency at the rate apphcable at the time of the transaction

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment 1n subsidiaries are stated at cost less any imparment in value

b Investment in subsidiares

R'mithon 2007 2006

At beginning of year 6023 7178
Acquisition of subsidiary companies - 36
Reversal of impairments - 119
Increase/{decrease) in loans to subsidiaries 436 (1 244)
Exchange adjustments 102 (66)
At end of year 6 561 6023

Al list of the compames principal subsidianes 1s detaled in note 44 of the group accounts on page 229

¢ The company's called up share capital s detaled in note 31 of the group accounts on pages 215 to 216

d The company's perpetual prefeience shares s detaled v note 33 of the group accounts on page 218
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Definitions

Term

Adjusted shareholders equity

Cost 1o income ratio

Dividend cover

Earnings attmibutable 16 ordinary shareholders before
impairment of goodwill and non-operating items

Adjusted earnings per ordinary share before imparment of
goodwill and non-operating items

Effectve tax rate

Headline earnings
Headline earnings per share

Market capitalisation
Net tangible asset value per share
Non-aperating items

Operating profit

Operating profit per employee
Return on average adjusted shareholders’ equity
Return on average adjusted tangible shareholders’ equity

Staff compensation 1o operating income ratio
Third party assets under admirsstratton
Total capital resources

Total equity

Weighted number of ordinary shares i issue

Definrtion

Refer to calculation on page 25

Adminisirative expenses and deprecation dwded by operaung
Income

Adjusted earnings per ardinary share before impairment of
goodwill and non-operating items dvided by dividends per
ordinary share

Refer to pages 23 and 24
Refer to pages 23 and 24

Tax on profit on ordinary actvties dvided by operating profit
(excluding income from assaciates)

Refer to page 24
Refer io page 24

Total number of shares in 1ssue (including Investec plc and
Investec Limited) muitiphed by the closing share price of
Investec plc on the London Stock Exchange

Refer to calculation on page 30

Reflects profits and/or losses on lermination or disposal of
group operations

Operaung ncome less administrative expenses, impairments for
bad and doubtful debts and deprecation of tangible fixed
assets This amount Is before impairment of goodwill and non-
operating items

Refer to calculation on page 33
Refer to calculation on page 25
Refer to calculation on page 25

All employee related costs expressed as a percentage of
aperatng ncome

Includes third party assets under admimstration managed by
the Private Client, Asset Management and Praperty businesses

Includes shareholders’ equity subordinated liabilittes and
munority interests

Total shareholders' equity ncluding minority interests

The number of ordinary shares in issue at the beginning of the
year increased by shares ssued during the year, weighted on a
time basis for the period during which they have participated in
the income of the group less treasury shares Refer to
calculation on page 23




Contact detalls

Investec

Australia, Brisbane Hong Kong

Level 31 71 Riparian Plaza 2106 - 2108 Jardine House
Eagle Street | Connaught Place
Brisbane Queensland 4000 Central Hang Kong
Telephone (61) 7 3018 8100 Telephone (852) 2861 6888
Facsimile (61) 7 3018 8108 Facsimile (852) 2861 6860

e-mail investec asia@nvestecmail com

Ireland, Dublin

Australia, Meloourne
Level 49 120 Collins Street

Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia The Harcourt Bulding
Telephone (61) 3 8660 1000 Harcourt Street Dublin 2
Facsimile (61) 3 8660 1010 Telephone (353) | 421 0000
e-mall australa@investec comau Facsimile (353) | 421 0500

e-mail info@investec e

Australia, Sydney

Level 31 The Chifley Tower Mau rraus, Port Louts

2 Chifley Square 7th Floor Harbour Front Buiding

Sydney NSW 2000 Australia President John Kennedy Street

Telephone (61) 2 9293 2000 Port Lows Maurrtius

Facsumile (61) 2 9293 2323 Telephone (23C) 207 4C00

e-mall australa@investec comau Facsimile (230) 207 4003/2

Botswana, Gaborone e-mall info@nvestec com
Namibia, Windhoek

10 Kgale Mews

Lot |13 Millerium Office Park 5 Conradie Street Ground flocor Investment House

Gaborone Botswana Windhoek Namibia

Telephone (267) 3180112 Telephone (264 61} 249 626

Facsimile (267) 318 0114 Facstrmile (264 61) 249 689

e-mai nfo@investec com e-mail info@invesiec com

Canada, Toronto South Africa, Cape Town

I'st Canadian Place 36 Hans Striidom Avenue Foreshore

100 King Street West Cape Town 8001

Suite 5700 Toronto Ontane PG Box 1826 Cape Town 8000

MSX 1Y Telephone (27 21) 416 1000

Telephone {1 416) 915 3160 Facsimile (27 21) 416 100!

Facsimile {1 416) 915 3165

Channel Islands, St Helier

South Africa, Durban
325 Smuth Street Durban 4001

Investec Trust PC Box 3912 Durban 4000
PO Box 344 Telephone (27 31) 365 4700
5 Castle Street 5t Helier Facsimile (27 31) 365 4800

jersey JE4 BUW

Telephone {44) 1534 512 512
Facsirmile (44) 1534512513
e-mall enquires@investectrust.com

Channel Islands, St Peter Port

PO Box 188 LaViellle Cour La Flaydenie
St Peler Port Guernsey GYI 3LFP
Telephone {44) 1481 723 506

Facsimile (44) (481 741 147

e-mail enguires@investec-ci com
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South Africa, East London

Pilot Mill House The Quarry
Selbourne East London 5247
PO Box 19484 Tecoma 5214
Telephone (27 43) 721 0660
Facsimile (27 43) 721 0664

South Africa, Johannesburg

100 Grayston Drive Sandown Sandton 2196
PO Box 785700 Sandton 2146

Telephone (27 |1} 286 7000

Facsimile (27 11) 286 7777

South Africa, Port Elizabeth

66 Ring Road Greenacres

Farview Office Park investec Building 6045
PO Box 27416 Greenacres 6057
Telephone (27 41) 396 4700

Facsimile {27 41) 363 1664/7

South Africa, Pretoria

Cnr Atterbury ang Klarinet Streets
Mente Park Pretona 0081

PQ Box 1882 Brooklyn Square 0075
Telephone (27 12) 427 8300
Facsimile (27 12) 427 8310

e-mail South African offices

*  Recrutment queries
recruitment@mnvestec coza

«  Client queries

- Assel management comcentre@investecmall com
+ Institutional Securities securities@investec co za
- Prwvate Chent Securties so@investec coza

- Property Group ipg@nwvestec coza
- Private Bank privatebank@investec coza

- Treasury and Specialised Finance info-tsf@investec coza

Switzertand, Geneva

3 Place des Bergues

1204 Geneva Switzerland
Telephone (41) 22 807 2000
Facsimile (41) 22 807 2005
e-mail enquires@nvestectrust ch

Switzerland, Zurich

Talacker 41

CH-8001 Zunch Switzerland
Telephone (41 44) 226 1000
Facsimie (41 44) 226 1010
e-mail info@investecbank.ch

UK, London

2 Grasham Street

Lendon EC2V 7QP
Telephone (44 20) 7597 4000
Facsimile (44 20) 7597 4070

UK, Manchester

The Pinnacle 73 King Street
Manchester M24NG United Kingdom
Telephone (44 161) 819 7900
Facsimile (44 161) 819 7901

e-mail richard heggie@wnwestec couk




